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2017 10
3,893
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2,218
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2018 2017 2,039
2,753
AlA 14 84.80
2018 11 30 2018 12 31
9.50
2019
2018 2017
1,712 62.0% 2,697 1,384 53.7% 2,493 24% 24%
447 73.1% 611 381 73.4% 519 12% 17%
357 65.4% 547 297 69.7% 426 18% 20%
247 63.8% 382 215 62 .5% 340 8% 15%
965 90.5% 1,067 725 83.1% 873 30% 33%
435 35.8% 1,206 395 39.9% 973 13% 10%
4,163 63.2% 6,510 3,397 59.4% 5,624 21% 23%
(56) n/m n/m (61) n/m n/m n/m n/m
(152) n/m n/m (130) n/m n/m n/m n/m
3,955 60.0% 6,510 3,206 56.0% 5,624 22% 23%
2018 22 3,955
15 6,510 3.7 60.0
2017 10
72
26 2,943
18 4,179
70.4
2017 IFA 11
18
2018 24 1,712
8.3 62.0
AlA 30 965
2018 13 12
447
2018
18
65.4 HealthShield 2018 10
2018
247 13 435
208
2017 23 8,278 22
3,955 3,893
603 2010 1PO
20
2017 110 16.3
2018 2017
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68.86 55.44 23% 24%
2018 2017

8,278 6,654 23% 24%
¢ 12,056 12,039 n/a n/a
¢ 68.66 55.27 23% 24%

A. 2018 12 31

39
2018 12 31 3,738 54,517
2,218
270 AlA
1,037
1,589 111
918 807
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20,974 29,805 50,779
(918) - (918)
487 320 807
431) 320 11D
(660) 4,615 3,955
4,550 (657) 3,893
355 257 612
29 (38) ©)
(173) - (173)
4,101 4,177 8,278
(1,428) (790) (2,218)
®) 50 47
3,452 (3,182) 270
6,122 255 6,377
(1,589) - (1,589)
98 - 98
(537) (500) (1,037)
24,637 29,880 54,517
2017
16,862 25,986 42,848
(591) 3,797 3,206
4,154 (846) 3,308
297 64 361
(229) 146 (83)
(138) - (138)
3,493 3,161 6,654
1,272 61 1,333
) (185) (192)
387 (741) (354)
5,145 2,296 7,441
(1,376) - (1,376)
134 - 134
209 1,523 1,732
20,974 29,805 50,779
2018
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
54,517 50,779
1,686 1,650
56,203 52,429

IFRS
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2018 12 31 2018 2017 12 31 2017
54,517 3,955 50,779 3,206
10 736 n/a 750 n/a
10 (731) n/a (743) n/a
50 158 142 49 162
50 (249) (184) (456) (225)
IFRS
IFRS
2018 2017
1,814 1,627 11% 11%
995 868 9% 15%
558 513 7% 9%
320 274 9% 17%
870 643 32% 35%
826 742 14% 11%
(85) (32) n/m n/m
5,298 4,635 13% 14%
13 5,298 2018
11 2018
32
2018
2018
14
2017
40 14.5
2018 2017
11,444 9,535 20% 20%
3,895 3,559 5% 9%
2,738 2,435 10% 12%
2,083 1,848 6% 13%
4,006 3,118 26% 28%
6,377 5,898 10% 8%
30,543 26,393 14% 16%
2017 14 30,543
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IFRS
2018 2017
6,125 5,500 10% 11%
1,951 1,689 14% 16%
8,076 7,189 11% 12%
IFRS 2017 11 8,076
2018 2017
2,171 2,019 7% 8%
2,171 2017 7.6
7.1
2018 2017
5,298 4,635 13% 14%
(G (2,063) 2,040 n/m n/m
¢ e ) (212) (84) n/m n/m
(S (148) (25) n/m n/m
(G 42) @) n/m n/m
) (236) (63) n/m n/m
2,597 6,496 (60)% (60)%
IFRS
IFRS
AIA IFRS IFRS 2017 60
2,597
2017 2,040 2,063
2018 AlIA
148 42
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2018 2017
36,413 29,653
2,597 6,496
(11) (10)
(1.589) (1,376)
8 88
(732) 1,409
109 153
382 6,760
36,795 36,413
36,604 33,034
IFRS AlA
2018 2017 2018
2017 33,034 3,570 36,604
2018 12 31 36,795 1,589
732
2,597
A. 2018
12 31 37
IFRS
2018 IFRS 12 44.07
2018 IFRS
60 21.60
IFRS —
C D C
2018 2017 2018 2017
2,597 6,496 5,298 4,635
12,021 12,002 12,021 12,002
21.60 54.12 44.07 38.62
IFRS  —
C ) C )
2018 2017 2018 2017
2,597 6,496 5,298 4,635
¢ 12,056 12,039 12,056 12,039
€ ) 21.54 53.96 43.94 38.50
A. 2018 12 31
39
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2,165 14,751 AIA
1,886 497
AIA 263
13 4,945
10 1,540
795
1,589
2018 2017
12,586 9,940
2018 AlA
1,886 -
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97) -
4,945 4,568
(1,540) (1,386)
(795) 1,039
(170) (195)
(1,589) (1,376)
) (©)
14,751 12,586
2018 12 31 10,296
2017 2,039 714 2,753
2018
2019
319
1,490
500 1,001
1,589 918
2018

9,714 8,404
(85) (32)
1,054 952
149 467
267 238
185 192
542 207
556 17)
2,753 2,039
(918) -
1,001 514
1y (10)
(1,589) (1,376)
(569) 175
10,296 9,714
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IFRS

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
186,142 179,503 4%
4,794 4,363 10%
2,451 1,922 28%
24,626 21,950 12%
11,793 10,908 8%
229,806 218,646 5%
172,649 159,685 8%
4,954 3,958 25%
12,797 11,447 12%
190,400 175,090 9%
39,406 43,556 (10)%
400 380 5%
AIA 39,006 43,176 (10)%
36,795 36,413 1%

2018 2017
43,176 34,555
2,597 6,496
(4,552) 1,861
(¢5)) 10)
(1,589) (1,376)
8 88
(732) 1,409
109 153
(4,170) 8,621
39,006 43,176
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
171,337 88% 162,676 87%
23,938 12% 24,815 13%
195,275 100% 187,491 100%
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

4,765 20% 4,720 19%
81 - 97 -
18,418 77% 19,522 79%
672 3% 466 20
2 — 10 -
23,938 100% 24,815 100%
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
C )
14,121 8% 11,470 7%
30,183 18% 28,403 18%
2,179 1% 2,245 1%
— 46,483 27% 42,118 26%
13,892 8% 12,498 8%
888 1% 761 -
395 - 201 _
148 - 82 —
61,806 36% 55,660 34%
C )
49,317 20% 45,693 28%
41,835 24% 42,583 26%
5,132 3% 5,868 4%
— 96,284 56% 94,144 58%
5,789 3% 6,059 4%
5,794 4% 5,305 3%
1,384 1% 1,255 1%
280 - 253 -
109,531 64% 107,016 66%
171,337 100% 162,676 100%
A. 2018 12 31
20
A. 2018 12 31
20
2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 218,646 11,160 229,806
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 187,491 7,784 195,275
2018 12 31 195,275 171,337
23,938
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 136,262 142,767 A
2017 12 31
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 42 44
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 52 50
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 18,557
19,681 1,124
13,892
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 1,922 529 2,451
1,490 500
1,589
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
6,066 6,682
2018 12 31 2017 12
31 21,950 24,626
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 10,908
11,793
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31 175,090 190,400
2018 12 31
2017 12
31 159,685 172,649
2018 12 31 1,490
500 4,954
A. 2018 12 31
29 2014 500
2019
11.2 2017 12 31 8.3
2018 12 31 2017 12 31 11,447
12,797
A. 2018 12 31
42
HKIA
AlA
2018 12 31 AlA
9,208 AlIA 2017 12 31 446
421
AlIA
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
9,208 8,395
100 2,189 1,882
421% 446%
2018 12 31
GMTN
60 GMTN 2018 500 3,900
2018 500 2018 500
3.90 2028 2018 3,900
2.76 2021 2018 500 LIBOR
0.52 2021 2018 500
2018 12 31 GMTN 4,954
2019 16
2.95 3.5 1,300 3.68 12 1,100
307
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2018 12 31 AlA
Credit Risk AA Very Strong
AA- Very Strong

AA- Very High Credit Quality
A Strong

AlA
9.50

2019
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Aa2 Very Low

A2 Low Credit Risk
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2018 100
100
ASB
A. 2018 12 31

2018 12 31 13 14A

2018 12 31 13
A. 2018 12 31
41 14A
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2018 12 31
)
AlIA
30,000
AlA 322'330 629,506,770 776
11,167
120,206
102,000
AIA 1’102’330 3,644,627,126 1,766
98,710
1,062,504
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()

AlIA

AIA

47,000

41,031

505,000
49

441,659

309,810,000

489

AIA

158,000
1,698,000
23

66,880

719,900

653,749,145

2,760

AlA

41,000

446,000

5
62,753

,830

566,501,320

690

AlA

178,000
1,918,000

400,379,274

130

AIA

200,000
2,150,000

125

2,500

AlA Bhd.

27
136,302

1,467,292

33
59,826

643,962

176,056,912

1,917

16,000

2019

2023

113,000

AIA AIA 90,000
2018 11 2019

AlA Bhd. 2018 12 31
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2018 12 31
) 12,077,063,781 )
2018 12 31
12,077,063,781
12,077,063,781
2018 12 31
2013 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2014 31 754,859C ) 12,044,754 ,860 1,917¢ 13,961
2014 11 30 362,365¢C ) 12,045,117,225 1 13,962
2015 31 2,179,991C ) 12,047,297,216 5 13,967
2015 11 30 1,052,103C ) 12,048,349,319 4 13,971
2016 31 1,099,384 12,049,448,703 2 13,973
2016 11 30 7,002,323 12,056,451,026 25 13,998
2017 31 17,599,066 12,074,050,092 66 14,064
2017 11 30 491,364 12,074,541,456 1 14,065
2018 30 1,667,228 12,076,208,684 14,069
2018 12 31 855,097 12,077,063,781 4 14,073
2014 11 30 1,117,224 754,859 2014
31
2014 31 1,917 a 2014 1,914
2014 b
2015 11 30 2,190,404 1,138,301 2015
31 2015 11 30 1,041,690
2015 31
2016 11 30 7,174,665 172,342 2016
31 2016 11 30 927,042
2016 31
2017 11 30 17,053,136 16,561,772 2017
31 2017 11 30 1,037,294
2017 31
2018 12 31 13 1,355,304 500,207 2018
30 2018 12 31 13 1,167,021
2018 30
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
30,403,944 27.35 67.15
2018 12 31 13 2010 28 RSU 11,617,538
RSU
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A. 2018 12 31 39
2018 12 31 13 2011 25
1,409,739 841,108
A. 2018 12 31
39
2018 12 31 13 1,439,468
1,167,021 1,167,021
1.00 Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited 2018 27
69.00
1.17 2018 12 31
4,173,047
0.035
A. 2018 12 31
39
2018 12 31
20,010 23,373,129 0.194%
63 529,002 0.004%
3 12,053,161,650 99.802%
20,076 12,077,063,781 100%
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2018 12 31 336
2018 12 31
S
P
. 1,088,254,932(L) 9.01
19,556,741(S) 0.16
737,449,866(P) 6.10
1,071,693,611(L) 8.87
280,300, 460(S) 2.32
748,065, 678(P) 6.19
984,372,860(L) 8.15
743,672,359(L) 6.15
4,243,480(S) 0.03
732,874,388(P) 6.06
629,705,868(L) 5.21
2,007,714(S) 0.01
P 10179
383
19801
1209
90071
333 55
10043 388
19801 1209
JP
4,623,648 1,556,000 491,200 6,687,175 1,082,000 10,685,300 1,725,066 5,889,375
— - - - - - 280,300,460 -
- - 3,593,080 - - - - -
4,224,852 - 926,370 96,400 300,000 - 879,080 3,064,400
- - - 182,000 - - - 818,114
2018 12 31 12,077,063,781
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100,979,108

249,550,900

19,556,741

275,058

737,449,866

1,071,693,611

280,300,460

2,800

10,795,171

4,243,480

732,874,388

2018 12 31

336
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AIA
2018 30
25.62
2018 12 31
12 74.38
30 2018 12 31
2018 28
2019
2019 22
2018 12 31
6,488 2017 11 30

29.

28
13

RSU

3,315

20

14

49,036,565
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
11 30 11 30 11 30 11 30 12 31
45.65 58.20 54.15 69.15 75.00
651.88 831.10 773.26 987.46 1,071.00
34.65 38.85 36.85 42.65 58.20
494.80 554.78 526.22 609.04 831.10
2018 11 30 12 31 2018 2017 12 2018 12 31
13
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
69.80 70.10 70.10 69.50 66.05 67.00
996.74 1,001.03 1,001.03 992.46 943.19 956.76
66.05 65.25 61.50 58.20 59.65 61.00
943.19 931.77 878.22 831.10 851.80 871.08
2018 11 30 12 31

75/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

ooooooo
2019 15
10 9.09
2018 12 31
/
j 1038 3,560,400
1055 - 2,410,796
- 1945 12 260,000
j 1950 86,000
1056 75,000
- 1954 13 100,000
1964
- 1944 12 12 160,000
- 1959 16
1945
1960
- 81 2010 27
2011 2017 23
AIA AIG 58
2009 2010 12 AIA 2000 2009
1983 2000 2005 2015
2012 2014
2004 2014
2001 1998
2002 2018
2003 2017
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64 2017
2010 10
38 2017
2010
AlA AlA
2008 12 2010 Great Eastern Holdings
Limited 1989 2008
Prudential plc 2005 2008
Prudential Corporation Asia Limited
1980 AlA
2014 24 Financial Services Professional
Board 1985 1979
- 74 2010 28
2012 26
2007 2010 AlA
Chief Executive’ s Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development
2013 10 2015 12
2011 2017 1985
1992 2007 2015 2002
2015 2000
2007 2007
2013 2008 2018
- 68 2010 28
2012
2017 2016
2017 19 2017 18
2018 Human
Resources Planning Commission 2019 InnoHK InnoHK Steering
Committee 2011 2000
2015 2013
2018 2012 2018
2003 2011
2001 2003
1997 2001
2008 2014
1997 2008 2012 2014
62 2011
2013
2017 12
2016 20 2011 20 2017
26 2012 12 2017
26 2013 12 16 2017 26
2008 2010
2003
1977 1987
2012 2015
2017

77/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

ooooodd
- 64 2012 11
2014
2018
2013
2014 2012
1988 2011
1972 1988
1988
55 2014 24
Sdn Bhd
Sdn Bhd
1998
2004 2018
2019
1985
- 74 2014 18
2007
2017 12
Our Hong Kong Foundation
2011
2004 2010
2010
2014 2013 2018
12 1964
1966 1969
1966 1976
1992 1992 1996
1997 1999
2006
- 59 2015 14
MAS 27
MAS
MAS 2015
MAS MAS 2002 2010
1981
1982 2012
( « )
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73 2016 15
AlIA
2012 11 21 2014 31
2005 12 2010 2007
10 2012 2009 2013 2011 11
2014
MFC
ABICO -
58 2017
2010 2016
2004 2005 Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas Monetary Board
Land Bank of the Philippines
2017 Chevalier dans I’
Ordre national de la Légion d' Honneur 2016 Order of Lakandula, Rank
of Grand Cross (Bayani) 2001 Chevalier de I' Ordre national du
Mérite
1999 2004 SyCip, Gorres,

Velayo & Co. 2002

Andersen Worldwide
Ernst & Young Global Limited

2001 2002
2000 2001 ASEAN
1979 1983
2012
2019 15
13 7.69
2019 15 2019 29
56
AlA AlA
2011
12
2016
IASB IFRS
53
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ING
2011
2009 2010
2005 2008
2001
51
AIA
27
AIA
AXA
1989
55
AlA
AlA
AIA
FSA
CIA
55
AlA
2011
55
57
AlA
CEO
50
AIA
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2012
AlA AlA
AlA
2008 2009
2002 2004 ICICI
AlA
2009
2009 AlA
AlA
2003
ChFC
AlA
31
2009 AIA
AlA
MAAA
AlA AlA
Fasken Martineau
2014
AlA
2015
RCM
UK
2016 AlA
10
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41
2013 ING
Capgemini
A
A 53 AlIA
AlA
CEO
2017 AlA 2013 2016
1996 2009
Chubb Insurance €00
46
AIA 11
2010
AlA
Allianz Group Deloitte
& Touche
42
2018 AlA
2006 2012
MBA
2010
(D)
A. 2018 12 31
40
2018 12 31 SFO XV

SFO 352
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)
() ()
7,901,583(L)C ) 0.06
61,200(L)C O 0.01 )
- 3,460,400(L)¢ ) 0.02
100,000(L)¢ ) 0.01 « O
- 86,000(L)C ) 0.01
- 260,000(L)¢ ) 0.01 C O
75,000(L)C ) 0.01
- 100,000(L)¢C ) 0.01
- 60,000(L)C ) 0.01
100,000(L)C ) 0.01 €
2018 12 31 12,077,063,781
2,349,596 4,309,630 RSU
1,240,152 2,205
61,200
100,000
260,000 - 100
100,000 -
2018 12 31 SFO XV
SFO 352
)
2018 12 31 13
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2018 Report of the Directors Corporate Governance Report

2018 Financial and Operating Review
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13
2018 12 31
10
3.13

12 31

90

13

2018 12 31

2019 15
11

)

11 10
3.13
AIA
2010 27 2017 22

2010
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3.13
13
13 2018 2018
2018
- /7 = 1/1 4/4 4/4 1/1
777 - - - 4/4 1/1
- 3/7 3/4 1/1 4/4 - 1/1
- 6/7 - 1/1 - 4/4 1/1
/7 4/4 1/1 - 4/4 1/1
- 6/7 4/4 1/1 3/4 - 1/1
/7 - 1/1 4/4 - 1/1
- /7 - 1/1 - 4/4 1/1
- /7 - 1/1 - 4/4 1/1
/7 4/4 1/1 - - 1/1
6/7 - 1/1 - - 1/1
www.aia.com
2019 14 Directors

Nomination Policy
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13
2018 12 31 13
10
13
2019 14 Directors’ Nomination Policy
3.13

2013

@

)

(b)

2018 12 31 13
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2018 12 31 13
13
13
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31
13 23.0
2017 11 30 12 20.0
2018 2017
) 16.7 16.0
) 2.0 2.3
1.7 0.9
2.6 0.8
23.0 20.0
2018 12 31 13
0.8 2017 11 30 12 0.8
RMF
RMF
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2018 12 31 13
13 15
www._aia.com
2018
2018 2018 18 72
Grand Bal lroom, 2/F, New World Millennium Hong
Kong Hotel, 72 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong 2018
2018
2017 11 30
2017 11 30 74.38
2018 10
10
2018 10
2.5 RSU
2019 17
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2019 15
AlA
35/F 35/F, AIA Central, No. 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
ir@aia.com
566 568
2.5
50
AlA 35/F 35/F,
AIA Central, No. 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong ir@aia.com
615 616
www.aia.com
13
2019 15
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2018 12 31

2018

2018

2018

2019

2018

2018

15

13
13

2019

AIA

2019

2019
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www.aia.com
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31 13
2018
2018 2019
2018
2019 2019
2017

AlIA
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2018 12 31 13
2019

AlIA

AlA

2018
2018 2018 12 31

2018
2018 2017
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2018
60 10 30
IFRS
11 30 12 31 2017 2017 12
2018 2018 12 31 12
2018 12 31 12 2019
2018 12 31 13
14,925,211
2018 12 31 13 A.
2018 12 31 40
2019
2018
2019
15
30 25
2019
60 25 15
2019
2019
RSU 2010 28 10
A. 2018 12 31
39
AIA
RSU 2020 27 2019

95/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

ooooOood
RSU
RSU
2018 12 31 13 11,617,538 RSU 2010 28
RSU 2018 12 31 RSU 74,681,122
0.620 RSU
2018
2018
2018
(
)
AlA
( C )
)
2018 Dow
Jones Insurance Titans 30 DJITINN 19
2016 2017 DJITINN
50
2018 2018
2015
2018 2014 12 2017 11 30
2015
96.17 2015
2018 12
2019 2016 2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
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2018 DJTINN
19
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31 13
2017 12 2018 121331 2018 121331 15018 12 31 2018 12 31
( x| « D) (® Co (9
12/3/2015| 12/3/2018 ( 4) 283,490 - (272,633) (10,857) -
0/3/2016| 97372019 ( 4) 320,071 - - - 320,071
10/3/2017| 10/3/2020 ( 4) 267,659 - - - 267,659
31/7/2017|  1/6/2020 ( 4) 213,164 - - - 213,164
15/3/2018| 15/3/2021 ( 4) - 439,258 - - 439,258
12/3/2015| 12/3/2018 ( 4) 1,284,096 - (924,739) (359,357) -
1/9/2015 ( 5) 169,688 - (169, 688) - -
0/3/2016| 97372019 ( 4) 1,661,968 - - (364,163) 1,297,805
1/8/2016| 1/8/2019 ( 4) 41,249 - - - 41,249
10/3/2017| 107372020 ( 4) 1,441,875 - - (304,526) 1,137,349
31/7/2017| 17672020 ( 4) 311,947 - - - 311,947
15/3/2018| 15/3/2021 ( 4) - 1,070,214 - - 1,070,214
12/9/2018| 12/9/72021 ( 4) - 61,010 - - 61,010
12/3/2015| 12/3/2018 ( 4) 10,916,765 -] (10,309,414) (607,351) -
1/9/2015| 17972018 ( 4) 20,316 - (19,538) (778) -
9/3/2016|  9/3/2019 ( 4) 13,327,726 - (100,739) (1,224,764) 12,002,223
1/8/2016| 1/8/2019 ( 4) 34,621 - - - 34,621
(D 17/10/2016|  1/8/2019 ( 6) 101,217 - - - 101,217
17/10/2016 (N 41,875 - (20,937) - 20,938
10/3/2017| 107372020 ( 4) 12,134,441 - (46,184) (1,192,358) 10,895,899
31/7/2017|  1/6/2020 ( 4) 28,519 - - - 28,519
15/3/2018| 15/3/2021 ( 4) - 9,815,954 (8,120) (480, 755) 9,327,079
29/6/2018| 15/3/2021 ( 4) - 108,956 - - 108,956
12/9/2018| 15/3/2021 ( 4) - 122,146 - - 122,146
2017 12
2015 11 30 2015
12 2015 2016 11 30 2016 2016
2016 10 17 2017 11 30 2017 10
2017 31 2018 12 31 13 2018 15 2018 29
2018 12 IFRS2
2017 2017 12 2018
2019
2017 2017 12 2018
2017 12 2019
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 13 4,601,313
2010
28 2018 12 31 28,890,733
0.240
272,209,267 2019 15 2.25
12
0.25
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2020 27 1.5 2020
2018
2018 2021
A. 2018 12 31
39
2015
2015 2018 12
2019

2019
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2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31
17 12 2018 12 312018 12 31 13 2018 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) 13 13 13 (
) ( ) ) ¢ 16
( )
(15
5/3/2014| 5/3/2017 - 4/3/2024 602,486 - - - - 3756 602,486 n/a
3
12/3/2015 12/3/2018 - 541,602 -1 541,692 - [ 47.73] 541,602 n/a
117372025 ( 4)
9/3/2016 | 9/3/2019 - 8/3/2026 851,026 - - - —| 4100 851,026 n/a
5
10/3/2017 10/3/2020 - 732,574 - - - - s0.30[ 732,574 n/a
9/3/2027 ( 6)
31/7/2017| 1/6/2020 - 30/7/2027 476,786 - - - - e1.55] 476,786 n/a
n
15/3/2018 15/3/2021 - —| 1,105,066 - - - 67.15] 1,105,066 n/a
147372028 ( 8)
1/6/2011| 17472014 - 31/5/2021 472,746 - - -1 5,467)| 27.35] 427,279]  69.00
9
1/6/2011] 17472014 - 31/5/2021 547,738 - - - 06,820y 27.35] 440,918]  69.00
(10
15/3/2012 15/3/2015 - 519,012 - - - —[ 28.40] 519,012 n/a
147372022 ( 11)
11/3/2013 11/3/2016 - 792,680 - -I (229,513) - 3a.35] 563,167 n/a
107372023 ( 12)
5/3/2014| 5/3/2017 - 4/3/2024 941,583 - - 77,793) - 37.56] 663,790 n/a
3
14/4/2014 14/4/2017 - 332,282 - - - —| 39.45] 832,282 n/a
13/4/2024 ( 13)
12/3/2015 12/3/2018 -| 2,035,310 —| 1,419,013] (616,207 (435,169)| 47.73] 983,844 67.15
11/3/2025 ( 4)
9/3/2016| 9/3/2019 - 8/3/2026| 3,737,698 - —| (968,262) —[ 41.00[ 2,769,436 n/a
5
10/3/2017 | 107372020 - 9/3/2027| 3,246,812 - —| (833,479) - s0.30[ 2,413,333 n/a
( 6)
31/7/2017| 1/6/2020 - 30/7/2027 697,732 - - - - e1.55] 697,732 n/a
n
15/3/2018 15/3/2021 - -1 2,692,372 - - - 67.15] 2,692,372 n/a
147372028 ( 8)
12/9/2018 12/9/2021 - -1 161,951 - - —| 63.64] 161,951 n/a
11/9/2028 ( 14)
1/6/2011| 17472014 - 317572021 668,366 - - - —[ 27.35] 668,366 n/a
9
1/6/2011| 17472014 - 31/5/2021 631,097 - - -] 200,000y 27.35] 431,097] 68.55
( 109
15/3/2012 15/3/2015 - 755,175 - - - (77.483)| 28.40] 677,692 66.92
147372022 ( 11)
(D 11/3/2013 11/3/2016 - 672,849 - —[ 229,513] (279,106)| 34.35] 623,256 67.72
10/3/2023 ( 12)
5/3/2014| 5/3/2017 - 4/3/2024] 2,636,920 - - 277,793 (76,874)| 37.56] 2,837,839 66.10
3
12/3/2015 12/3/2018 -| 2,461,745 -1 2,670,779] 209,034 (134,385)[ 47.73] 2,536,394 67.23
11/3/2025 ( 4)
9/3/2016| 9/3/2019 - 8/3/2026| 2,988,827 - [ 213,847 —[ 41.00[ 3,202,674 n/a
5
10/3/2017 | 107372020 - 9/3/2027| 1,769,098 - - 64,546 —| s0.30[ 1,833,644 n/a
(@)
15/3/2018 15/3/2021 - -1 641,924 - (23,688) - 67.15] 618,236 n/a
14/3/2028 ( 8)
2017 12
2011 11 30 2011
15 2012 11 30 2012 15 2013 11 30
2013 11 2014 11 30
2014 2014 14 2015 11 30
2015 12 2016 11 30 2016
2017 11 30 2017 10 2017 31 2018 12 31
13 2018 15 2018 12 IFRS2
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2018 2017 2017
(G 1,030 993 1,608
1,800 1,500 2,412
3,600 3,000 6,834
6,430 5,493 10,854
2017
3,000,000 2017
2017
2017 2017
2018 2018 2018
2018 12 31 13
A.2018 12 31
40
2018 12 31 13
2018 12 31 13
A.2018 12 31
40
2018
2019 485,000 542,500
2020 600,000
2019
160,000 168,000
55,000
40,000
25,000
15,000
45,000
30,000
45,000
30,000
2018 12 31 13 45,555,663
2018 12 31 13 A. 2018
12 31 40
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2018 12 31 AlA
) )
6.2 0.2 4.2 1.0
694.46 22.40 470.44 112.01
9.8 3.8 12.5 5.3
1,097.70 425.64 1,400.13 593.65
16.0 4.0 16.7 6.3
1,792.16 448.04 1,870.57 705.66
2018 () 2.0 () 1.7
) 2.6
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A. 2018 12 31

@
2018 12 31 2017 11 30
13 12

33,881 | 3,795,011 26,986 | 3,022,702
(1,968)|  (220,436) (1,497)|  (167,679)
31,913 | 3,574,575 25,489 | 2,855,023
4,077 456,665 12,622 | 1,413,790
307 34,387 219 24,530
36,297 | 4,065,627 38,330 | 4,293,343
26,383 | 2,955,160 26,108 | 2,924,357
(1,787)|  (200,162) (1,267)|  (141,917)
24,596 | 2,754,998 24,841 | 2,782,440
4,136 463,273 3,455 386,995
2,366 265,016 1,969 220,548
228 25,538 183 20,498
801 89,720 567 63,510
10 32,127 | 3,598,545 31,015 | 3,473,990
4,170 467,082 7,315 819,353
4,170 467,082 7,315 819,353
¢ ) 51 5,713 (128) (14,337)
4,221 472,794 7,187 805,016
11 (944)|  (105,737) (1,128)  (126,347)
(51) (5,713) 128 14,337
(995)|  (111,450) (1,000)|  (112,010)
3,226 361,344 6,187 693,006
AlA 3,163 354,288 6,120 685,501
63 7,057 67 7,505

12 | 0.26 29 | 0.51 57

12 | 0.26 29 | 0.51 57
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3,226 361,344 6,187 693,006
)
(
2018 12 31 13 77
((19,826) )
2017 11 30 12 297
(33,267 ) 4,174)|  (467,530) 1,197 134,076
« )
(
2018 12 31 13 18
(2,016 )
2017 11 30 12 19
(2,128 )) 26 2,912 (161) (18,034)
(510) (57,125) 1,028 115,146
16 1,792 (11) (1,232)
(45) (5,040) ) (2,688)
4,687)  (524,991) 2,029 227,268
(
2018 12 31 13 (10)
((1,120) )
2017 11 30 12 14
((1,568) ) 11 1,232 78 8,737
(
2018 12 31 13 ()
(784) )
2017 11 30 12 ) 1 112 18 2,016
12 1,344 9% 10,753
« ) 4,675)  (523,647) 2,125 238,021
« ) (1,449)|  (162,302) 8,312 931,027
« D
AIA (1,488)  (166,223) 8,250 924,083
35 3,920 62 6,945
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2018 12 31 2017 11 30
14 1,970 220,660 1,864 208,787
15 610 68,326 642 71,910
16 1,233 138,108 1,213 135,868
17 4,794 536,976 4,365 488,924
18 2,887 323,373 2,481 277,897
19 24,626 2,758,358 21,847 2,447,082

20,22

7,392 827,978 7,973 893,056
112,485 12,599,445 105,466 11,813,247
27,736 3,106,709 25,702 2,878,881
38,099 4,267,469 36,716 4,112,559
21 430 48,164 363 40,660
186,142 20,849,765 176,220 19,738,402
11 26 2,912 9 1,008
164 18,370 131 14,673
23 4,903 549,185 4,630 518,606
25 2,451 274,537 2,289 256,391
229,806 25,740,570 215,691 24,159,549
26 164,764 18,455,216 148,897 16,677,953
27 7,885 883,199 8,082 905,265
29 4,954 554,898 3,958 443,336
30 1,683 188,513 1,883 210,915
21 243 27,218 361 40,436
32 168 18,818 234 26,210
11 4,187 468,986 3,595 402,676
532 59,589 421 47,156
33 5,984 670,268 5,888 659,515
190,400 21,326,704 173,319 19,413,461
34 14,073 1,576,317 14,065 1,575,421
34 (258) (28,899) (297) (33,267)
34 (11,910) (1,334,039) (11,948) (1,338,295)
35,661 3,994,389 34,087 3,818,085
34 2,211 247,654 6,336 709,695
34 (1,301) (145,725) (751) (84,120)
34 538 60,261 527 59,029
®) (896) (25) (2,800)
1,440 161,294 6,087 681,805
AlA 39,006 4,369,062 41,994 4,703,748
35 400 44,804 378 42,340
39,406 4,413,866 42,372 4,746,088
229,806 25,740,570 215,691 24,159,549

2019 15
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2017 12 14,065 @ (@1,048) 34,087 | 6,336 (751) 527 (25) 378 | 42,372
3,163 63| 3,226

(4,151) @3) 4,179

26 26

(505) G| (510)
16 16

(45) (45)|

11 11

( ) 3,163 | (4,125) (550) 11 17 35| (1,449)
13 (1,589) (20)| (1,609)

82 82
12) 12)
51 (51)

7 7
2018 12 31 14,073 @) (1,010) 35,661 2,211 (1.301) 538 ®) 400 | 39,406
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2016 12 13,998 @51 @1,954) 29,334 5,352 (1,812) 449 (32) 326 | 35,310
6,120 67| 6,187

¢ ) 1,202 )| 1,197

(161) (161)

1,028 1,028
(1), (11),

( 7) 33 (24)

78 78

18 18

6,120 984 1,061 78 7 62| 8,312
13 (1,376) as| (,390)

67 67

79 79
(10) (10)
64 (64)

©) 9
2017 11 30 14,065 @9 (11,048) 34,087 | 6,336 (751) 527 (25) 378 | 42,372
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2017 12 1,575,421 | (33,267)|(1,338,295)(3,818,085 | 709,695 | (84,120)| 59,029 | (2,800)| 42,340 [4,746,088
354,288 7,057 | 361,344

(464,954)| (2,576)| (467,530)

2,912 2,912

(56,565) (560)| (57.125)
1,792 1,792

(5,040) (5,040)

1,232 1,232

112 112

) 354,288 | (462,041)| (61,606)| 1,232 1,904 | 3,920 | (162,302)
13 (177,984) (2,240)| (180,224)

896 896

784 784
9,185 9,185
(1,344) (1,344)

5,713 (5,713)

784 784
2018 12 31 1,576,317 | (28,899)|(1,334,039)|3,994,389 | 247,654 | (145,725)| 60,261 (896)| 44,804 |4,413,866
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2016 12 1,567,916 | (39,316)|(1,338,968)(3,285,701 | 599,478 | (202,962)| 50,202 | (3,584)| 36,515 [3,955,073
685,501 7,505 | 693,006

134,636 (560)| 134,076

(18,034) (18,034)

115,146 115,146
(1,232) (1,232)

( (6,385)| 3,696 (2,688),

8,737 8,737

2,016 2,016

685,501 | 110,218 | 118,843 | 8,737 784 | 6,945 | 931,027
13 (154,126) (1,568)| (155,694)

7,505 7,505

448 448
8,849 8,849
(1,120) (1,120)

7,169 (7,169)

(1,008)| 1,008
2017 11 30 1,575,421 | (33,267)|(1,338,295)|3,818,085 | 709,695 | (84,120)] 59,029 | (2,800)] 42,340 [4,746,088
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4,170 467,082 7,315 819,353
(14,998)| (1,679,926) (18,413)| (2,062,440)
14,037 | 1,572,284 14,312 | 1,603,087
30 @77 (19,826) (219) (24,530)
5 482 53,989
(8,095)[  (906,721) (7,242)|  (811,176)
6,718 752,483 5,627 630,280
782 87,592 703 78,743
(44) (4,928) (50) (5,601)
(855) (95,769) (582) (65,190)
2,020 226,260 1,451 162,527
14 (92) (10,305) (151) (16,914)
15 ®3) (336) (6) (672)
16,17 127 (14,225) (84) (9,409)
5 (606) (67,878)
(828) (92,744) (241) (26,994)
29 1,490 166,895 497 55,669
29 (500) (56,005)
29 2,603 291,562
(2,603)[  (291,562) (H) (112)
(168) (18,818) (136) (15,233)
7 784 4 448
(1,609)  (180,224) (1,390)[  (155,694)
12) (1,344) (10) (1,120)
8 896 67 7,505
(784) (87,816) (969)]  (108,538)
408 45,700 241 26,994
1,787 200,162 1,482 165,999
(49) (5,488) 64 7,169
2,146 240,373 1,787 200,162
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2,451 274,537 2,289 256,391
(305) (34,163) (502) (56,229)
2,146 240,373 1,787 200,162
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2,849 1,433 1,271 644 934 1,200 397 8,728
16,895 5,589 4,566 2,614 5,156 5,705 425 40,950
12,600 3,156 3,290 1,700 3,246 3,030 26 27,049
1,568 828 380 273 294 775 13 4,131
438 235 226 196 348 701 222 2,366
149 55 32 13 38 55 169 511
14,755 4,274 3,928 2,183 3,926 4,561 430 34,057
« ) 2,140 1,315 638 431 1,230 1,144 G) 6,893
« ) (165) (254) (39) (81) (291) (248) 64 (1,162)
« ) 1,975 1,061 599 350 939 896 (89) 5,731

(
)

AlA 1,958 1,061 599 345 939 871 (89) 5,684
17 5 25 47
3.5 5.6 7.8 8.7 8.0 10.2 7.1
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@

AAA 1,683 35 828 2,546 55 2,601
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2,942 2,266

5,241 4,911

24,282 20,869

ANP
ANP

2,697 2,493

611 519

547 426

382 340

1,067 873

1,206 973

6,510 5,624
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Q)

( )
2018 12 31 12
ANP 2,697 611 547 382 1,067 1,206 6,510
TWPI 11,444 3,895 2,738 2,083 4,006 6,377 30,543
( ) 12,858 3,832 3,114 1,831 3,878 4,177 26 29,716
2,647 1,322 1,175 592 860 1,112 368 8,076
15,505 5,154 4,289 2,423 4,738 5,289 394 37,792
11,572 2,895 3,103 1,577 2,968 2,791 25 24,931
1,414 757 353 254 266 721 13 3,778
401 218 209 180 323 640 200 2,171
137 51 29 12 35 52 159 475
13,524 3,921 3,694 2,023 3,592 4,204 397 31,355
« ) 1,981 1,233 595 400 1,146 1,085 ®B) 6,437
« ) @152)  (238) €D) 75) 76) (234) 62) (1,094)
« ) 1,829 995 558 325 870 851 (85) 5,343
(
)
AlA 1,814 995 558 320 870 826 (85 5,298
15 5 25 45
3.5 5.6 7.6 8.6 8.1 10.0 7.1
16.0 25.5 20.4 15.6 21.7 13.3 17.5
23.2 16.8 18.2 20.2 24.6 12.3 14.5
C )
31 1 21 3 139 195
33 11 19 16 25 49 11 164
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12
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71,898 31,632 36,064 14,526 24,228 39,095 12,363 229,806
64,299 24,627 32,865 12,885 20,068 30,889 4,767 190,400
7,599 7,005 3,199 1,641 4,160 8,206 7,596 39,406
7,508 6,181 3,115 1,601 3,565 6,901 7,924 36,795
(1,054) (149) (267) (185) (542) (556) 1,245  (1,508)
6 604 610
( )
©)
29,716 @ 29,714
8,076 (3,140) (2,281) 2,655
37,792 (3,140) (2,283) 32,369
24,931 917) (2,056) 21,958
6,424 479 6,903
31,355 917) (1,577) 28,861
6,437 (2,223) (706) 3,508
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2017 12 31 12
ANP 2,493 519 426 340 873 973 5,624
TWPI 9,535 3,559 2,435 1,848 3,118 5,898 26,393
( ) 10,972 3,567 2,840 1,622 3,011 3,921 8 25,941
2,187 1,208 1,094 554 747 1,058 341 7,189
13,159 4,775 3,934 2,176 3,758 4,979 349 33,130
9,615 2,697 2,821 1,457 2,410 2,642 4 21,646
1,232 747 352 209 183 748 1 3,472
416 202 183 167 286 569 196 2,019
119 49 28 11 30 43 126 406
11,382 3,695 3,384 1,844 2,909 4,002 327 27,543
1,777 1,080 550 332 849 977 22 5,587
@138)  (212) @ (56) (206) (214) G4) 17)
« ) 1,639 868 513 276 643 763 (B2) 4,670
(
)
AlA 1,627 868 513 274 643 742 (B2) 4,635
12 2 21 35
4.4 5.7 7.5 9.0 9.2 9.6 7.6
17.2 24.4 21.1 14.9 20.6 12.9 17.7
23.1 17.2 18.6 18.8 20.3 12.5 14.0
29 7 18 2 106 162
37 10 16 17 18 41 11 150

245/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

2017 12 31
66,710 31,2909 36,175 14,546 20,470 37,913 11,533 218,646
54,658 24,111 32,665 12,957 17,263 29,852 3,584 175,090
12,052 7,188 3,510 1,589 3,207 8,061 7,949 43,556
8,122 5,656 3,019 1,566 3,511 6,539 8,000 36,413
« ) (952) (467) (238) (192) (207) 17 799 (1,240)
1 7 635 643
( )
@
2017 12 31
12
25,941 25,941
7,189 2,713 4,005 13,907
33,130 2,713 4,005 39,848
21,646 507 3,677 25,830
5,897 400 6,297
27,543 507 4,077 32,127
5,587 2,206 72 7,721
@
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( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
6,235 5,652
795 693
171 152
7,201 6,497
(13) 202
(G
4 202
53 53
(4,814) 6,781
(206) 743
(4,967) 7,577
469 367
54 (709)
®) @7
(4,546) 7,410
2,655 13,907
( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
69 279)
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( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12

12,4711 11,735
11,758 13,982
(596) 1,395
23,633 27,112
(1,675) (1,282)
21,958 25,830
6,271 5,505
(2,490) (2,019)
3,781 3,486
1,370 1,265
74 65

53 53

174 148
500 488
2,171 2,019
479 408

35 22

204 153

21 24

739 607
212 185
28,861 32,127
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( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
39 47
164 134
9 4
212 185
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
2,597 6,496
12,021 12,002
21.60 54.12
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
2,597 6,496
12,021 12,002
35 37
12,056 12,039
21.54 53.96
5,752,143(2017 12 31 5,835,750)
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
44.07 38.62
43.94 38.50
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( )
©)
&)
FVTPL AFS FVTPL AFS FVTPL FVTPL
2017 12 31
6,097 896 60 36,927 43,980 1,131 45,111
(€)] 3,942 535 13 8,693 13,183 212 344 13,739
10,854 17,033 174 42,083 70,144 1,365 1,668 73,177
@) 199 317 22 304 842 842
(©)] 21,092 18,781 269 88,007 128,149 2,708 2,012 132,869
@
@
®?) 4,692
O] 100
®)
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( )
®
@)
FVTPL FVTPL FVTPL FVTPL
2017 12 31
9,173 5,340 14,513 4,832 19,345
3,325 719 4,044 14,690 18,734
12,498 6,059 18,557 19,522 38,079
[6H) 100
@
( )
2017 12 31
102,106
30,763
132,869
21,118
@ 16,961
38,079
@ 15,804
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( )
2017 12 31
2,765
607
44
1,114
12
4,518
2,113
1,579
8,210
)
( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
151,475 128,588
29,220 26,424
(16,155) (15,994)
(1,742) (1,834)
5,208 4,483
(1,162) 3,363
91
(2,865) 7,041
694 (596)
164,764 151,475
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(DPF )
( )
2017 12 31
7,213
2,605
8,117
133,540
151,475
( )
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
12 12
8,210 6,926
(594) 1,395
(122) (144)
480
17 (145)
(106) 178
7,885 8,210
475
2017 12 31
( )
2017 12 31 ( )
8,395 1,882 446
7,883 2,511 314
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11 30
2017 2016

26,986 | 3,022,702 21,757 | 2,437,002
(1,497)|  (167,679) (1,313)|  (147,069)
25,489 | 2,855,023 20,444 | 2,289,932
12,622 | 1,413,790 7,555 846,236
219 24,530 197 22,066
38,330 | 4,293,343 28,196 | 3,158,234
26,108 | 2,924,357 19,340 | 2,166,273
(1,267)|  (141,917) (1,119)|  (125,339)
24,841 | 2,782,440 18,221 | 2,040,934
3,455 386,995 2,735 306,347
1,969 220,548 1,752 196,242
183 20,498 149 16,689
567 63,510 462 51,749
9 31,015 | 3,473,990 23,319 | 2,611,961
7,315 819,353 4,877 546,273
(5) (560)
7,315 819,353 4,872 545,713
(128) (14,337) (62) (6,945)
7,187 805,016 4,810 538,768
10 (1,128)|  (126,347) (660) (73,927)
128 14,337 62 6,945
(1,000)|  (112,010) (598) (66,982)
6,187 693,006 4,212 471,786
AlA 6,120 685,501 4,164 466,410
67 7,505 48 5,376

11 | 0.51 57 | 0.35 39

11 | 0.51 57 | 0.35 39
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@
11 30
2017 2016
6,187 693,006 4,212 471,786
(
2017 297 (33,267 )
2016 (896 ) 1,197 134,076 869 97,337
« )
(
2017 19 (2,128 )
2016 (672 )) (161) (18,034) 2 224
1,028 115,146 (412) (46,148)
11 (1,232) 1 112
¢ 24) (2,688) 43 4,816
2,029 227,268 503 56,341
(
2017 (14) ((1,568) )
2016 (66) ((7.393) ) 78 8,737 309 34,611
(
2017
2016 112 )) 18 2,016 1) (2,352)
9% 10,753 288 32,259
2,125 238,021 791 88,600
8,312 931,027 5,003 560,386
AlA 8,250 924,083 4,968 556,466
62 6,945 35 3,920
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11 30
2017 2016
13 1,864 208,787 1,743 195,233
14 642 71,910 650 72,807
15 1,213 135,868 1,132 126,795
16 4,365 488,924 3,910 437,959
17 2,481 277,897 2,046 229,172
18 21,847 2,447,082 18,898 2,116,765
19,21
7,973 893,056 7,062 791,015
105,466 11,813,247 90,092 10,091,205
25,702 2,878,881 23,526 2,635,147
36,716 4,112,559 30,211 3,383,934
20 363 40,660 107 11,985
176,220 19,738,402 150,998 16,913,286
10 9 1,008 7 784
131 14,673 59 6,609
22 4,630 518,606 3,989 446,808
24 2,289 256,391 1,642 183,920
215,691 24,159,549 185,074 20,730,139
25 148,897 16,677,953 128,186 14,358,114
26 8,082 905,265 7,028 787,206
28 3,958 443,336 3,460 387,555
29 1,883 210,915 1,984 222,228
20 361 40,436 644 72,134
31 234 26,210 253 28,339
10 3,595 402,676 3,276 366,945
421 47,156 210 23,522
32 5,888 659,515 4,723 529,023
173,319 19,413,461 149,764 16,775,066
33 14,065 1,575,421 13,998 1,567,916
33 (297) (33,267) (351) (39,316)
33 (11,948) (1,338,295), (11,954) (1,338,968)
34,087 3,818,085 29,334 3,285,701
33 6,336 709,695 5,352 599,478
33 (751) (84,120) (1,812) (202,962)
33 527 59,029 449 50,292
(25) (2,800) (32) (3,584)
6,087 681,805 3,957 443,224
AlA 41,994 4,703,748 34,984 3,918,558
34 378 42,340 326 36,515
42,372 4,746,088 35,310 3,955,073
215,601 24,159,549 185,074 20,730,139

2018 27
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*

2016 12 13,998 @) @1,954) 20,33 5,352 (1.812) 449 32) 326 | 35,310
6,120 67 6,187

1,202 G| 1,197

(161) (161)

1,028 1,028
1 an

( 7) 33 24)

78 78

18 18

6,120 984 1,061 78 7 62 8,312
12 (1,376) as  ,390)

67 67

79 79
(10) (10)
64 (64)

) 9
2017 11 30 14,065 @o7)| (@1,948)] 34,087 | 6,336 (751) 527 (25) 378 | 42,372
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2015 12 13,971 @20  (@1,978) 26,204 4,414 (1,389) 140 12) 303 | 31,422
259 259
4,164 48 4,212
874 Q) 869

(404) (8), (412),

62 19) 43

50 50

(21), (21)|

¢ ) 4,164 938 (423) 309 (20) 35 5,003

12 (1,124) a2  @,136)

27 27

86 86
(86)| (86))
56 (56)

(6) (6))
2016 11 30 13,998 (351)] (11,954)] 29,334 | 5,352 (1,812) 449 (32) 326 | 35,310

258/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

2016 12 1,567,916 | (39,316)|(1,338,968)|3,285,701 | 599,478 | (202,962)| 50,292 | (3,584)| 36,515 3,955,073
685,501 7,505 | 693,006

134,636 (560)] 134,076

(18,034) (18,034)

115,146 115,146
(1,232) (1,232)

( (6,385)| 3,696 (2,688)

8,737 8,737

2,016 2,016

685,501 | 110,218 | 118,843 | 8,737 784 | 6,945 931,027
12 (154,126), (1,568)| (155,694)

7,505 7,505

448 448
8,849 8,849
(1,120) (1,120)

7,169 (7,169)

(1,008) 1,008
2017 11 30 1,575,421 | (33,267)[(1,338,295)|3,818,085 | 709,695 | (84,120)| 59,029 | (2,800)| 42,340 [4,746,088
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2015 12 1,564,892 | (35,955)|(1,341,656)|2,945,191 | 494,412 | (155,582)| 15,681 | (1,344)| 33,939 3,519,578
29,011 29,011
466,410 5,376 | 471,786
97,897 (560)] 97,337

224 224

(45,252) (896)| (46,148)
112 112

6,945 | (2,128) 4,816

5,601 5,601

(2,352) (2,352)

( ) 466,410 | 105,065 | (47,380)| 34,611 ( (2,240)| 3,920 | 560,386

12 (125,899) (1,340)| (127,243)
3,024 3,024
9,633 9,633
(9,633), (9,633),

6,273 (6,273)

(672) (672)
2016 11 30 1,567,916 | (39,316)[(1,338,968)|3,285,701 | 599,478 | (202,962)| 50,292 | (3,584)| 36,515 |3,955,073
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11 30
2017 2016
7,315 | 819,353 4,872 | 545,713
(18,413)| (2,062,440)  (13,438)| (1,505,190)
14,312 | 1,603,087 11,794 | 1,321,046
29 19)|  (24,530) (1,019)  (114,138)
(
(7,242 (811,176) (6,164)  (690,430)
)

5,627 | 630,280 5,261 | 589,285
703 78,743 645 72,246
(50) (5,601) (39) (4,368)
82)|  (65,190) s48)  (61,381)
1,451 | 162,527 1,364 | 152,782
13 sy|  (16,914) (64) (7,169)
( ) 14 ®) (672) 2 204

15 20 2,240
15,16 o8| @1,649) asy| (20,274
G| (34,723)
| (26,994 53)  (61,942)
28 497 55,669 733 82,103
6)|  (@5,233) o) (2,007
28 @s0)|  (16,802)
28 W (112) 323)|  (36,179)

4 448
(1,390)  (155,694) (1,136)  (127,243)
(10) (1,120) (86) (9,633)
67 7,505 27 3,024
(969)|  (108,538) (1,083)  (116,826)
« ) 241 26,994 @32  (25,986)
1,482 | 165,999 1,750 | 196,018
64 7,169 (36) (4,032)
1,787 | 200,162 1,482 | 165,999
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2,289 256,391 1,642 183,920
G02)|  (56,229) @60)|  (17,922)
1,787 200,162 1,482 165,999
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AlA ( ) 2009 24
AlA
35/F
AIA 1299
( ) (
AAGIY )
AIA ( AlIA )
18
2.1
( HKFRS )
( IFRS ) IFRS
HKFRS HKFRS IFRS
IFRS ( IAS
) IFRS ( IFRSIC )
HKFRS ( HKAS ) (IFRIC) (
HK (IFRIC)- )
HKFRS IFRS
2018 27
( )
(@) 2017 11 30

IAS

263/655



(b)

(©)

IAS 16 IAS 38
IAS 19

IAS 27

IAS 34

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 11

IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23
IAS
IAS 12
IAS 12
(2019 )
IAS 23
IAS 28
IAS 28
IAS 40
IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS
(2019 )
IFRS 12

IFRS
IFRS
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IFRS
2017 11 30
(
(2019 )
(2019 )
(2018 )
(2018 )
(2019 )
(2019 )
(2019 )
(2019 )
(2019 )
(2019 )
IFRS 11
(2018 )
2017 11 30

IAS 39
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IAS 39
IASB  IFRS
2018 ( 2019
)
IASB 2016 12 IFRS IFRS
IFRS IFRS IFRS 17
IFRS
IFRS 17 2021
IFRS 17
IFRS IFRS 17
IFRS
IFRS 17 ( IFRS ) IFRS
IFRS 17
IFRS 17
2017 12 12
( HKICPA ) HKFRS 17
2021
IFRS 16
12

IFRS 16 IAS 17
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2.4
( DPF )
DPF
(
)
DPF IAS 39

IAS 18 IFRS DPF

DPF
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IFRS DPF
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21
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3.3
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3.6

3.7

21
23
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
7.79 7.76
34.15 35.30
1.39 1.38
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4.33 4.13
6.78 6.60
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
7.81 7.76
32.62 35.61
1.35 1.43
4.09 4.47
6.61 6.89
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( )
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
4,682 4,013
(
)
(
2017 (117) 1,764 97
2016 () )
(
2017 40 (259) 102
2016 169 )
6,187 4,212
AlA 4,647 3,981
35 32
AlA 6,120 4,164
67 48
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( TWPI
( ANP )
TWPI 100 100
10
TWPI
ANP 100
10 ANP
( )
- 2017 11 30 2016 11 30
TWPI
9,434 6,873
3,517 3,327
2,421 2,276
1,823 1,795
3,002 2,384
5,860 5,478
26,147 22,133
2,586 2,065
477 439
277 261
286 276
928 585
925 872
5,479 4,498
( )
WP 2017 11 30 2016 11 30
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2,417 1,761
194 163
1,433 1,443
187 167
150 194
622 619
5,003 4,347
6,606 4,632
3,021 2,872
2,001 1,871
1,518 1,502
2,149 1,779
4,873 4,544
20,168 17,200
ANP
ANP

2,849 2,294
518 471
433 427
348 341
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( ) 10,828 3,532 2,837 1,610 3,006 3,888 7 25,708
2,148 1,189 1,083 547 734 1,057 338 7,096
12,976 4,721 3,920 2,157 3,740 4,945 345 32,804
9,454 2,659 2,822 1,439 2,406 2,603 4 21,387
1,213 739 347 210 181 752 1 3,443
407 199 181 164 278 552 188 1,969
117 49 27 11 28 42 126 400
11,191 3,646 3,377 1,824 2,893 3,949 319 27,199
1,785 1,075 543 333 847 996 26 5,605
(137) (210) (39) (59) (208) @17) (53) (923)
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AlA 1,636 865 504 272 639 758 @7 4,647
12 2 21 35

4.3 5.7 7.5 9.0 9.0 9.4 7.5
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8,960 4,327 3,683 2,162 2,930 4,680 323 27,065
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790 609 303 183 146 655 2,686
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104 38 16 11 12 43 110 334
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BBB 2,346 2,346 55 2,401
A 1,249 562 1,811 25 1,836
AA 168 3,100 3,268 1 3,269
BBB 7 25 379 481 55 536
@ 6 744 750 2 752
5,460 25 33,762 39,247 913 40,160
AAA 8 8
AA 36 799 835 25 860
A 90 831 921 16 937
BBB 95 45 1,677 1,817 185 2,002
12 53 65 65
221 57 3,360 3,638 234 3,872
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AA 16 1,587 1,603 2 1,605
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AA 945 5,327 6,272 75 182 6,529
A 898 3 1,245 2,146 26 15 2,187
BBB 220 9 1,245 1,474 6 1,480
30 121 151 3 154
8 8
3,200 12 8,720 11,932 223 231 12,386

320/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

ooooooo
(1) 2016 11 30 49
35 BB- BB-
&)
(©)) 100
( )
®)
FVTPL FVTPL AFS FVTPL FVTPL
2016 11 30
AAA 48 237 285 4 46 335
AA 573 22 4,087 4,682 21 351 5,054
A 4,863 13 21,654 26,530 426 983 27,939
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50 50 50
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
AlA Group Limited (the “Campany”} was established a5 a company with limited Lability Inl:mmnraladl_n Hong Kong on 24
August 2009, The address of its registered office is 35/F, AlA Central, Mo, 1 Connaught Read Cantral, Hong Kong.

AlA Group Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock coda °129%°
with American Depositary Receipts (Level 1) being traded on the over-the-countar market (ticker symbol: “AAGIY™ )L

AlA Growup Limited and its subsidianes (collectivaly “Al4" or the "Group™) is alife insurance based financial services provider
operating in 18 markets. throughaut the Asia-Pacific-region. The Group's principal activity is the writing of life insurance
basiness, providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans throughout Asia, and distributing
related investment and other financial services products to its customers,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and statoment of compliance

The consolidated financial statemants have been prepared In accordance with all applicable Hong Kang Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinange. IFRS is substantially consistent with HKERS and the accounting policy sslections that the Group has mada in
preparing thess consolidated financial statements are such that the Group is able to comply with both HKFRS and IFRS.
References 10 IFRS, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and Interpretations developed by the IFRS Interpretations
Committea {IFRSIC) in thesa consolidated financial statements should be read as referring to the equivalent HKFRE, Hong
Kong Azcounting Standards (HKAS) and Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations (HE(IFRICY - Int) a3 the cass may be.
Accordingly, there are not any differences of accounting practice betwesn HEKFRS and IFRS affecting thess consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statemants have boen approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared uzing the historical cost convention. as modified by the
revaluation of awailable for sale financial assets, certain financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, denvative financial instruments, property held for own use and Investment properties, all of which are canried
at fair value

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured in the curmency of the
primary economic anvironment in which that entity operates (the functional currency). The Company’s functional currency
and the presentation currency of tha Company and the Groap fs the US dollar. The consolidated financial statements are
prezented in millions of US dollars (USEm) unless otharwize stated. '

The accounting policies adepted are consistant with thosa of the previous financial year, except as described as follows.

144 | ALA GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimasd)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (continued)

(c) The following relevant new standards and requirerments have been issued but are not effective for the financial period
“ended 31 Decamber 2018 and have not bean early adopted: -

+ |FRE 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition.of financial assats and
financial liabilivies. IFRS 9 requires financial aszats 1o be classified Into separate measurement categories: those
measured as at fair value with changes either recognised in profit or loss or In other comprehensive income-and
these measured at amortised cost. The determination is made 3t indtial recognition depanding on the entity's
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the
Instrumeant. In addition, a revised expectad credit [osses model will replace the incurmed loss impairment madel in
14539, The Group is yet to fully assess the impact of the standard on its financial position and results of operations,

_For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the 1AS 39 requirements: The main change is that, in cases:
whare the fair valus sption is taken for financial liabilities, part of the fair value change due 1o an entity's swn credit
rigk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss, unless lh[s creates an munﬂnq

mismatch. In addition, the new standard revises the hedge accounting model to more chosely align with the entity's
risk managemant strategies. The IASE made further changes 1o two areas of IFRS 9. Financial assets containing

prepayment features with negative compensation can be measured at amortised costor at fair value throwgh other
comprehensive income §f the cash flow represents solely payments of principal and interest. Non-substantial

madifications or exchange of financial liabilitiss that do not result in derecegnition will be required to be recognissd

in profit or lass. The Group i wet 1o fully assess the impact of the above new requirements and changes.

The standard is mandatorily effective for financial penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (except for
prepayment features with negative compansation and modifications or exchange of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition which will become aHective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019), but
the Group gualities for a temporary exemption as explained below.

* 0n 12 September 2016, the |ASE |ssued amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, Applying IFRS 9 Financlal
Instruments with [FRS 4, which prowides two alternative measunss to address the different sffective dates of IFRS
9and IFRS 17, Inzuranca Contracts. These maasures inclode 2 tsmporary option for companies whose activities are
predominantly cannected with insurance to defer the effective date of IFRS @ until the eariier of the effective dats
of IFRS 17 and financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (pleaze note below that the IASE
is propasing to defer the effective date of IFRS 17 to 1 January 2022), as well as an approach that allows an entity
to remave from piofit or loss the effects of certain accounting mismatches that may occur befors IFRS 17 s applisd.
Based on the amendmants to IFRS 4, the Group is aligible for and will elect toapply the temporary option to defer
the effective date of IFRS 9 in onder % implement the changes in parallel with IFRS 17. Insurance Contracts,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fconsinuni) ;
2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (oo inued) tr
{c} The following relevant new standands and requirumunl.s have baen issued but are not affective for the financial pariod 8
ended 31 Decembar 2018 and have notbeen parly adopted: (contimimd)
* |FRS 17, Inzurance Contracts {previously IFRS 4 Phase Il) will replace the current IFRS &, Insurance Contracts, IFRS
17 includes fundamental differences to current accounting in both Imsurance contract measurement and profit
recognition. The general model is based on a discounted cash flow model with a risk adjustment and deferral of z
unearmad profits. A separate approach applies to insurance contracts that are linked to returns on underlying itams Z
and meet cermam reguirements. Addivonally, IFRS 17 requires more granular information and & new présentation g
farmat for the statement of comprehensive incoma as well as extensive disclosures, On 12 Decembar 2017, the E
Hang Kang Institute of Cartified Public Accountants ("HHICPAT) approved the issuance of HKFRS 17, Insurance &
Contracts. The Group s in the midst of conducting a detailed assessmant of the new standards. The standards are E
curmently mandatorily affective for financizl pertods baginning on or-after 1-January 2021, howevear in November =
2018, 1ASE proposed to defer IFRS 17 and temparary IFRS 9 exemption avallable to ingurers until the financial g
period beginning on or after 1 January 2032 The proposed deferral s subject to public consultation, which is £
expected in 2019, HKICPA has not yet mads any announcements ralated to 10SE proposed deferral for IFRS 17, z
The significant accounting policles adopted in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements are sef out
below. These policies have been applied consistently in all periods presanted.
2.2 Operating profit w
The long-term natere of much of the Growp's operations means that. for management's decision-making and internal E
performance management purposes, the Group evaluates its results and |t cperating segments using a financial 5
parformance measure referred 1o as “operating profit’. Operating profit Incliedes among others the expected long-tsrm o
investment returns for investments in equities and real estate based on the assumptions applied by the Group in the =
Supplementary Embedded Value Information. The Group defines operating profit after tax as nat profit excluding the E
following non-operating items: E

+ short-term fluctuations batwean expected and actual investment returns related to equities and real estate;
+ othar investment return (including short-term fluctuation s due to market factors): and
« other significant items that management considers to be non-cperating income and expenses.

The Group considers that the presentation of operating profit enhances the understanding and comparability of its
performance and that of its operating segments The Group considers that trends can be mone clearly identified without
tha fluctuating affects of thess non-operating items. many of which are largely dependent on market factaers.

Oparating profitis provided as additional information 1o assist in the comparison of busingess trends in diffécent reporting
periods on a consistent basis and enhance overall understanding of Anancial performance.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimsog)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiarias are all ntities (including strugtured entities) sver which the Group haz control. A struc tured entity iz an antity
that has baen designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
aswhen any voting rights relata to administrative tasks only. and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. The Group has determined that the investrent funds and structured securlties, such as collateralised debt.
abligations. mortgage-backed securities and other asset-backed sacurities that the Group has interest are stuctured
entitins:

Tha Group.controls an entity when the Group |s.expesed to, or has rights to. variable returns from its involvement with the
antity and has the ability 1o affect thase meturns through Its pawer aver the entity. Subsidiaries are consalidated from the
date on which control iz transferred to the Group-and are excluded from consolidation from the date at which the Group no
lomiger has control. Intercompany transactions are eliminated.

TheGroup utilises the acquisition mulhe-d of accounting to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries, unless the acquisition
forms part of the Group reorganisation of entities under common control. Under this method, the cost of an ul:quisliiun Is
measured as the fair value of consideration payable, shares jzsved or liabilities assumed at the date of acquizition. Tha
excess of the cost of acquisition ower the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired (= recorded as goodwill {ses
210 below). The Group recegnises, separately from goodwill, the (dentiflable azsets acquined, the Liabilities assumed and
any nen-contrelling Interest in the subsidiary, Any surplus of the acquirer's Interest in the subsidiary's net assets over the
cost of acquisition |z credited 1o the consolidated income statemant.

Theconsolidated financial statements of the Group include the assets. liabilities and results of the Company and subsidiaries
In which AIA Group Limited has a controliing interest, using accounts drawn up to the raporting date,

Investment funds

Investment funds in which the Group has interests and power to direct their relevant activities that affect the return of the
funds are consolidated in the financlal statements. In conducting the assessmant, the Group considers substantive
cantractual rights as well as de facto control. De facts control of an entity may arise from circumstances where the Group
does not have more than S0% of the voting power butit has the practical ability to direct the ralevant activities of the antity.
If the: Group has-power o remove or control over the party having the-ability o direct the relevant activities of the fund
based on thi facts and circumstances and that the Group has exposure to variakle returns of the investment funds, they
are consolidated, Variable returns include both rights to the profits or distributions as well as the obligation to absorb
lasses of the investees.

Employee share-based trusts.

Trusts ane set up to acquine shanes of the Company for distribution to participants in future periods through the shans-based
companszation schemes The consolidation of these trusts is evaluated in accordance with IFRS 10; where the Group s
deamed 10 control the trusts: they are consolidated. Sharas mﬁu:rud by the' trusts to the axtent nol provided to the
pariicipants upon vesting are carred at cost and reportad as “employes share-bazed trusts® in the consotidatad statement:
of financlal position, and as a deduction from the equity in the consolidated statement of changes In equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continind}

2.3 Basis of consolidation jconmsd)

Hen-conirolling interests

Men-controlling nterests are prezentad within equlty except when they srise throogh the minosity's interast in puttable
liabilities such: a= the unit holders’ interest in consolidated investment funds. when they are recognisad as a ability,
reflecting the nat assets of the consolidated antity.

OVERVIEW

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling Interasts. except when they arise through the minority's interest In puttable
liabilities, are treated as transactions between equity holders. As a result. any diffgrence betwaen the scquisition costor
sale price of the non-contralling interest and the carrying valus of the non-controlling interest is recognised asan increase
or decreasa in aquity.

Assoclates and jolnt ventures

Azsociates are entities over which the Group has significant inflsence. but which it does not control or joint contral
Generally, it is presumed that the Group has significant influence if it has batween 20 per cent and S0 per cent of voting
rights. Jaint wventures arﬁ entities whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to
Joint controd arising from a contractual agreement.

FIMANCIAL AMD OFPERATING REVIEW

Gains on transactions batwean the Group and itz associates and joint ventures are aliminated to the extent of the Group's
interazt in the associates and joint ventures. Losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of an assat ransfemed betwesn antities.

Inwastments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity meathod of accounting. Under thiz method,
the costof the investmyent in-an 8s30ciate or joint ventune, wegether with the Group's share of that entity’s post-acquisition
changes to equity, is included as an aszetin the consolidated stajement of financial position. Costincludes goodwill arizing
on acquisition, The Group's share of post-acquisition profits or lasses (s recognised in the consolidated income statament
and its share of post-acquisition movemsnt in squity I8 recognised in other comprehen sive income. Equity accaunting is
discontinued whan the Group no fonger has significant influence over the investment. |f the Group's share of losses inan
associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the undertaking, additional losses are provided for, and a liability
recognized, only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments:on behalfof
the aszociate or joint vanture.

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

The Company's investments.

In the Company's statement of financial position, subsidiaries, asﬂcd_alps__and ipint ventures are stated at cost, unless
impaired, The Company's interests in investment funds such as mutual funds and unit trusts are designated at fair value
throwgh profit or loss:

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continus)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts wontemd

Product classification (rostinued)

The basis of accounting for inzurance and investment contracts iz discussed in notes 2,41 and 2.4.2 below.

OVERVIEW

24,1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Premiums

Fremiums from life Insurance contracts incleding participating policies and annuity policles with life centingencles am
recognised agrevenus when due from the policyholder. Benafits and expenses ara provided in respect of such revenee 10
asto recognise profits over the estimated lite of the policies. For limited pay contracts. premiums are recognised in profit
or loss when dus, with any excess profit defarred and recognised in income in a constant relationship to the msurance
in-force or, for annuities, the amount of expected benefit payments.

Amountscollected as pramiums from insurance contracts with investrnant features but with sufficient insurance risk 1o be
considerad insurance contracts. such as universal life, and certain unit-linked contracts, are accumulated as deposits.
Rewvenue from thase cantracts consists of policy fees for the cost of insurance, a__dnﬁnl'alra'ﬂm,_md swrrenders during the
pariod,

Upfront fees are recognized over the estimated life of the contracts to which they relate. Policy benefits and clainms that are
charged to expenzes include benefit claims incumed in the period in excess of related policyholder contract deposits and
interest credited 10 policyhelder deposits.

Unearmed revenue lability
Linearned revanue liability represents upfront fees and other non-level charges that have been collected and released o
the consolidated income statement over the astimated life of the business, A separate lisbility for accumulation value is
witablishied.

Deferred profit Habllity

Deterred profit liability ariging from traditional insurance confracts represents excoss profits that have been collacted and
released to the consolidated income statement over the estimated life of the business. A separate liability for future policy
benefits is establishad. '

Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new insurance contracts, including commissions and distribution costs, underwriting and other
policy Issus axpansas which vary with and ane primarily related to the production of new business or renewal of exdsting
business. are deferred as an astet. Daferrad acquizition costs are assessed for recoverability in the year of policy issue to
ensure thatthess costs are recoverable outof the estimated future mangins to be earned on the policy, Deferred acquisition
costs are assessed for recoverability at least annually thereafter, Future investment income is also taken inte account in
assessing recoverability. To the extent that acquisition costs are not considersd to be recoverable at inception or thereafter,
thess costs are axpensed in the consolidated income statement.

FIMANCIAL AMD OPERATING REVIEW

COMPORATE COVERMANCE

Deterred acquisiton costs for life insurance and annuity policies are amartised over the expecied life of the contracts asa
cohstant percentage of expected premiums. Expected premivms are estimated at the date of peolicy Issue and are
canslatently applied throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency occurs whan performing liability adeguacy
testing (see below). '

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Deferred acquisition casts for universal life and unit-linked contracts ans amertised over the expected life of the contracts
based on a constant percentage of the presant valua of estimated gro=s profits expected 1o be realised over the life of thie
contract of on a straight-line basis: Estimated gross profits nclude eipected amounts 6 be assessed for mortality,
administration, investmentand swrenders. less benefit claims in excecs of polieyholder balances, administrative expanass
and interestcredited. Estimated grass profits are revised reguiarly, The nterest rate used to compute the present value of
revised estimates of expected gross profits is the latest revised rate applied to the remaining benefit period, Deviations of
actual results from estimated exparience are reflscted in sarnings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (onlinued)

Product classification fconiiisd}

2.4.1 Insurance contractz and [nvestment contracts with DPF tcont iiuied)

Deferred zales inducemants

Deferred sales inducements, consisting of day oné bonuses, persistency bonuzes and enhanced crediting ratesare defemed
and amortised using the same methadolegy and assumptions used 1o amortise acquisiton costs when:

*  the sales inducements are recognised as part of Insurancs contract Liabilities:

= they are explicitly identified in the contract on inception;

= theyare incremental to amounts credited on similar contracts without sales inducements; and

= they are higher than the expectad ongoing crediting rates for paricds after the inducemeant:

Unbundling

The deposit component of an Insurance-contract is unbundled whan both of the fallowing conditions ars mat

*  the deposit component {including any embedded surrender option) can be measured separataly (Le. without teking
Into account the insurance component); and

= the Group’s accounting policies do not otherwise require the recegnition of all ebligations and rights-asising from the
-deposit componant:

Eifurcation
To the extent that cértaln of the Group's insurance contracts include embedded derlvatives that are not clearly and closely
related to the host contract, these are bifurcated from the insurance contracts and sccounted for as derhvatives,

Benefits and claims
Insurance contract benefits raflect the cost of all maturities, surrenders, withdrawals and claims arising during the pericd,
as well as policyholder dividends accrued in anticipation of dividend declarations.

Accident and heaith claims incured include all losses occurring during the peried, whether reported or not. related
handling costs. a reduction for recoveries, and any adjustmants fo claims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include Internal and external costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and setilemant of
claims, and are included in operating expenses.

Insurance contract liabilities (including labilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF)
Insurance contract liabilities represent the estimated future palicyholder banefit liability for life insurance policies.

Future pelicy banefits for life insurance policies are calculated using a net level premium valuation method which
reprezents the present valus of estimated future policy benafits 1o be paid, less the prasent valus of estimated future net
premiums to be collected from policyholders.

For contracts with an explicitaccount balance, such az univerzal life and unit-linked contracts, Insurance contract liabilities
are equal to the accumulation value, which represents premiums received and investment returns credited & the policy
less deductiona for mortality and morbidity costs and expensa charges.

Settlement options are accounted for as an Integral companent of the underlying insurance or investment contract unless
they provide annuitization benafits, in vehich case an additonal liability is established to the extant that the present valus
of expected annuitisation payments at the expected annuitisation date exceeds the expacted account balance at that date.
Where settlement options have been issued with guaranteed rates less than macket Interest rates, the insurance or
Investment contract liability doss not réflect any provision for subsequent declines in market Interest rates unless a
deliciency Is identified through Uability adequacy testing.,

1654 | AL GROUP LIMITED
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinud)
2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (oninued)
Praduct classification (contied)
241 Ingurance contracts and Investment contracts with DPF (continud)
Insurance contract (abilities (including Nabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF) fcontined)
The Group accounts forinsurance contract liabilities for participating busingss written in participating funds by establishing
a liability for the present value of guaranteed benefits less estimated future net premiums 1o be collected from pelicyholders.
In addition, an insurance liability is ecordid for the proportion of the net asiets of the participating funds that would be
allocated 1o poticyholders assuming all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated statemant of financial position
were to be declared as-a policyholder dividend based wpon applicable reguiations. The Group accounts for other
participating businass by establishing a liability for the prazent value of guaranteed bensfits and nen-guarantesd
participation, lsss estimated future net premiums to be collected from policyholdars:

Liability adequacy testing

The adequacy of liabilities is assessed by portfolio of contracts, in accordance with the Group's manner of acouining,
servicing ard measuring the profitability of its naurance contracts, Liability adequacy testing is performed for each
reportable segment.

For traditional life insurance contracts, insurance contract labilities reduced by deferred acquisition costs and value of
business acgulred on acquired insurance contracts, are compared to the gross premium valuation calculated on & best
eatimate basis. as of the valuation date. If thére is-a deficiency, the unamortised balance of deferred acqulsition cost and
valus of business acquired on acquired insurance contracts ars whtten down 1o the extent of the deficiency. I after writing
down the unamortised balance for the specific portfolio of contracts to nil; a deliciency sull exists, the net lability is
increaszed by the amount of the remaining deficlency,

OWVERVIEW

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFERATING REVIEW

For uriiversal life and investment contracts deleried acqulsition costs, nat of unearmed revenus labllites, are comparsd to
estimated gross profits. [Fa deficiency exists, deferred acguisition costs are written down.

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

Fimancial guarantees
Financial guaranteas are regarded as insuranceconfracts: Liabilities in respect of such contractsare recognized when logs
I= incurred.

242 Investment contracts

Inyastment contracts do not contain sufficient insurance risk to'be considerad insurance contracts and are gecounted for
a3 a financial Hability, other than Investment contracts with DPF which are excluded from the scope of 1AS 39 and are
accounted for as insurance contracts,

Revenue from these contracts consists of various charges (policy fees. handling fees, management fees and surrender
charges)made against the contract for the costol Insurance, sxpenses and early surrender. First year charges are amortised
awer the life of the contract as the services are provided. :

fnvestment confract fee revanue

Customars ane charged fees for pelicy administration, investment management, surmenders or othar contract services. The
feies ray be Fixed amaounts or vary with the amaunts being managed. and will generally be charged as an adjusiment ta the
policyhalder's account balance. The fees are recognised as revenus in the period in which they are received unless thay
relate to services tobe provided in future periods. in which casa they are deferred and recognised as the service is provided,

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Origination and other “upfront” fees | feas that are assessed against the account balance as consideration fororigination of
the contract) ars charged on some non-participating investment and penslon eontracts, Whers the Investment contract iz
recorded at amortized cost. these fees are amortised and recognized over the expected term of the policy as an adjustment
o the effective yield. Whers the investment contract i measured at fair valve, the frant-end fees that relate to the provision
of investment management services are amortised and recognisad as the services are provided,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd}

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (onlinued)

Product classification fconiiisd}

2.4.2 Investment contracts (cosimed)

Deferred origination costs

The costs of acquiring investment contracts with investment management services. including commissions and other
incremental expenses directy relatsd to the izsue of each new contract, are deferred and amartised over the perioe that,
pirwichs ane provided. Deferred origination costs ane 1ested for recaverability at sach reparting date.

The costs of acquinng new Investiment contracts without iNvesiment management services are included as part of the
affactive interest rate used to calculate the amortised cost of the related investment contract lakilites.

Investment eantract Habilities

Deposits received in respact of investment contracts ane not accounted for through the consolidated income statament,
ocept for the investment income and feas attributable to those contracts. but are accounted for directly throwgh the
consolidated statement af financial position as an adjustment to the Investment contract liability, which reflects the
account balance. - :

The majority of the Group's contracts classified as investment contracts are unit-linked contracts, with measurement
directly linked to the underlying Investment assets. These represent investment portfolios maintained to meet specific
Investment objectives of policyholders who generally bear the credit and market risks on those (nvestments. The Habilities
are carried at fair value determined with reference to the accumulation value feurrent unit value) with changes recognised
in profitor loss: The costs of policy administration, investment managemant, surrender cherges and certain policyholder
taxes assessed against customers’ account balances are included in revenue, and accounted for as described under
“Investment contract fee revenue” above.

Mon unit-linked investment contract liabilities are carried at amortised cost. being the fair valus of considaration received
at the date of inital recognition; less the neteffectof principal payments such as transaction costs and front-end fees, plus
or minus the cumulative amertisation using the effective interest methed of any difference betwesn that initial amountand
the maturity value, and less any write-dowr for surender payments, The effective interest rate equates the discounted
cazh payments to the initial amount At esch reporting date, the unearmed revenus liability is determined as the value of
the future best estimate cazh flows discounted at the effective interest rate, Any adjustment [= immediately recognised as
income or expensa in the conselidated income statement.

The amortised cost of the financial liability is never recorded at léss than the amount payable on surrender, discounted for
the time value of money where applicable, if the investment contract is subject o a surrender option.

Deferred fee income Hability

Deferred fee income lability reprezents upfront fees and other non-level charges thathave been coliected and réleased 1o
the conselidated incame statement over the estimated Life of the business. A separate liability for accumulation value is
established.

156 | AL GROUP LIMITED

402/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (coninuesd)

Product classification (contieed)

042 Insurance and investment contracts

Reinsurance

The Graup cedes reinsurance in the normal course of busingss, with retentions varying by ling of business, The cost of
reinsurance ks sccounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies, using assumptions consistent with thase
used to account for such policies.

O ERVIEW

Premiums ceded and claims reimburied are presented on @ gross basis in the consclidated incomea statemant and
statement of financial position.

Relnsyrance assets conslat of amaunts recelvable in respect of ceded Insurance Wabllithes Amounts recoverable from
rainsurers are-estimated ina manner consistent with the reinsured insurance orinvestmant contract liabilities or benefits
paid and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract

FIMAHCIAL AND OFPERATING REVIEW

To thie extent that relnsurance contracts principally transter financial risk (as opposed to insurance risk) they are accounted
for dirsctly through the consclidated statsment of financial position and are notincluded in reinsurance assats or labilities.
Adeposit assetor liability is recognised. based on the conzideration paid or raceived less any explicitly identifisd premiums
or fees to be retainad by the refnsured.

[f-a relnsurance asset s iImpaired. the Group reduces the carrying amount accordingly and recognisas that impairment loss
in the consclidated income statament. A reinsurance assat is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a rezult of anevent
that eecurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assat, that the Group may not recedve all ameounts due to it under
the terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts that the Group will receiva from the reinzurer can be reliably
msasured,

The upfront premium rebats received on reinsurance contracts is-a reinsurance liability, This Hability i initially recognized
asa reduction in deferred acquisition and origination costs up to the carrying value of associated deferred acquisition
casts or associated value of business acquired, if any, with any excess being recognised in other Hakilitles. This reinsurance
liability s raleasad in line with the releazs of the underlying insurance contracts. Changa in this relnsurance lability during
the pariod is recognised as insurance and investmeant contract benefits caded,

Value of business acquired (VOBA)

The VOEA N ra"m:r_mm* a portlolio of long-term insurance and investment contracts, either directly or through the purchase
of & a.ubardlar;.l, iz re-:ngni'sad az an aszset. If mrg-r'emu-fmm the acquisition of an investmeant in a foint venture or an
associate, the VOBA iz held within the carrying amount.of that investment. In all cazes, the VOBA iz amortized over the
estimated life of the contracts in the acquired portfolic on a systematic basis, The rate of amortization reflects the prodile
of the value of in-force business acquired, The carrying value of VOBA s reviewed annually for impairment and any
reduction is charged to the consalidated incomo statemant.

Shadow accounting
‘Shadow accounting |s applied to insurance and certain Investment contracts with discretionary participation feature
where financial as2ets backing Insurance and fnvestment contract liabilities are clazsified a3 available for sale. Shadow
‘accounting is applied to defarred acquisition costs: VOBA, deferred crigination: costs and the contract labilities for
investmeant contracts with DPF to take into account the affect of unnealized gains or losses on insurance lisbiities or assets
that are recogniszed (n other comprehensive Income in the same way as for a realised gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated Income staisment Such assets or liabilities are adjusted with corresponding charges or credits recognised
dirsctly in shareholders’ aquity a3 & component of the related unrealised galns and losses.

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Cther assessments and levies

The Group |s potentially subject ta various periodic insurance-related assassments or guarantes fund levies. Relaed
provisions are established where thers is'a present obligation (legal or constructive) as & result of 2 past event. Such
amounts are not included in Insurance or inwestment contract lisbilities but are included under “Provizions® in the
consolidated statement of financial positson.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cominuod)

2.5 Financial instruments

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments

Einancial assets and Habilities at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss comprise two categories:

» financial assetsor liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition: and
+ financial assats or labilities classified as held for trading.

Management designates financial assets and labilities at fair value through profitor loss if this eliminates a measurament
inconsistency or if the related assats and liabilities are actively managed on a fair value basis including

+  financial assats hald to beck unit-linked contracts and participating funds:

= gthar financial assets managed on a fair value basis; consisting of the Group's aquity portfolic-and investments held by
the Group's fully consclidated investment funds: and

s gpompaund instrumants containing an embeadded derivative. where the embeadded derative would otharwize raguirs
bifurcation.

Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading incliede financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
salling them in the near future and those that form part of a portiolio of financial assats in which there iz evidence of
short=-term profit taking, a5 well as derivative assets and liabilities.

Dividend income from equity iInstruments designated at fair value through profitor loss fs recognised in investment Income
In'the conzolidated income statement, generally when the security becomes ex-dividend. Interest income is recognised on
an azeruad basis Forall financial assets designated at fair value theough pratit or less, changes in fair value are recognised
i InWEEUMENt BXpanence,

Transaction costs in respect of financial assets and Wabilities at falr value through profitor loss are expensed as they ars
Ineurred.

Available for sale financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss. and loans and receivables. are classified as availabie
for sale.

The availabla for zale category is usad where tha relswant investments backing insuranca and investment contract liabilities.
and shareholders’ equity are nat managed on-a fair value basiz Thesa principally consist of the Group's debt securities
{other than those backing participating fundz and unit-linked contracts). Available for sale financial asz=ts are initially
recagnised at fair value plus attributable transaction costs. For available for sale debt securities, the diffarence betwesn
their cost and par vatue is amortised. Available for zals financial assets are subsaguantly measured at fair value, Interest
income from debt securites clagsified as available for sale iz recognized in investmentincom in the consolidated incoma
statemnent using the effective interest method.

Unrealized galns and losses on securities classified a5 avallable for sale are analysed between differences resulting from
foreign currency translation. and other fair value changes. Foreign cumency translation differences on monetary avaiiabla
tor sals investmants. such as dabt securities are calculated as if they were carried at amortised costand $o are recognised
frv the consolidated income statement as investment experience. For impairments of avallable for sals financial assets,
reference is made to the section “Impairment of financial assats”,

Changes in the: fair value of securities classified as available for sals, except for impairment losses and relevant foreign
exchange gains and losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income and acoumulated in a separate fair valua
reserve within' equity. Impairment losses and relevant foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income
statement.

Realised gains and losses on financial assots

Realized gains and lozses on available for sale financial #ssets are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and amortisad cost Amortised cost Is determined by specific identification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foomtinusd)

2.5 Financial instrumants toontind;

2.5.1 Classification of and .dnignuﬂm. of Tinancial Instruments {continueed

Recagnition of finanelal Inatruments

Furchasez and =ales of financial instruments are recognized on the trade date, which iz the date at which the Group
commits o purchase or sell the assets

Derecognition and offset of financlal assets

Finamcial assats are derecognised when the rights 1 recelve cash fows from the financial assets have axpired or where
the Group has vansferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financiol asset, it derecognises the financial asset if it no longer
has control over the assst. In transfers where control over the as3et s retained, the Group continues to recognize the asset
to the extent of its continuing invalvement. The extent of continuing involvemant iz detarmined by the axtent towhich the
Group iz expozed tochanges in the fair value of the assat.

OWVERVIEW

Financial assats and liabilities are offset and tha net amaunt reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
only when there is a legally snforceable right to offset tha recognised amounts and thers is an intention 1o settle on a net
lbiasis; or realice the aszet and setile the liakdlity simultansgusly.

Loans and recalvables

Loans and recelvables are non-dervative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an
active market They ara initially recognized at falr value plus transaction costs, Subsequently, they are carried at amortisad
cost using the effective interest method [ess any impairment losses, Interest income from loans and receivables s
recognised in investmant income in the consolidated income statement waing the effective interest method.

Term deposiis

Depasits include time deposits with financial instintions which do not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalants az
their maturity at acquisition exceeds three months. Certain of thess balances are subject to regulatory or other restriction
azdisclosed in note 20 Loans and deposits. Deposits are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest mathed.

Caszh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in:hand, deposits hald-at call with banks and other short-term-highly Bouid
investmants with maturities at acquisition of three months or less: which-are beld for cash management purposes. Cash
and cash equivalents also include cash received as collateral for derivative transactions, and repo and reverse rapo
transactions. a5 well as cash and cash equivalents hield for the benefit of policyhalders in connection with unit-linked
products. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest mathod.

2.52 Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments

The fair value of a financhal instrument is the amount that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to ransfera liability in
an orderly transaction batwesn market participants at the measuremant date, having regard 1o the specific characterfstica
of the asset or labllity concerned, assuming that the transfer takes place in the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access. The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss and available for sale securities) are based on quoted market prices at the date of the
cansolidated statement of financial position. The quoted market price uzed for financial azsets held by the Group is the
current bid price. which is considered to be the price within the bid-azk spread thatis most representative of the fair value
in the circumstances. The falr values of financial instruments that are not traded In active markets are determined using
valuation techniques, The Group Uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions at
the date of each consolidated statemant of financial position. The objective of using a valuntion technique is to estimate
the price at which an erderly transaction would take place between market wﬁclp&nu:at the date of the consalidated
statemant of financiak posrtion.

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFERATING REVIEW

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Financlal instruments carried at fair value are measured using a fair value hierarchy desceribed in note 22,

ADINTIONAL INFORMATLON
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (comtinund

2.5 Financial instruments (continued)

2.5.3 Impairment of financial assets

Ganeral '

Financial azsets are aszezsed for impairment on a reguiar basiz, The Group aszesses ateach reporting date whether thers
is abjective avidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset, or group of financial
assets, Is impaired and Impalrment losses are Incurred only if there is ohjective evidence of impairment as a result of éne
oF mora avents that have occurmed after the Initial recagnition of the assat{a loss event) and that lass avent (or swents) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Far loans and receivables, the Group first assesses whether objective svidence of impairment exists for financial assats
that are individually significant. i the Group determines that objective evidence of impairment dogs not axist for an
individually aszeszed financial aszat, whether significant or not, it incluedes the asset in a-group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for Impairment. Assets that are Individually assessed for
Impafrment and for which an impairment lass is or continues to be recognised are not included in & collective assassmant
of Impairment

Available for sale financial instruments

When a decling |n the fair valus of an available for sale asset has been recognised in other comprahensive (ncome and
there isobjective evidence that the asset (simpaired, the cumulative loss already recognised directly in other comprehensive
incoema is recognized in current pariod profit or loss.

If the fair value of a debt instrumant classified as available for sale increases in a subsequent period. and the ingrease can
be objectively related to an eventoccurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impaimment loss
s revarsad through profit or lozs. Where following the recognition of an impairmiant loss in respect of an avallable for sale
debt security, the asset suffers further falls in value, such further falls are recognised as an impairment only in the caze
when objactive avidence exists of a further impairment event to which the losses can be attributed.

Loans and receivables

For loans and recelvables; Imipairment is conzsiderad to have taken place if it iz probable that the Group will not be able to
collect principal and for interest due according to the contractual terms of the Instrument. When impairment is detarmined
1o heve occurred, the carmying amount (s decreased through a charge to profit or loss. The carrying amount of mortgage
loans or recelvables |s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of any allewance Is recognised
a5 -an impalrment Loss in profit or loss.

2.5.4 Derivative financial instraments

Derlvative financlal instrumants primarily include foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps that derlve thair
value mainly from underlying foreign exchange rates and Intersizt rates. All derivatives are initially recognised in the
consolidated statemant of financial position at their fair valus, which représents their cost excluding transaction costs,
wiftich are expensed, giving rise to a day one loss. Thay are subsequently remeasured at their fair value, with movemeants in
this value recognised in profit or loss, Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices or, If these are not available, by
using wvaluation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or option pricing madels. All derivatives are camied as
assets when the fair values are positive and a3 liabilities when the fair values are negative.

Derivative instrumants for ecanomic hedging ;

Whilst the Group enters Inte derlvative transactions 1o provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework, it adopts hedge accounting 1o these ﬁnmﬁnﬂ:_ anly In limited circumstances. This is either because the:
transactions would not meast the spacific IFRS rules 1o be eligible for hedge accounting or the decumentation requirements.
to meat hadge accounting criteria would be unduly onercus. Whera hedge accounting does not apply. thess tranzactions.
are treated as hedd for trading and fair value movements are recognised immediataly in investment experiance.
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NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcominud)

2.5 Financial instrumants toontinud;

2.5.4 Darivative financial instruments (cntimesd)

Embedded derivatives '

Embedded derivatives are derivatives embedded within other non=derivative host financial instruments to create hybrid
instrumants. Whera the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely nalated to the
econamic characteristics and risks of the host instrument, and where the hybrid instrument I not measured ai fair value
with changes i fair value recognised in profit or logs, the embedded derivative I bifurcated and carried at fair value asa
derivative in accordance with 145 39.

O ERVIEW

2.6 Segment reporting

An aperating segment |3 4 componant of the Gioup that engages in business activity from whilch It earns revenues and
incurs expenses and, for which, dizcrete financial information is available. and whose operating results are. regularly
raviewed by the Group's chief operating decision-makes. censidensd to be the Executive Committes of the Group (ExCa).

FIMAHCIAL AND OFPERATING REVIEW

2.7 Forelgn currency translation

Income statements and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the Group's présentation currency at average
exchangs rates for the period as this approvmates to the axchange rates pravailing at the transaction date, Their statements
of financial position are translated at year or pericd end exchange rates. Exchange diffsrences arising from the translation
of tha net investmeant in foreign operations, ars taken to the 1.:ur.ra-m'.l translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a
foreign oparation, such exchange differences are transferred out of this reserve and are recognised in the consolidated
incorne statemant as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the tranzactions, Gains and
lagses resulting from the sattlement of suech transsetions. and from the teanslatisn of manetary assets and liabilities
danominated in foreign currenciesinta functional currency. &re recognized in the consolidated income statement.

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

Translation differences on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are included in Investment
expenence. For monetary financial asseis classified as available for sale, transtation differences are calcuiated asif they
ware corried ot amortised cost and 5o ans recognized in the consalidated income statement. Faraign exchange movemants
N AN MOne A ry aquities that-are accounted for a5 avaitable forsale are included in the fair value reserve.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property held for own use iz carried at fair value at last valuation date less accumulated depreciation. When an asset is
-mdjusted for the latest fair valus, any accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amountof the asset. The movement of fair values is generally recognised in other comprehensive Income. When
such properties are sold. the amounts accumulated inother comprehensive income are transferred to retained eamings.

The Group records its interest in leasahold (and and land use rights-associated with property held for own use separately
a5 operating leazes or finance leases depending on whether substantially all the risks and rewands incidental to ownership
of the land are transferred 1o the Group, These Interests classified a;s finance leasas ane reparted asa n-uinpi:nen: of the
property held for awn use and camied at fair value at [ast valuation date. The prepayments to acquire leasahold land
clazsified as operating leazes are recorded at original cost within " Other assets” and amortised over the term of the laase
{see note 2.19),

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Flant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

ADDHTIONAL INFORMATLON
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continusd}

2.8 Proporty, plant and equipmeont (coninusd)
Depreciation is calculdted using the straight-fine mathod to-atlocate cost lazs any residual value aver the estimated useful

life, genaraliy:

Fiutures, fittings and office equipment 5 years
Buildings 20-40 years
Cdmpu:ur hardware and other assets 3-Syears
Freatiold land No depreciation

Subsequent costs are included in the carmying amount or recognised asa separate asset as appropriate, when it isprobable
that future economic benefits will flow ta the Groups Repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated incoma
statement during the financial period In which they ané incuwrred.

Residunl values and uas ful lives are reviewsd and adpusted. if applicable. at sach reporting date. An aszet is written down
10 its recoverable amount if the carrying value is greater than the estmated recoverable amount

Any gain and loss arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment s measured as the difference batween the net sale
proceeds and the carrying armount of the relevant asset, and iz recognised in the consolidated fncome statemant.

2.9 Investment proparty

Property held for lopg-term mental or capital appreciation, or both that Is not occupled by the Group Is classified as
Investment proparty. Investment property, including tand and bulldings, is initially recognised at cast with changes in fair
values in subsequent periods recognised in the consotidated income statemant.

If an Investment property becomes held for own use, It is reclassified as property, plant and equipment Where a property
Is partly used az an investment property and partly far the use by the Group, these elements are recorded separately within

Investmant praperty and property, plant and equipment respectively, whare the companent usad as investment propsrty
wiould be capable of separate zals or finance lsaze.

2.10 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable

asssts of the 2cquired subsidiary, assoclate or joint venture at the date of acquisition, Goodwill on acquisitions prior 1o 1

December 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS) Is carried at book value {oniginal cost less cumulative amortization) on that
date, less any impairment subssgquently Incurred. Goedwidll arizing on the Group's investment in subsidianes since that date

i% shown a5 a separate asset and is carriad at cost less any accumulated impairment losses: whilst that on sssociates and

joint ventures is included within the carmying value of those investmants. All acquisition-related costs ane expensed a5
Incurred.

Other intangible assets

Othier intangible azsets consist primarily of acquired computer software and contractual relationships. such as accezs fo
distribution networks, and are-amortised aver their estimated useful lives. The amortisation charge for rights to access.
distribution netwerks is included In the consolidated income statement under “Commizsion and other acquisition
Bupenses’.

Acquired computer software licences-are capltalised on the basis of the costs incumed to acquire and bring to wse the
specific software, Costs directly associated with the internal production of (dentifiable and unique software by the Group
that will generate economic beneafiis exceeding those costs over a perfod greater than a year. are recognised as Intangible
assets, All other costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes ane recognised as an
expense asincurmed. Costs of acquining computer software licences and incurred in the internal production of computer
software are amortised using the straight-line method over the estimated wseful life of the software, which does not
generally exceed a period'of 3 to 15 years. The amortization charge for the period is included in the consolidsted income
statament Unider “Cperating expentes”. '
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinud)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Proparty, plant and equipment, goodwill and other non-financial aszets are raviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes In cincumsatances indicate that 1ha.¢arr\llnq amount may not be recoverable. An Impuhmm;t logzis recognized to
the extant that the carmying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which iz the higher of the fair value of the
asset lass cost to 36l and value in use: For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets ang allocated 1o each of the
Group's cash-generating units. or group of cash-generating units, the lowest level for which theme are separately identifiable
cash flows The carrying values of geodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewesd at least shnually
oF wWhen cincumstances or events indicate that there may be uncertainty ower this valbse.

OWVERVIEW

‘The Graup assesses af the end of each reporting period whather there Is any objective evidence that its Investmants in
associates and joint ventures are (mpaired. Such objective evidence includes whethar thare has been any significant
adversa changes in the technological, market, economic or legal anvironment in which the associates and joint ventures
operate or whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there is an indication that
an intarest in an asseciate or @ joint venture ks impaired, the Group m3zesses whether the entire carmying amount of the
investment {including goodwill) is recoverabla. An impairment loss is recognised fn profit or losz for the amount by which
the carrying amigunt is lawer than tha higher of ths investrmant’s fair vslus le3s costs 1o sall or valus in use. Any reversal of
such impairment loss in subsequent periods is reversed through profit or boss.

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFERATING REVIEW

I the statement of financial position of the Company, impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint venturesis required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend eiceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures in tha periad the dividend is-declared or if the carrying amount of
the relevant investment in the Company's staternent of financial posibon excesds its carrying amount in the-consolidated
financial statements of the Investees net assats Including goodwill,

2.12 Securities lending including repurchase agroements

The Group has basn a party to vanous sacurities lending agreaments under which-securities are foaned to third parties on
a short-term basis. The loaned securties are not derecognised and so they continue to be recognisad within the appropriate
investment classification,

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

Assets sold under repurchiase agresments (repos)

Azsets sold under repurchase agreements cantinua to be recognizad and a Hability = establizhed for the consideration
received. The Gmup may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underiying assets, and
such collateral assets remain on the consolidated statement of financial positon.

Asszels purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)

The Group enters inte purchases of assats under agreements 1o resell (reversa repos). Reverse repos are initially reconded
at the cost of the loan or collateral advanced within the caption “Loans and deposits” In the consalidated statement of
financial pasition. [n the avent of failure by the counterparty 1o repay the loan, the Group has the right 1o the underlying
A5ets.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADINTIONAL INFORMATLON
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2.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continusd}

2.13 Collateral

The Graup receives and pledges collateral In the form of cash or non-cash assets in respect of derivative transactions,
securities lending transactions, and repo and reverse repo tranzactiens, in-order to reduce the credit rizk of 1he.sq
transactions. The amount and typeof collaterat depends on an aszessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Coliateral
received in the form of cash, which is notlegally segregated from the Group, s recognised as an asset in the consclidated
staternint of financial position with a corresponding Liability for the repayment, Hon-cash collateral received is not
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position unlass the Group sells thess assats in the absence of
default, st which paint the obligation o return this collateral is recognised as a Habdlity. To further minimise credit risk. the
financial condition of counterparties is monitored on & regular basis:

Collateral pledged in the form of cash which Is legally sagregated from the Group is derecognised from the consalidated
statementof financial position and a cormesponding recaivable established for itz return. Non-cazh collateral pledged iz not
derecognized (excapt in the event of default) and therefore continues to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position within the appropriate financial instrument classification,

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initiaily-at their issue proceeds less transaction costs incumed. Subssquently, bormowimgs ane
stated atamortized cost, and any difference between nat proceeds and redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
Income statement over the pericd of the borrowings using the effective Interest method. All borrowing casts are expensed
aa thiey are incurred, except for bormowing costs directly anributable to the devalopment of investmant properties and other
qualifying assets. which are capitalised as part of the cost of the asser

2.5 Income taxes
The current tax expense is baged on the taxable profits for the perlod, Including any adjustments in respect of prior years.
Tax iz allocated to profit or lozs before taxation and amounis charged or creditad to equity as appropriate.

Deferred tay |5 recogalsed in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilives and their
carrying amounts in the consalidated financial statements, except as desaribed below

The principal temporary differences anse from the basis of recognition of insurance and Investment contract labilities,
revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilivies including derivative contracts. deferred acquisition costs and the
future taxve s arising on the surplus in life funds whers the relevant looal tax regime is distrbutions-based. The rates enacted
ar substantivaly enacted at the date of the consolidated statement of financial phﬂﬁun are usied o determine deferned tax

Deferred 1ax assets are necognised 1o the extent thatitis probable that future taxable profit will ba available against which
the temparary differences can be utilised. In countries whare there is a history of tax losses, deferrad tak assets are only
recognised in excess of deferred tax liabilities if there is evidence that future profits will be available.

Deferred taxes are not provided in respact of temporary differences arising from the initial mcegnition of gocdwill or from

goodwill for which amartisation is not deductible for tax purposes, or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability ina
transaction which is nota business combination and which affects neither aq.cpunu'ng nor taxable profitor loss at the time
of the transacton.

Dreferred tax related to: fair value remeasurement of available for sale investments and other amounts taken directiy to
equity, is recognised initially within the applicable component of equity. It s subsequently recognised in the consolidated
Income statement, together with the gain or loss arising on the underlying item

In addition 1o paving tax on shareholders’ profits, certain of the Group's life insurance businesses pay tax on policyholders”
investment returns-(policyholder tax) at policvholder tax rates. Policyholder tax iz accounted for as-an income tax and is
(neludad in the total thoexpanse and disclosed separately,
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinud)

2.16 Revenue

Investment refurn

Irwaaimenl incoms consists of dividends. interest and rents recelvable for the reporting perlod. Investment exparience
comprizes realised gains and lozsas: impairments and enrealised gains and losses on investments held ar fair value
through profit or loss: Interest income is recognised as itaccrues, taking inte account the effective yield on the investment,
Rental Income on investment property (s recognised an an accrual basks, Investment return consists of Investment Income
and e stment xpanance.

OWVERVIEW

The-realized gain or loss on disposal of an investment |5 the difference between the proceeds received, net of ransaction
casts, and its original cost or amortisad cost as appropriate. Unrealized gains and losses reprasent the differsnce between
the carrying value at the period end and the carrying value at the previous year end of purchase price if purchased during
the period, less the reversalof previously recagnised unrealisad gains and lozses in respect of dizpozals made during the
period,

Other fee and commission income

Other fee and commission income consists primarily of fund management fees income from any incidental non-insurance
activities, distribution feas frem mutual funds, commissions on reinsurance ceded and comméssion revenus from the sale
of mutual fund shares. Reinsurance commissions recelvable are deferred in the same way as acquisition costs, All other
fee and commizsion income |s recognised as the services are provided,

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFERATING REVIEW

2.17 Employee bonefits -

Arnual teave and long service leave.

Employes entitlements 1o annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue 1o employess. A provision
Is made for the estimated liabitity for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by emplovess up
to the reparting date.

Post-retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of funded and unfunded post-retirement employee benefit schames, whose members
raceive banafits on sither a defined bansefit basis (generally related to 2alary and length of service) ¢r a defined contribution
lbasis {generally related to the amount invested, investment return and-annuity rates), the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee-administered funds, The defined benefit plans provide life and medical benafits for employees
after ratirement and a lump sum benefit on cessation of employment and the defined contribution plans provide
post-retirement pension banefits.

For definad benefit plans, the costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method. Under thiz method, the cost of
providing benefits is charged o the consolidated income statement so @3 1o spread the regular cost over the service lives
of emplovess, In accordance with the advice of qualified aciuaries. The obligation |s measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflaws, using a discount rate based an market vislds for high-quality corparate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms 1o maturity approdmating to the terms
of the related liability, The resulting scheme surplus or deficit appears as an assator liability in the consotidated statement
of financial position.

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actearial gains and [osses; the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset cailing (if any, excluding interest). The Group-recognises them immediately
in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in staff costs (n the conzolidated
Income statement.

When the benafits of a plan are changed, or when a plan iz curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
garvice by employees; or the gain or loss on curtailment, iz recognised immediately in conzolidated income statement
when the plan amendmeant or curtailment ocours.

ADINTIONAL INFORMATLON

Far defined contribation plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privataly administared penzsion plans. Once the
cantributions have been pasd. the Group. as employer, does not have any further payment obligations. The Group's
contributions are charged 1o the consolidated income statement in the reporting pericd to which they relate and are
included In stalf costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (comtinund)

2.17 Employea bonefits (contimued)

Share-based compensation and cash incentive plans

The Group launched a number of shere-bazed compensation plans, under which the Group recelves services from tha
employees, directors, officers and agents-as consideration for the shares andfor-share options of the Company. Thesa
share-based compensation plans comprise the Share Option Scheme (30 Schema), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme
(R5U Scheme), the Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESFF) and the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPR).

The Group's share-basad compansation plans are predominantly sguity-settied plans. Under squity-settied share-basad
compensation ptamn. the fair value of the emplovee services received In exchange for the award of shares and/or share
options is recogniszed as an expanse in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding amount recorded in
equity.

The total amount to be axpensed over the vesting period is determined by referance to the fair walue of the share and/or
share options awanrded, Non-market vesting conditions are ingluded in assumptions abaut the number of shares and/or
share options that are expected to ba vested, At each perind end, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares
and/or share options that am expectad to b vested. Any impact of the revision to oriﬂﬁa[anﬁmtas'iﬂ recognized in pmﬁt
or toss with & corresponding adjustment to equity. Where awards of share-based payment arrangements have graded
vesting terms, each tranche iz recognised as a ssparate award, and therefore the fair value of sach tranche is recognisad
aver the applicable vesting period,

The Group estirnates the falr value of share options using a binomdal tattice model This madel requires Inputs zuch as
share price, implied volatitity, risk-free interest rate, expected dividend rate and the expected life of the share option.

Where modification or cancellation of an equity-setded share-based compenzation plan oceurs, the grant date fair value
ceontinues to be recognised, togethar with any increméntal value arising on the date of modification If non-market conditions
are met.,

For cash-settled share-based compensation plans. the fair value of the employes services in exchange for the awand of
cash-setthed award is recognised asan expense in profitor loss, with a cormesponding amount récognised in lability, At the
and of sach reporting parod. any unsettied award is remieasured based on tha changs in fair value of the underlying asset
and the liability and expense are adjusted accordingly.

2.18 Provisions and contingoncies

Pravisions are recognised when the Group has a present lsgal or constructive obligation a5 a resull of past ewents. it is
probable that an outfiow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliabie sstimate of the
amount of the cbligation can be made. Where the Group expects a provision 1o ba reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract held, the refmbursement iz recognizsed as a separate asset only when the relmburssment Is virtually
certaln.

The Group recognizes & provision foronerous contracts when the expectad banefits to be derived froma contract are fess
than the una¥oldable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Contingencies are disclosad If material and if thers is 2 possible futore obligation as a result of a past avent, or if there isa.
present cbligation as a result of a past avent, but either a paymant iz not probable-or the amaunt cannat be reliably
estimated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES comtimped)

2.19 Loases

Leases, where a significant portion of thi risks and reward s of ownership is retained by the Group as a lessor are classified
as operating leases. Aszets subject to such leases are included in property, plant and equipment or investmant property,
and are depraciated to their residual values over their estimated useful lives: Rentals from such lsazes are credited to the
consolidated income statement on & straight-line basis over the pariod of the refevant leass.

Payments made by the Group s lessee under operating leaszes are classified sither as-an operating lease prepayment or
asa component of investment property depending on whether the proparty interest is uzed as’investmant property.
Operanng leases held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both thatare not occupled by the Group are classified
as investmeant property. They are initially recognised at cost with changes in fair values in subsequent periods recognised
in the censolidated income statement. The Group classifias amounts paid to acquire tnnhl_:lti land which are hald for the
Group’s own occupancy as an operating laase prapayment or 45 a componant of prope rty, plant and aquipment depending
on-whethar substantially all the riskz and rewards incidental to the ownership of the land are ransferred to the Group,
Prepayments for land use rights under operating leasas that are hald for the Group's own ocoupancy (netof any incentives
received from the lessor) are Included within “Other aszets® and charged to'the consolidsted Income statament on 2
straight-ling basis over tha pariod of the relevant lease. There ars not any freshold land interests in Hang Kang,

OWVERVIEW

FIMANCIAL AMD OFPERATING REVIEW

2.20 Sharo capital
Ordinary shares are classified In equity when there {s not any obligation to transfer cash or other aszets 1 the holders.

-Share issue costs
Incremental external costs directly attributable 1o the issue of new shares are shown in equity as 2 deduction, net of 1ax,
fromm the procesds of the jsaue.

Dividends
Interim dividends on ordinary shares are recognized when they have bean paid, Final dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised when thay have been approved by shareholders.

COMPONATE COVERMANCE

2.21 Prezsontation of the consolidated statemaont of financial position

The Group's insurance and investment contract lizbilities and related assats are realised and ettled over periods of several
years, reflecting the long-term nature of the Group's products: Accerdingly, the Group presents the assats and liabilities in
its consolidated statement of financial pasition In approxdmate order of liguidity, rather than distinguishing current and
non-curmint assets and Labilives: The Group regards (15 intangible assets, Mvestments in associates and |aint ventures,
proparty, plant and equipmant. investmant property and deferred acquisition and origination costs as non-cUrmant asssts
a5 these are held for the longer-term use of the Group.

-2.22 Earnings por share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit-available to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period,

Earnings per share has also been colculated on the operating profit before. adjusting itsms. aftributable to ordinary
shareholders: as the Directors balieve this figura provides a better indication of oparating perfarmance. ;

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted averags number of ordinary shares in issue iz adjusted to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as share options awarded to employees.

Patential or contingant share issuances ane traated as dilutive when their conversion 1o shares would decrease net sarnings
per share.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

Azsetsand income arizing from fiduciary activities. togather with refated undartakings to return such assets to customars,
are excleded from these consolidated financial statemants whans the Group does not have contractual rights tothe assets
and acts in a fiduclary capacity such as nomines, trustee or agent.

ADHTIONAL INFORMATLON
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (ronsinusd}

2.24 Consolidated statement of cash flow

The consalidated statement of cash flow presants movements inicash and cash equivalents and bank cverdrafts as shown
in the conzolidated statsment of financial position

Purchases and sales of financial investmentsare included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from cash
flows associated with the origination of insurance and Investment contracts, net of payments of related benefits and
claims! Purchases and salesof investment property are included within cash flows from investing activities.

2.25 Rolated party transactions
Transactions with ralu_k;d parties are recorded at amounts mutuali'.tagma:! and transacted between the parties 1o the
arrangement.

3.CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and revenue and
expenses All estimates are baded an management’s kndwladge of current facts and circumslantes, assumptions based on
that knowledge and predictions of future events and actions. Actual résults can always differ from those estimates. possibly
significantly,

Items that are considered particularly sensitive 1o changes In estimates and assumptions, and the relevant accounting
policies are those which relate to product classification. insurance contract liabilities {including liabilities in rezpact of
investmant contracts with DPF), deferred acquisition and ongination costs, liability adequacy testing, fair valua
meazurament and imgairmant of goodwitl and ather intangible assets.

3.1 Produect classification

The Group isswes contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both: Insurance contracts are thoza contracts.
that transfer significant insurance risk, while investment contracts are those contracts without slgnificant insurance risk.
The Group exercises significant judgement to determine whether there is a scanario (other than those lacking commercial
ubstance) inwhich an inzired svent would rm.lulra thia Group to pay significant additional benefits to its customers. In the
event the Group has to pay sgnificantadditional benefits to its customers. the contractis accounted for as an insurance
contract. The judgements exercised in determining the level of insurance risk in product classification affect the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements as insurance and investment contract Babilities and deferred
aequisition and otigination casts. The accounting policy on produsct classification s described in note 2.4

3.2 Insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF)

The Group caleulates the Insurance contract liabilities for traditional life Insurance using a net level premium valuation
mathod. whersby the Liability represants the present value of astimated future palicy benefits 1o be paid, less the present
vilue of estimated future nat premiums 10 be collected from policyhelders. This method wses best estimate assumptions:
atinception adjusted for a provision for the risk of adverse deviation for mortality, morbidity, expected investment vialds,
policyhelder dividends (for othar participating business), surrenders and expenses sat at the policy inception date. These
assumptions remain locked In thereafter, unless a deficlency arises on llabillity adequacy testing. Interest rate assumptions
can vary by geagraphical market, vear of issuance and product. Martality, surrender and expense assumptions are baged
on actual experiance by each geographical market modified 1o allow for vanations in policy form. The Group exercises
significant judgemeant in making appropriate assumptions.

For contracta with an sxplicitaccount balance, such as universal life and unit-linked contracts, (nsuranca contract liabilives

represent the accumutation valise, which represents premiums recelved and investment returns credited to the policy less

deductions for mortality and morbidity costs and expense changes. Significant judgement isexercised in making appropriata

estimates of gross profits which are based on histarical and anticipated futurs experiences, these estimates an regularly
reviswed by the Group.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS ooutiund)

3.2 Insurance contract liabilities (including labilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF) (continued)
The Group accounts forinsurance contract liabilities for participating business written in participating funds by establishing
allability for the present value of guaranteed banefitz less estimated future net premivms o be eollected from policyholdars.
In additicn, an insurance {iability i= recorded for the proportion of the net assetz of the participating funds that would be
allocated to policyhalders assuming all refevant surplus at the date of the consclidated statamant of financial position
wene 1o be declared as a policyholder dividend based upon applicable regulations. Establishing thiess liabilities requires
the exarcize of significant iudgemuht.]n addition, the assumpticn that all relevant parformance s declared asa policyholder
dividend may not be borna out in practice. The Group accounts for ather participating business by establishing a Habdlity
for the prezent value of guaranteed benefits and non-guaranteed participation, lezs estimatad future net premiums to be
collected from policyholders,

OVERVIEW

The judgements axsrcized in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities (including investmeant contracts with DPF)
-affect the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements as inzurance contract banefits and insurance
contract liabilities, Further details of the related accounting policy, key risk and variables. and the sensitivities of
assumptions to the key variabies in respectof insurance contrack labilivies are provided In notes 2.4, 26 and 28,

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFPERATING REVIEW

3.3 Deferred acquisition and origination costs

The jedgemants exercised in the deferral and amertization of acquisition and crigination costs affect amounts recognized
in the consolidated financial statements as deferred acquizition and origination costs and Insurance and nvestment
contract benafits:

Az noted in note 2.4.7. deferred acquisition costs for traditonal life Insurance and annuity policies are amortized aver the
expecied life of the contracts as a/ constant percentage of expected premiums. Expected premiums are estimated at the
date of policy Issue and are applied consistently throughout the lite of the contract unless a delficlency ccours when
performing liabillty adequacy testing.

Az noted in note 2,41, deferned acquisition costs for universal life and unit-linked contracts are amortised over the expeciod
life of the contracts based on a constant percentage of the present value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised
ower the life of the contract or on @ straight-line bazis As noted in note 2.2, significant judgement Is exercized in making
appropriate estimates of gross profits. The expensing of acquisition costs is accelerated foliowing adverss investment
performance, Likewise; in periods of favourable investment performance, previously expensed acquisition costs are
raversed, not exceading the amodnt indtially deferred,

COMPONATE COVERMANCE

Additional detalls of daferred acquizition and erigination costs are provided in notes 2.6 and 19.

3.4 Liability adequacy tosting

The Group evaluatesthe ada.qmt_:\r of its inswrance and investment contract liabilities with DPF at lzast annually Significant
{udgement is exarcised fn determining the lavel of aggregation at which liability adequacy testing is parformad and in
-salecting best estimate assumptions. Liahility adequany i= asseszed by portfolio of contracts in accordance with. the
Group's manner of acquiring,-servicing and measuring the profitability of its:instrance contracts. The Group performs
liability adequacy testing separately for each reportable segment

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

The judgementsexercisad in liability adeguacy testing affect amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statemants
as commission and other acquisition expanses, defermed acquisition costs. insurance contract bonefits and insurance and
Investment contract labilivies

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATLON
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (comtinund)

3.5 Fair value measurement

3.5.1 Fair value of financial assets

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets traded (n active markets using quoted bid prices as of each
reporting date- The fair values of financial azsets that are not traded in active markets are typically determined using a
vanety of other valuation téchnigques. such as prices observed in recent transactions and values obtained from curmant bid
prices of comparable investments, More judgemeant is used In measuring the fair value of financial assets for which market
obsarvabile prices are not available or are available ealy infrequently.

The degres of judgemant used in measuring the fair value of financial assers generally correlates with the lavel of pricing
abservability. Pricing obsarvability ks atfected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrumant, whethar
the financial Instrument is neww to the market and not yet established, the characteristics specific to the transaction and
ganeral market conditions. .

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held by the Group’s participating funds atfect not anly the vales of financial
assats, I_Jut are also refiected in corresponding movements in in'su.ra'nm and investment contract liabilities. This (s 'du.u to
an insurance lability baing recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be allocated
tor-palicyholders if all retevant surplus at the date of the conselidated statementof financial position wers 1o be declared
-asapolicyholder dividend based on cumentlocal regulations. Both of the foregoing changes are reflected in the consclidated
InEome statement.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held 1o back the Group's unit-linked contracts resull ina corre sponding change
in insurance and investmant contract llabllites. Both of the foregaing changes ane also reflected in the consclidated
income statement.

Further details of the fair value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis to Interest rates and equity prices are
provided in notes 32 and &7, '

3.5.2 Fair value of property held for own use and investment property

The Group uses Independent professional valuers to determine the fair value of properties on the basis of the highest and
best use of the properties that i physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. In mosi cases, cumment Lsa
of the properties is considered to be the highestand best use-for determining the fair value. Different valuation technigques:
may be adopted to reach the fair value of the propartes. Under the Market Data Approach, records of recent zales and
afferings of similar property ara analysed and comparisans are mads for factors such az size; location, quality and
prospective use, For investment properties, the discounted cash flow appreach may be used by reference 1o nef rental
incoma allowling for reversionary income potential 1o estimate the fair value of the properties. On some sccasions. the cost
approach is used as well to calculats the fair value which reflects-the cost that would be required 1o replace the service
capacity of the property,

Further detalls of the Fair value of property hald for own use and [nvestment propery afe provided (6 note 22,

‘3.6 Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
For the purpases of impairment 1esting, goodwill and other intang|ble assets are grouped into cash-generating wnits or
groups of cash generating units These assels are tasted for impairment by comparing the carrylng amount of the
cash-genarating unit (group-of units), including goodwill, to the recoverable amount of that cash-generating unit (groupof
units} The determination of the recoverable amount requines significant judgement regarding the seléction of appropriata
n.luaﬂnn techniques and assumptions. Further details of the impairment of geodwill during the period are prmr[dud in note
14,
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z
6. OPERATING PROFIT AFTER TAX H
Operating profitafter tax may be reconciled to net profit as follows E

THirtsss Tiarwd v

makihs ended mrscibh e}

31 Dacarmber 0 Horwembmr

55 m Ha pLTT 2007
DOperating profit after tax t 573 4682 x
MNon-operating tems, net of ralated changes in insurance and =
investmant contract liabilines: &
Short-term fluctuations in investment retumn redated to equities and E
reak estate (net of tax of: thirtean months anded 31 December 2018: -
USH164m; twelve months ended 30 November 2017 US3(1 1 7)m) {1,881} 1,764 E
Reclassification of revaluation gain for property held for own use 2
(met of tax of; thirtean months ended 21 December 2018: USE11m: =
twilve months ended 30 November 2017; USS4m) i {212) (B4) .
Corporate tranzsction related costs (net of tax of; thirtesn months E
ended 31 Decembier 2018, USE(35)m; twelve months ended T

30 November 2017 USE&m)™ {148} (25)

Implementation oosts for new accounting standards
{netof tax of; thirteen months ended 31 December 2018: US35m;
twalve months ended 30 November 201 7: pil}& {43} (L]

Diher non-operating investimant retunn and other items
{nat of tax of: thirtean months ended 31 Decamber 201 8:

U

=

US322m; twelve months ended 30 November 201 7. UST30m )~ (221} (144) E

MNet profit 3.326 5,187 2
Oparating profit after tax attribitable o) E
Sharchelders of AlA Group Limited 5684 4647 )
Men-controlling interests a7 35 2

Nat profif attributable tol _
‘Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 3163 5,120
Men-cantrolling interests 63 &7

Operating profit iz determined using, among others, expected long-term investment return for equites and real estate.
Short-term fluctuations between expected long-term investment return and actual investment retum for these asset
classes are axcluded from cperating profit. The investment return assumptions used to' detsrmine axpected long-tarm
investment raturn are based on the tame assumptions used by the Group in datermining its embadded value and are
-disclozed in the Supplementary Embeddad Value Information.

Notes:

{1} Shrt-bavrm Dlisctant e b irvesatmmt pburn e the sovalipstion gain e poga ety el Torean ues. This amoant b iben molassflod st of il
pealit o canfarmy to IFRS msas uromant and pressilstion.

1 Thas extrmaparnbbs indormathon has been modjubod tocondom (o el perid peosdnkation,

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHNTS .

T.TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANMUALISED NEW PREMIUMS

For management decision-making and intemal parformance management purposes. the Group measures business
volumes during the pariod using a performance measure refermed to as tofal welghted premium Inceme (TWPI). The Group
measures new business activity using a performance measure referred to as annualised new pramiums {ANF). The
p.munmtfan of this note = consistent with cur reportable segment presentation ln.nnln g

TWFI consists of 100 percentof renewal pramiums, 100 per centof first vear premiums-and 10 parcentof single premiums,
before relnsurance ceded, and includes deposits and contributions for contracts that are accounted for as deposits in
“accordance with the Group's accounting policies.

ADDHTIONAL INFORMATLON

ANNUAL REFORT 20181 173

419/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooood

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

174 | ALk GROU LIMITED

420/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

NOTES TD THE CONSOLIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7.TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS (coninsd) ;
Thirisss il s E
manths endea  manths endoil
AN 21 Decambar 30 Hervwsinbes
15Em 2018 017
ANF by geography
Hong Kong 2,793 2849 -
Thailand 648 518 =
‘Singapore 561 433 &
Malaysia v 248 z
Chitia 1.098 D68 E
Other Markets 1273 976 E
Total &770 6,092 =
z
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION Frd
The Group’s operating segments. based on the reports received by the ExCo are eachof the geographical markets in which
the Group operates. Each of the reportable segments, other than the “Group Corporate Cantra” segment, writes life
Insurance busingzs, providing life insurance, accident and health Insurance and savings plans to customers in its local
market, and distributes rlated inwesiment and other financial sarvices products. The reportable segmants are Hong Kong "
(inciuding Macau), Thatland. Singapore {including Brunei), Malaysia, China, Other Markets and Group Corporate Cantrs, §
Other Markets includes the Group's operations in Australia {including Mew Zealand), Cambodia, indonesta, Korea, the ]
Fhilippines, Sr Lanka, Talwan, Vietnam and India. The activities of the Group Corporate Centre segment consist of the IE._
Group's corporate functions, shared services and eliminations of intragroup tran sactions. E
The acquired subsidiaries and respective cperations mentioned in note 5 are inclided under the operations in Australia E
(inctuding New Zealand). E

Az each reportable segment other than the Group Corporate Cantre segment focuses on serving the life insurance needs
of its local market, there are limited transactions betwesn reportable segmants. The key performance indicators reported
in respectof each segmant are:

+  ANPY

« TWRI

+  Investment retum;

* pparating aXpanses;

« opearating profit after tax atiributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limited:

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

* eupanse ratio. measured as operating expenses divided by TWFI;
= pporating margin, maasured as operating profit after tax exprassed a2 a parcantage of TWPI and

+ pperating return on shareholders’ allocatsd equity measured as operating profit after tax anributable w shareholders
of AlA Growp Limited expressed as a percentage of the simple average of opening and clesing shareholders' allocated
segrment equity (being the segment assets less segment labilities in respect of each meportable segment less
non-controlling interests and fair value resarve).

In pre santing nat capatal inf{out) flows to reportable ssgments, capital outflows consistof dividends and profitdistributions
1o the Group Dl.;rpnia.te Cantra segment and capital inflows consist of capital injectiens into reportable segments by the
Group Corporate Cantre segment. For the Group, net capital in/fout) flows reflect the net amount received from sharsholders
by way of capital contributions lass amaunts distributed by way of dividends:

ADDHTIONAL INFORMATLON

Business volumes in respect of the Group's five largest customers are less than 30 per cent of premiums and fee Income,
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION footinues)

Group
Other  Corpocals

Lrsdny Haong Konrg Thadland  Singagone Hialaysia Chinm Markols Cantn Tetal
Thirtean months anded 31

December 2018
ANP 2,793 S48 562 396 1,098 1273 - 6,770
TWPI 12,501 4,232 2,906 2,245 6,366 6,859 = 33,109
Het premiums, fee income and

other aperating revenus

(et of reinsurance ceded) 14,046 4,156 3295 1,970 5,222 4,505 28 32,222
Imvestment return 1,849 1433 1271 .1 934 1,200 397 8,728
Total revenue 16,895 5.589 & 568 2,614 5,154 5,705 425 40,950
Metinsurance and nvestment

contract banafits 12,600 3,156 3,2%0 1,701 3,248 3030 26 27049
Commission and other

BEQUISIton axpEnDEs 1568 828 380 273 294 775 13 4131
Operating expen ses 438 235 226 196 348 701 212 2,366
Finance costs and other expenses 149 55 a2 13 3B 55 169 511
Total expenses 14,755 4.2 T4 3,928 2,163 3,926 4561 430 34057
Share of profit from associates

and joint venturas - - - - - - - -
Operating profit/(losses) before tax 2,140 1,315 638 &3 1,230 1144 (5) 6,893
Tax on operating profit/{losses)

befors tak {165) (254) (39) {81) {291} (248) (84) (1.1462)
Operating profit/(losses) aftor tax 1,975 1.081 599 350 239 B9 {89} 5731
Opearating profit/{losses) after tax

ateriburable to:

Sharcholders of AlA Group

Limited 1.958 1,061 599 345 939 871 (89) 5,684

Mon-controlling intenests 17 = = 5 - 5 - &7
Key operating ratios:
Expansa ratio 3.5% 5.6% 7.8% B7% BO0%  10.2% - T1%
Operating marngin 158% 251% 20.8%  156% 21.5% 13.1% - 17.3%
Operating return on shareholders”

allocated equity 25.4% 18.21% 19.7% 221% 27.0% 13.1% - 15.7%
Operating profit/{losses) bafors tax

includes
Finance costs 33 1 = = 23 4 149 240
Depreciation and amort sation 34 11 21 19 26 54 12 177
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B.SEGMENT INFORMATION icontimst)

Group
Othar Corporals
LS i Hong Korg Thallarsd Singapone e luysia China Markadls Contra Tofal
31 Decembear 2018
Total assets 71898 31,632 36064 14526 24228 39095 12363 220,806
Total liabilities 54,299 24627 32865 12,885 20068 30,889 £,767 190,400
Total equity 7.599 7,005 3199 1,641 4160 8,206 7596 39406
Shareholders’ allocated squity T1.508 6,181 3118 1,600 3.565 6,901 7.926 36,795
Nt capital (out)fin flows (1,054} (149) [267) (185) {542) (679} 1,972 (1,504)
Total assets include:
Invastmants in associates and
Int ventures - - - L] - GG - Ll

Segment Information may be reconciled o the consolidated income statement as shown below:

Shatt-term
Hlustuations in
vastmaed
raturn mlated Qihar Coesolidaled
Segment toequilesand mnon-opsrating Income
WISt m Il et ion roal ostato Hams!' stalamant
Thirteen monthis ended
31 December 2018
Mgt pramiurm:s,
fee income and
other operating revenus 32,222 - {2) 32,220
Investment retum 8728 (2928)  (172) 4077 |
Total revenue 40,950 {2.928) (1,725) 36,297
Het insurance and invastment
contract benafits 27,045 (883} {1,570) 256,596
Other expenses 7.008 - 523 7.531
Total expensos 34,057 {B&3) {1,047) 32,127
Share of profit from associates
and joint veniures = - - =
Operating profit before tax 6,893 {2.045) {678} &170
Hatte,

(1} Inechudsr wnit-linked collyacts

423/655

MNet premiums, fee ncome
and other operating
reven s

Investment return

Total revenus

Met insurance and investent
confract benefits

Other expanzes

Total expenses

Share of profit from
aszociates and [oint ventures

Profit before tax
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11. INCOME TAX (comtinund)
The movement in et deferred tax liabilities in the period may be analyzed as set out below:

Croditad{chamgsd) o othar

OVERVIEW

(I} The amount ﬁlﬁi’.ﬁﬁmnmmammn sdjustinend in fospect of e scquisiiien of Sowmkn,

Nat dafermid Cradited/ aompreisruive inooms et dafarned
o anasll feharged] 1 1ax assalf
(RaBility ot Acguisiion el theincoms  Fair vales Farwign Clinbiiny: &1
USEm 1 Decomier subsidiaries™  staloment s axchange (1157 ] pariad and
31 December 2018 =
Rewvaluation of financial L
instFuments (1,156} 1 626 (159} - - (B90) =
Deferred acquisition costs (2.546) (98)  (474) - 56 - (3062) z
Insurance and investment E
contract liabilities 1,086 {360) 12 - {12} ., 726 a
Withholding taxes {147} - (&1 - 7 - (181) _5:
Prowision for expenses. 146 2 (1) - (3) 7 137 g
Losses available for offset against E
future taxable incoma n - 5 - (1) - 55 F
Life surplus % (674) - &8 - L} - (617)
Others {326) = 7 - v {10} (329)
Total (3,586) (455) - (15%) 56 7 (4,161)
30 November 2017 "
Revaluation of financial _ E
instruments (L3ET) = (32) 316 (33) = (1.156) -
Deferred acquisition costs {2,198) - {214) - (136) - (3548 E
Insurance and Iinvestment ) e
contract Habillites 1,094 - (78) - i) - 1084 =
Withholding taxes (132) = (6 = 1 = (147} g
Provision for expenses 110 - 29 - 7 - 146 Z
Losses available for offsst o
against future taxable income _ &9 - (3% - 1 - 3
Life surplus (534) - (o) - (40) - (74 =
Ohers (293} - {8 = (11} (14} (326) “
Total (2,269) - (478) 314 (1413 {14)  (3538) z
X
Nokos: E
{1} Uﬁn;:l&m“m:'lah 1n1p-o.|:ql iﬂkm ikl aatsses o the txcalibe peofs ane Dased on achaal distilatkns o th beg-tenm lured, =
() O b faw waluo meserve dedormed tax LBS'Iﬂmhr”J‘UIH {bwenhve minnthe onded Hﬂﬂnmmr‘lm I"I.I&D.':Hbmugjﬂm E
le.p nmmmnm1 vabun g o losses on avaikabilo for s z
Hm:rﬁihm mel?tﬁm mu-m uv&ugﬂumﬂbﬂnnnlﬂb&nhmﬁ assets rardbermnsd ko E

Deferred tax assats are recognised to the extent that sufficient future taxable profits will be avadlable for realization, The
Group has not recognized defarred tax assets of USSE0m (30 Novembar 2017: USE52m) on tax losses and the temporary
diffarence on insurance and investment contract babilites ansing from different accounting and statutony/tax resarving
methodslogy for eertain branches and subsidisnies on the basis that they ha'u'ehimﬂa: of tax loszes and there Is Insufficient
ewvidence theat futune profits will be availabie:-

The Group has not provided defarred tax liabilities of US$58m {30 Movember 2017: US362m) in respect of unrsmitted
earnings of operations In twa jurisdictions from which a withholding tax charge wauld be incurred upon distribution as the
Group does not consider it probable that this portion ofa_l:-_cu:mlﬂed earnings will be remitted in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unused income tax losses camied forward in Hong Kong. Macau, Thailand, Singapore, Makaysia, China,
Korea, Cambadia; New Zealand, the Philippines, Sr Lanka and Taiwan. The tax lozses of Hang Kong, Sngapare and New
Zealand can be carried forward indefinitely. The tax losses of remaining branches and subsidiaries are due to expire within
the periods ending !ﬂ‘n {Macau and the Philippines), 2023 (Thafland, China and Cambeodia), 2024 (Sri Lanka}, 2025
{Malaysia) and 2028 (Horea and Taiwan).

ADDHTIONAL INFORMATLON
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share |5 calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders of AIA Group Limited by thie
waighted average number of ordingry gshares in issoe during the period. The shares held by employee share-bhased trusts
are not conzsiderad to-be gutstanding from the dateof the purchase for purposes of computing basic and diluted earnings
per share,

Thirtasn [T
mantha &ndid i mnded

11 Decamibal 0N s
0 2017
Het profit attributable to sharehelders of AlA Group Limited (US2m) 3,163 6,120
Waighted average number of ordinary shares In [ssue (milllon) 12,020 12,000
Basic earnings per share (U5 conts per share) 6.3 51.00

Diluted

Diluted sarnings per share {5 calculated by adjusting the weighited average number of ardinary. shares outstanding to
assuma conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As of 31 December 2018 and 30 Movembar 2017, the Group
has-potentally dilutive instruments which are the share options, restricted share units restricted stock purchase units and
reatricted stock subscription units awarded 1o eligible directors, afficers emplovess and agents under various share-based
compensation plans as described In note 39.

Thirtasn Ty

monkhs ended mwirnilbes pnchg

11 Decambar A0 Mowembay

012 w7

et profiv attributable to shareholders of ALA Group Limited (USSm) 3,163 4120

Wighted average number of ordinary shanss in issue (million) 12,020 12,000
Adjustrment for share options, restricted share units, restricted stock purchase units
and restricted stock subscripticn units awarded under share-based compensation

plans (million) ' as ar

Wheighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earmings per share {million) 12,055 2037

Diluted sarnings per share (US cents per share) 2624 50,84

A1 31 Decermber 2018 5 752,143 share options {30 Novemnbsar 20172 5.240,052) wers sxcloded from the diluted weighted
averapa number of ordinary shares calculation as their effect would have been anti-dilutive

Operating profit after tax per share
Operating profit-after tay (see note &) per shame iz calewiated by dividing the operating profit after tax attributabls to
sharaholders of AlA Group Limited by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the pariod: As-of 31
December 2018 and 30 November 2017, the Group has potentially dilutive instruments which are the share options,
restricted share units, resiricted stock purchase units and restricted stock subseription units awarded to eligible direciors,
officers, amployees and agents under varkous share-Based compensation plans as described in note 39,

Thirtesn Twdvee

mandha ended ol sndoed
11 Dacambar 30 Novembog

2015 207
Basic (US cents parshans) 47.29 3873
Diluted (US cents par shara) 47.15 3861

186 | AL GROUP LIMITED
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Disiaitin
Gomjiiber andd othog

Uskm Goodwil salivwim righls Teital

m -

At 1 December 2014 775 458 g815 2,048
pelditions - 53 77 130
Disposals - %) - 2)
Foreign exchangs movemsants &0 17 15 92

At 30 Movembar 2017 Bl5 526 07 2,268
Additions = B4 1 87
Acquisition of subsidiaries 167 - - 167
Disposats - {4} (1) {5)
Fomsign schangs movemants {26) {10} {19} {55}

At 31 Decomber 2018 976 598 g8 2,462

Accumulated amortisation

At Decambar 2016 {4) (Z22) (&%) (305}
Amortization charge for the year = (51} (33) (B}
Foreign enchange movements: = (14 {1} (15)

AL 30 November 2017 (&) (297) (103) (40&)
Ameortisation charge for the period - {57) (40} (97}
Disposals - 2 1 2
Foreign exchange movements. - 3 3 [

At 31 December 2018 {4) {349) {139 {4932)

Net book value

AL20 November 2017 &3 229 80k 1,866

At 31 December 2018 972 249 749 1970

The Group holds intangible assets forils long-term use and the annual amortisation charge of US$90m (20 Movamber
2017: USHa6m} approximates the amount that is expected to be recovered through consumption within 12 months after
the end of the reparting peried,

Intangible assets in this note exclude deferred-acquisition and origination costs, which are separately disclozed with
further details provided in note 19

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill. anses primarily in respect of the Group's insurance business (n Malaysie. Goodwill is tested for impairment by
comparing the carrying amountof the cash-generating unit (group of units), Including goodwill, to the recoverable amount
of that cash-ganerating unit (group of units), If the recoverable amount of the unit (group of units) exceeds the carrying
amount of the unit (group of units), the goodwill allocated to that unit (group of units) shall be regarded as not impalred,
The recoverable amaunt is the value in use of the cash-generating unit (group of units) unless otharwise stated. The valua
in wse i datermingd by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows plus o multiple of the present value of
the new business generated.

Value in useis catculated as an actuarially determined appraisal value, based on the embadded value of the busingss and
the value from future new business.

The key assumptions used in the smbedded value catculations. whichare detailed in Section 5 of Supplementary Embed ded
Valug nformation, include risk discount rate, inmstment returns, mortality, morbidity, persistency, expensas and infiation,
The value from future new business |s calculated based on a combination of indicatars which include, among others, a
multiple of the projectad one-year valus of new bisiness (VOME), taking into account recant production mix, business
strategy and market trends The Group may apply alternative mathod 1o astimate the value of future new business if the
described method is not appropriate under the circumstances.

1HE | AL GROUP LIMITED
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20, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS :

The following tables analyse the Group's financtal investmants by type and nature. The Group manages its financial
imvestments in two distinct categores: Unit-linked Investments and Policyholder and Shareholder Inwestments. The
investment risk in respect of Unit-tlinkad Investments (s ganerally wholly borne by our customers, and does not directly
affect the profit for the period before tax. Furthermore, unit-linked contract holders are responsible for allecation of their
policy values amongst investment options offered by the Group. Although profit for the period before taxis notatfected by
Unit-linked Investments, the investrment return from such financial investrments is included In' the Group's grofit for the
pariod before tax. as the Group has efectad the fair value option for all Unitlinked Investmants with corresponding changes
in insurance and investment contract liabilites for unit-linked contracts. Policyholder and Shareholder Investments
Include all financial investments other than Unit-linked Investmants. The investment risk in respect of Policyholder and
Shareholder investments s parially or wholly borne by the Grougp.

Policyholder and Sharsholder Investmants are further catsgerisad as Participating Funds and other participating business
with dizcreonary expected sharing with policyholders and underlying distinct investment Portfolios {*Other Participating
Business with distinct Portfolios™) and Other Policyholder and Sharsholder. Other Participating Business with distinct
Fortfolios refers to business where itls expacted that the policyholder will receive, at the discretion of tha insurer, additional
henefits based on the performance of underlying segregated Imlslmunumh where this asset segregation |s supperied
by an explicit statutory reserve and reporting in the m[mrant tarritory.

O ERVIEW

The reazon for separately analysing financial invastments held by Farticipating Funds and Other Participating Business
with distinet Portfolios is that Participating Funds are subject to local requlations that generally prescribe a minimum
proportion of palicyholder participation in declared dividends and for Dther Participating Blsinass with distinct Partiolios
it is. a5 explained above, sxpectsd that the policyholder will receive, at the discretion of the insurer, additional benefits
bazed on the performance of the undarying segregated investment assets where this asset segregation is supported by an
wxplicit statutory reserve and reperting in the relevant termitory. The Growp has elected the fair value option for debit and
equily securities of Participating Funds. The Group's accounting policy is to record an insurance liability for the proportion
of nat assets of the Participating Funds that would be allocated to policyholders asseming all performance would ba
dectared as a dividend based upon local regulations as at the date-of the statemant of financial position. A% a result, the
Group's net profit before tax for the pariod is impacted by the proportion of investmant return that would be allocated to
sharaholdersas described above. For Other Participating Business with distinct Portfolios, the Group either have discretion
as to the timing or amaunt of additional banafits to'tha policyholders. The Group has elected the fair valus option for equity
securities and the available for sale classification of the majority of debt securities. The investment risk from Other
Farticipating Business with distinct Portfolios directly Impacts the Group's financial statements, but it is expected thata
proportion of investment raturn may ba allocated to policyholders through policyholder dividends.

Other Policyholder and Sharmholder Invesiments are distinct from Unit-linked Invastments, Participating Funds and Other
Participating Business with distinct Portfolios as there iznot any direct contractual or regulatory requirement goveming
the amount. if any, for allocation to policyholders or itis not expected that the poticyholder will recedve at the discration of
the insurer additional benefits based on the performance of the underlving segregated Investment assets whans this asset
sagregation is supported by an explicit statutory reserve and reporting in the relevant territory, The Group has elected to
apply the fair value option for equity securities (n this category and the avajlabls for sale classification in respect of the
majonty of debt sacurities in this category. The investment risk from investments in this catagory directly impacts the
Group's financial statemenis. Although a proportion of investment returm may be allocated to policyholders through
policyholder dividends, the Group’s accounting policy for insurance and certain investment contract liabdlities utilises a net
Aeval premium methodology that includes best astimates as at the date of issue for non~guaranteed participation, To the
extent investment return from these investménts elther is not allocated 1o participating contracts or varies from the best
estimates, it will impact the Group’s profit before tax '

In the fotlowing tables. "FVTPL" indicates financial investments classiiied at fair value through profit or loss and "AFS”
indicates financial investents classified as available for sale.

FIMAHCIAL AND OFPERATING REVIEW

COMPOATE COVERMANCE

Debt securities

In comipiling the ables; external ratings have boen used whens available. Where external ratings are not-readily available
an internal rating methodology has been adopted, if applicable. External ratings for government bonds are based on Issuers
a5 woll as currencles of issuances, The following conventions have been adopted to coniform the various ratings

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Extesimal fakings Inninal falegs Ry hissd g
Sxanedand and Par's Mooy s
uf
ABA Ada 1 ABA g
Al 1o AA- A3l to Aol 240 3- Al 2
Av 10 - Al toAZ I+10 A %
BEE+ to BRE- Baal 1o Baad &4 10 & BEB £
BB« and below Bal and below S+ and befow  Below investment gradal!l El

Mo
{1} Urizss ot honwrtsn ideotilis indbdd wally.
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ;
The Group's non-hadge derivative exposura was as follows: E
Fair yalua

u5im Hobiznal amaunt LET LEabilitisa

31 Decomber 2018

Foreign exchange confracts E
Cross-currency swaps 7.815 124 (15%) >
Forwands 4,456 11 (62} c
Fareign exchange futures 105 = = E
Currency options & - = E

Total foreign exchange contracts 12,392 235 (201) g

Interest rate contracts ;_‘
Interest rate swaps 4,730 122 (42) B

Other F
\Warrants and options 4211 57 " -
Forward contracts 275 16 -

Hetting (105) - -

Total 21,503 430 (243)

<30 Hovember 2017 %

Foreign exchange contracts -
Cross-currency swaps 7569 249 (164} g
Forwands 5921 a7 (162} &
Forelgn exchange futures 139 - - E
Curmency options: 7 - = g

Total foreign exchange contracts 13634 295 (306}

Interest rate contracis
Interest rata swaps: 3157 51 (55}

Other
Warrants and options 161 14 -

Netting (129) - -

Total 14815 363 (361)

The column “notienal amount” in the above table represents the pay leg of derlvative transactions other than equity index
option. For cartain equity-ndex call and put optiens with-zame notional amount that are purchased to hedge the downside
risk of the underlying equities by means of a coflar strategy, the notional amount reprs sents the exposure of the hedged
equites.

0Of the total decvatives, USEém (30 November 2017: UST8m) are listed in exchanga or dealer markets and the rest are
ower-the-counter (OTC) derivatives. OTC d&mﬂue contracts are individually negotiated batweean ::nﬁtmcﬁng parties and
not cleared through an exchange. OTC derlvatives include forwards, swaps and options. Derivatives are subject to various
risks Including market, liquidity and credit risks. aimilar 1o those related to the underlying financial instrumenis.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Derivative-assets and derivative liabllities are recognised in the consolidated statemant of financial position as financial
‘assets at fair value through profitor loss and derivative financial Babilities respectively. The Group's derivalive contracts
are established 1o economic hedge financial exposures. The Group adopts hedge accounting in limited circumstances. The
national or contractual amounts associated with derivative financial instruments are not recorded as assets or liabilitles in
the consolidated statemant of financial position as they do not represent the fair value of these transactions. The notiznal
amounts in the previous table reflect the aggregate of individual derivative positions on & gross basis and =o give an
indication of the overall scale-of denvative transactions:
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT rcomtinued;

Fair value measurements on a recurring basis

The Group H'JB:!.EI..IFEG at falr valus proparty held for cwn use, investment proparty, financial instrumants classified at fair
valie through profit of loss, avallable for sale securities pertfolios. derivative assets and labilities, investments hald by
investment funds which are conzolidated, investments in non-consolidated investment funds and certain investmant
contract labilives on a recurning basis.

OVERVIEW

The fair value of a financial nstrument is the amount that would be received on sale'of an asset or paid to transfera Hability
in‘an arderly transaction batween market participants at the measunsmant date.

The degree of judgement used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments generally correlates with the lavel of
pricing observability. Financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets generally have more pricing observability
and less judgement is used In measuring falr value. Conversely, financial instruments traded In other than active markets
or that do not have quoted prices have less obssrvability and are measured at fair value using valuation modeis or other
pricing techniques that require more judgement. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or Lability
being valued oceur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongelng basis.

FIMAHCIAL AMD OPERATING REVIEW

An other than active markit is one in which these ane few transactions. the prices are not current. price quotations vary
substantially efther over time or among market makers.or in which little information is releasad publicly for the az=et or
liability being valued. Pricing obzervability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of financlal Instrument,
whather the financial instrument (s new to the market and not yet established, the characteristics spacific to the transaction
and general market conditions. :

Fair value of properties (s based on valuation by independent professional valuers

The Group does not have assets or liabilities measured at fafr value on a nen-recurring basis during the thirteen manths
ended 31 December 2018. '

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Group to estimate the fair value of financial instrumants and
PrCpartees,

COMPOATE GOVERMANCE

Determination of fair valuo

Loans and receivables

For loans and advances that are repriced frequently and have not had any significant changes in credit risk. carrying
amounts represent a reazonable sstimate of fair values, The fair values of other loans are estimated by discounting expeciad
future cash flows using intereat rates offered for simitar loans 1o borrowers with similar credit ratings.

The fair wvalues of mortgage loans are estimated by discounting futune cash flows using interest rates currently being
offered in nespect of similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. The fair values of fiked rate policy loans are
watimated by discounting cash flows at the interest rates charged on policy loans of similar palicies currently balng issued.
Loans with simifar characteristics are aggregated for purposes of the calculations, Thecarrying values of policy loanswith
variable rates approximate tocthedr fair values:

The fair values of equity securities are based on guotad market prices or, if unguoted, on estimated market values generally
based on guoted prices for similar securites, Fair values for fixed interast securities ane bazed on quoted market prices,
where avallable, For those securitles not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from brokers,
private pricing sarvices or by discounting expected future cash Fows using a current market rate-applicable to the yield,
credit quality and maturity of the investment. Prioeity (s glven to values from (ndependent sources when avallable, but
owerall the source of pricing and/or valuation technigue is chosen with the obiective of arriving at the price at which an
arderly transaction would take place batwesn market participants on the measurement date. The inputs to datarmining
fair valus that are relevant to fied nterest securities include, but not imited to risk-fres intenest rates, the obligor's credit
-spreads, foreign exchange rates and credit default rates. For holdings in hedge funds and limited partnerships, fair values
aredatermined based on the net asset values provided by thie ganeral partner or manager of sach investment, the agcounts
of which are generally audited on an annual basis. The transaction price (s used as the best estimate of fair value at
inception,
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT iooitieusd)

Determination of fair value (wonmues)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group values Itz derivative financial assets and liabilities using market tranzactionz and other market evidence
whenever posaible, including market-based inputs to modats. model calibration 1o market clearing transactions, broker or
dealer quotations or alternative pricing scurces with reasanable levels of price transparancy. Whan models ane used, tha
salection of a particular madel to value a derhvative depends on the contract terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the
Instrument as wall as the availability of pricing information in the market. The Graup generally uses similar models 1o valua
similar instruments. Valuation modeis requine a vaniety of inputs. including contractual terms; market prices and rates,
yield curves. credit curves; measures of volatility, prapayment rates and correlations-of such inputs. For derivatives that
trade in liquid markets, such as generic forwards, swaps and options. model Inputs can generally be verified and model
selection does not Invelve significant management judgement. Examples of inputs that are generally obasrvable include
foreign exchange spot and fosward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and volatilities for commaonly traded option
products Exarmples of inputs thar may be unobzervable include volatilives for lass commonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors.

When the Group holds a group of dervative assets and darivative Babilives sntersd Ints with a particular counterparty, the
Group takes inte sccount the arrangements that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event of default (eg. Intesnational
Swap and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agresmants.and Credit Suppart Annex (C54) that require the axchange of
collateral on the basis of each party’s net credit sk exposure). The Group measures the fair value of the group of financial
assats and financisl labilities on the basis of its net exposure to the credit risk of that cobnterparty or the counterparty’s
net exXposure to our credit risk that reflects market participants’ expectations about the likelihood that such an arrangament
would be legally enforceabls in the evant of default.

Property held for own use and investment properiy

The Group engaged external, independent and qualifisd valuers to daterming the Fair value of the Group's properties at
least on an annual basis. The valuation on open market vaiue basiz by independent professional valuer for certain
investmant proparties was calculated by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential. The fair
values of other properties were derdved using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the values are based on sales
and lsting of comparable property registerad in the vicinity.

The properues held for own use and investment propeclies. in Most cases. ans valued on the baziz of the highestand best

use of the properties thatis physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. The currentuse of the properties.
are considersd to be its highest and best use; recands of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and

comparizon mada for tuch factors as size, location, quality and prospsctive use. On limited occasions, potantial

redevelopment of the properties in use would be taken into account when they would maximise the fair value of the

proparties: the Group Is cocupying these proparties for operational purposzes.

Cazh and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of cash approximates it fair value,

Reinsurance receivables

The carrying amount of amounts recelvable from rélnsurers Is not considered materlally different to their falr value,
Fair walue of securities sold under repurchase agreements and the associated payables

The contract values of payables under repurchase agresments approximate thelr fair value as these obligations ane
short-term in nature.

Other asssts

The carmying amount of other financial assets (= not materially different to thedr fair value. The fair values of deposits with
banks are generally based on quoted market prices or, if unquoted, on estimates based on discounting future cash flows.
using avallable market Interest rates offered for recefvables with similar characteristics,
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (comtinusn

Determination of fair value (oontisued)

Investment contract liabilities

For ln'l:rastmn't contract labdlities, the falr valuss have been estimated uzing a dizcounted cash flow approach bassad an
interast rates cummently being offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with thosa remaining for the contracts
being valued, For investment cantracts where the investment risk is borna by the policyholder, the fair walue generally
approximanes to the fair value of the underlying assers.

OVERVIEW

Investrment contracts with DPF enable the contract holder to receive additional benefits as a supplement to guarantsed
benefits. These are referred 1o-as participating busingss and ane measured and classified according to The Group practice
for insurance contract liabilities-and hence are disclosed within note 26 These are not measured at fair value as there s
currently notan agreed definition of fair value forinvestment and insurance contracts with DPF under IFRS. In the absence
of any sgreed mathodology, it is not passibie to provide a range of sstimates within which fair value is Bely to fall

Borrowings
The fair values uf bﬁnuwhpﬁ with stated maturities have bean egtimated has:gd on dizcounting future cash flows using thie
intarest ratas t:urraﬂl]'l,l' applicable to deposits of similar maturities or prices sbtained from brokers.

Other liabilities

The fair values of other unguoted financial liabilities iz estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using current
market rates applicable to their yield, credit quality and matsity, sxcept for those without stated maturity, where the
carrying value approximates to falr valus.

FIMAHCIAL AMD OPERATING REVIEW

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis

Azsetsand labilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated statemant of Hnanl:l!l position are measured and classified
ina hlaran:lw for disclasure purposes conzisting of three "lavels® based on the sbhaarvabllity of nputs available in the
marketplace uzed to measure their fair values as discussed betow:

+  Level 1. Fair value measurements that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilives
that the Group has the ability to access as of the measurement date. Market price data is generally cbiained from
axchangs or doaber markets. The Group does not adjust the guoted price for swch instruments. Asssts measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and classified as Level 1 are actively traded equities. The Group considers that govarnment
dabt securities issued by G7 countries (the United States, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, the United Kingdom)
and traded In a dealer market to be Level 1. until they no longer trade with sufficient frequency and voluime ta be
conzidered actively traded. :

COMPOATE GOVERMANCE

+ Level 2 Fair value measurements based on inputs other than quoted-prices included in Level 1 that are observabila for
thie assetor liability, either directly (a3 prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). Level 2 inputs include quoted prices
for similar assets and lfabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar azsets or liabilities in markets
thatare not sctive-and Inputs other than gquated prices that are obsarvable for the asset and liability. such 85 Intersst
rates and yiebd curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. Assars and liabilities measured ar fair value
on a recurring basls and classified as Level 2 generally include governmant securitias issued by non-G7 countries, most
Investment grade corperate bands, hedge fund investments and dervative contracls

. FIHANCIAL STATEMENTS .

* Level 3: Fair value measurements based on valuation technigues that use: significant inputs that are uncbservable.
Unobservableinputs are onkby wied to measune fair value to the extant that relevant obsarvable inputs are not available,
allowing for circumstances in which there is little, (fany, market activity for the asset or Uability. Assets and liabilities
measurad at fair valise on a recurring basis and classified as Level 3 include properties held for dwn use. investment
properties, cartain classes of structured securities. certain derivative contracts. private squity and real estate fund
investments; and direct private equity Investments.
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT foon i)

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measuremont on a recurring basis (cominued)

The Group's policy 5 to recognise transfars of assets and liabilities batwesn Level 1 and Level 2 at their fair values as at
tha end of each reparting period, consistant with the dats of the detarmination of fair value, Assets are transfarrad out of
Level 1 when they are no longer transactad with sufficient frequency and volume in an-active market. During the thirteen
months ended 31 December 2018 the Group transferred USE1 Sm (twelve months ended 30 November 2017 USE50m)
of assats measured at fair value from Lavel 1 to Level 2. Conversaly, aszets are transfermed from Level 2 1o Level 1 when
tranzacton volume and fisquency am mdicative of an active markel The Group transfarmed no assat (twelve months endaed
30 Novemnber 201 7 USE148m) from Level 2 to Lewvel 1 during the thirtesn monthsended 31 December 2018,

Tha Group's Level 2 financial instruments include dabt securities, equity securities, derivative instruments and other
liabilities. The fair values of Level 2 financial instruments are estimated using values obtained from private pricing services
and brokers comroborated with intemal reviaw as necassary. When the quotes from third-party pricing sarvices and brokers.
are not available, internal valuation technigues and inputs will be vsad to darive the fair value for the financial instrumants.

The tables below set out a summary of changes in the Group’s Level 3 assats and liabilites measured at fair value on a
recurring basis for the thirteen months endad 31 Decamber 2018 and the twelve months anded 20 Movember 2017, The
tables reflect gainsand losses, including gains and losses on assets and lkabilities categorised az Level 3 agat 371 December
2018 and 30 November 2017,

Level 3 aszets and liabilities
Derivative
Property Hingesial
hiadd for Inwsstmmnt Daobs Equity &asotyl Investmand
Eim WP LSg proparty sacurities sacurites {llakdilas) coniracks
At 1 Decamber 2017 979 4,365 1,732 1,060 - {7.020)
Hat movemednt on investmant
contract liabilites - - - - - 593
Total gainsf{losses)
Reported under investment retum and
other expenses in the consolidated
ncome statemant {30} &77 15 {14} - -
Reparted under fair value reserve.
foredgn currency transiation resarve
and property revaluation reserve
in the consolidated staterment of
comprehansive income 34 amn (55) (18) = =
Acauisiton of subsidiaries - - - - - (480)
Transfer to other assels = (34} - - - -
Transfer from Investment proparty 8 {8) - = - -
Purchases 1 a8 635 ars - -
Sales (10} (v )] (11} {72) - -
Sattlements - - {492) - - -
Transber into Lovel 3 - - 26 - - -
At 31 December 2018 982 L7946 1,850 1.333 - (6,907)
Change in unrealised gains or losses
included in the consclidated income

statement for assets and liabilities

held at the end of the reporting perlod,

under investment return and other

EXpENSEE {30) &77 14 19 = =
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Falrvatue at
01 Decambar 2018 (USSm] Valuation techniquas. Unabsarunbls irputs Rangs

872 Discounted cash flows Risk adjusted discount rate  3.83% - 13.41%
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (comtinun

Fair value of financial and insurance assets and lisbilities for which the fair value is disclosod at reporting
date

A summmany of falr value hierarchy of assets and Habilites not carried at falr valee But for which the fair value is disclosed
asat 31 Gecember 2018 and 30 November 2017 is given balow,

OVERVIEW

Fair v ol higranchy

2w Lawal 1 Lowal 2 Lewal 3 Tetal E
31 December 2015 &
Assets for which the fair value is disclosed E
Financial assets E
Loansand deposits 601 2,525 L3266 7,392 =
Reinsurance recaivables - 539 - 539 %
Other recoivables 5 2,178 59 22632 ;
Accrued investment Income 6 1,578 - 1,604 5
Cash and cash equivalents 2451 - - 2,451 &
Total assets for which the fair value is disclozed 3,083 6,820 £,325 14,228
Liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed
Financisl liabilities
Investment contract liabilities s - 549 549 E
Borrowings 4506 480 " 4984 -
Dbligations under repurchase and securities lending Ié:
agresments - 1,683 - 1,683 =
Other liabilities 476 4131 224 4,831 ",
Total liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed 4,980 &,294 773 12,047 E
=
Falr valus ey
5Em Lewyed 1 Lol 3 Lowed 3 legal
30 Hovembear 2017 -
Assets for which the fair value is disclosed E
Financial assets E]
Loans and deposits 1112 2680 4185 1977 g
Reinsurance recaivables - 504 - 504 ;
Other recelvables = 2109 41 2150 2
Accrued investment income 21 1520 - 1561 z
Cash and cash equivalents 2280 - - 2,289
Total agsets for which the fair value is disclosed 3422 6815 220G 14463 -
Liabilities for which the fair value |s disclosed
Financisl liabilities .
Investment contract liabilities - - 580 580 %
Earrawings 3,430 514 - 4,164 E
Obligations under repurchase agreements = 1883 = 1.883 =
Other linbilitias: 692 3938 a3 4563 z:
Total liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed 4,322 6,335 513 11,270 E
[=}
[~}
u
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E
26. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES tcontimud) s
Methodolegy and assumptions tr
The most significant items to which profit for the period and shareholders® equity are sansitive are market, Insurance and 8
lapze rizks which are shawn [n the table below, Indirect exposure indicates that there iz a second order impact. For example,
whilst the profit for the period attributable to shareholders i3 not directly affected by investmentincome earmed where the
investrnent risk is borne by policvholders (for example, in respect of unit-linked cantracts), there |s a second-order affect
through the investment management fees which the Group earns by managing such investments. The distinction betwesn =
direct and indirect exposure (2 not intended to indicate the relative sensitivity 1o &ach of thess itemis Where the direct ]
wicposure is shown asbeing “net nautral”, this is because the exposune to market and credit risk s offsetbya comesponding £
mowament in insurance contract abilities. =
=
Market and ciodil ras E
[3ieact wos praneny =
bnssirance asel invostmeed  Risks assaciabe] with St icant imsinance and "IC
Typsr o ool Faicd T | bl e iwlatisd brmonss mend pordolio. ind inect sgssEom I el E
H
Tredinkonal Farticipating.  + Net neutralexcept for  + Net neutrat excepd for = Investment + impact of persistency 3
panicipating  funds the insurer’s shate of . the Insurer'sshareof  performance subject o on fulure dividends N
e assurance participating participating smaothing through * Mortality
with DPF oSt and IFvastment dividénd declarations
performance performance
* Guaranses = Guarantees
Othes + Hat nautral eucopt for  « Netnewtralexcept for  + Investmant * Impact of persistancy E
panicipating the insurers shareof  the insbrersshareof  performancesubject on future dividends E
business paricipating participating to smoothing theough = Mortality w
invest ment irvestrment dividend declarailens  « Morbidity 3
perfonmance parformance E
+ Guaramees + Guaranteas E
B
[
Tradfional » Guaramses * |muestamant = Mot applicable = Martatity s
non-paricipating + Agsel-liabdlity performance + Parsistancy
|#e assurance milematch rigk = Asnat-liability = Marbidity
missratch reek
» Crdil rigk -
Actident and health + Azgal-liability * Investmant * Mot applicable + Morbidity E
midsmatch risk parformance + Parcistency u
= Crocdfl righk e
= Asgat=labily 2
mismatch risk -5*
Pension + Nt outral * Nt neutral = Performance-related = Persistoncy ;
= Asnet-labdlity = Asgel-labiley ireestment =
rrismatch risk mrilgimateh rsk ranagamant fees
Unit=linkad = Nat nautral + et neutral = Performance=related + Persistancy -
Investment + Morfality
management fees -
(=}
Uiniverzal life * Guaraniess * Investment = Spread betwesn = Martality E
+ fssel-Habdity performanice warned rate and = Parsistency =
mritsmaich risk = Credit rizk crediting rage lo. = Wit hdrawals &
+ Asset-lability policyholders :
mismatgh risk =
=
The Group iz alse exposed to foreign exzhange rate risk in respact of its operations, and o interest rate risk, credit righ and )

equity price risk on-assets representing net sharaholders’ equity, and to expensze risk to the axtent that actual expenseas
xcand thoss that can be charged to insurance and Investmant contract helders on nen-participating business. Expanse
assumptions applied in the Group's actuarial valuation models asﬂu_méa 2 cantinuing lavel of business wolumes.
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z
34. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES H
Share capital E
Az a1 7% Oucaenbar 2018 A ad 30 Mowomber 2017
Million shares ussm RO harey usim
At beginning of the financial period 12,074 14,065 12,056 13998
Shares issued under share option scheme and x
agency share purchase plan 3 8 18 &7 ]
At end of the financial peried 12,077 14,073 12.074 14065 E
£
The Company issued 1355304 shares under share option scheme {twelve months ended 30 November 2017; 17.053.136 E
shares) and 1,167,021 shares under agency share purchase plan (twelve months ended 30 November 2017:1,037,294 E
shares) during the thirteen months ended 31 December 2018, I
The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased. sold or redesmed any of the Company’s shares during the thireen g
months ended 31 December 2018 with the exceprion of 1,409,735 shares (welve months ended 30 November 2017 S
1.395 132 shares) of the Company purchased by and nil shars (twelve months ended 30 November 201 7: nil) of the N
Company sold by the employves share-bazed trusts. These purchases were made by the relevant schemea trustess on the
Hong kong Stock Exchange. These shares are held on trust for participants of tha relevant schemes and therefore wers not
cancelled.
During the thirteen maonths endad 31 December 2018, 12870000 shares (twelve months ended 30 Novembes 204 7: 'g
15.730.944 ghares) were trangferred to eligible directors, officers and employees of the Group from the employes 2
share-basad trusts under share-bazed companzation plans az a result of vesting. Az at 31 December 2018, 52,259,936 E
hares (30 November 2017: 63,720,201 shares) of the Company were hald by the employee share-based trusts, ﬁ
=
Reserves E
Fair value reserve z

The fair value reserve comprises the -:un"u.lia_ﬂw niat change In the fair value of avallable for sale securities held at the end
of the reparting period,

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency transiation reserve comprises all foreign currency exchange differences anising from the transiation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Employee share-based trusts

Trusts have bean estabiishad to acquine shares of the Company for dizstribution to participants in future perods through the
share-based compensation plans. These shares acquired by the trusts, to the extent not transferred fo the participants
upon vesting, are reparted as “Employes share-based trusts”,

Proparty revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the revalued emount of property hedd for own wse at
theend of the reporting period. Property revaluation surplus is not considered to be a realised profit available for distribution
to shareholders: . -

Other reserves:
Other reserves mainly include the impact of merger accounting for business combinations under common control and
share-based compensation.
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Az al i al
31 Decormbor 30 Nmembss
15im 01E 2007
Equity shares.in subsidiaries Fal b4
Share of eamnings 354 210
Share of other reserves (27} &
Total 400 378
36. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Management Approach

The Group's capital managemaent objectives focus 'on maintaining a strong capital base to support the development of its.
business. maintaining the abitity to mowe capital frealy and satisfving regulatory capital requiremants atall mes.

The Group’scapital management function owersess nlt-::animbrdnga'd activitiesof the Group and assists senior management
in making capital decisions. The eapital management furiction participates in decisions concerning asset-liability
management, strategic asset allocation and ongaing salvency management Thiz includes ensuring capital considerations
are paramount in the strategy and business planning processes and when determining AlA's capacity to pay dividends to
shareholders.

Regulatery Solvancy

The Growp i5 in compliance with the solvency and capital adequacy requirements applied by itz regulators. The Group's:
primary insurance regulator at the AlA Company Limited (A14 Ca) and AlA International Limited (A14 International) levels
s the Hong Kang Ingurance Authorlty (HKIA), which requires that AlA Co. and AJA International meet the salvency margin
reguiremeants of the Hong Keng Insurance Ordinance (HKIO). The HEKMD {amang other matters) sets minimum solvency
margin requiremants that an insurer mMust meet in order-1o be-authorized o carmy on insurance business inor from Hong
Hong.

On 16 May 2017 the HKIA and the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (formerly the China fnsuranca
Regulatory Commission] signed the Byuivalence Assessment Framework Agreement on the Solwency Regulatory Regime.
Az a transitional arrangement, ALA willreport under the HKIO the capital pozition of its China branches bazed on the China
local reguiatory selvency basis progressively over a 4-year phase-In pariod to full implementation on at March 2032,

Alf haz given an undertaking to the HKIA to maintzain an excess of assats over liabilitiss for branches other than Hong
Kong atno less than 100% of the Hong Kong statutory minimum solvency margin requirement in each of Al Co:and Al
Intemational.

Tha capital positions of the Group's two principal operating companies as of 31 Decamber 2018 and 30 November 2017
are ag follows:

A1 Decamber 2018 00 Nerwmhar 2007
Tedal Ragiilatary Total
avallabla minimum Salvency walable Thirs e Salvintcy
gy capial capliial natk vapital capiral ratio
AlA Ca. 9,208 2189  421% 2248 1862 443%
AIA Imernational 6,772 1.855 I65% TEI6 2431 3775

For thess purpeses, the Group defines total available capital as the amount of assets in excess of Liabilities measured in
accordance with the HKIO and “regulatory minimum capital” as the requirgd minimum margin of solvency calculated in
accordance with the HRIC, The solvency ratio is the ratio of total available capital to regulatory minimum capital.
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36, GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE rcontiennd)

Regulatory Solvancy (contimsd)

The Grotp's individual branches and subsidiaries are alsa subject to. the supervision of government regulators in the
lurisdictions In which those branches and subsidiaries and their perant entity operate and, in relation to subsidiznes, (n
‘which they are incorporated. The various regutators overseeing the Group actively monitor our local solvency positions. AlA
Co.and AlA Intemational submit annual filings 1o the HKIA of their solvency mangin pesition based on their annual audited
financial statements.

The ability of the Company to pay dividends to shareholders and to maet other sbligations depends ultimarsly en dividends
and other payments being receiwed from its opesating subsidiaries and branches, which are subject To contraciual,
ragulatory and other limitations. The various regulators overseeing the individual branches and subsidiaries of the Group
have the discretion to impose additional restrictions on the ability of thase regulated subsidiaries and branches to make
payment of dividends or other distributions and paymenits ta ALA Co. including increzsing the required margin of saliency
that an operating unit must maintain. For example; capital may not be remitted without the consent from regulators for
certain Individuat branches or subsidiaries of the Group, The payment of dividends. distributions and other paymenis to
shareholders is-subject to the oversight of the HKIA

Capital and Regulatory Orders Specific to the Group
Az of 31 Decamber 2018, the requirements and restrictions summarised below may be considered material to the Group
and ramain in effect unless otherwise statad,

Heng Kong Insurance Authority
ALA Group Limited has given to the HKIAan undertaking that Al& Group Limited will:

OWVERVIEW

FIMAHCIAL AMD OFERATING REVIEW

(i) ensure that (a) each of AIA Co.and AlA International will at all times maintain an excess of assets over Habilities of not
less than the aggreaate of 150% of the Hong Kang statutory minimum selvency mangin requirement In respect of the
Hong Keng branch and no [ess than 1002 of the Hang Kong statutory minimum solvency margin requirament for
branches other than Hong Kong Cminimum amount™x (b it will not withdraw capital or transfer any funds or assets
outof ALA Co. or AlA International that will cavse the selvency ratio to fall below the minimum amounts specitied in (a),
eicept with, ineither case, the prior written consantof the HEIA; and {c) should the soivency ratio of either AlA Co, or
AlA International fall balow the respective minimum amounts, A1A Group Limited will take steps as s00n as poszibla to
restore (Lo &t least the respective minimum amounts ina manner acceptablbe to the HKIAS

(i} notify the HKIA In writing as soon as the Company I;;aquma; aware of any person (a) becoming a controlisr {within the
mieaning of Section (1) )(IIINE) of the HKIO) of AIA Co. and AlA Intemational through the acquisition of our shares
traded on the HESE or (B) ceazing to be a contraller (within the mezning of Sectisn 901 a)(iiD{E) of the HEN) of ALA
Coand AlA International through the dispossl of cur shares traded on the HKSE;

(i) be subject to the supervision of the HKIA and ALA Group Limited will be required to continually comaly with the HKIA'S
guldance on the "1t and proper” standards of a controller pussuant to Section B(2) of the HKID. The Hl{imaammtmd
by the HKIO to raise objection if it appears to it that any person i3 not fit and proper o be a controtler or director of an
authorized insurer. These standards include the sufficlency of a holding company's financial resources: the wability of
a halding cempany’s business plan for its insurance subsidiaries which are regulated by the HKIA: the clarity of the
Group's legal, managerial and operational strisctures; the identitiss of any other halding companiss ar major regulated
subszidiaries: whether the holding company, its directors or controllers s subject 1o recelvership. - administration,
liquidation or other similar proceedings or failed to satisfy any judgement debt under a court arder or the subjectof any
criminal convictions of In breach of any statutory or regulatory requiremants; the soundness of the Group's corporate
governance; the soundness of the Group’s risk managament framawork: the recsipt of information from its insurance
subsidiaries which are regulated by the HKIA to snsure that thay are managed in compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulaton; and it role in overseeing and managing the cparations of it insurance subsidiaries which are
regulated by the HKIA; and

()tuthilall enhancements or improvements to the guldance refermsd toin subparagraph (i) above, aswell a2 administrative
measures issued from time to time by the HKIA or requirements that may be prescribed by the HKIA in-accordance with
the HRID, regulations under the HKIO or guidelines issued by the HKIA from time to time.
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S
37. RISK MANAGEMEMNT (oontuust) £
Investment and financial risks (oneund .
Foreign exchange rate risk 8
The Group's forelgn exchange rate risk arizes malnly from the Group's operations in multiple geographical markets in the
Asia-Pacific region and the translation of multipls curmencles 1o US doliar for financial reporting purpos=s, The batance
shest values of cur operating units and subsidiares are not hedged to the Group’s presentation curmency, the LS dollar
Heowever, assets, liabilities and local regulatory and stress capital in each business unit are generally currency matched z
with the exzeption of holdings of eguities densminated in currencies other than the functional currency. or any expac ted ;
capital movements doe within one year which may be hedged. Bonds denomanated in currencies other than the functional g
currency.are commanly hedged with cross-cumency swaps or foreign exchange forward contracts. E
=
Foreign exchange rate net exposure 2
=]
United States Hong Kong Thal Singapore Malaysian China i!1:
USEm Dollar Donar Bahs Dolsar Finsgait Renminibi 3
H
31 December 2018 3
Equity analysed by onginal currency 19,2748 2,527 3819 {1.821) 2,153 6,380 -
Met notional amounts of currency
derivative positions {B.648) 595 3209 2,806 - (560}
Currency exposure 10,830 3122 7028 985 2,153 3,820
5% strengthening of eriginal currency !
Impact on profit before tax 100 (38) 7 12 3 (21) %
Impact on ather comprehensive income {125) 158 344 a7 105 212 E
Impact on total equity {25) 122 as51 &9 108 19 s
=
5% strengthening of the US dollar ]
Impact on profit before tax 100 70 {5} 4 (2 23 =
Impacton ather comprehensive income {125) {192) (346) {53} {106) (214)
Impact on total equity (25) {122) {351} {4%) {108} {191)
Uniod States  Hong Kong Thal Sngagen: Mal mysian Lhina
USEm Dodlay Thar ] Dollas Hiwsgit Henminbi W
z
30 Novesnber 2017 3
Equity analysed by original currency 2E497 27712 3. 768 (2356) 2167 3527 é
Met notional amounts of curmency 2
derivative positions {¥.225) BT 2535 3,005 - E 2
Currency exposure 18272 3369 6,303 649 2157 3.535 i
5% strengthening of original currency
Impact on profit before tax 164 a3 (&) 24 4 19 -
Impact on ather comprehensive Income (V2B 133 323 12 104 158
Impact on total equity {24) 136 315 33 108 177 -
=]
5% strengthening of the U'S dellar E
Impacton prefit b fore tax 164 30 9 (53 {3) (16} s
impacton ether comprehensive income (188} i168) {324) (28] {105} (161} £
Impact on total equity {24) (1384) (215) 133) {108) (177 'gt
E
g
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT frontenmd)

Investment and financial risks (onomed)

Liquidity risk

Al identifies liquidity risk 2 cocurring In two ways, financial liquidity risk and investment liquidity risk, Financial liquidity
rizk iz the rizk that insufficient cash is aveilable to mest payment cbligations tocounterpartias as they fall due. One area of
particular focus in the management of financial liquidity is cellateral. ALA manages this exposure by determining limits for
Its activitias In the derivatives and repurchase agresment markets based on the collateral available within the relevant
fund or sibsidiary to withstand extreme market events. More broadiy AlA supports its liquidity through committed bank
facilities, use of the bond repurchase markets and maintaining acoess to debt markets via the Company's Global
Medium-tarm Mote and Securitiss programma.

Investment Bquidity risk cccurs in relation to the Group's ability to buy and sell investments. Thiz iz a function of the size of
the Group's holdings relative 1o the availability of countarparties willing to buy or zall theza heldings at any given time. [n
times of stress. market losses will generally be compounded by forced sellers seeking unwilling buyers.

While life insurance companins are characterised by a relatively low need for Bguldity te cower those of thalf labilities
which are directly linked to mortality and morbidity, thia risk (s nevertheless carefully managed by continuously assessing
the relative liquidity of the Grotp’s assets and managing the size of individual holdings through limits,

Duw atbor Dk aflasr
Dugin NG yRar Tivg vpara
ol VAT through IBreaagh Dug after Mo tixed
L5Em Total oflass Pl years ton years tan years mmaturity
31 Decembar 2018
Financial assets (Policyholder and
shareholdar Investments)
Loans and deposits 7311 1,011 708 270 2,432 2,900
Dther receivablas 1,913 1,788 &8 5 - 53
Debt securities 135,456 2,683 17,352 30,450 B49T1 -
Equity securities 19,681 - - - - 19,681
Ramsurance recaivables 539 539 - - - -
Accrued investment income 1,546 1,537 - - -
Cash and cash equivalants 1719 1779 - - = -
Derivative financial instruments 428 121 85 164 58 =
Subtotal 168,653 9.458 18213 30,889  B7.451 22,642
Financial assets (Unit-linked contracts and
consolidated investment funds) 24,055 - - - = 24055
Total 192,708 9458 18,213 30,859 B7.451 56,697
Financial and insurance contract Habilities
(Pelicvholder and shareholdar investmants)
Insurance and investment contract liabilities
tnet of deferred acquisition and origination
costs and reinsurance) 122,563 2,914 10,824 11,965 96,860 -
Borrowlings 4,954 500 1,498 1,241 1717 -
Obligations under repurchaze and securities
lending agreemants 1,683 1,683 - - - -
Other liabilities 4,754 1.526 126 5 F 1,095
Derivative financial instrumants 243 54 98 53 a8 -
Subtotal 134,197 8677 11544 13,264 98617 1,095
Financial and insurance contract Uabilites
(Unit-linkad contracts and consolidated
Investrment funds) 24,073 - - - - 24,073
Total 158,270 8,477 12,544 13,264 98617 25,168

Heitny:
{1} Thewe Borrowings tall dus attor 2 yoars thmegh S yman
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38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined bonefit plans

The Group operates funded and unfunded defined benefit plans that provide life and medical banefits for participating
employees after retirement and a lump sum benefit on cessation of employmeant. The locations coverad by these plans
inclede Hong Korg. Singapore. Malaysia, Thafland, Indonesia, Korea. the Philippines. Sri Lanka, Taiwan and Vistnam. The
latest independent actuarial valuations of the plans were at 31 December 2018 and were prepared by credentialed
actuaries of Mercer (Hong Keng) Limited and Mercer Phillppines Inc. All the actuaries are qualified members of professional
actuarial organisations to render the actuarial opinions. The actuarial valuations indicate that the Group's obligations
under these dafined benafit ratiramant plans ane 42 per cent (30 November 201 7: 44 per cent) covensd by the plan assets:
held by the trustess. The fair value of plan aszets as at period end at the date of valuation was US582m (30 Movember
2017: USS79m), The total expenses relating to thess plans recognised in the consolidated incame statement was U551 0m
{twelve months ended 30 November 201 7 USETm).

Defined contribution plans

The Group ‘cperates a numbar of defined contribution pension plans. The total d‘lgpmaa relating to these plans in the
current thirteen months was USE89m (twelve months ended 20 November 2017: USE72m). Employees and the emplover
are requirad to make monthly contributions eaial to 1 per cent to 22 per cent of the employees’ monthily basic salaries.
depending on vears of senvice and subject to any applicable caps of monthly relevant Income in different jurisdictions. For
defined contribution pension plans with vesting conditions, any forfeited contributians by employers on behalfof employess
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in stch contributions are used by the emplover to reduceany future contributions,
The amount of forfelted contributions used to reduce the existing leval of contributions is not material

'39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Share-based compensation plans
During the thirteen months ended 31 Decémber 2018, the Group made further awards of share options, restricted share
units (RSUS) and restricted stock purchase units (RSPUS) to cortain diractors, officers and employess of the Group under
the Share Option Scheme (50 Scheme), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Schame) and the Emploves Shara
Purchase Plan (ESPPL In addition, the Group made further award's of restricted stock subscription units (RS5Us) 10 eligibla
agents under the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPP).

R5U Scheme

Under the RSU Scheme, the vesting of the awarded R5Us iz conditional upon the eligible participants remaining in
employment with the Group during the respective vesting periods. RSU awands are vested either entirely after 2 specific
period of time or in tranches ovar the vesting period, For RSU awards that are vested in tranches, sach vesting tranche is
accounted for a2 a separate award for the purposes of recognising the expense over the vesting pericd. For certain RSUs,
performance conditions: are-alse attached which include both market and non-market conditions. RSUs subject to
performance conditions are relsased to the participants at the end of the vesting peried depending on the actual
achievement of the performance conditions. During the vesting period, the participants are nat entitled to dividends of the
underlying shares. Excapt in jurisdictions whers restrictions apply, tha awarded RSU= are am&c:aﬁﬁ: ba zattled in equity’
awards that the Group has the legal or constructive obligation to sattle in cash are insignificant to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be awarded under this schema i5 301,100,000 (30 November 2017; 301,100,000}, representing
approdimately 2.5 per cent (30 November 2017; 2.5 per cent) of the number of sharesin issue at 31 December 2018,

@36 | AL GROUP LIMITED

482/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continusty ;
Share-based compensation plans (cenlinued) tr
RSU Schame foonimsst) 8
THIrtasien Towelvn
marths anded maribh s
31 Docamibar A0 Rowembne
TR 7
x
Mumber of shares =
Restricted Share Units &
Gutstanding at beginning of financisl period A2400.887 49337303 g
Avarded 11,617,538 16003902 E
Forfaited (65646909)  (7.731,321) =
Vested (11,871,992 (14.589,196) 2
Dutstanding at end of financial pericd 37,801,326  4AZAL00687 g
2
S0 Scheme e
The objectives of the S0 Scheme are 1o align aligible participants’ interests with those of the shareholders of the Company
by allowing eligible participants 1o share in the value created at the point they exercise thelr options, Share option (S0
awards are vested either entirely after a specific periad of time or In tranches over the vesting period approximately three
to five years, during which, the aligible participants are requined to remain in employment with the Grougp, Fer S0 awarda "
vested (n tranches, sach vesting tranche is accounted for 83 a separate award for the purposes of recognizing the expenss §
ower the westing period. The awarded share options expire 10 years from the date of grant and each share option entitlas z
the eligible participant to subscribe for ene ordinary share. Except in jurisdictions where rastrictions apply, the awarded ‘g
share options are expecied to be sattlad in equity; awards that the Group has the legal or constrietive obligation to zetile E
in-cash are insignificant to the Group. The total number of shares under options that can be awarded under the scheme is E
§E1JEID.I:!'01:! (30 Hovember 2017: 301,100,000), representing approximately 25 per cent (30 November 2017 2.5 per 'E'
cent) of the number of shares In fssue at 31 December 2018, "~

Infarmation about share options outstanding and share options exercisable by the Group's employees and directors as at

theend of the reporting perod is a3 follows: -
Thirlaen months ended T maniis sl
1 Decambar 2018 By Hesyiminr 304 7 o
Waighted ‘Waskghvod ;‘
AVERAgE Atz At =3
Humbar of SRDTEH Price Myl of i prics =
ahkne opticed [HES} ahuae optlons (HEH =
=
Share options E
Dutstanding at beginning of financial period 29,112,234 432,58 41,581,053 3588 z
Awarded 4,601,313 67.03 460 949 51.70
Exarcised (1.355,304) 3800  (17.053135) A010 -
Forfelted or expired (1,954,299) 46,73 (6BTEATD) 4679
Dutstanding at end of financlal period 30,603,944 46,22 29112234 4758
Share opticns exercizable at end of financial pericd 12,849,114 3811 146134157 3738

At the respective dates on which the share options were exercized, the weighted avarage share price of the Company was
HK$E 788 for the thirteen menths ended 31 December 2012 (twelve months ended 30 November 2017 HKES2.61).
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3%. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (oot insesd)

Sharo-basod compensation plans (conteueds

50 Scheme continied)

The range of exercisa prices for the share options outstanding as of 21 December 2018 and 30 Movember 2017 is
summarized in the table below,

Thirteen mantha ended Fuedvis eronifee nrwdisd
51 Decembar 2018 30 Moy mmbar 20E 7
Wislghted Wiskghiod
AVETADE EuEE
norof L ing s ol FnTsaning
sharg pptions  contraciyal life ghareapdions  conbraciual e
pulstarding {ysars} uEsEaning (ynars)
Range of exercise price
HKS26 - HK$35 4,350,787 311 5055 663 4.2
HH}BE— HKF4S 11,259,533 G40 12,090,822 1.58
HHE 46 ~ HHESS 9,041,481 729 10787331 B34
HH356 - HHI6S 1,336,469 872 1174518 947
HKE:66 - HKETS 4615674 920 - -
Outztanding at end of Rnancial period 30,603,944 470 29112234 136
ESPP

Under the plan, eligible employees of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with qualifisd employes
contributions and the Company will sward one matching restricted stock purchase unit te them at the end of the vesting
period for each two shares purchasad through the gualified employee contributions {contribution shares), Contribution
shares are purchased from the open market During the vesting pericd, the eligible employess must hold the contribution
sheres purchased during the plan cycle 2nd remain emploved by the Group: The lavel of qualified employes contribution is
limited to-not more than 8 per cent of the annual bazic salary subject to a maximum-of HICE1 17,000 per annum. The
awarded matching restrictad stock purchase units are sxpected 10 be settled in equity. For the thirteen months snded 31
December 2018, eligible employees paid USE24m (twelve months ended 30 Movember 2017 USE20m) to purchass
2.833.351 ordinary shares (twelve months ended 30 Novermnber 2017 2.739,064 ondinary shares)of the Company.

ASPP

The structire of the ASPP genarally follows that of the ESPR, the key difference being that the aligible agents are required
10 pay & subscription price of USE1 tosubscribe for each new share in the Company at theand of the vesting period. Under
the plan, eligible agents of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with qualified agent contributions and
the Company will award one matching restricted stock subscription unit to them at the end of the veélir_'l_u period for each
twio shares purchased through the qualified agent contributions (agent contribution shares). Each restricted stock
subscription unit entitles etigible agents 1o subscribe for one new share of the Company. Agent contribution shares are
purchased from the open market. During the vesting period, the eligible agents must hold the contribution shares purchased
during the plan eyels and maintain theiragent contracts with the Group. The awarded matehing restricted stock subscription
units are expectad to be sattied in equity. The lavel of qualified agent contribution is subject to a maximumof USS15,000
par annum, For the thirteen months ended 31 December 201 8. sligible agents paid US335m (twelve manths ended 30
Movembear 201 7: USE20m]) to purchase 2886 479 ordinary shares (twelve months ended 30 November 2017 2.708.018
ordinary shanes) of the Company.

Valuation mothodology

Thi Group utilises a binomial tattice modal to calculate the fair value of the share option awards, 3 Monte-Carlo simulation
model and/or discounted cash flow technique 1o calculate the fair value of the RSU, ESPPand ASPP awards, taking inte
account the tarms and conditions upon which the awarda were made. The price volatility (s estimated on the basis of
implied volatility of the Company's shares which is based on an analysis of historical data since they are traded in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The expected bife of the sham options i derived from the cutput of the valuation model and is
calculated based on an analysis of expected exercize behaviour of the Company’s employvees, The estimate of market
eondition for performance-based RSUs is based on one-year historical data preceding the grant date. An allowance for
forfed ture prior to vesting s not included in the valuation of the awards. :
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1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of Directors and key management personned iz dizclosed in note &0,

42, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments under operating leases
Total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancallable operating leases are as follows:

A ak fum

31 Decomber A0 Borsmboy

LEim Pk} 20T
Properties and others expiring

Haot later than one year 17 128

Later than one and not later than five years o 215

Later than five years &1 48

Total 513 395

The Group Is the lasses in respect of a number of proparties and itemz of office equipment held undar operating leases.

The leases typically run for an initial period of one o ten-years. with an option 1o renaw the lease when all terms ara

renegotisted. Lease paymants are usually reviewed at the end of the leass term to reflect market mtes. None of the leases.
Include contingent rentals.

Investment and capital commitments

A5 at A al

31 Decamber A0 Mowembey

Us5Em g AT
Mot later than one year 1,353 1.231
Later than one and not later than five years 5 ]
Total 1,358 1:237

Investment and capital commitments consist of commitmants to investin private equity parinerships and other assats

Contingencies

The Group Is subject to regulation in each of the geographical markets in which it operates from inzurance, sacurities,
capital markets, pension, data privacy and ather regulators and |= exposed to the fak of regulatory actions in response to
perceived or actual non-complisnce with regulations relating 1o sustability, sales or underwriting practices. claims
payments and procedures, preduct design, disclosure, administration, denial or delay of benefits and breaches of fiduciary
ar other duties. The Group belleves that these matters have been adequately provided for in thase financial statements,

The Group is exposed o legal procesdings. complaints and other actions from its activities including those arising from
commarcial astivities. :a’gu practices, suitability of products, palicias and claims. The Group belisves that these matters
are adequataly provided for In theze financial statements.

The Growp is the reinsurer in o residentiasl morgage credit reinsurance agresmant covering rezidential mortgages in
Australia. The Group ks exposed to the risk of losses in the event of the failure of the retrocessionaire, & subsidisry of
American International Group, Inc., to honour Its outstanding cbligations which is mitigated by a trust agreament. The
principal batance sutstanding of mortgage leans to which the relnsurance agresment relates were approximanely USE486m
at 31 December 2018 {30 Movember 2017 USES41m). The Uabilities and related reinsurance assets, which totalled
US32m (20 November 2017: USE2m), respectively. anising from these agreaments are reflected and presanted ona gross
basis in these financial statements in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. The Group expacts to fully recover
amounis outstanding at the reporting date under the terms of this agreement from the retrocessionaire,
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47.SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON A CALENDAR YEAR BASIS '_E_
In February 2018, the Board resolved to change the Company's financial year-and date from 30 November to 31 December. o
Accordingly, the current financial period-end date of the Company is 31 December 2018 and the consolidated financial 8
atatemants of the Group cover the 13-month period from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2015, In conjunction with this
change, the following financial information is voluntarily disclosed by the Company for comparison purpose,
The accounting policles adopted 1o prepare the following supplamentary financial information are consiztent with thoae
shown in note 2 of this 2018 consolidated financial statemenits: E
{a) Consolidated Income Statement ;
Twaiea Tusitvns £
meznths anded mod s el E
31 December 31 Decambeer s
S Em 2018 w7 E
-
Revenue é
Premiums and fee income 31.27M 27241 E
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {1,842) (1,524) &
Met premiums and fee income 29,429 25747
Investmant retarm 2.655 12907
Other oparating revenue 285 224
Total rovenue 32,369 39,848 &
=
Expenses g
Insurance and investment contract benefits 23633 27102 £
Insurance and invesiment contract benefits ceded {1,675) (1.383) ='
Netinsurance and investment contract benefits 21,958 35830 =
Commission and ather acquisition expenses 3.781 Z485 ';'
Operating expenses 2,171 i ) x
Finance costs 212 185
Gther expenses 739 607 -
Total expenses 28,861 32127
Profit before share of profit from associates and jeint ventures 3,508 7121 E
Share of profit from associates and [aint ventures - - E4
Profit beore tax 3.508 7721 g
Income tax credit/(axpanse) attriibutable to policyholders” returns &5 {135) ;
Prafit belore tax attributable to shareholders' profits 3.573 1588 =2
Tax expense (849) (1.158) z
Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns (65) 135
Tax expense atributable o sharehalders” profits (914) (1.024) -
Mot profit 2,659 6562
Mat profit attributabla fo; .
Shareholders of ALA Group Limited 2,597 8,498 £
Hon-controlling intarests 42 (.13 E
=
Earnings per share (US3) :
Basic 0.22 056 E
Ditutad 0.22 0.54 g

ANNUAL REFORT 20418 | 349
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47. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON A CALENDAR YEAR BASIS (noatinusd)
(f) Segment information

Group
Other Corporals

UsEm Hnnﬁ_ Kang TI_‘-hhhd Singagore  Malevala China Hurkyu Cantne Tetal
Twalve months anded

31 Decomber 2018
ANP 2,697 611 547 382 1.067 1,206 - 6,510
TWPI 114644 3,895 1,738 2,083 &, 006 6,377 = M543
Het pramiums, fee income and

other aparating revenus

[net of reinsurance ceded) 12,858 3,832 3114 1,831 3,878 &177 26 29,716
Investment return 2,647 1322 1,175 522 860 1,112 368 8,076
Total revenie 15,505 5154 4,289 2,422 4,738 5289 394 37,792
Met insurance and investmeant

contract benafits 11,572 2,895 3,103 1,577 2,968 2,791 25 24931
Commizssion and other acquisition

expenses 1414 757 353 254 266 721 13 3,778
Operating expenses &01 218 209 180 323 G40 200 2,1mM
Finance costzand other expenses 137 51 9 12 a5 52 159 475
Tatal expenses 13,524 3911 35694 2023 3,592 4,204 397 31355
Share of profit from associates and

jaint venhuras - - - - - - - -
Operating profit/(losses) before tax 1,981 1,233 595 400 1146 1,085 {3) 6437
Tax on operating profit/(losses)

bofors tai {152) (238) {37) (75) {278} (234) (82} (1.094)
Operating profit/(losses) after tax 1,829 995 558 315 870 851 (85) 5343
Operating profit/{losses) after tax

altributable to:

Shareholders of AlA Group

Limited 1,814 995 558 320 a70 824 (85) 5,298

Men-controlling intereats 15 - - 5 - 25 - 45
Key operating ratios:
Expenza ratio A5% 5.6% 7.6% Bb% B1% 10.0% - T.14%
Operating margin 16.0% 25.5% 20.4% 156% 21.7% 13.3% - 17.5%
Operating return an

shareholders’ allocated eguity 233% 16.8% 18.2%: 20.2% 2l 6% 12.3% = 14.5%
Dperating profit/{(losses) bafors tax

includas:
Finance costs k3 1 - - n 3 139 195
Depreciation and amart sation 33 11 19 16 5 49 1" 164

i56 | AL GROUP LIMITED
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E4
47.SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON A CALENDAR YEAR BASIS (rontinuss) E
{1) Segment information (cosinud E
Group
Othar Corporals
5Em ”“"!? Huru_u Thailasd Sln'_nra;\-ur- Hul.n.@_h Chira Markits Contie Tatal
31 Decambar 2018
Total assets 71,898 31,632 3460646 14526 24228 39095 12,363 229806 2
Total liabilitics 64,299 24627 32865 12885 20,068 30,889 £, 767 190,400 2
Total equity 71,599 7,005 3.199 1,641 4,160 B.206 7,596 39406 g
Sharcholders’ allocated equity 7,508 6,181 3,115 1,601 3,565 6,901 7.924 36,795 E
Het capital {out)/in flows {1,054} {149} [267) (185) {542) (556) 1.245  (1,508) E
Total assets includes: ‘g:
Investments in associates and E.
jeint ventures - - - & - 604 - 610 z
&
Segment Information may be reconciled to the conzollidated income statemeant a5 shown balow:
Shert-term
flastuabions in
rvestmand
return mlabed Oiher Corgoidyled
Segment  loequities and  mon-oparating Incoms w
S Ialormation roal astate Hama'" atatamant E
-
[
Twelve months ended 3
31 December 2018 | 3
Mot premiums, fee Incoma Met pramiums, fee Income =
and other operating and other operating )
revenue 29,716 - {2) 29,714 revenue. E
|mvestrment returm B.OT6 (3,14D0) (2,281) 2,655 | Inyestmient return
Total revenue 37,792 {3,140} {2,283) 32,369  Total revenue
Hetinsurance and investrment Net insurance and investment -
contract benefits 24931 {917) (2,058) 21,958 contract benefits -
Other expenses 6,424 - 479 6,903 | Other expanses: E
Total expenses. 31,3585 {(917) {1,577} 28,861 Total expenses ;
3
Share of profit from associates Share of profit from associates E
and joint wentufss = - = - and joint ventunes E
Operating profit befere tax 6,437 (2.223) (T06) 3508 Profit before tax ;
Haotn:
(1) Irchisdin i lnked coniracts -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Foar gndied Yok ok
30 Nevambar 0 Hiwembor
154 Meotes 17 00
REVENLUE
Premiums and fee income 26,986 21.757
Premiums ceded 1o reinsurers (1,497} {1.313)
Het pramiums and fee incoma 25,489 20444
Investmeant return # 12,622 1555
Other operating revenue A 219 197
Total revenue 38,330 2819
EXPENSES
Insurance and investment contract benefits 26,108 19340
Insurance and inwestment contract benafits cedad (1,267} {1.119)
Net insurance and investment contract benefits 24,8461 1821
Commission.and other acquisition expenses 3,455 2,735
Operating expenses 1.96% 1,752
Finance costs 183 149
Other expenses 567 462
Total expenses ] 31,015 23319
Profit before share of losses from associates and jeint venture 7.315 4877
Share of losses from associates and joint venture - (5)
Profit bafore tax 7,315 4872
Income tax expensze attributable to policyholders” returns {128) {62)
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ profits 7187 4810
Ta expuense 10 (1,128) (660)
Taxattributable to policyholders’ returns 128 {7
Tax expansa attributable to shareholders” profits {1,000} (598)
Het profit 6,187 6,212
MNeat profit attributabla to;
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 6,120 G164
Mon-controlling interests &7 48
EARNINGS PER SHARE (US5)
Basic 1" 0.51 035
Diluted 1" 051 0,35

18 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yuar anded Vst o] §
30 Nowambar 30 Bireembnd [
UsEm w7 i z
Het profit 6,187 4212
OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss:
Fair valus gains on available for sale financial assets x
(netof taxof: 2017 US3297m: 2016: USE8m) 1.197 B69 S
Fair value {galns)/losses on avallable for sale financial assets ransferred to ncome on E
disposal and impairment (net of tax of: 201 7: USE19m; 201 & USE6m) (161} 2 x
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1.028 (4612) E
Cash flow hedges {11) 1 E
Share of other comprehensive (expense)/income from asseciates and joint venture {24} 43 z
Subtotal 2.029 503 =
Iterms that will Aot be reclassified subsequently to profit of loss: E
Ravaluation gains on proparty held for own use i
(retof faxof 2017 USE(14)m; 201 & USE{e6)m) 78 309
Effect of remeasurement of net liability of defined benefit schemes
{net of tax of: 201 7: nil; 2016; US51m) 18 {21}
Subtotal kL 288
Tetal other comprehensive income 2,125 A ﬁ
Total comprehensive income 8,312 5,003 z
Tatal comprahensive income attributable to: E
Shareholders of AlA Group Limitod 8350 4968 =
MNon-controlling interasts 62 as E
]
2
L=

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A af Ais

30 Newambar 30 Hisembar
1sEm Hoins w17 W6
ASEETS
Intangible asses 13 1,864 1,742
Investments in associates and jsint venture 14 642 650
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,213 1.132
Investmeant property 16 4,365 3910
Relnsurance assats 17 2,681 2046
Deferred acquisition and origination costs 18 21,847 18.898
Financial investments: 1w

Loans and deposits 7973 7062
fyailable tor sate
Dabt securities 105,466 0,092
At fair value through profitor loss
Debt securities 25,702 23526
Equity securities 36,716 3021
Denvative financial instruments i 363 107
176,220 150,998
Deferred tax assats 10 e 7
Current tax recoverable LEeh] 59
Other assets Fird 4,630 3.980
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,289 1.642
Total assets 215,691 185074
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract iabilities ki 148,897 128.186
Investment contract liabilities 26 8,082 7028
Borrowings a8 3,958 3460
Obligatiens under repurchase agreements o) 1,883 1.984
Derivative financial instruments 20 61 (.14
Provisions M 234 253
Deferrad tax liabilities 10 3,595 3276
Currant tax liabilities &1 210
Other liabilities 12 5,888 47213
Total liabilities 173,319 149,766

130 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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Asnt Ay ;
30 Nowambar 30 Kivoembing =
USEm Mt 087 2014 z
EQUITY
Share capital 13 14,065 13.998
Emploves share-based trusts 1 (297} (351}
Other reservas I (11,948) {11,954) x
Retined earnings 34,087 29.334 2
Fair value reserve a1 5336 5,352 ;
Forelgn currency translation reserve 1 (751} {1.812) E
Property revaluation reserve k) 527 449 E
Others {25} (32) =
Amaunts reflected in other comprehensive income 6,087 34957 ;
Total equity attributable to: o
Sharehelders of AlA Group Limited 41,994 34,984 %
Mon-controlling interests T4 a7 326
Total equity 42,372 35310
Total liabHities and equity 215691 185074

Approved and avthorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018,

COAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Wﬁ L,/L./
Mg Heng Hooi Edmund Sze-Wing Tse
[hractor hiractor
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

UsEm

Mt

Shane
capityd

Erip by
sharn-

Oiher comprehans e Ircoma

Fmaigh
Fair currency Propedty Han-

bagid Othar  Rstained wvilug tranglstion revaluation contrlling Tolxl
FUsts  rasendd  GMTER0S  MRETve FERErye Fasarve Othars  interasls aquity

Balance at
1 December 2016

et profit

Fair value gains/{losses)
on avaliable for sale
fimancial assets

Fair value gains on
available for sale
fimancial assels
transfarrad to
imcome on disposal

Fareign currency
transbation adjustments

Cash flow hedges

Share of ather
camprehensive
(expansel/incama
from associates and
jeint verture

Revaluation gains on
praperty held for
QWD LG8

Effect of rermeasunanmsan
of net liability of
defined banefit
schemas

Tatal comprehensive
incame for the year

Dividends

Shares ssued under
share option scheme
and agency share
purchase plan

Caphal contributions
fraen nan-cantralling
intaresis

Share-based
compansation

Purchase of shares
hald by amplayes
share-based trusts

Transfer of vesied
shares frem employes
share-based trusts

Cahars

Balance at
30 Nevember 2017

132 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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13958

(351) (11,954) 29.33&4 5382 (1,813 449 {332) 328 35,310

&130 - - - = 67 6187

= {181) - - - - (161}

= = = = {11} = (11)

- ¢ M - - - {24)

- - - - 1% - 18

6,120 oEL 1,081 78 7 42 B312

&7

L4 =

&k [64)
- (%)

(1.378) = = = - (14} (1.390)

14,065

(297} (11,948) 35087 6336 (751 527 (35} 378 42372
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COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Oghet Compenfermiie incoms

Emgloyes Feetiign
EUTTES Fair  cumency  Progsty Hon:
Shan L] e Refainesd wahse transtation nevahialicn ol roling L[CF
USEm Male  capital InEsks  TeEnPves  DATRIDgS  TServe  mEendn esendd Otheds  inbeiesis equity

OVERVIE'W

Balance st

1 Decomber 2015 1397 (321) (11,978) 26,194 aala {1,38%) 140 (12) 303 31422
Opening adpusiments

on revaluation gaing

on property held for

LU - - - - - - 159 - - 189
Met prafit - - - 4144 - - - - & a1
Fair value gains/({losses)

on available for sale

fimancial atsets - - - - BTG - - - (5) B9
Fair value losses on

awailable for sale

financial assels

transferred bo income

on disposal and
Impairment - = = - 2 - = i = 3

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Fareign currency

transiation adjustments - - - - (%05) (B) {413
Cash flow hedges - - = - - - - 1 i 1
Share of olher

comprahensive

income(exponse)

{rom associstes and

Jodnk et e - - - - 63 (19} - - - 53
Revaluation gaing on

praperty heid far own

LS = = - B - - 50 - - S0
Effect of remeasuramant

of et Hobelity of

delined banefit

schemes - = - - - =
Tatal comprahensive

incomef{oxpense) for

thes yoar - - = h144 938 (423} 309 {20 3% 5003
Diividends 12 - - - {1124) - - - (12} (1.138)
Shares issued undaer

share option schéme

and agency share

purchass plan 7 - - - - =t = = = ag
Share-based

compansation - - a6 - - - - = &l a4
Purchaze af shares

held by employes

ehara-based rusts - (86} - - - - = - - {B8)
Transer of vested

shares from amployes

share-based trusts - o6 (56) - - - a - - -
Tthars - - (&) - - - = = = )
Balancs st

20 Hovomber 2016 13,578 (3813 (11.954) 29334 5351 (1811 i (33) 326 35310

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

(21) - (21}

. FIHANMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Foar gnded Your anded
30 Newambar 30 Howvembar
US3m Mates 017 206
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before tax 1,315 4E72
Adjustments for
Financial invesiments (18.413) (13.438)
Ingurance and investment contract liabilities 14,312 11.794
Obligations under repurchaze agreements 9 (219) (1.019)
Other nen-cash operating items, including investment income
and the effect of exchange rate changes on certain operating items {7,242) (6.164)
Operating cash items:
Interest received 5,627 5.261
Dividends received 703 645
Intarest paid (50} {39)
Tax pald (582) (S48}
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,451 1,364
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for intangible aszets 13 {151) (&)
(Contribution o) /distribution or dividend from associates and joint ventune 14 (&) 2
Proceeds for sale of property. plantand equipment 15 0 =
Payments for investment property and property, plant and equipment 1516 (104) {181}
Payments for increase In interest of an associate - (310)
Het cash used in investing activities {241) (553)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Iszuance of medium-term notes 28 597 733
Interest paid on medivm-1erm notes (134) (10E)
Repayrment of medium-term notes 28 - (150)
Het repayment of other borrowings 28 {1} (223)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interasts & -
Dividends paid during the year {1,390) {1.138)
Purchasze of shares held by employes share-bazed trusts {10 {86)
Shares issued under share optlon scheme and agency share purchase plan &7 27
Net cash used in financing activities (969) {1.043)
Mat increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 261 {233)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial vear 1,482 1,780
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents [T {36)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 1,787 1,482

136 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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S
Cash and cash equivalents in the above consalidated statement of cash flows can be further analysed as follows: H
- 4
Yoar anded Yieaar oynechan] E
30 Novambar 30 Mowambad
USEm Mote 087 b 11
Cash and cash equivalents in the congolidated statement of financial position 4 2,289 1,642
Bank overdrafts (502} {160}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS 1.787 1,482

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
AlA Group Limited (the "Company”) was established as a company with limited liability incorporated in Hong Kong on 24
August 2009, The address of its registered office is 35/F AlA Central, No. 1 Connaught Read Cantral, Hong Kong.

AlA Group Limited iz listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock code "129%°
with Amenican Depositary Receipts {Level 1) being traded on the over-the-countar market (ticker symbol: “AAGIY™),

AlA Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively "ALA™ or the "Group™) is alifeinsurance based financial services provider
operating in 18 markets throughout the Asia-Pacific region. The Group's principal activity is the writing of life insurance
business. providing life Insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans throughout Asia, and: distributing
related investmeant and other financial services products to its customers,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Hong Wong Cempanies
Ordinance. IFRS is substantially censistent with HKFRS and the accounting policy sslections that the Group has made in
preparing these consolidated financial statements are such that the Group is able to comply with both HKFRS and IFRS.
References to IFRS. International Accounting Standards (IAS) and Interpretations developed by the IFRS Interpretations
Committea (IFRS IC) in these conzolidated financial statements should be read as referring to the equivalent HKFRE. Hong
HKomg Accounting Standards (HKAS) and Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations (HK({IFRIC) = Int) as the caze may be.
Accordingly, there are not any differences of accounting practice between HKFRS and IFRS affecting these consolidated
financial statemants.

The consolidated financial statemants have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, as modified by the
révaluation of available for sale financial assets. certain financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through
prefitor loss, derlvative financial instruments, property held for ewn use and Investment properties, all of which are carried
at fair valus.

Iterns included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured in the currency of the
primary economic anvironment in which that entity operates (the functional currency). The Company’s functional currancy
and the presentation currency of the Company and the Group is the US dollar. The consolidated financial statements are
presented In millions of US dollars (USSm) unless otherwizse stated.

The accounting policies adepted are consistant with those of the previous financial year, except as described as follows.

136 | ALA GROUP LIMITED
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (contimes)

{a) The following relevant new amendments o standards have baen adopted for the first time for the financial year ended
30 Movember 2017 and have no material impact to the Group:

OVERVIE'W

*  Amendments to 185 1, Disclosure Initiative;

= Amendments to 145 16 and 145 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization;
»  Amendments to 185 19, Employes Benefits, Discount rate: regicnal market issue;

*  Amendments to 145 27, Equity Mathod in Separate Financial Statements:

=  Amendments i 1AS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, Disclosure of Infarmation 'elsewhere in the interim financial
report’

=  Amendments to IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Changes in methods of
disposal;

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

=  Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instrumants: Disclosure, Servicing Contracts and Applicability of the Amendments
to IFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements; and

= Amendments to IFRS 11, Acquisitions of Interests in foint Operations.

(b) The following relevant new standard, interpretation and amendments to standards have been issued but ane not
effective for the financial year ended 30 November 2017 and have not been early adopted (the financial years for
which the adaption is required for the Group are stated in parentheses). The Group has assessed the full impact of these
new standards on lts financial position and results of operations and they are not expected to have a material impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group but may require additional disclosuras:

= |FRIC 22, Fereign Cummency Transactions and Advance Consideration (2019

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

= |FRIC 23, Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatment {2019}

=  Amendments to 1AS 7, Disclosure Initiative {2018k

+  Amendments to 145 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (2018);

s Amendments to IAS 12, Income Tax Consaquances of Payments on Instruments Classified as Equity (2019):
= Amendments to 1AS 23, Barrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalisation (2019,

= Amendments to 145 28, Measuring an Associate or Jeint Venture at Fair Value {2019);

= Amendments 1o 145 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (2019);

«  Amendments to 145 40, Transfers of Investment Property (2019);

« |FR% 15, Revenue fromn Contracts with Customers and amendments thereto (2019

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

=  Amendments 1o IFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (2019

=  Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations and |FRS 11, Joint Arrangements = Remeasurement of Previously
Held Interests (2019) and

= Amendments to IFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (2018).

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusst)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (contimiesd;

{c) The fellowing relevant new standards and requirements have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
ended 30 Movember 2017 and have not been early adopted:

+ |FRS 9, Financial Instruments, addressas the classification, measurement and recogniticn of financial assets and
financial liabilities. IFRS 9 requires financial assets 1o be classified into separate measurement categories: thoss
measured as at fair value with changes either recognized in profit or loss or in other comprehensive Income and
those measured at amortised cost. The determinaton is made at initial recognition depending on the entty’s
business model for managing its financial insruments and the contractual cash flow charactenistics of the
instrumant. In addition, a revised sxpected credit losses model will replace the incurmed loss Impalrment medel in
14529, The Group is vet to fully assess the impact of the standard on its financial pesition and results of operations.

For financial liabilities. the standard retains most of the 1AS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases
whare the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities. part of the fair value change due to an entity’s own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. In addition, the new standard revises the hedge accounting medel to more closely align with the entity's
risk managemant strategies. The |ASE made further changes to two areas of IFRS 9, Financial assets containing
prepayment features with negative compensation can be measured at amortised costor af fair value through other
comprehensive income if the cash flow represents solely payments of principal and interest. Men-substantial
modifications or exchange of financial liabilities that do not resultin derecognition will be required to be recognised
in profit or loss. The Group is yet to fully assess the impact of the above new requirements and changes. but the
IMpact is not expected 1o be material.

The standard is mandaterily effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (except for
préepayment features with negative compenzsation and modifications or exchange of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition which will become aeffective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019), but
the Group qualifies for a temporary exemption as explained below.

* 0On 12 September 2014, the |ASE Issued amendments to IFRS &, Insurance Contracts, Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS & which provides two alternative measures to address the different effective dates of IFRS
9 and IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, These measures include a temporary option for companies whose activities are
predominantly connected with insurance 1o defer the effective date of IFRS 9 until the earlier of the effective date
of IFRS 17 and the financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, as well a5 an approach that
allows an entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of certain accounting mismatzhes that may oceur before
IFRS 17 isapplied. Based on the amandmants to IFRS 4, the Group is eligible for and will elact to apply the temporary
aption to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 in order to implement the changes in parallel with IFRS 17, Insurance
Contracts.

+ |FRE 17T, Insurance Contracts {previously IFRS & Phase i) will replace the current IFRS &_Insurance Contracts. [FRS
17 includes some fundamental differences to current accounting in both insurance contract measuremant and
profit recognition. The general model is based on a discounted cash flow model with a risk adjustment and deferral
of unearned profits: A separate approach applies to Insurance contracis that are linked to returns on underlying
ftems and meet certaln requirements. Additionally, IFRS 17 requires more granular Information and a new
presentation format for the statement of comprehensive income as well as extensive disclosures. On 12 December
2017, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HHICPA™) approved the issuance of HKFRS 17,
insurance Contracts, The Greup is in the midst of conducting a detalled assessment of the new standards. The
standards are mandatorily effective for financial pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2021,

138 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (contimed)

{c) The fellowing relevant new standards and requirements have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
ended 30 Mowember 2017 and have not been early adopted: (continud)

OVERVIEW

= |FRS 16, Leases, sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
The standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lesses to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lesses is required
to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right w0 use the underlying leased asset and a lease ability
representing its obligation 1 make lease payments. IFRS 16 substantially carnes forward the lessor accounting
requirements in A5 17, Accordingly, a lessor continues to classity its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differantly. The Group is vet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations. The standard is mandatarily effective for financial periods beginning
onorafter 1 January 2019,

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are set out
below. Thesa policies have been applied consistently in all periods presanted.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

2.2 Operating profit

The long-term nature of much of the Group's operations means that, for management's decision-making and internal
performance management purposes, the Group evaluates its results and its operating segments using a financial
performance measure referred to as “operating profit’. Operating profit includes among others the expected long-tarm
investment returns for investments in equities and real estate based on the assumptions applied by the Group in the
Supplementary Embedded Value Information. The Group defines operating profit after tax as net profit excluding the
following non-cperating ltems:

+  short-tarm fluctuations betwean expected and actual investment returns related to equities and real estate:

+ gther invesiment return (including short-term fluciuations due to market factors); and

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

+ gther significant items that managemeant conzsiders to be non-operating (ncome and expenzas.

The Group considers that the presantation of operating profit enhances the understanding and comparability of its
performance and that of its operating segments. The Group considers that trends can be morne clearly identified without
the fluctuating effects of thesa non-operating items. many of which are largely dependent on market factors.

Operating profit is prowvided as additional information to assist in the comparison of business trends in different reporting
periods on a consistent basis and enhance overall understanding of financial perfermance.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. A structured entity is an entity
that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
as when any voting rights relane to administrative tasksenly,and the relevant activities are directed by means of contracwal
arrangements. The Group has determined that the investment funds and structured securities, such as collateralised delot
obligations, mortgage-backed securities and othee asset-backed securities that the Group has interest are structured
entities.

The Group controls an entity when the Group is expesed to, or has rights to, varfable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control iz transferrad to the Group and are excluded from consolidation from the date at which the Group no
lenger has control. Intercompany transactions are eliminated.

The Group utilises the acquisition methed of accounting to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries, unless the acquisition
forms part of the Group recrganisation of entities under common control, Under this method, the cost of an acquisition is
meazured as the fair value of consideration payable, shares issued or liabilithes assumed at the date of acquisitien. The
excessof the costof acquisition over the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill (see
210 balow). The Group recegnises, saparately from geodwill, the identifiable assets acquined, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling Interest in the subsidiary. Any surplus of the acquirer’s interest in the subsidiary’s net assets over the
cost of acquisition is credited 1o the consolidated income statement.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group inclede the assets. liabilities and results of the Company and subsidianes.
in which AlA Group Limited has a controlling interest, using accounts drawn wp 1o the reporting date.

Investment funds

Investment funds in which the Group has interasts and power to direct their relevant activities that affect the return of the
funds amre consolidated in the financial statements. In cenducting the assessment, the Group considers substantive
contractual rights as well as de facto cantrol. De facto control of an entity may arise from circumstances where the Group
does not have mora than 509 of the voting power butit has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
If the: Group has power to remove or control over the party having the ability 1o direct the relevant actvities of the fund
based on the facts and circumstances and that the Group has exposure to vaniable returns of the investment funds, they
are conselidated. Varable returns (nclude both rights to the profits or distributions as well as the obligation to absorb
leszes of the investees.

Employee share-based trusts

Trusts are et up w0 acquirg shares of the Company for distribution o participants in future periods through the share-
based compensation schemes. The consolidation of these trusts is evaluated in accordance with IFRS 10; where the Group
iz deamed to contral the trusts. they are consolidated. Shares acquired by the trusts to the extent not provided to the
participants upan vesting are carried at cost and reported as “employee share-based trusts” in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and as a deduction from the equity in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

140 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimed)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (cominud)

Hen-coentrolling interests

Mon-controlling interests are presented within equity except when they arise throwgh the minority's interest in puttable
liabdlities such as the unit holders’ interest in consolidated investment funds. when they are recognised as a liability,
reflecting the net assets of the consolidated entity.

OVERVIEW

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling Interasts, except when theéy arise through the minority's Interest in puttable
liabilities. are treated as transactions batween equity holders, Az a resulr. any difference between the scquisition cast or
sale price of the non-controlling interest and the carrying value of the non-controlling interest is recognised as an increase
or decreass in equity.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but which it does not control. Generally, it is
presumed that the Group has significant influence if it has between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of voting rights. Joint
ventures are entities whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity which s subject ta joint control
arising from a contractual agreement.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
Interest in the associates and joint ventures. Losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an
Impairment of an asset transfermed between entities.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under this mathod,
the cost of the investment in an associate or joint venture, ogether with the Group's share of that entity's post-acquisition
changes to equity, is included as an assetin the conzolidated statemeantof financial position. Costincludes goodwill arising
on acquisition. The Group's share of post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement
and its share of post-acquisition movemant in quity is recognised in other comprehensive income. Equity accaunting is
discontinued when the Group no longer has significant influence over the investment. If the Group's share of losses inan
associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the undertaking. additional losses are provided for, and a lability
recognized, only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture. The Group also accounts for investmants in joint ventures that are subject to joint control
using the equity method of accounting.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

The Company's investments

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries, azsoclates and joint ventures are stated at cost, unless
impaired, The Company's interests in investmant funds such as mutual funds and unit trusts are designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusa)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts

Consistent accounting pelicies for the measurement and recognition of insurance and investmant contracts have been
adopted throughout the Group to substantially all of its business.

In a limited number of cases. the Group measures insurance contract Liabilities with reference to statutory requiremeants in
the applicable jurizdiction, without deferral of acquisition costs.

Product classification

The Group classified its contracts written as either insurance contracts or investment contracts, depending on the lavel of
Insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts that ransfer significant insurance risk, while investment contracts
are those contractswithout significant insurance risk. Some insurance and investment contracts, refarred to as participating
business. have discretionary participation features, "DPF", which may entitle the customer to receive, 3% a supplement to
guaranteed benefits. additional non-guaranteed benefits, such as policyholder dividends or bonuses. The Group applies
the same accounting policies for the recognition and measuremant of obligations arising from investment contracts with
DPF as it doas for insurance contracts,

Ini thie ewent that a scenario (other than those lacking commercial substance) exists in which an insured svent would
recquire the Group to pay significant additional benefits to its customers, the contract is accounted for as an insurance
contract. For investment contracts that do not contain DPF, |1AS 39, Financial fnstruments: Measurement and Recognition,
and, if the contract includes an investment management element, LAS 18, Revenue Recognition, are applied. IFRS & permits
the continued use of previously applied accounting policies for insurance contracts and investmeant contracts with DPF,
and this basis has been adopted by the Group in accounting for such contracts, Once a contract has been classified asan
insurance or investmant contract, reclassification is not subsequently performed unless the werms of the agresment are
later amended.

Certain contracts with DPF supplement the amsount of guarantesd benefits due to policyhalders. These contracts are
distinct from other insurance and investment confracts as the Group has discretion in the amount and/for timing of the
benafits declared, and how such benefits are allocated between groups of policyholders. Customers may be antitled to
receive, as a supplament to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

s that ara likely 1 ba a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
+ whoseamount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Group; and
+ that are contractually based on:
- the perfermance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contrace
~ realised and/or unrealized investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer or

= theprofit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract,

653 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cominusd)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (conlinuesd

Product classification (contiuesd)

The Group applies the same accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of obligations and the deferral of
acquisition costs arising from investment contracts with DPF as it does to insurance contracts. The Group refers to such
CONtracts a5 participating business. In some jurisdictions participating business is writtén in a participating fund which is
distinct from the other asseis of the Company or branch, The allocation of benefits from the assets held in'such participating
funds is subject 10 minimum policyholder participation mechanisms which are established by regulation. The extent of
such policyholder participation may change over time. The current pelicyholder participation in dectared dividends for
locations with participating funds is set out below:

OVERVIE'W

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Country Cummenl podicyholder pai kolpalkon
Singapore Qe
Malaysia 0%
China 0%
Australia Bl
Erunei 3%

In some jurisdictions participating business isnotwritten in a distinct fund and the Group refers to this as other participating
business.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (coninued)

Product classification (contivaisd)
The Group's products may be divided into the following main categories:
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In the notes to the financial statemants, unit-linked contracts are presantad together with pension contracts for disclosure

PN 382,
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimesd)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (coninusd)

Product classification (contisued)

The basis of accounting for Insurance and investrment contracts iz discussed in notes 2.4.1 and 2.4.2 below.

OVERVIE'W

24.1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Premiuns

Pramiums from life insurance contracts. including participating policies and annuity policies with life contingencies, are
recognised as revenue when due from the policyholder. Benefits and expenses are provided in respect of such revenee $o
a5 to recognise profits over the estimated life of the policies. For limited pay contracts. premiums are recognized in profit
or loss when due, with any excess profit deferred and recognised in income in a constant relationship to the insuranca in-
force or, for annuities, the amount of expected benefit payments.

Amounts collected as pramiums from insurance contracts with investment features but with sufficient insurance risk to be
considered insurance contracts, such as universal life, and certain unit-inked contracts, are accumulated as deposits.
Rewvenue from these contracts consists of policy fees for the cost of insurance, administration, and surrenders during the
period.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Upfront fees are recognised over the estimated life of the contracts to which they relate. Policy benefits and claims that are
charged to expenses include benefit claims incurred in the pericd in excess of related policyholder contract deposits and
Interest credited o policyholder depesits.

Unearned revenue [iability

Unearned revenue liability represents upfront fees and other non-level charges that have been collected and released to
the consolidated income statement over the estimated life of the business. A separate liability for accumulation value is
established.

Deferred profit fability

Deterred profit liability arising frem traditional insurance contracts represents excess profits that have been collected and
released 10 the consolidated Income statement over the estimated life of the business. A separate lability for future policy
beanefits is established.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new insurance contracts, including commissions and distribution costs, underwriting and other
policy issue expenses which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business or renewal of existing
businezs_are deferred as an asset Deferrad acquisition costs are assessad for recoverability in the year of policy fssus to
ensure that these costs are recoverable out of the estimated future margins to be earned on the policy. Deferred acquisition
costs are assessed for recoverability at least annually thereafier, Future investment income is alse taken inte account in
assessing recoverability. To the extent that acquisition costs are not considered to be recoverable at Inception or thereafier,
thase costs are sxpensed in the consalidated income statement,

Deferred acquisition costs for life insurance and annuity policies are amortised over the expected life of the contracts asa
constant percentage of expected premiums. Expected premiums are estimated at the date of policy issue and and
consistently applied throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency occurs when perfesming liability adeguacy
testing {see below).

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Deferred acquisition costs for universal life and unit-linked contracts any amortised over the expected life of the contracts
based on a constant percentage of the prasent value of estimated gross profits expected 1o be realised over the life of the
coftract or on a straight-line basis. Estimated gross profits include expected amounts lo be assessed for mortality,
administration, investment and surrenders, less benefit claims in excess of policyholder balances, administrative expansas
and Interest credited. Estimated gross profits are revised regularly. The interest rate used to compute the present value of
revised estimates of expected gross profits is the latest revised rave applied to the remaining benefit period, Deviations of
actual results from estimated experience are reflected in earnings.

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icontinusst

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (coninued

Product classification tconlirusd)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and inveatment contracts with DPF (contingest)

Deferred sales Inducements

Deferred sales inducements, consisting of day one bonuses. persistency bonuses and enhanced crediting ratesare defermed
and amortised using the same methodology and assumptions used to amortize acquisition costs when:

* the sales inducements are recognised as part of insurance contract liabilivies:

= theyare explicitly identified in the contracton inception;

+  they are incremental to amounts credited an similar contracts without sales inducements; and
= theyare higher than the expected ongoing crediting rates for pericds aftar the inducemeant.

Unbundling
The deposit component of an insurance contract is unbundled when both of the fellowing conditions are met

+ the deposit component {including any embadded surmender option) can be measured separately (Le. without taking
Inte account the insurance component); and

« the Group's accounting policias do not otherwise require the recognition of all cbligations and rights arising from the
deposit component.

Bifurcation
To the extent that certain of the Group's insurance contracts include embedded derlvatives that are not clearly and closely
related to the host contract, these are bifurcated from the insurance contracts and sccounted for as dernvatives,

Benefits and claims
Insurance contract benefits reflect the cost of all matunities, surrenders, withdrawals and claims arising during the year, as
well as policyholder dividends accrued in anticipation of dividend declarations.

Accident and health claims incurmed include all losses occurning during the year, whether reported or not, rélated handling
costs, a reduction for recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include internal and external costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and sattlement of
claimz, and are inciuded in oparating expenses.

Insurance contragt ltabilities (including labilities in respect of investment contracts with OFPF)
Insurance contract liabilities represent the estimated future policyholder benefit liability for life insurance policies.

Future pelicy benefits for life insurance policies are calculated using a net level premium valuation method which
reprasents the present value of estimated futura policy benafits 1o be paid, less the present value of estimated future net
premiums to be collected from policyholders.

For contracts with an explicit account balance, such as universal life and unit-linked contracts, insurance contract liabilities
are aqual to the accumulation value, which represents premiums received and investmant returns credited to the policy
less deductions for martality and morbidity costs and expense charges.

Settlement options are accounted for as an integral componant of the underlying Insurance or investment contract unless
they provide annuitisation benefits, in which caze an additional liability is established to the extent that the present value
of expected annuitisation payments at the expected annuitisation date exceeds the expected account balance at that date.
Where senlement options have been issued with guarantesd rates less than market interest rates. the insurance or
investment contract liability does not reflect any provision for subsequent declines In market interest rates unless a
deficiency is identified through lability adequacy testing.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (oo

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (continued

Product classification (contiaesd)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and Investment contracts with DPF (contiound)

Insurance contract liabilities (including Wabilitles in respect of investment contracts with DPF) tcontind)

The Group accounts forinsurance contract liabilites for participating busingss written in participating funds by establishing
a lfability for the present value of guaranteed benefits less estimated future net premiums w be collected from policvholders.
In additien, an insurance liability is recorded for the proportion of the nat assats of the participating funds that would be
allocated 1o policyhalders assuming all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
ware to ba declared as a policyholder dividend basad wpon applicable regulations. The Group accounts for other
participating business by establishing a liability for the present value of guaranteed benefits and non-guarantaed
participation, less estimated future net premiums to be collected from policyholders.

OVERVIE'W

Liability adequacy testing

The adequacy of liabilities is assessed by portfolio of contracts, in accordance with the Group's manner of acquining,
sarvicing and measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts. Liability adequacy testing is performed for each
reportable segment.

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

For traditional life insurance contracts, insurance contract liabilities reduced by deferred acquisition costs and value of
business acquired on acquired insurance contracts, are compared to the gross prémiurm valuation calculated on a best
estimate basis, as of the valuation date. If there is a deficiency, the unamortised balance of deferred acquisition cost and
value of business acquired on acquired insurance contracts are written down 1o the extent of the deficiency. If. after writing
down the unamortised balance for the specific portfolio of contracts to nil, a delicsency sull exists, the net liability is
increased by the amount of the remaining deficiency.

For universal life and investment contracts, delermed acquisition costs, net of unearned révenue liabilities, are compared to
estimated gross profits. If a deficiency exists, deferred acguisition costs are written down.

Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees are regarded as insurance contracts. Liabilities in respect of such contracts are recognized as loss is
incurred by a holdar.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

2.4.2 Investment confracts

Investment contracts do not contain sufficient insurance risk to be considered insurance contracts and are sccounted for
as a financial lability, other than Investment contracts with DFF which are excluded from the scope of 145 39 and are
accounted for as insurance contracts.

Revenue from these contracts consists of various charges (policy fees, handling fees, management fees and surrender
charges)made against the contract for the costof nsurance, expenses and early surrender. First year charges are amortised
ower the life of the contract as the services are provided.

Investment contract fee revenue

Customers are charged fees for policy administration, investment management, surmenders or ¢ther contract services, The
Teds may be fixed amounts oF vary with the amounts being managed. and will generally be charged as an adjustment to the
policyholder's account balance. The faes are recognisad as revenue in the period in which they are received unless thay
relate to services to be provided in future periods, in which casa they are deferred and recognised as the service is provided.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Origination and other “upfront” fees (fees that are assessed against the account balance as consideration for origination of
the contract) are charged on some non-participating investment and pension contracts. Where tha investment contract is
recorded at amortized cost, thesa fees are amortised and recognised over the expected term of the policy as an adjustment
to the effective yield. Where the investment contract iz measured at fair value, the front-end fees that relate to the provision
of investment management services are amortised and recognised as the services are provided,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icontinusst

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (continued

Product classification tconlirusd)

2.4.2 Investment contracts {oondinmesd)

Deferred origination costs

The costs of acquiring investment contracts with investmant management sarvices, including commissions and other
incremental expenses directly related to the issue of each new contract, are deferred and amortised over the period that
seivices are provided. Deferred drigination costs are tested for recoverability at each reporting date,

The costs of acquinng new invesiment contracts without invesiment management services are included as part of the
effective interest rate used to calculate the amortized cost of the related investment contract liabilities.

lnvestment contract Habilities

Deposits received in respact of investrment contracts are not accounted for through the consolidated income statament,
axcept for the investment income and fees attributable to those contracts, but are accounted for directly through the
consolidated statement of financial position as an adjustment to the investment contract liability, which reflects the
account balance.

The majority of the Group's contracts classified as investment contracts are unit-linked contracts, with measurement
directly linked to the underlying investment assets. These represent investment portfolios maintained to meet specific
investment objectives of pelicyholders who generally bear the credit and market risks on those Investrmants. The liabilites
are carried at fair value determined with reference to the accumulation value (current unit value) with changes recognised
i profitor loss. The costs of policy administration, investment managernent. surrender charges and certain policyholder
taxes assessed against customers’ account balances are included in revenue. and accounted for as described under
*Invastment contract fee revenue” above,

Men unit-linked investment contract liabilities are carried at amortised cost, being the fair value of consideration received
at the date of initial recognition, less the net effect of principal payments such as transaction costs and front-end fees plus
or minus the cumulative amartisation using the effective interest method of any difference betwean that initial amount and
the maturity value, and less any write-down for surrender payments, The effective interest rate equates the discounted
cash payments to the initial amount At each reporting date, the unearned revenue liability i= determined as the value of
the future best estinate cash flows dizcounted at the effective interest rate, Any adjustment (s immediately recognized as
income or expense in the censclidated income statement.

The amortizad cost of the financial liability is never recorded at less than the amount payable on surrender, discounted for
the time value of money where applicable, if the inve stment contract is subject o a surrender option.

Deferred fee income Hability

Deferred fee income liabllity represents upfront fees and other non-level charges that have been collected and released to
the conselidated income statemant over the estimated Life of the business, A separate liability for accumulation value ks
established.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cominusd)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (conlinuesd

Product classification (contiaesd)

2.4.3 Insurance and investment contracts

Relnsurance

The Group cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business, with retentions varying by line of business, The cost of
refnsurance is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies, using assumptions consistent with those
used to account for such policies.

OVERVIEW

Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed are presented on & gross basis in the consclidated income statement and
staternant of financial pasition.

Relnsurance assets consist of amaunts recelvable in respect of ceded insurance Habilities. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the reinsured insurance or investment contract liabilities or benefits
paid and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract.

Te the extent that reinsurance contracts principally transfer financial risk {as opposed to insurance risk) they are accounted
for directly through the conselidated statement of financial position and are notincluded in reinsurance assets or labilities.
Adeposit assetor liability is recognised, basad on the conzsideration paid or received less any explicitly identified pramiums
or fees to be retained by the reinsured.

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount accordingly and recognisas thatimpairment loss
in the consolidated income statement. A reinsurance assat is impaired if there is objective evidence, a3 a result of an event
that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Group may not recelve all amounts due 1o it under
the terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be reliably
measured.

Value of business acquired (VOBA)

The VOBA in respectof a portfelio of long-term insurance and investmentcontracts, sither directly or through the purchase
of a subsidiary, |5 recognised as an asser If this résults from the acquisition of an Investment in a joint wenture oF an
associate, the VOBA is held within the camrying amount of that investment. In all cases, the VOBA is amortized over the
estimated life of the contracts in the acquired portfolic on a systematic basis. The rate of amortization reflects the profile
of the value of in-force business acquired. The camrying value of VOBA is reviewed annually for impairment and any
reduction is charged to the consolidated income statemeant.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Shadow accounting

Shadow accounting = applied to insurance and certain investment contracts with discretionary participation feature
where financial assets backing insurance and inve stment contract lakilities are classified as available for sale, Shadow
accounting is applied to deferred acquizivion costs, VOBA, deferred origination costs and the contract liabilites for
invisstment contracts with DPF 1o take into account the effect of unrealised gains or losses on insurance liabilities or azsets
that are recognised in other comprehensive income in the same way a5 for a malised gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement Such assets or liabilities are adjusted with corresponding charges or credits recognised
directly in shareholders’ equity as a component of the related unrealised gains and losses.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Other assessmants and levies

The Group is potentially subject to various periodic insurance-related assessments or guarantea fund levies. Related
provisions are established where there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. Such
amounts are not Included n nsurance or inwestment contract liabilities but are included under “Provisions” in the
consolidated statement of financial pasition.

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Financial instruments

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments

Fimancial assats and labilittes at falr valuve through profit or loss

Financial azssets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise two categaories:

+ financial assets or liabiities designated at fair value through profit or loss upen initial recognition; and
s financial assats or liabilities classified as hald for trading.

Management designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss if this eliminates a measurement
inconsistency or if the related assets and liabilities are actively managed on a fair value basis, including:

s financial assets hald to back unit-linked contracts and participating funds:

= othar financial assets managed on a fair value basis; consisting of the Group's aguity portfolio and investmeants held by
the Group's fully conzolidated investment funds: and

s compound instrumants containing an embedded derivative, where the embedded derivative would otherwise require
bifurcation.

Financial assetsand liabilities classified as held for trading inclede financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
selling them In the near future and those that form part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there is evidence of short-
term profit taking, as well as derivative azsets and liabilities.

Dividend income from equity instruments designated at falr value through profitor loss s recognised in iInvestment income
I the consolidated Income statement, generally when the security becomes ex-dividend. Interest income is recognised on
an acerued basis For all financial astets designated an falr valoe thraugh profit or less, changes in fair value are recagnizad
In investiment expenence,

Transaction costs in respect of financial assets and Habilities at fair value through profitor loss are expensed ag they are
Imcurred.

Available for sale financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables, are classified as available:
for sala.

The availabla for sale category iz used whers the relevant investments backing insurance and investment contract Liabilities.
and sharebolders’ squity are not managed on a fair value basis. These principally consist of the Group's debt securities
{other than those backing participating funds and unit-linked contracts). Available for sale financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus attributable transaction costs. For available for sale debt securities, the difference betwean
their cost and par valua iz amortisad. Available for zals financial aszets are subsaguantly measured at fair valus. Interest
income from debt securities classified as available for sale iz recognized in investment income in the consolidated income
staternent using the effective interest method,

Unrealized gains and losses on securities classified as avallable for sale are analysed between differences resulting from
foreign currency transiation, and other fair value changes: Foreign currency translation differences on monetary available
for sale investmants, such as debl securities are calculated as if they were carried at amortised cost and 0 are recogrised
in the consolidated income statement 35 investment experiance, For impairmants of available for sale financial assets,
reference is made to the section "Impairment of financial assets™.

Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available for sale, except for impairment losses and relevant foreign
exchange gains and losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate fair value
reserve within equity, Impairment losses and relevant foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
staternent

Realfsed gains and losses on financial assels
Fealized gains and losses on availlable for sale financial assets are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and amortised cost Amortised cost is determined by specific identification.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimpsd)

2.5 Financial instruments tcontinued

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments (contined)

Recognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognized on the trade date, which is the date at which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets.

OVERVIE'W

Derecognition and effset of financial assels

Finamcial assets are derecognised when the rights v receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or wherse
the Group has wansferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If the Group nefther transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial assat. it demecognises the financial asset if it ne longer
has control over the asset. In transfers where contral over the asset is retained, the Graup continues to recognise the asset
to the axtent of its continuing involvement. The extant of continuing involvament is determined by the extent to which the
Group is exposed to changes in the fair value of the assat.

Financial aszets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statemeant of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention o sattle on a net
basiz. or realize the assetand setite the labllity simultaneously,

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted Inan
active markat. They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are carried at amortizsed
cost using the effective interest method bess any impairment losses. Intérest income from loans and recelvables iz
recognided in investment income in the consolidated income statement wsing the effective interest method,

Term deposits

Deposits include time deposits with financial institutions which do not meet the definition of cash and cash squivalents as
their maturity at acquisition exceeds three manths. Certain of thesa balances are subject 1o regulatary or other restriction
as disclosed In note 19 Loans and deposits. Deposits ame stated atamortised cost using the effective interest method.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly Equid
investments with maturities at acquisition of three months or less, which are held for cash management purposes. Cash
and cash equivalents also include cash received as collateral for derivative transactions, and repo and reverse repo
transactions. as well as cash and cash equivalents held for the benefit of policyholders in connection with unli-linked
products. Cazh and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.5.2 Fair values of nen-derivative Tinancial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be recelved to sell an-asset or pald 1o ransfer a liability In
an ardeely transaction Between market participants at the measurement date, having regard 1o the specific characteristics
of the asset or liability concerned, assuming that the transfer takes place in the most advantageous market to which the
Group has accass. The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss and available for sale securities) are based on quoted market prices at the date of the
conzolidated statement of financial position. The quoted market price used for financial azsets hald by the Group i the
current bid price, which is considered to be the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of the fair value
in the circumstances The fair values of financial instrurments that are not traded in active markets ane determined using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of metheds and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions at
the date of each consolidated statement of financial position. The objective of using a valuation technigue is to estimate
the price at which an orderly transaction would take place betwesn markel participants at the date of the consolidated
staternent of financial position.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Financial instruments carried at falr value are measured using a fair value hierarchy described in note 21.

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icontinusst

2.5 Financial instrumemts (oontud)

2.5.3 Impairment of financial assets

Genearal

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on a regular basis, The Group assesszes ateach reporting date whather there:
i% objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset, or growp of financial
assels, is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is ebjective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or mong evants that have sccurrad after the indtial recognition of the asset (a less event) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated,

For loans and receivables, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant. If the Group datermines that objective svidence of impairment does not exist for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not. it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
Impairment and for which an impairment lozs is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assassment
af impairment.

Available for sale financial Instruments

When a decling In the fair value of an available for sale asset has besn recognised in other comprehensive incoma and
there isobjective evidence that the asset isimpaired, the cumulative loss already recognised directly in other comprehensive
incoma is recognised in current pariod profitor loss.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases in a subseguent period, and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. Where_ following the recognition of an impairment loss in respect of an available for sale
debt security, the assat suffers further falls in value, such further falls are recognised as an impairment only in the case
when objective evidence exists of a further impairment event to which the losses can be attributed.

Loans and recaivables

For loans and receivables, impairment is considared to have taken place if it iz probabla that the Group will not be abls to
collect principal and for interast dus according to the contractual terms of the Instrument. When impairment is determined
to have occurred, the carrying amount is decreased through a charge to profit or loss. The carrying amount of morigage
loans or receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of any allowance |s recognised
a5 an impaiment loss in profit or loss.

2.5.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments primarily include foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps that derive their
value mainly from underlying foreign exchange rates and interest rates. All derivatives are initially recognised in the
consolidated statemeant of financial position at their fair value, which represents their cost excluding transaction costs,
which are expansed, giving rise to a day cne loss. They are subsequently remeasured at thekr fair value, with movements in
thiz value recognized in profit or loss. Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices or, If these are not available, by
using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or option pricing models. All derivatives are camried as
assets when the fair values are positive and as liabilities when the fair values are negative.

Derivative instruments for economic hedging

Whilst the Group enters into derivative transactions 1o provide economic hedges under the Group’s risk management
framework, it adopts hedge accounting 1o these transactions anly In limited circumstances. This is either because the
transactions would not meet the specific IFRS rules 1o be eligible for hedge accounting or the decumentation requiremants
1o meet hedge accounting criteria would be unduly onerous. Where hedge accounting does not apply, thess transactions.
are treated as hedd for trading and fair value movements are recognised immediately in investment experience.
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cominusd)

2.5 Financial instruments (oontimesd)

2.5.4 Derivative financial instruments tcontimest}

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives are derivatives embedded within other non=derivative host financial instruments to create hybrid
instruments. Where the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related 1o the
econamie characteristics and risks of the host instrurnent, and where the hybrid instrument iz not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit o logs, the embedded dervative is bifurcated and carried at fair valus as a
derivative in accordance with 1AS 39,

OVERVIEW

2.6 Segment reporting

An gperating segment i3 4 component of the Gioup that engages in business activity from which it earns revenues and
incurs expanses and, for which, discrete financial information is available, and whose operating results ane regularly
raviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision-maker, considered to be the Executive Committes of the Group (ExCa).

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

2.7 Foreign currency translation

Income statements and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the Group's presentation currency af average
exchange rates for the year as this appronimates to the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Their statemants
of financial position are translated at year or period end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising from the ransiation
of the net investment in foreign operations, are taken to the currency translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a
foreign oparation, such exchange differences are transferred out of this reserve and are recognised in the consolidated
incarme staternent as part of the gain or loss on sale

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains and
lxszes resulting from the sattlement of such transactions. and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies into functional currency, are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are included in investment
experience. For monetary financial assets classified as avallable for sale, transkation differences are calculated as if they
ware carried at amortised cost and so ars recognised in the consalidated income statemant. Fordign exchangs movements
O HOn-Manetary equities that are accounted for as available for sale are included in the fair value reserve.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

2.8 Property, plant and equipmeant

Froperty held for own use is carried at fair value at last valuation date less accumulated depreciation. When an asset is
adjusted for the tatest fair value, any accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset The movement of fair values is generally recognised in other comprehensive income. When
such properties are sold. the amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are transferred to retained samings.

The Group records its interestin leasehold tand and land use rights associated with property hedd for own use separately
a5 operating leases or finance leases depending on whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the land are transferred to the Group. These interasts classified as finance leases are reported as a component of the
property held for own use and carried at fair value at last valuation date. The prepayments to acquire leasehold land
classified as operating leases are recorded at original cost within “Other assets™ and amortised over the term of the leaze
{see note 2.19).

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairmeant losses.
Histarical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continust)

2.8 Proparty, plant and equipment (coninusd
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-tine method to allocate cost less any residual value over the estimated useful

life, genaraliy

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 5 years
Buildings 20-40 years
Computar hardware and other assets 3-5 years
Freehold land Mo depreciation

Subsequent costs are included in the camying amount or recognised a5 a separate assat. asappropriate, when it is probable
that future sconomic benefits will flow to the Group. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statemnent during the financial period In which they are incurred.

Residual values and usetul lives are reviewed and adjusted, if applicable_at sach reporting date. An asset is written down
1o its recoverable amount if the carrying value is greater than the estimated recoverable amount

Any gain and loss arising on disposal of property, plant and equipmentis measured as the difference between the net sale
procesds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income statemeant

2.9 Investment property

Property held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both that is not occupled by the Group is classified as
investment property. Investmant property, including land and buildings, is initially recognised at cost with changes in fair
values in subsaquent periods recognised in the consolidated income statemant.

If an investment property bacomes held for own use, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipmeant Where a property
i% partly used as an investment property and partly for the use by the Group, these elements are recorded separately within
Investmant property and property, plant and equipment respectively, whare the component used as investrent property
would be capable of separate sale or finance lease:

2.10 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary, asseciate or jeint venture at the date of acquisition. Geodwill on acquisitions prior to 1
December 2004 (the date of ransition to IFRS) iz carried at book value {eriginal cost less cumulative amortisation) on that
date, less any impalrment subsequently incurred. Goodwdll arizing en the Group's investment in subsidianes since that date
is shown a% a separate asset and is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment tosses. whilst that on associates and
joint ventures is included within the carrying value of those investments. All acquisition-related costs are sxpansed as
Incurred.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible azsets consist primarily of acquired computer software and contractual relationships, such as access to
distribution networks, and are amortised over their estimated useful lives, The amartisation charge for rights to access
distribution networks iz included In the conzolidated Income statement under “Commission and other acguisition
expenses”.

Acouired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to-acguire and bring to use the
specific software, Costs directly associated with the internal production of identifiable and unigue software by the Group
that will generate economic benefits exceeding those costs over a period greater than a year, are recognised as Intangible
assets, All ather costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs of acquiring computer software licences and incurred in the internal production of computer
software are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software, which does not
generally axcesd a pariod of 3 to 15 years. The amartisation charge for the year is included in the consolidated income
statement under “Operating expensas”.
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninusd)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipmant, goodwill and other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized to
the extent that the carrying amount of the azsat exceeds [ts recoverable amount, which is the higher of the Fair value of the
asset bess cost to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped inte cash-generating
units at the level of the Group's operating segments. the lowest lavel for which separately identifiable cash flows are
raported, The carrying values of goadwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least annually
of when circumstances or events indicate that there may be uncertainty over this value

OVERVIE'W

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whather there |s any objective evidence that its Investmants in
associates and joint ventures are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether there has been any significant
adversa changas in the téchnological, market, economic or legal environment in which the associates and joint venturas
operate or whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in value below thair cost. If there is an indication that
an interest in an asseclate or a joint venture is impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carmying amount of the
Investment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An impairment loss iz recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which
the carrying armount is lower than the higher of tha investiment's fair value bess costs 1o sell or value in use, Any reversal of
such impaimsent 1033 in subseguent periods is reversed through profit or loss

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

In the statement of financial position of the Company, impairmant testing of the investments in subsidiarnes, associates and
Iodnt venturesis required upen receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the tetal comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures in the period the dividend iz declared or if the carrying amount of
the relevant investment in the Company's statement of financial position exceads its carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investess net assets including goodwill.

2.12 Securities lending including repurchase agreaments

The Group has been a party to vanous securities bending agreements under which securities are loaned to third parties on
a short-term basis, The loaned securities are not derecognised and 5o they continue to be recognised within the appropriate
investment classification.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recognised and a lability is established for the consideration
recefjved, The Group may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying assets, and
such collateral assets remaln on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)

The Group enters inte purchases of assets under agreements o resebl (reverse repos) Rewverse repos are mitially recorded
at the cost of the loan or collateral advanced within the caption “Loans and deposits” in the consolidated statement of
financial pasition, [n the event of failure by the counterparty 1o répay the loan, the Group has the rght to the underlyng
agsats

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Collateral

The Group receives and pledges collateral in the form of cash or non-cash assets in respect of derivative transactions and
repo &nd reverse repo transactions, inorder to reduce the credit risk of thesa transactions. The amaount and type of coltateral
depands on an azsessmentof the credit risk of the counterparty. Collateral received in the form of cazh, whichis not legally
segregated from the Group.isrecognised asan assetin the conselidated statement of financial po sition with a cormespending
liabilivy for the repayment. Mon-cash collateral received Is not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial
position unless the Gioup aither sells or repledges these assets in the absence of default at which point the abligation to
return this collateral is recognised as a liability. To further minimise credit risk. the financial condition of counterparties is
monitored on a regular basis.

Collateral pledged in the form of cash which Is legally segregated from the Group is derecognised from the consolidated
staternentof financial position and a corresponding recaivable established for its return. Non-cazh collateral pledged is not
derecognized (excapt in the event of default) and therefore continues to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position within the appropriate financial instrument classification,

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at their ssue proceeds less transaction costs incumed. Subsequently, borrowings are
stated atamortised cost, and any difference between nat proceeds and redemgtion value is recognised in the consolidated
inceme statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. All borrewing costs are expensed
as they are incurred. except for borrowdng costs directly attributable to the development of investmeant properties and other
qualifying assets, which are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

2.15 Income taxes
The current tax expense i based on the taxable prafits for the vear, including any adjustments in respect of priar years. Tax
Iz allocated to profit or loss before taxation and amounts charged or credited to equity as appropriate.

Deferred tax iz recognized in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrylng amounts in the consolidated financial staternents, except as described below.

The principal temporary differences arise from the basis of recognition of insurance and investment contract liabilities,
revaluation of certain financial assets and UHakdllvies Including derivative contracts, deferred acquisition costs and the
future taxes arising on the surplus in life funds where the relevant local tax regime is distributions-based. The rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the date of the consolidated statement of Fnancial positien are used 1o determing defermd tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that itis probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. In countries where there is a history of tax losses, deferred tax assets am only
recognised in excess of deferred tax liabilities if there is evidence that future profits will be available.

Deferred taxes are not provided in respect of temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goedwill or from
goodwill for which amaortisation is not deductible for tax purposas, or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and which affects neither accounting nor taxable profitor loss at the tima
of the transaction.

Deferred tax relatad to fair valus remeasurement of available for sale investments and other amounts taken directly to
equity, is recognized initially within the applicable component of equity. It is subseguently recognised in the consclidated
Inceme statement, together with the gain or loss arising on the underlying item

Im addition to paving tax on shareholders’ profits, certain of the Group's life insurance businesses pay tax on policyholders’
investment returns (policyholder tax) at policyholder tax rates. Policyholder tax s accounted for as an income fax and is
included in the 1otal tax expense and disclosed separately,
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninusd)

2.16 Revenue

Investment return

Investment income consizts of dividends, interest and rents recelvable for the reporting period. Investment experience
comprizes realised gains and losses, impairments and unrealized gains and losses on investments held at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, taking inte account the effective yield on the investment.
Rental income en Investment property is recognised onan accrual basis, Investment return consists of Investment Income
and ifive SImEnt experience.

OVERVIE'W

The realised gain or loss on disposal of an investment i3 the difference between the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs, and its original cost or amortised cost as appropriate. Unrealised gains and losses represent the differance betwesn
tha carrying value at the yvear and and the carrying value at the previous year end or purchase price if purchased during the
year, lass the reversal of previously recognized unrealised gains and losses in respect of disposals made during the year.

Other fee and commission income

Other fee and commission income consists primarily of fund management fees, income from any incidental non-insurance
activities, distribution feas frem mutual funds, commissions on reinsurance ceded and commission revenue from the sale
of mutual fund shares, Reinsurance commissions receivable are deferred in the zame way as acquisition costs. All other
fee and commission Ingome |s recognised as the services are provided,

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

2.17 Employee banefits

Annuval leave and long service leave

Employes entitlements 1o annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue 1o employees. A provision
iz made for the estimated Uability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reparting date.

Pogt-retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of funded and unfunded post-retirement emplevee benefit schemes, whose members
receive banefits on either a defined benedit basis (generally related 1o salary and length of service) or a defined contributien
bazis (generally related to the amount invested, investment return and annuity rates), the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee-administered funds. The defined benefit-plans provide life and medical benefits for employees
after retirement and a lump sum benefit on cessation of employment, and the defined contributicn plans provide post-
retirement pension benefits.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

For defined benefit plans, the costs are asseszed using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost of
providing benefits is charged to the consolidated income statement 50 85 to spread the regular cost over the service lives
of employees, in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The ebligation is measured a3 the present value of the
estimated future cash cutflows, using a discount rate based on market yields for high-quality cerporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms t& maturity approximating 1o the terms
of the related liability. The resulting scheme surplus or deficit appears a3 an asset or liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Remeasurements arising fram defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retrn on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately
in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in statf costs in the consolidated
Incame staternent.

‘When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan iz curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
sarvice by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment. is recognized immediately in consolidated income statement
when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension plans, Once the
contributions have been paid, the Group, as employer, doas not have any further payment obligations. The Group's
confributions are charged 1o the consolidated income: staternent in the reporting period to which they relate and are
included in staff costs,
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee bonafits (cominued)

Share-based compensation and cash incentive plans

The Group launched a number of share-based compeansation plans, under which the Group receives services from the
employees, directors, officers and agents az consideration for the shares and/for share options of the Company. These
share-based compensation plans comprise the Share Option Scheme (30 Scheme), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme
{R5U Scheme), the Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPF) and the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASFP).

The Group's share-based compensation plans are predaminantly equity-settied plans. Under squity-sattled share-baged
compensation plan, the fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the award of shares and/or share
options is recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding amount recorded in
equity.

The total amount to ba expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference 1o the fair value of the share and/or
share options awarded. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of shares and/or
share options that are expected to be vested. At each pericd end, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares
and/for share options that are expectad to be vested. Any impact of the revision to original estimates is mecognized in profit
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Where awards of share=-based payment arrangemants have graded
vesting terms, each tranche Is recognised as a separate award, and therefore the fair value of each tranche is recognised
ower the applicable westing period,

The Group estimates the falr value of share options using a binomial lattice model This model requires inputs such as
share price, implied volatility, nisk-free interest rate, expected dividend rate and the expected life of the share option.

Where miodification or cancedlation of an equity-setiled share-based compensation plan occurs, the grant date fair value
continues to be recognised, together with any incremental value asising on the date of modification if non-marketconditions
are mit,

For cash-settled share-based compensation plans, the fair value of the employes services in exchange for the award of
cash-settled award is recognised as an expense in prefit or loss, with a corresponding amount recognised in liakility. At the
end of each reparting period, any unsettled award is remeasured based on the change in fair value of the underlying asset
and the liability and expense are adjusted accordingly.

2.18 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past éwents. it s
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the cbligation can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an

Insurance contract held, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset only whpn the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

The Group recognizas a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contractare less
than the unavoldable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract,

Contingencies are disclosad if material and if thers is a possible futere obligation as a result of a past event, or if there iz a
present obligation as a result of a past event, but either a payment is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably
estimated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimed)

2.19 Leases

Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of swnership is retained by the Group as a lessor, are classified
as operating leases. Assets subject to such leases are included in property, plant and eguipment or Investment property,
and are depreciated to their residual vafues over their estimated useful lives. Rentals from such leazes are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the relevant lease,

OVERVIEW

Fayments made by the Group as lessee under operating leases are classified either as an operating lease prepayment or
as a component of investment property depending on whather the property Interest i3 used as investment property.
Operaung leases held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both that are not eccupied by the Group are classified
as investmant property, They are initially recognised at cost with changes in fair values in subsequent periods recognised
in the consolidated income staterment. The Group classifies amounts paid to acquire leasehold land which are held for the
Group's own occupancy as an operating lease prepaymant or as a component of property. plant and equipment depending
on whether substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the land are transferred to the Group.
Prepayments for land use rights under operating leases that are held for the Group’s own occupancy (netof any incentives
received from the lessor) are included within *Other assets” and changed to the consolidated income statement on a
stralght-ling basiz over the pariod of the relevant lease. There are notany freehold land interests in Hang Kang.

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are clazaified in equity when there = not any obligation to transfer cash or other assets to the holders,

Share issue costs
Incremental external costs directly attributable to the (ssue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds of the issue.

Dividends
Interim dividends on ordinary shanes are recognised when they have been paid, Final dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised when they have been approved by shareholders.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

2.21 Presentation of the consolidated statement of financial position

The Group's ingurance and investment contract liabilities and related assets are realised and settled over periods of saveral
vears, reflecting the long-term nature of the Group's products. Accordingly, the Group presents the assets and liabilities in
its consolidated statement of financial position in approximate arder of liquidity, rather than distinguishing current and
non-current assets and liabilives, The Greup regards its intangible assels, investiments in associates and jaint ventures,
property, plant and equipment. investment property and deferred acquisition and crigination costs a5 non-current assets
a5 these are held for the longer-term use of the Group.

2,22 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share iz calculated by dividing net profit avaitable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Earnings per share has also been calculated on the operating profit before adjusting items. attributable to erdinary
shareholders, as the Diractors believe this figura provides a better Indication of operating parformance.

For diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as share options awarded to employees.

Potential or contingent share issuances are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares would decrease net sarmings
per share.

2.23 Fiduciary actlvities

Azzats and incoma arizing from fiduciary activities, tagether with related undertakings to retumn such assets to customers,
are excluded from these consolidated financial statements whene the Group doas not have contractual rights to the assets
and acts In a fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continust)

2.24 Consolidated statement of cash flow

The consolidated statement of cash flow presents movements in cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts as shown
In the consolidated statement of financial pasition

Purchases and sales of financial investments are included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from cash
flews associated with the erigination of insurance and investment contracts, net of payments of related benefits and
claims. Purchases and sales of inwvestmant property are included within cash flows from investing activities.

2.25 Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties are recorded at amounts mutually agreed and transacted between the parties to tha
arrangement,

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilites, and revenue and
expienses. All estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current facts and circumstantes. assumptions based on
that knowledge and predictions of future events and actions. Actual results can always differ from those estimates, possibly
significantly,

Iterns that are considered particularly sensitive to changes in estimates and assumptions, and the relevant accounting
policies ara thosa which relate to product clazsification, insurance contract liabilities (including liabilitias in respect of
investment: contracts with DPF). deferred acquisition and origination costs, liability adequacy testing, fair value
measurement, impairment of financial assets and impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets.

3.1 Product classification

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are thoss contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk, while investment contracts are those confracts without significant insurance risk.
The Group exercises significant judgement to detenmine whether there iz a scenario (other than thase lacking commercial
substance) in which an insured event would require the Group to pay significant additional benefits to its customers. In the
event the Group has to pay significant additional benefits to its customers. the contract is accounted for as an insurance
contract, The judgements exercised in determining the level of insurance risk in product classification affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements as insurance and investment contract labilities and deferred
sequisition and orgination costs. The accounting policy on preduct classification is described in note 2.4.

3.2 Insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF)

The Group calculates the Insurance contract liabilites for traditional life insurance using a net level premium valuation
method, whersby the liability represents the present value of astimated future policy benefits to be paid_less the present
value of estimated future net premiums to be collected from policyholders, This method uses best estimate assumptions
at inception adjusted for a provision for the risk of adverse deviation for mortality, morbidity, expected investment yialds,
policyholder dividends (for other participating business), surrenders and expenses set at the policy inception date. Thesa
assumptions remain locked in thereafter, unless a deficiency ariseas on lHability adequacy testing. Interest rate assumptions
can vary by geographical market, vear of issuance and product. Mortality, surrender and expense assumptions are based
on actual experience by each geographical market modified to allow for variations in policy form. The Group exercises
significant judgement in making appropriate assumplions.

For contracts with an explicitaccount balance, such a2 universal life and unit-linked contracts, insurance contract liabdlites
reépresent the accumulation valee, which represents premiums received and investmant returns credited to the policy less
deductions for mortality and morbidity costs and expense charges: Significant judgementisexercised in making appropriate:
estimates of gross profits which are based on histerical and anticipated future experiences, these estimates are regularly
reviewed by the Group.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS (contisaed)

3.2 Insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF) (continud)
The Group accounts for insurance contract liabilites for participating business written in participating funds by establishing
a liability for the present value of guarantead benefits less estimated future net premivms o be collected from policyholders.
In addition, an insurance liability is recorded for the proportion of the nat assets of the participating funds that would be
allocated 1o policyholders assuming all relevant surplus at the date of the conselidated statement of financial pesition
were to be declared as a policyholder dividend based upon applicable regulations, Establizhing these liabilities requires
the axercise of significant judgement. In addition, the assumptien that all relevant performance is declared as a policyholder
dividend may not be borne out in practice. The Group accounts for other participating business by establishing 2 Hability
for the present value of guaranteed benefits and non-guarantesd participation, less estimated future net premiums to be
collectad from pelicyholders.

OVERVIEW

The judgemeants exercized in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities {including investmant contracts with DPF)
affact the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements as insurance contract benefits and nzurance
contract liabilities, Further details of the related accounting policy, key risk and wvariables, and the sensitivities of
assumptions 1o the key variables in respect of insurance contract lHabilities are provided In notes 2.4, 25 and 27.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

3.3 Deferred acquisition and origination costs

The jedgements exercised in the deferral and amortization of acquisition and origination costs affect amounts recognised
in the conszalldated financial statements a3 deferred acquisition and origination costz and Insurance and Investment
contract benefits.

Az noted in note 24,1, deferred acquisition costs for traditional life insurance and annuity policies are amortised over the
expected life of the contracts as a constant percentage of expected premiums. Expected premiums are estimated at the
date of pelicy issue and are applied consistently throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency occurs when
performing liability adequacy testing,

Asnoted innote 24,1, deferned acquisition costs for universal life and unit-linked contracts are amortised over the expec ted
life of the contracts based on a constant percentage of the prasent value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised
over the life of the contract of on a straight-line bazis. As noted in note 3.2, significant judgement is exercised in making
appropriate estimates of gross profits. The expensing of acquisition costs is accelerated following adwerse investment
performance. Likewlse, in pericds of favourable investment performance, previcusly expensad acquisition costs are
reversed, not exceading the amount indtially deferred,

COAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Additional details of deferred acquizithon and origination costs are provided in notes 2.4 and 18,

3.4 Liability adequacy testing

The Group evaluates the adequacy of its insurance and investment contract liabilities with DPF atleast annually. Significant
judgement is exarcizad in detarmining the level of aggregation at which liability adequacy testing is parformed and in
salecting best estimate assumptions. Liability adequacy is assessed by porifolio of contracts in accordance with the
Group's manner of acquiring, servicing and measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts. The Group performs
liability adequacy testing separately for each reportable segment

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

The judgements exercized in liability adeguacy testing affect amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
a5 commission and other acquisition expenses, defermed acquisition costs, insurance contract benefits and insurance and
investment contract liabilites.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (contimsd)

3.5 Fair value measurement

1.5.1 Fair value of financial assets

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets traded (n active markets using quoted bid prices as of each
reportimg date. The fair values of financial assets that are not traded in active markets are typically determined using a
variety of ather valuation techniques, such as prices observed in recent transactions and values obtained from current bid
prices of comparable investrments. More judgement is used In measuring the fair value of financial assets for which market
obsarvable pricas are not available or are available enly infrequently.

The degree of judgement used in measuning the fair value of financial assets generally correlates with the level of pricing
obsarvability. Pricing obsarvability is atfected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrument. whether
the financial instrument is new to the market and not yet established, the characteristics specific to the transaction and
general market conditions.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held by the Group’s participating funds affect not anly the valwe of financial
assets, but are also reflected in cormesponding movements in insurance and investment contract liabilities. This is due 1o
an insurance liability being recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be allocated
to polieyholders if all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated statement of fnancial position were 1o be declared
asapolicyholder dividend based on current local regulations. Both of the foregoing changes are reflected in the conzolidated
income statament.

Changes in the fair value of financial aszats held to back the Group's unit-linked contracts result ina comesponding change
in insurance and investment contract labilivies: Both of the foregoing changes are also reflected in the consolidated
InCome Statemant,

Further details of the fair value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis to interest rates and equity prices are
provided in notes 21 and 36,

3.5.2 Fair value of property held for own use and investment property

The Group uses independent professional valuers to determine the fair value of properties on the basis of the highest and
best use of the properties that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. In most cases. current usa
of the properties is considered to be the highest and best use for determining the fair value. Different valuation techniques
may be adopted to reach the fair value of the properties. Under the Market Data Approach, records of recent sales and
offerings of similar property are analysed and comparisons are made for factors such as size, location, quality and
prospective use. For Investment properties, the discounted cash flow approach may be used by referance to net rental
income allowing for reversisnary income patential to estimate the fair valee of the properties, On some gccasions, the cost
approach i3 used as well to calculate the fair value which reflects the cost thar would be requined w replace the service
capacity of the property.

Further details of the fair value of property hald for own use and investment property afe provided in note 21.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (contieasd)

3.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value thraugh profit or Loss, are assessed for impairment regularly. This requires
the exercize of significant fudgement The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is abjective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets s impaired. Objective evidence that a financial asset, or group of assets, Is
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the fellowing events

OVERVIEW

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

+ abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

+ it becomes probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
« the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

+ pbservable data, including market prices, indicating that there is a potential decrease in the estimabted future cash
flows since the initial recognition of those assets, including:

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

— adverse changes in the payment status of issuers: or
= national or lecal economic conditions that correlate with increased default risk.

For loans and receivables, impairment loss is determined using an analytical methed based on knowledge of each loan
group or receivable. The methad is usually based on historical statistics, adjusted for trends in the group of financial assets
orindividual accounts.

Further details of the impairment of financial assets during the year are provided in note 23.

3.7 Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assots

For the purposesof impairment tasting, goodwill and other intangible assets are grouped into cash-generating units. These
assels are tested for impalrment by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including goodwill, to the
recoverable amount of that cash-generating unit. The determination of the recoverable amount requires significant
{udgement regarding the telection of appropriate valuation techniques and assumpions, Further details of the impairment
of goodwill during the year are provided in note 13

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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4. EXCHANGE RATES

The Group's principal overseas cperations during the reporting period were located within the Asia-Pacific region, The
results and cash flows of these operations have been translated into US dollars at the following average rates:

LIS ahoel lar oo heamgs rabas:
Foar unded Year endaod
30 Nevambar S0 Hivembns
FuRES NG
Hong Kong 179 176
Thailand 3415 35.30
Singapore 129 1.38
Malaysia 433 413
China 578 650

Assals and liabilities have been translated at the following year-end rates:

LIS chllar wemc hafece rabes

ALt Az al

30 Hovember 30 Mivembeas

7 e

Hong Kong 7.81 176
Thailand 32.62 35.61
Singapons 135 1.43
Malaysia 409 GA4T
China 561 6,89

Exchange rates are expressed in units of local currency per USEY,
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x
5. OPERATING PROFIT AFTER TAX H
Operating profit after tax may be reconciled to net profit as follows: E
Yoar ended Yoauar ki
30 Movambsar 30 Howembeor
Usdm tigte 2017 i [
Operating profit after tax 1 G882 4013
Mon-operating items, net of related changes In Insurance and z
investrment contract labilites: =
Short-term fluctuations in investment return related to egquities and :
real estate (net of tax of 2017: USH(11 Tim: 2016 USE(4Im) 1.764 97 %
Dther non-operating investment return and other items =
(netof tax of 201 7: USE40m:; 201 6 USE16%m) {259) 102 =
=
Met prafit 6,187 4,212 z
Gparating profit after tax attributable to: i
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited G647 3.981 3
Mern-cantrolling interests 35 32 -
Net profit atiributable to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 6120 4164
Man-controlling interests &7 48

Operating profit is determined using, amang others, expected long-term investment return for equities and real estate,
Ehort-term fluctuations between expected long-term investrment return and actual investment return for these asset
classes are excluded from aperating profit. The investment return assumptions used to determing expected long-term
investment return ané based on the same assumplions used by the Group in determining its embedded value and are
disclosed in the Supplementary Embedded Value Information.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

6. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANMUALISED NEW PREMIUMS

For management decision-making and intermal performance management purposes, the Group measures business
volumes during the year using a perfermance measure referred to as total weighted premium income (TWPI), The Group
measures fnew business activity using a performance measure refermed to as annualised new premiums [ANF). The
presentation of thiz note iz consistent with cur reportable segmant presentation in note 7.

TWPFI consistsof 100 per centof renewal premiums, 100 per cent of first year premiums and 10 per cent of single premiums,
before reinsurance ceded, and includes deposits and contributions for contracts that are accounted for as deposits in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies.

Management considers that TWPI provides an indicative volume measure of ransactions undertaken in the reporting
period that have the patential to generate profits for sharehalders. The amounts shown are not intended to be indicative of
premiums and fee income recorded in the consolidated income statement.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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6. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS (cominued)

ANP i a key internal measure of new business activities, which consists of 100 per cent of annualized first year premiums:
and 10 per cent of single premiums. before rainsurance ceded. ANP excludes new business of pension business, personal
lines and motor insurance.

Yoar anded Veear ek
W 30 Novembar 30 Novembes
LiShm 2017 26
TWPI by geography
Hong Kong 9,434 6873
Thailand 3,517 e W
Singapone 2,421 2278
Malaysia 1,823 1.795
China 3,092 2384
Other Markets 5,860 BA4TE
Total 26,147 22133
First year premiums by geography
Hong Keng 2,586 2065
Thailand &7 &35
Singapaone 37 281
Malaysia 286 276
China 928 585
Other Markets 925 B2
Total 5,479 4498
Single premiums by geography
Hong Kong 2,617 1,761
Thailand 194 163
Singapore 1,433 1443
Malaysia 187 147
China 150 194
Other Markets 622 619
Total 5,003 4347
Renewal premiume by geography
Heng Kong 6,606 4,632
Thailand 3,021 2872
Singapaone 2,001 1871
Malaysia 1,518 1502
China 2,149 1779
Other Markets 4,873 4546
Total 20,168 17200
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6. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS (cominuwst) ;
Yoar anded Yt ornechodl g
AHP 30 Nowarmbar 20 Hewrembed
USEm 7 LT
ANP by geography
Hong Kong 2,869 2294
Thaitand 518 471 z
Singapore £33 427 E
Malaysia 348 341 £
Chira 68 621 E
Other Markets 976 969 2
Total 6,092 5123 g
=
=
7.SEGMENT INFORMATION %

The Group's cperating segments. based on the reports received by the ExCo, are each of the geographical markets in which
the Group operates. Each of the reportable segments, other than the “Group Corporate Centre” segment, writes life
insurance business, providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans to customers in its local
market, and distributes related investment and other financial services products. The reportable segments ane Hong Kong

(including Macauw), Thailand. Singapore (including Brunei). Malaysia, China, Other Markets and Group Corporate Centre. w
Other Markets includes the Group's operations in Australia (including Mew Zealand), Cambedia, Indonesia, Korea, the E
Philippines, Sri Lanka, Tajwan, Vietnam and India. The activities of the Group Corporate Centre segment consist of the E
Group's conporate functions, shared services and eliminations of intragroup transactions. =
Az sach reportable segment other than the Group Corporate Centre segment focuses on serving the life insurance needs g
of its local market, there are limited transactions between reportable segments. The key performance indicators reported 2
in respect of each segment are: 2
= AMP

= TWPI,

= [nvestment ratum;

*  Operating expensas;

+ goperating profit after tax attributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limited:

* p¥pense ratio, measured as operating expensas divided by TWPI;

*  operating marngin, measured as cperating profit after tax expressed as a percontage of TWPL and

+ gperating return on shareholders” allocated equity measured as operating prefit after tax attributable to shareholders
of AlA Group Limited expressed as a percentage of the simple average of opening and clesing shareholders’ allocated
segment equity (being the segment assets less segment liabilities in respect of each reportable segment less non-
controlling interests and fair value reserva),

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

In presenting net capitalin/{out) flows to reportable segments, capital outflows consist of dividends and profit distributions
to the Group Corporate Centre segment and capital inflows consist of capital injections inte reportable segments by the
Group Corporate Centre segment. For the Group, netcapltalind(out) flows reflect the net amount received from shareholders
by way of capital contributions less amounts distributed by way of dividends.

Business volumes [n regpect of the Group's five largest customers are less than 30 per cent of premiums: and fee income.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION tcontimied)

Group
Othar  Corporals

Usim Hang Konrg Thailand  Singagone Mialaysia Chis Markols Cantra Tetal
Year ended 30 Howvembear 2017
ANP 2,849 518 433 348 68 976 - 6,092
TWPI 9,434 3517 2421 1,823 3,002 5,860 - 26,147
MNet premiums, fee income and

other operating revenue

(netof reinsurance ceded) 10,828 3,532 2,837 1,610 3,006 3,888 7 25708
Investment return 1148 1,189 1,083 547 T34 1,057 338 7096
Total revenue 12,976 4,721 3,920 2,157 3,740 4,945 345 32,804
Hetinsurance and investmeant

contract benefits 9454 2.659 2,822 1,439 2,406 2,603 & 1,387
Commission and ather acquisition

BXPENEES 1213 739 47 210 181 752 1 J 443
Operating expenses 07 199 181 164 278 552 188 1,969
Finance costs and other expenses 117 49 7 11 28 42 126 400
Total expenses 11,19 3,646 3377 1,824 2,893 3,949 319 27199
Share of profit from associates

and folnt venture - - - - - - - -
Operating profit before tax 1,785 1,075 543 333 a4y 996 26 5,605
Tax on operating profit before tax {137) {210} {3%) {59} {208) {217) (53} {923)
Operating profit after tax 1,648 865 504 274 639 79 (27} 4482
Oparating profit after tax

attributable to:

Shareholders of AlA Group

Limited 1.636 BE&5 504 273 639 758 (27} L64T

Mon-controlling interasts 12 - - 2 - 21 - a5
Key operating ratios:
Expense ratio 43% 5.7% 7.5% 9.0% 0% A% - T1.6%
Operating margin 17.5%  246%  20.8%  150%  207% 133% - 11.9%
Operating return on shareholders®

allocated equity 236% 17.6% 185% 191%  204%  12.8% - 142%
Operating profit before tax includes:
Finance costs 29 & - - 18 2 104 157
Depreciation and amortisation 37 10 16 17 17 40 12 149
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=
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION ccontinss) H
- 3
Group E
Othar Corporals
USEm Hong Koeg Thailend Singapone Mialaysia Chira Markals Cantre Tosal
30 Movembser 2017
Total assets 65,485 31319 35927 14347 19915 37445 11558 215491
Total liabilities 54,023 24358 32501 12804 146789 29,172 1670 173219 E
Total equity 11,462 6961 3421 1541 3126 7973  T8BR 42,272 2
Shareholders’ allocated equity 71.909 5510 2,961 1.524 3,391 6,430 7.933 354658 [
Met capital (out)/in fows (952) (&84T (238) (192} {207} {50) 866 (1,240) 5
Total assets include: E
Invastments in associates and §
Joint venture - - 1 L] - 635 - 642 E
H
=
Segment Information may be reconciled 1o the consolidated Income statement as shown below: F
Shon-berm
flastuabiongin
irvastmant
raturn rolabed Other  Corsolidated
Segment toequitlesard  mon-operating Income
USEm InTormathon raal slata Harms!" stalamant %
=
Year ended 30 November 2017 z
MNet pramiums, Meat premiums, fee income E
fen income and and other operating -
other operating revenue 25708 - - 25,708 TEVENLE =
Investment returm 7.096 2314 3,212 12,622 | Investment return E
Total revenue 32,804 2,314 3,212 38330 Total revenue =
Mot insurance and investment Met insurance and investment
contract benefits 21,387 433 302 24,841 contract benefits
(ther expenzes 5812 = 382 6,174 | Other expenses
Total expenses 27,199 433 3,383 31,015  Total expenses
Share of profit from asseciates Share of profit from
and oint venture = - = = associates and jeint wentune
Operating profit before tax 5,605 1,881 {171) 7.315 Profit before tax

Miodn:
{1} Irchude anit-linksd conlrscis

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION tcontimie)

(bt Gmplb:::

USim Harag Kieg Thallard  Seegapaors Malaysla Chira Bkt LE T Testal
Year ended 30 Movember 2016
ANP 2294 41 427 341 &1 969 - 5123
TWFI 6873 3,327 2274 1,795 2384 5478 - 23133
et pramiums, fee income and

other operating revanue

{netof reinsurance ceded) 7172 327 2459 14621 2267 3455 (&) 20641
Investrnent netum 1,788 1,056 1,024 541 563 1.025 327 bA25
Total revenus E.960 4327 3.683 2162 2930 4,680 323 27065
Hetinsurance and investmant

contract benefits 6311 2541 2672 1474 1937 2588 11y 17512
Commission and other acquisition

SApanNses 790 609 303 183 146 655 = 24686
Operating expenses 30 184 161 163 233 515 184 1.752
Finance costs and other expenzes 104 3B 1% 11 12 63 110 334
Total expenses 7515 3372 3152 1,831 2330 3801 283 22284
Share of losses from associates

and jolnt ventura - - - - - (5) - {5)
Operating profit before tax 1,445 955 531 33 &00 ET4 40 4776
Taxon operating profit before tax {101} {187 (78) [(-1%] {131} {192) {10) (743)
Operating profit after tax 1,344 768 453 267 469 682 30 4013
Operating profit after tax

attributabls to:

Sharehelders of AlA Group

Limited 1,334 J68 453 265 469 bE2 30 3931

Man-controlling intarasts 10 - - 2 - 20 - 32
Key operating ratios:
Expenze ratio 4.5% 5.5% TA% 1% F.9% P4 - T.5%
Operating margin 19.6%  231% 199%  149%  19.7% 1148 - 18.1%
Operating return on shareholders®

allocated squity 2255 190% 191%  197% 17.0%  13.5% = 14.1%
Operating profit bafore tax includes:
Finance costs 28 5 7 2 19 2 B& 149
Depreciation and amartization 23 13 17 13 a7 15 127

170 | ALR GROUP LIMITED

555/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

x
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION ccontinss) H
=
Group E
Mher  Corpodals
WSS Hong Kong Thalamil  Singapons Malay=zia Chins Marksis Contis Toal
30 November 201&

Total assets 52416 26800 31087 12400 18672 33011 10173 185074
Total liabHities 45166 211463 28345 1079 15064 25881 3066 1497484 x
Total equity 7.750 5637 2,742 1,230 3408 7,130 7113 35310 E
Shareholders’ allocated squity 5.935 4400 2,502 1.331 2864 5.369 7231 294632 5
Met capital {out)/in flows [1.034) (511) (209) (184) [46) 175 608  (1.103) E
Total assets include: E
Invastments in associates and §
jnt venturs - - 1 & - 643 - 650 =
H
=
Segment information may be reconciled to the consolidated Income statement as shown below: z

Shart-gem
Ruciiations in
Ireeamang
wobum elaind to i et Consolid aied
Bogment inpalbes ared  fon-ogeEraling | ey e
USEm ot oy il assiako Hems" statesmant
Year ended 20 Movermber 2016
Net premiums, Met premiums, fee income
fee income and and other aperating
other oparating revenus 20,641 - - 20,641 revenue
Imvestment returm &.424 42 1.089 7.555 | Investment returm
Total revenue 27,065 42 1.089 28196  Total revenue
Het insurance and investmant Met insurance and investment
contract benefits 17512 {59} 768 18221 contract benefits
Other expenses 4772 = 326 5098 | Other expenses
Total expenses 22,284 (5%) 1.094 23319  Total expenses
Share of losses from associates Share of losses from
and joint venture {5} - - (5) associates and joint wenture
Operating profit before tax 4776 101 (5] 4872  Profit before tax
o

{1} Includie anit-linkoed contracts.
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8. REVENUE
Investment return
Yoar anded Veur enadod
30 Hevamibar A0 Hisewmbard
Usém 2017 015
Inberest income 5,599 5290
Dividend income 695 G54
Rental income 151 140
Investment income 6,445 6085
Available for sale
Het realised gains from debt securities 180 %
Impairment of debi securities - {22)
Het gains of available for sale financial assets reflected in the consolidated
income statement 160 3
At fair value through profit or loss
Met gains of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Met (losses)/gains of debt securities (B9) 125
Met gains of equity securities 5789 934
Met gains of financial instruments held for trading
Met logses of debt investiments = (13
Het fair value movement on derivatives 513 39
Net gains in respect of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 6,213 1.0%7
Het fair value movement of inve stment property 367 288
Het foreign exchange {losses)/gains {S60) 75
Other net realized (losses)/gains (23) B
Investment experience 6177 1471
Investment return 12,622 1555

Forelgn currency movements rasulted in the following (losses)/gains recognised in the consolidated income statement
{other than gains and losses arising on items measured at fair value through profitor loss):

Yoar onded eaar el
0 Hesvambar 30 Misessinbed

Lsgm - SHAT I
Foreign exchanga (losses)/gains (238} 3

Other oporating revenue
The balance of other operating revenue largely consists of asset management faes,
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9. EXPENSES g
Yoar anded Vit ernechisd E
30 Newarmbar 30 Howembe
uSEm 2087 2014
Insurance contract benefits 11,530 10501
Change in insurance contract labilities 13,366 8594
Investment contract benefits 1.212 2685 E
Insurance and investment contract benefits 26,108 19340 E
Insurance and investmant contract banafits ceded (1.267) {1.11%9) 5
Insurance and investment contract benefits, net of reinsurance ceded 24,841 18221 E
Commission and other acquisition expenses incurmed 5695 4,786 E
Daterral and amortization of acquisition costs {2.241) {2.051) g
Commission and other acquisition expenses 3,455 2,735 2
Employee benefit expenses 1,243 1,168 E
Deprecfation 65 64 z
Amortisaticn 53 a7
Operating lease rentals 147 122
Other operating expenzes 461 361
Operating expenses 1.969 1,752
INvEsTmEnt Managemant expen sis and others 97 340 %
Depreciation on property held for own use 22 21 =
Restructuring and other non-oparating costs™’ 142 82 g
Change in third-party interests in consolidated nvestment funds & 19 -
Other expenses 567 462 -
Finance costs 183 149 E
Total 31,015 23319 =
Other operating expenses include auditors’ remuneration of USE20m (2016 USH15m), an analysis of which is set out -
below:
Yaur anded Vit o E
T0 Nowmbar 0 Hovembs i
UiSim 2047 26 rd
=
Audit services 14 12 =
Mon-audit services. including: 2
Audit-related services® & 1 E
Tax services 1 1
Other services 1 1 -
Total 20 15
Nolns:

{1} Restructuring costs mpresant costs mdatod to restroctiming programmes and s primarily comprised of mdundancy and contracl Enmination
costs. Dthes mon o P ERR] COS1S e aarily comeist of adapuis i mlatod snd megratlon eapendes

{2} Audit-rolatod sorvices for 300 T imclude the aedit of the Suppdemont ey Erhaddad Yaluo bnfomation a at and for the yeas onded 20 Novembaer

JOTT (01 nil)
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9. EXPENSES tcontinust)
Finance costs may be analysed as:

YWoar anded Vs enadod
30 Hevamibar A0 Hisewmbard
Ustm 017 24
Repurchase agreements (see note 29 for details) &7 s
Medium-term notes 132 1M
Other loans & 3
Total 183 149
Employee banefit expenses consist of:
Yuar o nded YeuT enod
0 Newirsber 30 Novembo
Usim 1T 096
Wages and salaries 1,012 938
Share-bazed compenszation 73 79
Pension costs — dafinad contribution plans 72 &7
Pension costs = defined benefit plans 7 1
Other employee benefit expenses 79 75
Total 1.243 1.168
10. INCOME TAX
Fiar o nded Year ended
0 Nevamber 30 Hovember
Ustm 2017 2016
Tax charged in the consolidated income statement
Current income tax — Hong Keng Profits Tax 124 g7
Current income tax — overssas 526 392
Deferred income tax en temporary dif ferences 478 181
Total 1,128 &&0

The tax benefit or expense attributable to life insurance policyholder returns In Singapoers, Brunel, Malaysia, Australia,
Indonesia, the Philippines and Sn Lanka isincludad in the taxcharge or credit and i analysed separately in the consolidated
Income statement In order to permit comparison of the underlying effective rate of tax attributable to sharehoiders from
year to year. The tax antibutable to policyholders” returns included aboveis USE128m (2016: USE62m).
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10. INCOME TAX (contimmd)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5 per cent. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries and branches is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant jurisdictions of which the most significant
jurisdictions are cutined bealow.

OVERVIEW

Yoar anded Yo ondod
30 Novamiber A0 Howombay
iy i

=
Haong Kong 16.5% 16.5% 2
Thailand 20% 20% e
Singapore 17% 17% E
Malaysia 24% 24% 2
China 25% 25% =
Others 12% = 30%  12% - 30% ;
The table above reflects the principal rate of corporate income tax as at the end of each year, The rates reflect enacted or E

substantively enacted corparate tax rates throughout the year in each jurisdiction.

The table above does not include prospective changes in corporate income tax rates for Korea and Taiwan, which were
enacted after 30 November 2017. For Korea, the corporate income tax rate for the portion of faxable income that exceeds
300 billion Horean Won will increase from 24.2% to 27.5% for fiscal year 2018 and onwards. For Taiwan, the corporate
Income tax rate will increase from 175 to 20% for fiscal year 2018and enwarnds. Accordingly, the financial impact of these
changes in corporate income tax rate have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

During the year of 2016, Thailand enacted a permanent change in the corporate income tax rate from 30 percent to 20 per
cent from assessment year 2016 enwards, The decrease in tax rate resulted in a reduction in deferred tax liabilities of
UsE314m, of which USE181m was recognized in profit or loss and USE133m was recognised in other comprehensive
incame for the year ended 30 Novembaer 2016,

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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10. INCOME TAX (ontimedy

Foar anded Year ek
0 Newembar A0 Hoesmbar
USim 017 ik
Income tax reconciliation
Profit befere income tax 7,315 4872
Tax cafculated at demestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective jurlsdictions 1,361 935
Reduction in tax payable from:
Life insurancs tas'? {108) =
Exempt inwvestmant incorme (264) {166)
Amount over-provided in prior years {10} {Z3)
Ghanges in tax rate and law = {1381}
Others (83} {53}
(46T} (533)
Increase in tax payable from:
Life insurance tax ™' - 18
Withholding taxes 17 1
Disallowed axpanzas 132 21
Unrecognised deferred tax azsets 19 ki
Provisions for uncertain tax positions B 30
134 160
Tetal income tax expense 1,128 660
[ SES

(V) Life ingurance b eofars to the peemanent dilfsssnces which arkso whiaen the: tae regime spocilic ba tha e insunance Issiness does nol sdopt net
incoamas a5 1he basis bor caloulabing taxable gaodil for sxampls Hong Ko, wiaens o business tacslbs prodit & dermmd from [Bs peemions
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10. INCOME TAX (contimmd) E
The movemeant in net deferred tax liabilities in the pericd may be analysed as set out below: g
"R inigy e M
(Hadsility) at thg Incoms Fair valoe Foreign [lability)
W5Em 1 Decembar statamant resarve  aehange Qligrs a1 yaar and
30 November 2017 F
Revaluation of financial instruments (1,387} (52} 316 (33) - (1,156) %
Deferred acquisition costs (2.996)  (214) - (136) - (2566) e
Insurance and investment contract liabilities 1,094 (78} - 70 - 1,086 E
Withholding taxes (132) {16) - 1 - {147) 2
Provision for expenses 110 29 - 7 - 146 2
Losses available for offset against future ;
taxable income 6% {39} - 1 - 3 o
Life surplus ™ (534) (100} - (60} - (674) 3
Dthers (293) (8) - (11) (14) (326) -
Total {3,269} (478} 316 {1413 (14) (3,586}
30 November 2016
Revaluation of financial instruments (1.429) 26 14 2 - (1.387)
Deferred acquisition costs (2.409) 196 - 17 - (2.196) %
Insurance and investment contract liabilities 1477 (39 - 9 - 1.094 -
Withholding taxes (148) m - 17 - (132 E
Provision for expenses 129 (29 = {1 1 110 -
Losses avallable for offset against future -
taxable income 23 a7 - (1) - &9 &
Life surplus " (525) (24) - 15 - (534) =
Others {328) i) = 5 (&6) (293)
Total (3,100} (181) 14 &3 (65) (3,269)
Holns:

{1} Lite smrplus relstes 1o (e lemparary difforomcs which arises whars tha 1aablo peolits sne based on actanl distrilutions froem tha keg-term furd.
Thes paienarily mdstos to Singapore and Malaysia,

23 O b ol wabue reserve deferred Baocceedit of USES16m bar 201 §{016: USS 1am), USE2 Tm (200 6 USE8m) relates 1o bair value gains and lsses
on avaflable for sake Tinancial assets and USE19m (016; BSHEm) melates 10 falr value gains and sses cn availablo for sale financial assels
Traridarmed bo incomo on dispoinl and impaimesn.

Daterred tax assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient future taxable profits will be avadlable for realisation. The
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of USES3m (2016 USES9m) an tax losses and the temporary difference on
insurance and investment contract labilities arising from different accounting and statutory/tax reserving methodology
for certain branches and subsidiaries on the basis that they have histories of tax losses and thers is insufficient evidence
that future profits will be available.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

The Group has not provided deferred tax liabilities of USE62m {2016: USE156m) in respect of unremitted eamings of
operations in two jurisdictions (2016 thres jurisdictions) from which a withholding tax charge would be incurred upen
distribution as the Group does not consider it probable that this portion of accumulated sarnings will be remitted in the
foresesable future,

The Group has unused income tax losses carried forward in Hong Kong, Macau, Thailand, Malaysia, China, Korea, New
Zealand, the Philippines, Sri Lanka and Taiwan. The tax losses of Hong Keng, Malaysia, Mew Zealand and Sri Lanka can be
carried forward indefinitely. The tax losses of remaining branches and subsidiaries are due to expire within the periods
ending 2020 (Macau and the Philippines), 2022 (Thailand and China), 2025 (Taiwan} and 2027 (Korea),
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limited by the
waighted average number of ardinary shares in [ssue during the year. The chares held by employee share-based trusts are
not considered to be outstanding from the date of the purchase for purposes of computing basic and diluted earnings per
share,

Yoar anded Ve anudod

0 Newurmibar 0 Miwsesmbe

1T s

Met profit attributable o shareholders of AlA Group Limited (US3m) 6,120 & 164
Waighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million) 12,000 11.972
Basic earnings per share (US conts per share) 51.00 3478

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As of 30 Movembar 2017 and 2016, the Group has potentially
dilutive instruments which are the share options, restricted share units, restricted stock purchase units and restricted
stock subscription units awarded to eligible directors, officers, emplovees and agents under various share-based
compensation plans as described in note 38,

Yoaranded Ve seruco]

30 Hovambar 30 Hovembor

T M

Mat profit attributable 1o shareholders of ALA Group Limited (US3m) 6,120 4 164

Weighted average number of ordinary shanes in issue (million) 12,000 11.972

Adjustment for share options, restricted share units, restricted stock purchase units

and resiricted steck subseription units awarded under share-based compensation

plans (million) a7 34

Welghted average numbaer of ordinary shares for diluted sarmings per share (million) 12,037 12,0004

Diluted earnings per share (US cemts per share) S50.84 34 68

At 30 Movember 2017, 5,340,052 share options (2014 14937 248) were excluded from the diluted weighted average
number of ordinary shares calculation as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Operating profit after tax per share

Operating profit after tax (see note 5) per share iz calculated by dividing the operating profit after tax attributable to
shareholders of AlA Group Limited by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. Az of 30
November 2017 and 2014, the Group has potentially dilutive instruments which are the share options, restricted share
unlts, restricted stock purchase units and restricted steck subscription units awarded to eligible directors, officers,
employess and agents under various share-based compen sation plans as described in note 38.

Yoar anded Yol enchd

0 Nowermbar 30 Hisosmbes

017 06

Basic (US cents per share) 38.73 33.25
Diluted (US cents per share) 38.61 3316
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=
12. DIVIDENDS H
Dividends to shareholders of the Company attributable to the year, E
Yaar anded Yasar ks
30 Movamibsar 30 Howambeod
Usim !_ﬂ:l? Hrlé
Interim dividend declared and paid of 25.62 Hong Kong cents per share
(2014 21.90 Hang Kong cents per share) 393 338
Final dividend propased after the reporting date of 74.38 Hong Kong cents per share
(2016 63.75 Hong Kong cents per share) ™! 1,144 QES
1.537 1,323
Nt

{1} Bamexd upon shares outstanding at 30 Nevembor 2010 7 and 2016 that are entitlod 1o a dividond, other than those held by emplogess share-basod
ALITCT 8

The abave final dividend was proposed by the Board on 27 Febreary 2018 subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM to
be held on 13 May 2018 The proposed final dividend has not been recegnised as a liability at the reporting date,

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Dividends 1o sharehelders of the Company attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the vear:

Yoar anded Yt ax puchin]

30 Newarmbar 30 Herwembsy

Usim T b
Final dividend in respect of the previcus financial year, approved and paid during

the year of 63.75 Hong Keng cents per share (20146 51.00 Hong Kong cents per share) 983 186

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

[istrdaution
LR T anad odher

USim Goodwil softwars righls Toral

Cost

At 1 December 2015 B0 405 870 2083
Additions - &1 3 -]
Disposals - &) (1} (5)
Foreign axchange movemants and others (33) {4} (57} (94)

AL 30 Movember- 2016 775 458 815 1,048
Additions - 53 7 130
Disposals - {2} - {2}
Foreign exchange maovements &0 17 15 92

At 30 November 2017 B85 524 907 2,268

Accumulated amortisation

Av1 December 2015 (4} {199) (E13] {249)
Amortisation charge for the year = (26) (27) (63)
Disposals - 2 1 3
Forelgn exchange movements - 1 3 &

AL 30 Movember 2016 (4} (232) (69) (305)
Amertisation charge for the year - {51) {33} (B&)
Foreign exchange movements = {14) {1} (15}

At 30 November 2017 {4} (297) {103) (&04&)

Net book value

At 30 November 2016 77 226 Tab 1,743

At 30 November 2017 a3 229 804 1,864

The Group holds intangible assets for its long-term use and the annual amertization charge of US$84m {201 6: UST43m)
approximates the amount that is expected to be recovered through consumption within 12 months after the and of the
reperting pericd.

Impairient tests for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the Group’s insurance business in Malaysia. Goodwill is tested for impairment by
companng the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. Including goodwill, 1o the recoverable amount of that cash-
generating unit. If the recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the carrying amount of the unit, the goodwill allocated to
that unit shall be regarded as not impaired. The recoverable amount is the valee In use of the cash-generating unit unless
otherwise stated. The value in use is determined by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows plus a
multiple of the presant value of the new business generated.

Value in use is calculated as an acwarially determined appraisal value, based on the embedded value of the business and
the value from futire new business.

The key assumption s used in the embedded value calculations include inve stment return 5, mortality, morbidity, persistency,
expenses and inflation. The value from future new business ks calculated based on a combination of indicators which
include, among others, a multiple of the projected one-year wvalue of new business (VONB), taking inte account recent
preduction mix, business strategy and market trends. The Group may apply alternative mathod to sstimate the valus of
future new business if the described method is not appropriate under the circumstances.
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x

14. INWESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE H

- 3

Yoar anded Y ornechind E
0 Nowarmbar 0 M mbet
USEns L7 2006

Group

Inwestments in associates 636 &50
Inwvestment in joint venture ] =
Tatal 6432 G50

Investrnents in associates and joint ventuwre are held for their long-term contribution to the Group's performance and so all
amounts are expected to be realised more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

The Group's intenests in its principal associates and jaint venture are a3 follows:

Grougrs iorest %
Asal As
M acar ol Fyger ol 30 Howembs 30 Eutg
i i it ol Lt obin i w8 L
Tata &4 Life Insurance Company Limited India Insurance  Ordinary G 4%

0n 25 April 2016, the Group increased its shareholding of Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited from 26 per cent to 49
per cant.

All associates and [oint venture are unlisted.

Aggregated financial information of associates and joint venture

The investments in the associates and joint wenture are measured using the equity methad. The following table analyses,
in aggregate, the carrying amount and share of profit and other comprehensive income of these associates and joint
ventura,

Yoar anded Yl 1 rahind]
20 Nowamber 30 Borwarmber
ussm 2017 2016
Carrying amount in the staterment of financlal position &2 450
Losses from continuing operations - (5)
Other comprehensive (expenses)fincome {24) 43
Tetal comprehensive (expenses Mfincome {24} 38
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

P paar by Fistuens and
i fos Computor lilins and

Usim R L T fibwrars (L1 Testal

Cost or revaluation

At 1 December 2015 615 207 357 1178
Additions 3 19 121 153
Disposals {34) (&) (13} (32)
Mt transfers from investrment proparty 19 - - 19
Incraase from valuation 312 - - 312
Foreign exchange movemants {10} {2) {11) {Z3)

At 30 Movember 2016 q05 188 Ak 1,557
Additions 1 23 &b a0
Disposals 7 (21} {58} (86)
Met transiers to invastment property {24) - - {24)
Increaze from valuation &2 - - &2
Foreign exchange movements 42 1 1& A |

At 30 Novembaer 2017 979 am 490 1,670

Accumulated depreciation

At December 2015 {2000 (172) (228) (600}
Depreciation change for the year {15) akd] (a5} (79)
Disposals i1 a3 - 39
Revaluation adjustmeant 200 - - 09
Fargign exchange movements (3] 3 4 &

At 20 Movember 2016 - (160} (265) (425)
Depreciation charge for the year {16) {18) 147} (81)
Disposals 5 19 a7 &1
Revaluation adjustment 10 = - 10
Foreign exchange movements 1 {9 {14} (22}

At 30 November 2017 - (168) (289} (457)

Net book value

At 30 Movember 2016 elid 28 199 1132

At 30 November 2017 979 a3 201 1.213

Properties held for own wse are carried at fair value at the reporting date less accumulated depreciation. The fair value at
the reporting date is determined by independent professional valuers. Details of valuation techniques and process are
disclosed in notes 3 and 21,

During the reporting period, no expanditure (201 & nil) recognised in the carrying amount of property held for own use was
in the course of its construction, Increases from revaluation on preperty held for own uze of US3T72m (2016: USES21m)
were taken to other comprehansive incomea.

If property held for own wse were s1ated on a historical cost basis, the carrying walue would be USE3T3m (2016 USE393m),
The Group holds property, plant and equipment for its long-term use and, accordingly, the annual depreciation charge
approximates to the amountexpected 1o be recovered through consumption within 12 months after the end of the reperting
pariod,
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY g
S g
Fair value
Ar1 December 2015 3659
Additiens and capitalised subsequent expenditunes &0
Disposals (3) )
Met transfers to property, plant and equipment {19) %
Het transfars to other assets [LTHN] ;
Fair value gain 88 E
Forelgn exchange movements {35) E
A0 Movermber 2016 3,910 =
Additions and capitalised subsequent expenditures 10 ;
Disposals {12} 0
Met transfers from property. plant and equipmient 24 §
Fair value gain a7
Foreign exchange movements —ﬂ'
At 30 November 2017 4,365

Investment properties are carried at fair value at the reporting date as determined by independent professional valuers.
Datails of valuation technigues and process are disclosed in notes 3 and 21,

The Group leases cut its investment preparty under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial peried of one to
twelve years, with an option to renew the lease based on future negotiations. Lease payments are usually negotiated every
one to three years to reflect market rentals. There were not any material contingent rentals earned as income for the year.
Rental income ganerated from investment property amounted to USE151m (2016 USE140m). Direct operating expensas
{including repair and maintenance) on investment property that generates rental income amounted to US331m (2014
USHE32m).

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

The Group owns investment property in the ferm of freehold land outside Hong Kong and laazehold land under finance
leaze, Leasshold land under operating leases which is hald for long=term rental or capital appreciation or both that is not
oocupied by the Group is classified as investment property, They are initially recognised at cost with changes in fair values
in subseguent periads recognized in the conzolidated income statemant. The Group does not hold freehold land in Hong
Keng,

The future minimum operating lease rental income under non-cancellable operating leases that the Group expects to
recaive in future periods may be analysed as follows

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

As At A M

30 Nowamibar 30 Hewembad

UsEm 7 M6
Leases of investment property

Expiring no later than one year 135 121

Expiring later than one year and no later than five years 241 143

Expiring after five years or more 3 E

Total 407 272

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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17. REINSURAMNCE ASSETS
Ax af Az al
0 Nowembar A0 Movembad
USim 017 s
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 506 335
Ceded insurance and investment contract labilities 1,975 1.711
Total 2,481 2044
18. DEFERRED ACQUISITION AND ORIGINATION COSTS
As: ok Az 5l
0 Newambar 30 Hovembaor
Lsgm mar 2006
Carrying amount
Deferred acquizsition costs on insurance contracts 21,345 18.251
Deferred origination costs on investment contracts 73 418
Value of business acquired 129 129
Total 21,847 18.898
o i ndisd i fichini]
N it A0 M [LE]
T Wis
Movements in the year
At beginning of financial year 18,898 17.092
Deferral and amortization of acquisition and origination costs 2,318 2087
Foreign exchange movements B33 (172)
Impact of assumption changes 77} (&)
Other movements {125) {73)
At end of financial year 21,847 18.898

Deferred acquisition and origination costs are expected to be recoverable over the mean term of the Group's insurance and
investment contracts, and liability adequacy testing is performed at least annusally to confirm their recoverability.
Accordingly, the annual amortisation charge, which varies with investment performance for certain universal life and undt-
linked products, approsdmates to the amount which is expected to ba realisad within 12 months of the end of the raporting
period.
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

The following tables analyse the Group's financial investments by type and nature. The Group manages its financial
investments in two distinct categeries: Unit-linked Investments and Pelicyholder and Shareholder Investments. The
inwvestment risk in respect of Unit-linked Investments (s ganerally whally borne by our customers, and does not directly
affect the profit for the year before tax. Furthermose, unit=linked contract holders are responsible for allocation of their
policy values amongst investment epuions offered by the Group, Alhough profit for the year before tax is not affected by
Unit-linked Investments, the investment return frem such financial Investments is included In the Group’s prafit for the
wear before tax as the Group has elected the fair value option for all Unit-linked Investments with correspending changes
in insurance and investment contract liabilities for unit-linked contracts: Policyhalder and Shareholder Investments
include all financial investments ather than Unit-linked Investments. The investment risk in respect of Policyholder and
Shareholder Investments is partially or wholly barne by the Group,

OVERVIEW

Policyholdar and Shareholder Investments are further categorized as Participating Funds and Other Palicyhalder and
Shareholder. The Growp haz elected to separately analyse financial investments held by Participating Funds within
Policyholder and Shareholder Investments as they are subject to local regulations that generally prescribe a minimum
proportion of policyholder participation in declared dividends. The Group has elected the fair value option for debt and
equity securities of Participating Funds. The Group's aceounting pelicy is to record an insurance liability for the proportien
of net assets of the Participating Funds that would be allocated to policyhalders assuming all performance would be
declared a5 a dividend based upon local regulations as at the date of the statement of financial position. As a result the
Group's net profit for the vear before tax is impacted by the proportion of inwestment return that weuld be allocated to
shareholders as described above.

FIMAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Other Policyholder and Shareholder Investments are distinct from Unit-linked Investmants and Participating Funds as
there is not any direct confractual or regulatory requirement governing the amount, if any, for allecation to policyholders,
The Group has elected 1o apply the fair value option for equity securities in thiz category and the available for sale
classification in respect of the majority of debt securities in this category. The investment risk fram investments in this
category directly impacts the Group's financial statements. Although a proportion of investment retumn may be allocated to
pelicyhelders through pelicyhelder dividends. the Group's accounting policy for insurance and certain investmant conract
liabilities utilises a netlevel premium methodolegy that includes best estimates as at the date of issue for non-guaranteed
participation. To the extent investmant return from these investments either is not allocated to participating contracts or
varies from the best estimates, it will impact the Groups profit before tax

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

In the following tables, *FYTPL" indicates financial investments classified at fair value through profit or loss and "AFS”
indicates financial investments classified as available for sale.

Debt securitios

In compiling the tables, external ratings have been used whers available. Where external ratings are not readily avaitable
an internal rating methodology has been adopted. if applicable. External ratings for government bonds are based on {ssuers
a5 wellas currencies of issuances. The following conventions hawve bean adopted to conform the various ratings.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Extesimal ratings Inlnenal galngs Flaspaibesd as
Sanradand and Pocd's Ml
LY. 1 Aaa il AR
B o A8 Aalto Aal 24002~ oy
A 1o A~ A1 to AT 3410 3~ ]
EBE+ to BEE- Baal to Baad f* i b BEE
BE+ and below Bal and below 5+ and below Below investrment grade' "

Holo:
{1} Undess othenveiso ideatified individually,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (oomimsad
Dobt securities (continued
Debt securities by type comprise the following:

Foticyhokdar and sharshoider

Consoldated
Participating  Qther pelicybsidarand immsment
funddy shsratvoldar Unit-finkid Hursdy

USEm Aating FYTRL FTRL AFS Sublctal FUTeL FYTRL Tatal
30 Movember 2017
Government bonds

~ issued in local currency
Thailand A - - 13,141 13,141 - = 13141
China A 1,520 - 6,821 B,341 27 - BA5E
Horea AR - = 5439 5,439 272 - 5711
Singapare Ann 24480 - 1,230 3,670 476 - 4,146
Philippines BEB ] - 2,346 2346 55 = 2,401
Malaysia A 1,249 - 562 1811 5 - 1,836
United States Al 168 - 3100 J268 1 - 3,269
Indenesia BEB 77 25 are 481 55 = 536
Otheri” & - This 750 2 - 752
Subtotal 5,460 25 33762 39,247 913 - 40,180
Government bonds

= foreign currency
AAA - - - - ] - 8
A4 34 - 799 835 25 = B850
A 90 - 831 921 16 - 937
EBE 95 45 1,677 1.817 185 - 2,002
Balow investment grade - 12 53 &5 - - 65
Subtotal 221 57 3360 B,638 234 - 3,872
Government agency

bends™®
AR 1,184 - Q08 2,092 g0 - 2,182
an 367 - 3,517 3,884 63 263 4,210
A 2,084 3 3,051 5138 a8 56 5,232
BBE 198 10 1493 1701 5 = 1,706
Below investment grade | 1 260 332 14 - 34b
Subtotal 3,904 14 9229 13147 210 319 13,676
Males

(1) Of the todal gowionmmer bonds Esued in bocal curroncy Bbed & "0ther” al 30 Nosember 3007, 45 per conl s rabod ac imestment grade and a
Tunthor T8 por cent ate rabod BE- and above. Thi remaining s mited bobow B,

{2} Govwornmont agency bomds comgriae bonds tsued by govormenent-sporsomd inst@utkors sisch as natlonal. provieclal and mundcipal authorithes;
fierram - rilated antities rullilatansl divekipaom anks and supranat ional organisalicons.

{3} Consolidated Enestiment funds roftect 100 por cont of meeds and Rabilithes hedd by soch funds,
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Consalaislad
Panicipating  Other paticyhalder and Investenent
funds _ sharsholder Unitlinkad fungs™
rSEm FY¥TRL FVTRL AFS Subtotal FTRL FVTPL Tesal
30 Novermber 2017
Corporate bonds
ARRA [1.] - 431 £77 5 - 482
AL 475 17 &021 4,513 1 359 4,873
A 5,185 &3 26,50 31.37B 317 1.13% 32,894
EBE 4510 106 254617 30,077 598 181 30,856
Eakow investment grade 679 19 2421 3,119 1% - 3310
Mot rated - 2 - 2 177 = 179
Subtotal 10,895 187 58484 69566 1,359 1,669 72,594
Structured securities™
AR - - 9 9 - - 9
A - - -2 -2 - - &4
A 18 - 301 319 - - 39
EBE 165 - 250 415 - - &15
Below investment grade = - & & - - ]
Mot rated 11 41 1 53 - - 53
Subtotal 194 &1 631 BOb - - BA&
Total™ 20674 324 105466 126464 2,716 1,988 131,168
Hodns:

{3 Cons lisfated Evestrent funds rodlect 100 porcont of assets and labilities hebid by such lunds,
{4} Structumd securities include collaioealzed dotd aoblgations, morigage-backed socur@ios and othes axsed- backod socuzitis
{5) Db securities ol US34 900 am restaictod dun b ksl nsgulatory tequisnmants.
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS tcontimmd)
Debt securities foontinud)

P iy Boldar s shareholdar Conilidated
Pamicipating Db policy holder and SN
Tunsds sharetldor Unat-tinknd funds™

UsStm Hating FVTIRL FWTRL AFE  Subiolad VTP FVITPL Testal
30 Movernber 2014
Government bends

= igsued in local currency
Thailand A - - 11,313 11313 - = 11313
China Al 1635 = l:ﬁ.ETll} B.145 19 = AL
Horea AR - - 4171 a1 280 - 4451
Singapore Agn 1,552 = 950 2502 387 = 2889
Philippines BEE = = 2527 2527 68 = 2595
Malaysia & 1,185 = 414 1599 22 = 14621
United States Al 16 - 1587 1603 2 - 1.605
Indenesia EE 87 10 287 454 a7 - &9
Crher''! - - 639 539 2 = Bal
Subtotal 4445 10 28498 32953 817 = 33770
Government bonds

= foreign currency
AAA - - - - 3 - 3
A/ 25 - 713 T8 26 - T
A 73 - 5T& 549 17 - Gl
BBE 1] 28 710 T48 126 - 874
Below investment grade 7 29 17 823 50 = 873
Subtatal 185 57 2716 2958 222 - 3.180
Government agency

bonds™
BARA 1,107 - 782 1,889 106 34 2028
Al Q45 = 5327 6272 75 182 6539
A B98 3 1.245 2146 26 15 2187
BEE 220 9 1.245 1474 ] - 1,480
Balow invastment grada a0 - 121 151 3 - 154
Hot rated - - - - g - B
Subtotal 3,290 12 8720 11932 223 3 12,386

Malos:

{13 OF tha total govermmant bands Bsued in bocal currercy Bted as “Other” al 30 November 2016, 49 per cant s ralod ot imestmnt grade and a
{15 por ook s rabed BE- and absove Thi mamasning asm ratesd bafow BB-.

£ Governmant agency bonds comprias bonds sued by givermenort-sporsoed inst@utkons such as natlonal. provinclal and mundcipal aathoribes:
qovrmamaeel-rolabisd aontities, multilatns sl dowkopmon! bankes and supranational organisaticons.

{3 Congolidated Ensstmant funds roflsct 100 per cont of asseds and Lahilities held by soch funds,
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continusd) E
Dabt securities (cominusty g
— Poliojhelded i eharchildet” Conselidaied
Parcipating et pecd ey ol chesr aned IrrvEsnmeant
Tunds sharsfeoldar iy Uine-Binbansd Buprwd ™

BEm FATPL FVTAL AFS Subiowd FATPL PV Tedal

30 Hevember 2016 z

Corporate bonds E

ABR 43 - 237 285 & &b 335 ;

AA 573 22 4087 4682 2 351 5054 =

A 5863 13 21654 26,530 426 983 27939 E

EBE 4,251 125 20,382 24 T5E bbb 270 25594 E

Balow investment grade B76 B 30464 3928 140 3 40T =

Not rated - - 1 1 138 14 153 z

Subtotal 10,611 166 49405 60184 1295 1,667 63146 £

Structured securities™

ABA - - 20 20 - - 0

Ag 13 - 79 92 - - Q2

A 20 20 381 471 - = 21 w

EBBE 213 = 270 4593 1 i Ge E

Below investment grade - 50 - 50 - - 50 E

Mot rated 10 4t 3 59 - - 59 2

Subtotal s 116 753 1,135 1 = 1,134 E

Totall® 18707 62 90092 109162 2558 1.898 113618 E
=

Mifns: >

(3} Consalidated Evestmsnt funds rodbect 100 porconl of assels and lebilities hedi by such funds,
{4} Structumd securitios include collatneatsed dotd abbgations. morigage-backed securities and other aepel- hacked socu it
{5} Db securities ol USE3 30%5m am restaictod dun b ksl nsgulatory tequisnmants.

The Group's debt securities classified at fair value through profit or loss can be analysed as follows

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

As at Asat

30 Noversbar A0 Meorewmiban

UsEm 2017 ]
Debt securities ~ FYTPL

Designated at fair walue through profit or loss 25,702 23509

Held for trading - 17

Total 25,702 23526

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (oominsd:

Equity securities
Equity securities by type comprise the following:

FPolicyholdar and shamholkd
Dinar
polsykaidor Corieicha e
Farticipating and Invastmant
funds sharahaider Uni-linked laniis™!
USim FVTRL FVTPL Subtodal F¥TRL FVTPL Total
30 Mowemiber 2017
Equity shares 4,631 9267 13,898 L4610 - 18,508
Interests in investment funds 219 1674 3,885 14,343 - 18,208
Total 6,822 10,941 17,763 18,953 - 36,716
Pudicvhol e anad & haiohaol
Othar
el byl r ool jd abexd
Participating andd et
i ahaieloldor Ll -iidkd luahide™!
Lisdm FYTPRL FVTPL Suibbotal FYIPL FYTFL loital
30 Movemiber 2016
Equity shares 3705 6567 10672 3608 1 14.281
Intarests in investment funds 1,746 2,295 4041 11884 3 15,930
Total 5,451 9,262 14,713 15,494 & 30,211
Mol
(1) Consolidated imvestment lunds pollect 100 por cont of assets and Rabilitkes bedd by such funds,
Debt and equity securities
Akl LEE
T Hewambar 30 Niwembai
Li5Em T i [
Debt securities
Listed 100,647 86105
Unlisted 30,521 27513
Total 131,168 1134618
Equity securities
Listed 20,205 16,394
Unlisted' ™ 16,511 13817
Total 36,716 30,211
Mt

(V) Irechudbing LESE15.3 70m (201 6: WS T.06 Fmd ol Emesstroent funds which can ba redesmed daly,
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continusd)

Interests in structured entities

The Group has determined that the investment funds and structured secunities, such as collateralised debt obligations,
mortgage-backed securities and other assat-backed sacurities that the Group has interest are structured entities.

OVERVIEW

The Group has consolidated certain investment funds for which the Group provides guarantee on capital or rate of return
1o the investors and deemed to have contrel based on an analysis of the guidance in IFRS 10. For these investment funds,
the Group has the ability to reduce the guaranteed rates of return, subject to obtaining approvals of applicable regulators.
The Group has an obligation w absorb losses in the event that the return s of the funds are insufficient (o cover the capital
or rate of return guarantee provided 1o the investors.

The following table summarizes the Group's interest in unconsolidared structured entities:

FIHAKCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

fig w1 30 Novamiber 2017 g Al 30 Movember 2006

Invasdmigent Struciured Irwambmand Sructupm]
USEm funds sgciritios” Tunds awaiibhes"
Available for sale debt sacurities 1,250¢% 631 939 753
Debt securities at fair value through profit or loss 520 235 489= 383
Equity securities at fair value through profit or loss 18,208 - 15,930 -
Total 19,978 B&6 17,358 1,136

Nl
{1} Structumd securibing includs collainmsssd dobd obiaation mortgaps -baokod sacuriios and other assol-backed secu#ios.
{2} Balance repressns the Group's interests in deld securflies msued by real ostabe vestment insts

The Group's maximum exposure to loss arising from its interests in these unconsclidated structured entities is limited to
the carrying amount of the assets. Dividend income and interest income are received during the reporting period from
these interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

In addition, the Group recelves management fees and trustee fees in respect of providing trustee, management and
administrative services to certain retirerment scheme funds and investment funds. These funds are not held and the
associated investment risks are not borne by the Group, the Group does not have exposure toloss in these funds

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (cominsd)

Loans and deposits
Axal A al

30 Hewamber A0 Miseambard
USEm T . [
Folicy loans 2,726 2448
Mortgage loans on residential real estate &S00 G4k
Mortgage loans on eommercial real estate 53 51
Other loans 8EY 137
Allowance for koan losses {12} {13)
Loans 4256 3,769
Term deposits 1,138 1847
Promissory notes' 1,579 1446
Total 7,973 7062
Filas:

(V) Tha promissory nodes s gsued by a govemmant,

Certain term deposits with financial institutions and promissory nobes are restricted due to local regulatory requirements
or ather pledge restrictions. The restricted balance held within term deposits and promissory notes is USE1 740m (204 &
U551 638m).

Othier loans include receivables from reverse repurchase agreements under which the Group does not take physical
possession of securities purchased under the agreements. Sales or transfers of securities are not permitted by the
respactive clearing house on which they are registered while the loan i5 cutstanding. In the event of default by the
counterparty W repay the loan, the Group has the right to the underlying securities hald by the clearing house. At 30
Mowvember 2017, the carrying value of such receivables is USE326m (2016 USE224m).
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS g
The Group's non-hadge derivative exposure was as follows; E
Fair valug

LIS Hotkonal ameunt [ree Wi it

30 Novernber 2017

Foreign exchange contracts x
Cross-currancy swaps 7.569 24% (164) %
Forwards 5521 &7 {142) e
Foreign exchange futures 139 = = E
Currency options 7 = = E

Total foreign exchange contracts 13,636 296 (306) =

Interest rate contracts ;
Interast rate swaps 3,157 51 (55) o

Other F
Warrants and options 161 16 - -

Netting (139 - -

Total 18,815 363 (361)

30 Movernbar 2016 w

Forgign exchange contracts g
Cross-currancy swaps 7660 28 (56T} z
Forwards 1.710 36 () g
Foreign exchange futures 192 - - =
Currency options 13 - - E

Total foreign exchange contracts 9.575 64 (573) s

Imterest rate confracts:
Interest rate swaps 1851 30 (35)

Other
Warrants and options 1520 13 {36)

Netting (192 - -

Total 12,754 107 (Bah)

The column “notienal amount” in the above table represants the pay leg of derivative transaction s other than equity index
option. For certain equity-index call and put optiens with same notional amount that are purchased to hadge the downside
risk of the underlying equities by means of a collar strategy. the notional amount repre sents the sxposure of the hedged
equities.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Of the total derivatives, USE8m (2016: USE1 2m) are listed in exchange or dealer markets and the rest are over-the-counter
(OTC) derivatives. OTC derivative contracts are individually negotiated between contracting parties and not cleared through
an exchange. OTC derivatives include forwards, swaps and options. Derivatives are subject to varicus risks including
market, liquidity and credit risks, similar to those related to the underlying financial instruments.

Dervative assets and derivative lfabilities are recognised in the consclidated statement of financial position as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial liabilities respactively. The Group's derivative contracts
are established to economic hedge financial exposuras. The Group adopts hedge accounting in imited circumstances. The
notional or contractual amounts assaciated with derivative financial instruments are not recorded as assets or liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position as they do not represent the fair value of these transactions. The notional
amounts in the previous table reflect the aggregate of individual derivative positions on a gross basis and 20 glue an
indication of the overall scale of derivative transactions.

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS tcontinusd)

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange forward and futures contracts represant agrements 1o exchange the currency of one country for the
currency of another country at an agread price and settlement date. Currency options are agreemeants that give the buyer
the right to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at agreed prices and settlement
dates, Currency swaps are contractual agreements that involve the exchange of both periodic and final amountsin twe
different currencies. Exposure to gains and losses on the forelgn exchange conwracts will increase or decrease over their
respictive lives as a functien of maturity dates, intérest and forsign exchange ratés, implied volatilities of the underlying
indices and the timing of payments.

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are contractusl agreements between two parties 1o exchange periodie payments in the same currency,
each of which is computed on a different interest rate basis, on a specifisd notional amount. Most interast rate swaps
invalve the net exchange of payments cakculated as the difference between the fixed and fleating rate interest payments,

Othar derivatives
Wharrants and options are option agreemants that give the cwner the right 1o buy or 28ll securities at an agreed price and
settlement date,

Metting adjustment
The netting adjustment is related 1o futures contracts executed through clearing house where the settlement arrangement
satisfied the netting criteria under IFRS.

Collateral under derivative transactions

At 30 Movember 2017, the Group had posted cash collataral of USE10m (2016: UST1E8m) and pledged debt securities
with carrying value of US$227m (2016: USE440m) for liabilities and held cash collateral of USH1461m (2016; UST6m),
debt securities collateral with carrying value of USE15m (2016: USE5m) for assets in respect of derivative transactions.
The Group did not sell or repledge the collateral received, These transactions are conducted under tarms that are usual and
customary to collateralised transactions including, whera relevant, standard repurchasze agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value of financial instruments

The Group classifies all financial assets as either at fair value through profit or loss, or as available for sale, which are

OVERVIEW

camied at fair value, or as loans and receivables, which are carried at amortized cost. Financial liabilivies are classified as
ether at fair value through profitorloss or atamortised cost, except forinvestment contracts with DPF which are accounted

for under IFRS 4,

The following tables present the fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities: z

Fair valua E

Fair valsa Cost! Total ‘é

nreugh Avafalile AEno s carrying Tatsl lir E

USEm hioness prafil of loss Tt waly ol walaw waiug =

o

=

30 Novermber 2017 E

Financial investments 1] 3

Loans and deposits - - T.973 7.973 7977 E

Debt securities 25,702 105,466 - 131,168 131,168 z
Equity securities 36,716 - - 36,716 36,716
Derivative financial Instruments 20 363 - - 363 363
Reinsurance recaivables i7 - - 1T 506 506

Other receivablas 3 - - 2,150 2,150 2,150 »

Accrued investment income 1 - - 1,541 1.541 1,561 %

Cash and cash equivalents 4 = = 2,289 2,289 2,289 =

Financial assets 62,781 105,406 14459 182,706 182,710 é

Fair vaiue Coat/ Tolal =

Ehratagh Armantised carrying Tatsl fair ]

Pailirs eralit or kods cosl walien valug 2

L

Finamcial liabilities

Investment contract liabilities 6 7,502 580 8,082 B,082
Borrowings red - 3,958 3.958 4,144
Obligations undar repurchase agreaments k) - 1883 1.883 1,883
Derivative financial instraments m 361 - 361 361
Other liabilities i 1225 4,663 5,888 5,888
Financial liabilities 9,088 11,084 20,172 20,358

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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Fair value of financial instruments (continued
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Falr valua
Fair yalise Cost/ Totsl
e Fiv b amartid CaTying Tonad fam
stm Hides peali or s bor saln (o] walum vkl
20 Movemiber 2016
Financial investments 0
Loans and deposits = = 7062 7.062 7068
Dbt secunties 23526 20,092 = 113618 113618
Equity securities 30211 - - 021 30211
Derivative financial instruments 0 107 - - 107 107
Relnsurance receivables 17 = = 335 335 335
Other recelvables ! - - 1934 1,934 1.934
Acerued investment income ) - - 1,383 1,383 1,383
Cazh and cash equivalants 24 - - 1,642 1,642 1,642
Financial assets B3 344 S0.0%2 12356 156292 156296
Fadr vl Cost/ Totad
ihampgh i B camying Tolad Tak
Poies pndit or koss sl walu valum
Financial liabilities
Investment contract liabilities T bG90 529 1028 7028
Borrawings =] - 3450 3460 3479
Obligatizns under repurchase agresments o] - 1984 1.984 1984
Derivative financial instruments n Gy - LT Gl
Other liabilities ¥ 1.23% 3484 &723 4713
Financial liabilities 8,382 2457 17.839 17.6858

The carrying amount of aszets included in the abowve tables represents the maximum credit exposure.

Foreign currency exposure, iIncluding the net notional amount of foreign currency derivative positions. is shown in note 36

for the Group's key foreign exchange exposures.

The fair value of inve stment contract labllities measwred at amortized cost is not considered to be matesially different from

the amortized cost carrying value.

The carrying value of financial instruments expected to be settled within 12 months {after taking into account valuation

allowances, where applicable) is not considered to be materially different from the falr value.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continusn

Fair value measurements on a recurring basis

The Group measures at fair value property held for own use. investment property, financial instruments classified at fair
value through profit or loss, available for sale securities portfolios, derivative assets and liabilitdes, investments held by
Investment funds which ame consolidated, investments in non-consolidated investment funds and certain Investment
contract liabilines on a recurring basis.

OVERVIE'W

The fair value of a fingncial instrument s the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability
ir an orderly transaction between market participants at the measuramant date.

The degree of judgement used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments generally correlates with the level of
pricing observability. Financial instruments with quated prices in active markets generally have more pricing observability
and less judgement is used in measuring Fair value. Conversely, financial instruments waded in other than active markets
or that do not have quoted prices have less observability and are measured at fair value using valuation models or other
pricing techniques that require mare judgement. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability
being valued occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing Information on an ongeing basis.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

An other than active market is one in which there are faw ransactions, the prices are not curment. prics quotations vary
substantially either over time or among market makers, or in which little information is released publicly for the asset or
liability being valued. Pricing cbservability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrument,
whether the financial Instrument (5 new to the market and not vet established, the characteristics specific to the tranzaction
and general market conditions.

Fair value of properties is based on valuation by independent professional valuers.

The Group does not have assats or liabilities measured at fair value on a nen-recurring basis during the year ended 30
Movember 2017,

The fellowing methods and assumptions were used by the Group to estimate the fair value of financial instruments-and
properties,

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

Datermination of fair value

Loans and receivables

For lpans and advances that are repriced frequently and have not had any significant changes In credit risk, carrying
amounts représent areasonable estimate of fair values. The fair values of ather loans are estimated by discounting expecied
future cash flows using interast rates offered for similar loans to Borrowers with similar eredit ratings.

The fair values of mortgage lcans are estimated by discounting future cash flows using interest rates currently being
offered in respect of similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings, The fair values of fixed rate poliey loans are
astimated by discounting cash flows at the interest rates charged on policy loans of similar policies curréntly baing issued.
Loans with similar characterstics are aggregated for purposes of the calculations. The carrying values of policy loans with
variable rates approximate to their fair values.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Debt securities and equity securities

The fair values of equity securities are based on quoted market prices or, if unquoted, on estimated market values generally
based on guoted prices for similar securities. Fair values for fixed interast securities are based on quoted market prices,
where available, For those securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from brokers,
private pricing sarvices or by discounting expected future cash flows using a curment market rate applicable to the yield,
credit quality and maturity of the investment. Priorlty i given to values from independent sources when available, but
overall the source of pricing and/or valuation technigue is chosen with the objective of arriving at the price at which an
orderly transaction would take place between market participants on the measurement date. The inputs to determining
fair value that are relevant to fixed interest securities include, but not limited to risk-free interest rates, the obligor's credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates and credit default rates. For holdings in hedge funds and limited partnerships, fair values
are determined based on the net asset values provided by the general partner or manager of each investment. the accounts
of which are generally audited on an annual basis. The transaction price i3 used as the best estimate of fair value at
inception,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (comtimf

Determination of fair value (continuesd)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group values its derivative financial assets and labilities using market transactions and other market evidence
whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market clearing transactions, beoker or
dealer quotauons or alternative pricing sources with reasenable levels of price transparency. When models are used, the
selection of a particular model to value a derivative depends on the contract werms of, and specific nizks inherent in, the
instrument as well as the availability of pricing information in the market, The Group generally uses similar models 1o value
similar instruments. Valuation modeds requine a vaniety of inputs. including contractual terms, market prices and rates,
yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs; For derivatives that
trade in liquid markats, such as generic forwards, swaps and options, model inputs can generally ba verified and model
selection does not invelve significant management judgement. Examples of inputs that are generally observable include
foreign exchange spot and forward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and volatilivies for commonly traded option
products. Exarmples of inputs that may be unobservable include volatilives for less commeonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors,

When the Greup holds a group of derivative assets and derivative liabilites entered into with a particular counterparty, the
Group takes inte account the arrangements that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event of default (eg. International
Swap and Derivatives Associaton (ISDA) Master Agreements and Credit Support Annex (CSA) that require the exchange of
collateral on the basis of each party’s net credit risk exposure), The Group measures the fair value of the group of financial
assats and financial labilities on the basis of its net exposure to the credit risk of that counterparty or the counterparty's
net exposure to our credit risk that reflects market participants’ expectations about the likelinood that such an arrangement
wiould be legally enforceable in the event of default.

Property held for own use and investment property

The Group engaged external, indepandent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's properties at
least on an annual basis. The valuation on open market value basiz by independent professional valuer for certain
investmant preperties was catculated by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential. The fair
values of other properties were derived using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the values are based on sales
and listing of comparable property registerad in the vicinity.

The propertes held for own use and investment properties, in most cases. are valued on the basis of the highestand best
use of the properties thatis physically possible, legally permissibleand financially feasible. Tha current use of the proparties
are considered to be its highest and best use; records of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and
comparison made for such- factors as size, location, quality and prospective use. On limited occasions, potantial
redevelopment of the properties in use would be taken into account when they would maximize the fair value of the
properties; the Group is occupying these properties for operational purpases.

Cash and cash equivalents
Tha carryimg amount of cash approximates its falr value.

Reinsurance receivables
The carrying amount of amounts recelvable from relnsurers is not considered materially different to their fair value.

Fair value of securities sold under repurchase agreements and the asseciated payables
The contract values of payables under repurchase agreements approximate their fair value as these obligations are short-
term in nature,

Other assets

The carrying amount of other financial assets is not materially different to thedr fair value, The fair values of deposits with
banks are generally based on quoted market prices or, if unquoted, on estimates based on discounting future cash flows
using available market interest rates offered for recelvables with similar characteristics.
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continusn

Determination of fair value fontimisd)

Investment contract liabilities

For investrient contract liabilities, the fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow approach based an
Interest rates curmmently being offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with those rermnaining for the contracts
being valued, For investment contracts where the investmant risk is borne by the policyholder. the fair value generally
appraximanes to the fair value of the underlying assets.

OVERVIEW

Investment contracts with DPF enable the contract holder to receive additional benefits as a supplement to guaranteed
benefits. These are referred 10 as participating business and ane measured and classified according to the Group practice
for insurance contract liabilities and hence are disclosed within note 25, These are not measured at fair value as there is
currently not an agreed definition of falr value for investment and insurance contracts with DPF under IFRS. In the absence
of any agreed mathodology, it iz not possible to provide a range of estimatas within which fair value is likely to fall. The
|ASE is expecting to address this issue in Phaze || of its insurance contracts project.

Borrowings

The fair values of borrowings with stated maturities have been estimated based on discounting future cash flows using the
interest rates currently applicable 1o deposits of similar maturities or price s obtained from bBrokers.

Other liabilities

The fair values of ather unquoted financial Habilities iz estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using current
market rates applicable to their yield, credit quality and maturity, except for those without stated maturity, where the
carmying value approximates to fair value.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis

Azsets and Habilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated staternent of financial position are measured and classified
in a hierarchy for disclosure purposes congisting of three “levels” bazad on the observability of inputs available in the
marketplace used to measune their fair values as discussed below:

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

*  Level 1: Falr value measurements that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for [dentical assets or liabilitles
that the Group has the ability to aceess as of the measurament date. Market price data is generally obtained from
exchange or dealer markets. The Group does not adjust the quoted price for such instruments. Assats measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and classified as Lavel 1 are actively traded equities. The Group considers that governmant
dabt securities issued by G7 countries (the United States, Canada, France, Garmany, Italy, Japan, the United Kingdom)
and traded In a dealer market to be Lavel 1, until they no longer trade with sufficient frequency and volume to be
considersd actively traded,

« Lewel 2 Fair value measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). Level 2 inputs include quoted prices
for similar assets and liabilities in setive markets. quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active and inputs other than quoted prices that are obsarvable for the asset and liability. such as interest
rabes and yeld curves that are cbservable at commonly quoted intervals, Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurming basis and classified as Lvel 2 generally include government securities issued by non-G7 countries, mast
investmant grade corporate bonds, hedge fund investments and derivative contracts.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

*  Level 3: Fair value measurements based on valuation technigues that use significant inputs that are unobservable.
Unobservable inputs are only used to measumna fair value to the extant that relevant observable inputs are not available,
allowing for circumstances in which thera is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. Assets and liabilitias
measured at fair value en arecurring basie and classified as Level 3 include properties held for own use, investment
properties, certain classes of structured securities, certain derivative contracts. private eguity and real estate fund
investments, and direct private equity investments,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT rconiime)

Fair value higrarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis (cominuesd)

In certain cases, the inputs wsad to measure fair value may fall into ditferant levals of the fair value hisrarchy, In such cazes,
the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremeant in its entirety, The Group's assessment of the significance
of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement. In making the assessment the Group
considers factors specific 1o the assetor Lakility.

A summary of assets and babilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis saccording 1o fair value higrarchy is given below:

Faiir vl Figrasc iy
UsEm Lavul 1 Lawad 2 Lowed 3 Total

20 Novemiber 2017
Recurring fair value measurements

MNen-financial assets
Praperty hald fer own use - = 979 979
Investment property - - 4,365 4,365
Financial assets
Available for sale

Debt securities - 104318 1,148 105,466

At fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities

Participating funds - 20,255 419 20,674
Unit-linked and consclidated investment funds - 4604 100 4,704
Other policyhaldar and shareholder - 259 &5 324
Equity securities
Participating funds 6,034 55 433 6,822
Unit-linked and consclidated investiment funds 18,803 143 1 18,953
Ciher policyholder and shareholder 9625 690 626 10,941
Derivative financial instrumeants
Foreign exchange contracts - 2946 = 196
Interest rate contracts = 81 - g1
Other contracts ] & - 16
Total aseets on a recurring fair value
measuremaent bazis 35470 130,985 8136 173,591
% of Total ree 754 &7 1O0.8
Finaneial liabilities
Investment contract Labilities - - 7,502 7,502
Derivative financial instrements
Foreign axchange contracts - J0& - J06
Interast rate contracts = 55 = 55
Orther liabilities = 1.225 - 1,215
Total liabilities on a recurring fair value
measurement basis - 1584 7.502 9,088
% of Total - 17.5 B25 1o0.0
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continuen
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis (cosinsd)

OVERVIEW

Fair vl hierarchy
S Lasyid 1 Lasewd Ll 2 Toal

30 Meovember 2016
Recurring fair value measurements

Heon-financial assets ;
Property hald for own use - - 05 05 E
Invastment property - - 2910 3,910 =
Financial assots E
Available for sale s
Debt securities 24 BEB19 1.249 90,092 %
At fair value through profit or loss 2
Debt securities E
Participating funds - 18366 341 18707 E
Unit=-linked and consolidated Investment funds - 4,239 17 4,454
Other policyholder and shareholder - 223 140 363
Eqjuity sacunties
Participating funds 4856 324 M 5451 w
Unit-linked and consalidated investment funds 15434 G4 = 15498 E
Other policyholder and shareholder g117 718 417 9262 E
Derivative financial instruments E
Forelgn exchange contracts = -1 - 6 =
interest rate contracts - 30 - 30 :
Other contracts 12 1 - 13 2
Total assets on a recurring fair value
mzazurerment bazis 28,443 112,858 7.450 148,751
%% of Total 187 759 5.0 1ooe -
Financial liabilities &
Invastment contract liabilities - - 6,499 6,499 E
Derivative financial instruments -
Forelgn exchange contracis = 573 - 573 E
Interest rate contracts - 35 = 35 g
Dther contracts = 35 = 36 =
Other liabilities - 1239 - 1,239 £
Total liabilities on a recurring fair value
measuremaent basia - 1.883 6499 8382 -
% of Total = 225 715 1000

The Group's policy i5 to recognise transfers of assets and liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 at their fair valuies as at
the end of sach reporting period, consistent with the date of the determination of fair value. Assets are transferred out of
Level 1 when thay are no longer transacted with sufficient frequency and volume in an active market. During the vear
ended 30 November 2017, the Group transferred USES0m (2016: USE241m) of assets measured at fair value from Level
1 to Level 2. Conversely, assats are transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 when transaction volume and frequency are
Indicative of an active market. The Group transferred USS148m (2014; USE463m) of assets from Level 2 to Level 1 during
the year ended 30 Movember 2017,

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION

The Group's Level 2 financial instruments include debt securities, equity securities and derivative instruments. The fair
values of Level 2 financial instruments are estimated using values cbtained from private pricing services and brokers
comoborated with internal review as necessary. When the guotes from third-party pricing services and brokers are not

available, internal valuation techndques and inputs will be used to derive the fair value for the financial Instruments,
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT rconiins)

Fair value higrarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis (cominuest)

The tables below set out a summary of changes in the Group’s Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis for the year ended 30 November 2017 and 2014. The tables reflect gains and fosses, including gains and
losses on aszets and liabilites categorised as Level 3 as at 30 Hovemnber 2017 and 2016,

Level 3 assets and liabilities

Darivative
Progarty Hinascisl
held{or Inwastment Dabs Eguity assats Invastmand
Lisim oW e proparty securitles securities {iabiiias) contracks
At 1 December 2016 Q05 3910 1,947 688 - (6,499)
et movement on investmsent
contract liabilities - - - - - {1,003}
Total gains/{losses)
Reparted under investment return and
other expenses in the consolidated
Income statemant {16) 367 (56) ki - -
Reported under fair value reserve.
foreign currency translation reserve
and property revaluation reserve
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income 115 [.1.3 55 18 - -
Transfer o investment property (24) 24 - - - -
Purchases 1 10 116 359 - -
Sales (2} {12) (20) {35) - -
Settlements - - (&10) - = -
Transfar into Level 3 - - - 2 - -
Transfer out of Level 3 < = = {13} = —
At 30 Hovember 2017 are 4365 1,732 1,060 - {7,502)
Change in unrealised gains or losses
included in the conselidated income
statement for assets and liabilities
held at the end of the reporting period,
under investment return (16) 367 (61) 3 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis (contined)

Level 3 assets and liabilities (conimied)

OVERVIE'W

Dt athen
Proaurty Tl
B Tou levavesiamasnl Dk Ecquity Agsets Irerssimand
LS m AT s Oty il cocuilties  {labliies) ooliliacts
=
At 1 December 2015 &15 3559 1,780 &74 - (6,573} S
MNet movement on investment E
contract Habilities - = o = = T =
Total gains/{losses) E
Reparted under investment retum and =
other expenses in the consolidated "
incame statemeant {15) 288 5 (45]) - - ;
Reported under fair valua rezerva, o
foreign currency translation reserve 3
and property revaluation reserve &
in the consolidated statement of
compeehensive income 506 [35) (49) [4:4] - -
Transfer to other asses = (1] - = = =
Transfer from invesiment property 19 (19 = = = =
Purchases 3 0 539 1% - - =
Sales {23) 3 (165) (43) - - §
Settlements - - (84) - - = E
Transfer into Level 2 - - - 11 - - ;
Transfer out of Level 3 - - (79} (200 - - E
A1 30 November 2016 905 3910 1947 688 = (6499 =
Change in unrealised gains or losses g
included in the consolidated income
statement for assets and liabilitics
held at the end of the reporting pericd,
under investment return (15) 288 (25) (26) = =

Moverments in investment contract liabilities at fair value are offset by movements in the underlying portfolio of matching

assats. Details of the moveament in investment contract liabilities are provided in note 256,

Assets transferred out of Level 3 mainly relate to corporate debt instruments of which market-cbservable inputs became

available during the year and were used in determining the fair value.

There are not any differences betwean the fair values on initial recognition and the amounts determined using valuation
tachnigues since the models adopted are calibrated wsing initial transaction prices.

588/655
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT rconiims)

Significant unobservable inputs for level 3 fair value measurements

43 at 30 Mowembear 2017 and 2016, the valuation technigues and applicable unobservable inputs used to measure the
Group's Level 3 financial instruments are summarnsed as follows:

Fairvatue at

Description 30 Hovember J017 (USSm)  Valustion technigues Unobsarvable irputs Rangs

Debt securities a3 Discounted cash flows Discount rate for liquidity 5.29% - 11.89%
Falr walue af

l_:lm:llpthn- 30 Bowem ber 2016 (USEm} Valuablon Inchinkgues Unobanrvalie npals Rangs

Debt securities 861 Discounted cash flows Discount rate for bquidity  4.07% = 17.538%

Fair value of the Group's properties are determined based on appropriate valuation technigues which may consider among
others incoma projection, value of comparable property and adjustmants for factors such as size, lecation, quality and
progpective uge. These valuation inputs are deemed unobservable.

Valuation processes

The Group has the valuation policies, procedures and analyses in place to govern the valuation of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values. In determining the fair values of financial azsets, the Group
in general uses third-party pricing providers and, enly in rare cases when third-party prices do not exist, will use prices
derived from Internal models. The Chief Investrment Officers of each of the business units are required to review the
reasonableness of the prices used and report price exceptions, if any. The Group Investment team analyses reported price
exceptions and reviews pricechallenge responses from third-party pricing providers and provides the final recemmendation
on the appropriate price to be used. Any changes in valuation policies are reviewed and approved by the Group Valuations:
Advisory Committes which is part of the Group’'s wider financial risk governance processes. Changes in Lavel 2 and 3 fair
values are analysed at each reporting date.

The main Level 3 input used by the Group pertains to the discount rate for the fixed income securities and investment
contracts. The unobservable inputs for determining the fair value of these Instruments include the obligor’s credit spread
and/or the liquidity spread. A significant increaze/{decreaze) in any of the unobservable input may result in a significantly
lewer/(higher) falr value measurement The Group has subscriptions 1o paivale pricing services for gathering such
information, If the information from private pricing services (s not available, the Group uses the proxy pricing method basad
on internally-developed valuation inputs,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continused

Fair value of financial and insurance assets and liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed at reporting
date

A surnmary of fair value hierarchy of assets and Habilities not carried at fair value but for which the fair value (s disclozad
as at 30 November 2017 and 2014 is given below,

OVERVIEW

FRir v s hisrarchy
Sim Lawal 1 Lawad 2 Lewal 3 Total

30 Movember 2017
Assets for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial assets

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Loans and deposits 1,112 2,680 4,185 7977
Reinsurance réceivables - 506 - 506
Other receivables - 2,109 41 2,150
Accrued investment incom 21 1,520 - 1,541
Cash and cash equivalents 2,289 - - 2,289
Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 3,422 6,815 6£,226 14,463

Liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial Habilities

Investment contract liabilities - - 580 580 E
Borrowings 3,630 514 - 4,144 %
Obligations under repurchase agreements - 1.883 - 1,883 E
Other liabilitias 692 3,938 33 iy 63 s
Total liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed 4,322 6,335 613 11,270 E
B

Fair yaluss hikeraichy E
USEm Lisend 1 Lt 7 Lowet 3 Todal
30 Movember 2016 =
Assets for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial assets E
Loans and deposits Téds 2817 1505 7,066 3
Reinsurance récaivables = 335 = 305 g
Other receivables - 1.885 4% 1,934 =
Accrued investment income 73 1310 - 1,383 E
Cash and cash equivalents 1,642 - - 1,642 E
Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 2450 b347 3554 12360 -

Liabilities for which the fair value is disclozed
Financial iabilities

Investment contract liabilities e = 529 529 z
Baorrowings 3478 - 1 3479 E
Obligations under repurchase agreements - 1.984 - 1,984 2
Other liabilities 312 3124 G 3484 S
Total liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed aTren 8110 574 94Th -Et

E

g
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. OTHER ASSETS

As ak Asal

30 Heovermbar 30 Movember

USdm 2017 2016

Accrued investment income 1,541 1383
Pension scheme assets

Defined benefit pension schame surpluzes Ll 24

Insurance recedvables due from Insurance and investment contract holders 1.223 1.004

Prapayments — operating lease of leasehald land as7 345

Others 1,665 1.233

Total &, 530 3.989

All amounts other than certain prapayments are generally expected to be recovered within 12 menths after the end of the
reporting peried.

23.IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
In accordance with the Group's accounting pelicies, impairment reviews wene performed for available for sale securities
and loans and receivables.

Available for sale dobt securities
During the year ended 30 Hovember 2017, no impairment loss (2046 USH22m) was recognized in respect of available for
zale debt securities.

The carrying amounts of available for sale debt securities that are individually determined to be impaired at 30 Movember
2017 was nil (2016; USE1Em)

Loans and receivablos

The Group's primary potential credit risk exposure in respect of loans and receivables anses in respect of policy leans and
a portfolio of mortgage loans on residential and commercial real estate (see note 19 Financial investments for further
details). The Group's credit exposure on policy loans is mitigated because, if and when the total indebtedness on any policy,
including interest due and sccrued. excesds the cash surrender value, the policy terminates and become s vaid. The Group
has a first lien on all policies which ane subject 1o policy loans.

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables that are individually determined to be impalired at 20 November 2017 was
USE51 2m (201 6 USE1Em).

The Growp hasa portfolio of residential and commercial mortgage leans which it onginates. To the extent that any such
leans are past their due dates specific allowance is made, together with a collective allowance, based on historical
delinguency. Insurance receivables are short-term in nature and cover is not provided if consideration is not recaived. An
againg of accounts recaivable is not provided as all amounits ars due within one year and cover is cancelled if consideration
5 not reced ved,
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

=

24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g

- 3

As at Aval E
0 Nowambar 30 Mwrembat
SEns 317 2006
Cash 1738 1,120
Cash equivalents 554 L
Total™ 2289 1,642

Hode

(1) O cash and Gxsh equivaliots USEER5m (2016: LESEETZm) ane hokd 1o back wnil-linked oontrascts and USE 7 Tm (F006: USE9Im) ans hobd by

coraolkiatod imsmstmend fands

Cash comprises cash at bank and cash in hand. Cash eguivalents comprise bank deposits and highly liquid short-tarm
investrments with maturities at acquisition of three months or less and money market funds. Accordingly, all such amounts
are expected to be realised within 12 months after the and of the reporting period.

25. INSURANCE COMTRACT LIABILITIES

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

The movement of insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF) s shown

as% follows:
Yaar anded Yer e -
30 Novamber 0 Hrwembed E
USEm bl g 3
=
At beginning of financial year 128,186 115,969 E
Valuaton premiums and deposits 25,586 23962 =
Liabilities released for policy termination or other policy benefits paid and related E
ENpEnSEs (14,929) {13.647) z
Fees from account balances (1.817) (1.491) s
Accration of interest 48817 3810
Forgign exchange movermnents 5232 (1.733)
Change in net asset values attributable to policyholders 2,762 1434
Other movements (540} [118)
At end of financial year 148897 128,186

Insurance contract labilites (including liabilities in respect of investrment contracts with DPF) can also be analyzed as

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .

follows:
Yoar anded Wit a3 ruchesl
30 Novamibar 30 Howombes
USEm 2087 2006
Deferred profit 7046 5,751
Unearned revenue 2,674 2906
Policyholders’ share of participating surplus 71,935 6731
Liabilities for future policyholder benefits 131,242 112788
Total 148,897 128,186

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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25. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES toontimed}

Business description
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The table below summarisas the key variables on which insurance and investment contract cash flows depend.

Facinrs atleciing
Wabnire of bordils &nd ooedrac] cagh  Key eportalble
Type o conmact Haterial iorms and cond hions componeation lor daims flows WM ES
Traufitheraal Panicipating  Parlkcipating products include Minimum guatantood benelds  » Investmand  Singapone,
panticipating funids protection and savings obrments. The  may be enhanced based on performance  China Malmasia
life s usance basic sum assured, payable ondeathor  investnnnd sxporonce and * Expinsos
with DPF martarily, may be anhancod by other consbderatinns * Mortality
dwidords or bomuses, the aggmegals * Supmenders
amoun of which s determined by th
porformance of & distinct fund of assobs
and Hahilithos, Tha timéng of dividond
and bonws declaralions is 31 Hie
disgration of the Insume Local
risgulabions gendrally prescrils a
iy propartion of policylakdar
pasticipation in deckened divid ends
Oahar Partbcipating prodacts include Minimum guarantoed Benelds  « Ivestmant  Hong Kong,
particlpating protaction amd savirgs okbnwnts. The oy hay endiancid based on purformiance  Thalkand, Cibhar
business Babe giem assured, payabde on deathor  ireatmam saperionce and » Expenaes Markels
matuarily, may ba enhancod by alhet considerations + Mortalaty
i rels on bonuses, Uhi timing o = Sipreraders
amount of which a3 the discrotion of = Morhidity
Bhs irsairer baking indo accoun Laclors
such as imstmsnd o peranon
Traditienad non-particlpating Bormlils pakl on doath, maturity, Benolits, dobined in the + Mortality A
lifo assurance akcknass of disabdlity that are fieed and  IndErance contract, me = Mothidity
guarariesd snd nod at the discrotion of  determiénod by tho contract and  + Lapsoes
tha irsurer are not attocted by irvestmaent  « Exponaes
peerormance or 1hi
periormance of the contract as
awhols
Accident anid health T et prsidiacts provide markadity o Barofite. defined inthe = Mortality Alen
sicknogs beredits ard nclude hoalllh.  insarance contract, ae = Morbkdity
disability, ceitical Blreas snd scciderd  determened by tho comrect and =« Lapaes
coymy arg nat attectod by investmanl.  + Expenses
petfod mance of the
errformance: of tho contract s
awholk
Linit-finked Upit-Binked contracts combine savings  Bonefits ate based on the value - Investment Al
with pratsction, the cash value of the of the wiitized funds and death performanco
policy degiending on (b valen of e needits = Lapias
wivilised furds. * Expensies
« Mortaliy
Linbsorsal Ko Thac pys {ledblio promi Bannfits are based on the + hivest e nd Al
subjedt 1o specilied limis scoumslabed  account balance sl desth parrformancs
Envan accourd balance which are barnaedit + Cruditing rates
camdifod willy il st o o rabs sl by = Lapios
tha irsurer, and o death boned 8 which * Expomsos
iy b varied by 1he customes = Mortalay
"m.

{13 Othor than the Groap Corporato Centre segment.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

25. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES icontinued

Methodology and assumptions

The most significant items to which profit for the year and shareholders’ equity are sensitive are market. insurance and
lapse risks which are shown in the table below. Indirect exposure indicates that there Iz a second order imgact. For example,
whilst the profit for the year atiributable to shareholders is not directly affected by investment income earned where the
investment risk is borne by pelicyholders (for example, in respect of unit-linked contracts). there is a second-order effect
through the investment management fees which the Group earns by managing such investments, The distinetion between
direct and indirect exposure is not intended to indicate the relative sensitivity & each of these items. Whare the direct
exposure is shown as being “net neutral”, this s because the exposune to market and credit risk is offset by a cormesponding
mowvement in insurance contract liabilities.

OVERVIEW

Marked and orodil risdk

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

et upoamiee
Ensurance and imistment  Risks associabod with Sigrilant insurance and
Tygw o contrac contract 1ha b ik yibabin] e mwend portolio (e inesct axgosis Faqress rigks
Traditional Farticipating  * Het neutral except for  + Net neutral except for  + investment * Impact of parsistency
pariicipating  funds the insurer’s share of  the insurer's shareof  parformance subject an future dividends
life assurance participating participating te smoathing through = Mortality
with DPF st it IFieat v it dividend declaralions
performance performance
» Guarantees » Guaranties
Cther + Met neutral excopt for  + Net neutral excepd for = Investment = Impact of persistency E
panicipating the insurers share of  the ingurer's shareof  performance subject.  on future dividends E
business participating participating to smoothing through = Mortality B
Inveat ment Imvestmant dividend declorations = Morbidity 8
performance parformance E
+ Guaranteas + Guarantees &
B
Tradfional non-participating =+ Guarantess = |mvestimint = Mot applicable = Martality E
|#e assurance + Assel-lobility performance + Parsistancy
s match rigk * Assat-liabilzy = Marbidity
mismatch risk
= Creddit risk -
Accident and heatth + Assel-lobility * Investmant = Mot applicable * Morbidity E
mismatch risk parformance + Persistancy )
+ Crodf risk B
+ Anset-liabilty 2
mismmatch risk =
Pansion + Het noutral + Net neulral * Parformance-related = Parsistency ;
» Assel-labality = Asget-labiley imwestment e
migmatch risk migmateh risk managemant foes
Unit=linked + Met neutral * Met neutral « Performance-related  + Persistency -
investment * Martality
management fees -
(=}
Lniverzal life o Guarant ees * Iryestiment » Spraad balwesn » Mortality E
* Assot-liakdity perfermance earned rate and + Porsisiancy z
rsmatech risk + Credit risk crediting rate 1o = Withdrawalbs &
» Assal-liability policyhalders 5
mismateh risk =
The Group i5 alse exposed to foreign exchange rate risk in respect ofits oparations. and to interest rate risk, credit risk and .E;

equity price risk on assets representing net sharaholders’ equity, and to expense risk to the extent that actual expensas
awceed those that can be charged to insurance and investment contract helders on non-participating business. Expense
assumptions applied in the Group's actuarial valuation models assume a continuing level of business volumes.
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25, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES toontinuei}
Methodology and assumptions (ool meed)
Valuation interest rates

Az at 30 November 2017 and 20146, the ranges of applicable valuation interest rates for traditional insurance contracts,

EDINETOOOO
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which wary by operating segment, year of issuance and products, within the first 20 years are as follows;

A ot Az &l
30 Nowambar 30 Hwembae
2m7 2016
Hong Kong 3.50% - 7.50% 3.50% = 7.50%
Thailand 3.13% - 9.00% 3.25% - 9.00%
Bingaporne 2.00% - 7.00% 2008 — 7.00%:
Malaysia 3.70% - 5.43% 3.70% - 5.43%
China 2.75% = 7.00% 2.75% - 7.00%
Australia 2.97% - 7.11% 297 = T11%
Indenesia 3.01% - 9.00% 3.02% = 9.00%
Hores 2.85% - 6.50% 285% - 6.50%
Philippines 2.20% - 3.20% 2.20% —9.20%
Sri Lanka 7.10% - 10.78% T10% - 10.78%
Talwan 1.75% - 6.50% 1.75% = &6 50%
Vietnam 5.53% - 11.48% S07% =-1225%
26. INWESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
‘Foar anded Vet mrchind
30 Hovember 30 Hovembeod
USEm 017 A
At beginning of financial year 7.028 7116
Effect of foreign exchange movements 123 {56)
Investment contract benefits 1,212 245
Fees charged (145) (138}
Met withdrawals and othar movements {138) {139}
At end of financial year™ 8,082 1028
Mot

(1) OF pwastment conbract liabdtios, USE4823m {201 6; USIS58m) mpresents defomed (e incoms
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

27.EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The table below sats out the sensitivities of the assumptions in respect of insurance and investment contracts with DPF to
key variables. This disclosure only allows for the impact on liabilities and related assets, such as reinsurance, and deferred
acquisitien costs and does not allow for offsatting moverments in the fair value of financial assets backing those liabilities.

OVERVIEW

Asat Azt
30 Nowamibar 20 Bowambay
15Em 2017 2014
E
(Increase)/decrease in nsurance contract labilities, increase/{decrease) in equity o
and profit before tax -
0.5 pps intrease in investment return 20 20 E
0.5 pps decrease in investmeant return {39) {(27) E
10% increasa in expenses (7 (7) =
10% increase in mortality rates {42} {36) k-
10% increass in lapsafdiscontinuance rates {32} (22) i
-
X

Future policy benefits for traditional life insurance policies (including Investment contracts with DPF) are calculated using
a net level premium valuation method with reference to best estimate assumptions set at policy inception date unless a
deficiency ariseson liability adequacy westing, There 15 not any impact of the above assumplion sensitivities on the carrying
amount of traditional life insurance liabilities as the senzitivities presented would not have triggered a liability adequacy
adjustment During the years presanted there were not any effect of changes in assumptions and estimates on the Group’s
traditional life products.

For interest sensitive insurance contracts, such as universal life products and unit-linked contracts, assumptions are made
at each reporting date including mortality, persistency, expenses, future investment earnings and future crediting rates.

The impact of changes in assumptions on the valuation of insurance and investment contracts with DPF was USS16m
{2016 USE20m) increase in profit.

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE
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18. BORROWINGS

As ak Asal

0 Nowembar A0 Movembad

USim 2017 s
Other loans - 1
Medium-tarm notes 3,958 34659
Total 3,958 3480

Interest expense on bormowings is shown in note 9. Further information relating fo intarest rates and the maturity profile of
borrowings is presented in note 36,

The foflowing table summarizes the Company’s outstanding medium-term notes at 30 Mevember 2017

=TT T Haminal aeint ledeeisa rane: T
13 March 2013 USE500m 1.750% 5 years
13 March 2013 US5500m 3125% 10 years
11 March 2014 USE500m 2.250%% & years
11 March 20140 USE500m 4§ 875% 30 years
11 March 2015 USE750m 3.200% 10 years
16 March 201560 USE750m 4.500% 30 years
23 May 20170 USE500m L4705 30 years
Nates:

(13 Thess mediom-tom notos s lted on The Steck Exchange ol Horg Korsg Limited
XY Thesr modiumn-Torm natos ane listed on The Talped Excharge, Tabsan The Company has the rigiht to edoom these nobes 38 par on 23 May of oach
vear beginming on 23 May 2002

The net proceeds from issuance during the year ended 30 Movember 2017 and 2016 are used for general carporate
PUrposes,

The Group has access fo an aggregate of U532, 224m unsecured committed credit facilities, which includes a USE300m
revolving three—yvear credit facility expiring in 2020 and a USE1.926m five-vear credit facility expiring in 2022, The credit
facilities will be used for general corporate purposes, There were nil cutstanding borrowings under these credit facilities
a5 of 30 November 2017 (2014 nil).

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
The Group has entered into repurchase agreements whereby securitiesare sobd to third parties with a concurrent agreemint
to repurchase the securities at a specified date.

The secunities related to thess agreements are not de-recognised from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
pasition, but are retained within the appropriate financial assatclassification. During the term of the repurchase agreemants,
the Group is restricted from selling or pledging the transferred debt securities. The following table specifies the amounts.
included within financial investments subject to repurchass agreements which do not qualify fer de-recognition at each
year and:

As o i 1

30 Nevambar A0 Howembor

Li5Em w7 206
Delt securithes = AFS 1,854 2045
Debit securities = FVTPL 12 98
Total 1,566 2143
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (contimusd)

Collateral

Ar30 Movember 2017, the Group had pledged debt securities with carrying value of USE1m (201 6: USEém). Cash collateral
of WSE1m {2018 USEm) were held bazed on the market value of the securities transferred. In the absence of default, the
Group does not sefl or repledge the debt securities collateral received and they are not recognised in the conzolidated
statermnent of financial position,

OVERVIEW

At 30 Howember 2017, the obligations under repurchase agreements were USE1 883m (201 & USEH1 984m).

30. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Oftsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements

The following table shows the assets that are subject to offsetting, enferceable master netting agreements and similar
arrangements ateach year end:

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Gross
amoustof Hat smount
racegnied of I ial Roilnled 1
limanisl PR ot sal allin thi
liabiitins prosentad ‘congolidaled Hatemant
Gemss sat oltiniha Intha of linancixl position
g e Hebabad
recognised statemant stalament of Cash
financial of firancial linanclal Financual collateral Mat
ustm assats positisn paaition ingdruments fecetved amoun
b
30 Novernber 2017 z
o
Financial assets: e
=
Derivative assats 353 - 363 {15) {141} 207 =
Riwerse repurchase agres ments 326 - 326 (326) - - E
Total 689 - 589 {341) {141} 207 5
3
]
s g
amount of Mt ayiruimi
i s ol Pinancial
limancisl AL Rl tend amoumi
Iabilinhes st e gl od i 1 -
Gmss 20 all In Tha In the cofesl il akod $2atamnt
FACETR IR v dkdale G il o Tinancial possiomn "
recogne slal I lat il -
Tinamcial of Tmancisl Financis Financtal  Cash coll sieral Mk e}
USEm Assats Pl kan [ansiibon Esbumans P e Ao E,
=
30 Mevesnber 2016 ;ﬁ
Financial assets: 2
Derivative assets 107 =, 107 (5 () o E
Rewerse repurchaze agreements 224 = 224 (224) - -
Total 331 - 331 [229) (&) 76 i

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (contimued)

Off sotting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements (conneusd)

The following table shows the liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar
arrangements at each year and:

Gross
wmaunt of Hat amount
recognised of financial Ralated amounts
fimanoisl linbilities: not sa ol intho
FELTIE] - ] |idated 21ab
Gross  sabolt in1he Ifi tha: of linancial posilios
amaunt af cansalidated lidatud
FRCOONHaE SEabamant statanint o Chsn
tinmesial of lirancisl lesnnecial Finansaal collabarsl L]
Lisgm linbilities pasition position inst: & lodged amoynt
30 Movember 2017
Financial liabilives:
Derivative labilities 361 - 361 (227) {10} 124
Repurchase agreements 1.883 - 1,883 (1.883) - -
Total 2,244 - 2,284 {2.110) {103 124
Groas
amsinl of st i
P kisisd] wal financis Felaled snounds
Tenandcial liabilithos mod a4 ol in 1k
= F e k] o klated salemaent
L sl all in i B hae o TGk posil on
amannd ol onnsol ilabe] ol i
fecignize] Brabemnn EtADemon] ol Cagh
limancisl o hiancis Thancisl Finanial oolbatorsl Bt
Usgm Lkl o it oEion Lo T (i eipind |
30 Movermber 2016
Financial liabilities:
Derivative liabilities Gty ] hidd {4a0) (18E) 16
Rapurchase agreements 1.984 = 1,984 {1.984) - =
Total 2628 - 2628 (2.624) (188} 16

The Group entered into enforceable master netting agresments for derivative transactions. as well as the repurchase
agreements for debl instruments with various counterparties. Except for certain futures contracts executed through
clearing house mechanism where the settiement amrangement satistied the |FRS netting criteria, the transactions undér
the enferceable master netting agreements and similar agreements invelving the exchange of financial instruments or
cash as collateral do not satisfy the IFRS netting criteria. The provision in the master netting agreement and similar
agreements enables a party to terminate transactions early and sattle at a net amount if a default or termination event
BCCUTS.
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31. PROVISIONS g
st m Empd crposr bl |15 Oghaot Tekal E
At 1 December 2015 17 128 2465

Charged to the consolidated income statement 11 52 63

Charged to other comprehensive income 22 - 22

Released during the year - (1E) (18} z
Utilised during the year (3) (54) (57) g
Other movements {2 - (2) g
At 30 November 2016 145 108 253 i
Charged to the consalidated income statement 7 94 101 E
Charged to other comprehensive income (23) - (23) g
Exchange differences 9 - 9 ;
Released during the year - {29) (29) g
Utitised during the year {12) 183) (95) §
Other movemeants 17 1 18

At 30 November 2017 143 o 234

Other provisions

Other provisions comprise provisions in respect of regulatory matters, litigation, reorganisation and restructuring. In view ﬁ

of the diverse nature of the matters provided for and the contingent nature of the matters 1o which they relate, the Group 3

is unable 10 provide an accurate assessment of the term over which provisions are expected 10 be utilised, E

g

L4

32. OTHER LIABILITIES E

B

Asat Asal S

30 Nowarsibar 30 Hovember -
S5 m 017 2016
Trade and other payvables 31,958 2980
Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds 1.225 1,23%
Reinsurance payables 705 504
Total 5,888 4,733

Third-party intenests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-pary unit holders’ interests in conzolidated
investmant funds which are reflected az a Liability since they can be put back 1o the Group for cash.

Trade and other payables are generally expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting penod, The
realization of third-party interests In investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy since these représent the
interasts of third-party unit holders in consolidated investment funds hald to back insurance and investment contract
liabilities and are subject to market risk-and the actions of third-party investors.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
An at 30 Movembar 2017 A5 a0 30 Novembad 2006
Millign sharas Ussm HMllkn shares USEm
At beginning of the financial year 12,056 13,998 12.:048 13971
Shares issued under share option schemea
and agency share purchase plan 18 &7 B P
At end of the financial year 12,074 14,065 12,0584 13.998

The Company issued 17,053,136 shares under share option scheme (2016: 7,1 74,665 shares) and 1,037.294 shares under
agency share purchase plan (2016: 927,042 shares) during the year ended 30 November 2017,

The Company and its subsidianes have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year
ended 30 November 2017 with the exception of 1,395,132 shares (2016: 16,849,374 shares) of the Company purchased
by and nil shares (2016 276,401 shares) of the Company seld by the smployes share-based trusts, These purchases were
made by the relevant scheme trustees on the Hong Keng Stock Exchange. These shares are hald on trust for participants
of the relevant schemeas and tharefore were not cancalled.

During the year ended 30 Movember 2017, 15,730.944 shares (20146 13,664 506 shares) wers transferred to eligible
directors, officers and employees of the Group from the emplovee share-based trusts under share-based compensation
plans as a mesult of vesting. As at 30 November 2017, 63,720,201 shares [201&; 78.056,013 shares) of the Company were
held by the employee share-based trusts,

Reserves

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available for sale securnities held at the end
of the reporting period.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The forelgn currency translation reserve comprizes all foreign currency exchange differences anzing from the transiation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Employes share-based trusts

Trusts have been established to acquire shares of the Company for distribution to participants in future periods through the
share-bazed compensation plans. Those shares acquired by the trusts. 1o the extent nat transferred 1o the participants
upon vasting, are reported as “Employes share-based trusts”,

Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the revalued amount of property held for own uzse at
theand of the reporting period. Property revaluation surplus is not considered to be arealizsed profit available for distribution
to sharshoiders.

Other reserves
Other reserves mainly include the impact of merger accounting for business combinations under common contral and
share-bazed compensation

16 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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a4, NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at Axal

30 Nowarmbar 0 Mwrembast

SEns 3087 2006
Equity shares in subsidiares 13 59
Share of earnings 310 257
Share of other reserves 4 10
Total ara 326

35, GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Capital Management Approach

The Group's capital managemant objectives focus on maintaining a strong capital bass to support the development of its
business, maintaining the ability to move capital freely and satisfving regulatary capital requirements at all times.

The Group’s capital management function over sees all capital-related activities of the Group and assists senior management
in making capital decisions. The capital management function participates in decisions concaming asset-liability
management, strategic assat allocation and ongoing selvency management. This includes ensuring capital considerations
are paramount in the strategy and business planning precesses and when datermining the AlA's capacity to pay dividends
1o shareholders,

Regulatory Solvency

The Group Is in compliance with the solvency and capital adeguacy requirements applied by its regulators. The Group's
primary insurance regulator at the AlA Company Limited (414 Co.) and AlA International Limited (AlA International ) levels
Is the Hong Hong Insurance Authority (HEIA), which requires that AlA Co. and ALA Internatiznal meet the solvency margin
reguirements of the Heng Keng Insurance Ordinance (HKIO), The HKIO (among other matters) sets minimum solvency
margin requirements hat an insurer must meet in order 1o be authonsed to carry on insurance busingss in or from Hong
Keng, AlA has given an undertaking to the HKIA to maintain an excess of assets over liabilities for branches other than
Hong Kong at no bess than 100% of the Hong Kong statutory minimum selvency margin requirement in each of A1A Co. and
ALA International.

The capital positions of the Group's two principal operating companies as of 30 November 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

20 Nevamber 2017 20 Movember 2004
Total  Regulstery Fotal  Bogulstiny
wvmilebla minimum Solvency avallabls misinmm Sodynaoy
U5Em capial caphtal ratha wagiial i Lad Tl
AlA Co, 8248 1,862 £43% 5699 1,659 404%
AlR International 1,826 2,421 322% 6,237 2,072 a0

For these purpeses, the Group defines total avallable capital as the amount of assets in excess of liabilivies measured in
accordance with the HKIO and “regulatory minimum capital® as the required minimum margin of solvency calculated in
accordance with the HEIO. The sclvency ratio (s the ratio of total available capital to regulatory minimum capital.

The Group's individual branches and subsidiaries are also subsect to the supervision of government regulators in the
Jurisdictions in which those branches and subsidiaries and their parent entity operate and, in relation to subsidiaries, in
which thiey are Incorporated, The various regulators overseeing the Group actively menitor our lecal solvency positions. AlA
Co.and AlA Internatienal submit annual filings to the HiKIA of their solvency margin position based an theirannual audited
financial statements.
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35. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE tcontimued

Regulatory Solvency (continssd)

The ability of the Company to pay dividends to shareholders and to meet other obligations depends ultimataly on dividends
and other payments being received from its operating subsidiaries and branches, which are subject to contractual,
regulatory and other limitations. The various regulators oversesing the individual branches and subsidiaries of the Group
have the discretion to impose additional restrictions on the ability of those regulated subsidiaries and branches to make
payrment of dividends er other distributions and payments to AlA Co,, Including increasing the required margin of selvency
that an operating unit must maintain, For example, capital may not be remitted without the consent from regulators for
certain individual branches or subsidiaries of the Group. The payment of dividends. distributions and other payments to
shareholders is subject to the oversight of the HKIA

Capital and Regulatory Ordors Spocific to the Group
Az of 30 Novemnber 2017, the requiremants and restrictions summarised balow may be considerad matarial to the Group
and remain in effect unless otherwise stated,

Hong Kong Insurance Authority
AIA Group Limitad has given 1o the Insurance Authority an undertaking that AlA Group Limited will:

(i} ensure that (a} each of AlA Co.and AlA International will at all imes maintain an excess of assets over liabilities of not
less than the aggregate of 150% of the Hong Keng statutory minimum solvency margin requiremeant in respect of the
Heng Kong branch and no less than 100% of the Hong Kong statutory minimum solvency margin requirement for
branches other than Hong Kong minimum amount™; (b) it will not withdraw capital or transfer any funds or assats
out of AlA Co. or AlA International that will cawse the solvency ratio 1o fall below the minimum amounts specified in (a),
except with, in either case, the prier written consent of the Insurance Authenity; and (c) sheuld the solvency ratio of
either AlA Co. or AlA International fall below the respective minimum ameounts, ALA Group Limited will take steps as
soon 3% possible 1o restore it 1o at least the respective minimum amounts ina manner acceptable o the [nsurance
Authority,

{iiy notify the Insurance Autheority in writing 25 soon as the Company becomes aware of any person (a) becoming a
contraller (within the meaning of Section 9{1 )a}ri)(E} of the HKIOY of AlA Co. and AlA Wtematicnal through the
acquisition of sur shares traded on the HKSE: or (b) ceasing to be a controller (within the meaning of Section 9(1)(a)
(iii)}{B) of the HKID) of Al& Co. and AlA International through the disposal of our shares traded on the HKSE;

{iii}be subject 1o the supervision of the Insurance Authority and AIA Group Limited will be required to continually comply
with the Insurance Authority's guidance on the “fit and proper” standards of a controller pursuant to Section 3(2) of tha
HE. The Insurance Authority is empowered by the HHIO to raise objection if it appears to it that any person is not fit
and proper to be a contrelier or director of an authorised insurer, These standards include the sufficiency of a holding
company’s financial resources; the viability of a holding company's business plan for its insurance subsidiaries which
are regulated by the Insurance Authority: the clarity of the Groups legal, manageral and operational structurnes: the
identities of any other holding companies or major regulated subsidiaries; whether the holding company. its directors
or confrellars is subject to receivership, administration, liquidation or other similar proceedings or failed to satisfy any
jurdgement debt under a court order or the subject of any criminal cenvictions ar in breach of any statutory or regulatory
requirements; the soundness of the Group's corporate govemance; the soundness of the Group's risk management
framework: the receipt of information from its insurance subsidiaries which are regulated by the Insurance Authority to
ensure that they are managed in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulation: and its role in overseeing and
managing the operations of its insurance subsidianes which are regulated by the Insurance Authaority; and

{iv)fulfil all enhancements of improvenents ta the gukdance referred 1o In subparagraph (i} above_as well asadministrative
migazures izsuwed from time to time by the Insurance Authority or requirements that may be prescribed by the Insurance
Authority in accordance with the HKID, regulations under the HRIO or guidelines issued by the Insurance Authority
from time ta time.

18 | ALR GROUP LIMITED

603/655



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

d6. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk managemont framework

AIA recognises the importance of sound risk management in every aspect of our business and for all our stakeholders. The
Risk Management Framework (RMF) provides the structure for identifying. quantifying and mitigating risk acrozs the
Group. An effective RMF is the key o avwoiding the financial and reputational damage that arises from inadequate or
ineffective contral of the risks in the business.

OVERVIEW

Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk arizing from changes in claims experience as well as more general exposure relating to the
acqulisition and persistency of insurance business. This also includes changes to assumptions regarding future experience
for these risks.

Lapse
Lapse risk s the risk that the rate of policy termination deviates from the Group's expectation,

Ensuring customers buy products that meet their needs is central 1o the Group's Operating Philosophy. Through effective
implementation of the Business Quality Framewark, comprehensive sales training pregrammes and active menitoring of
sales activities and persistency, the Group seeks o ensure that appropriate products are sold by qualified sales
rapresentatives and that standards of service consistently mest our customens’ needs.

Expense
Expanse risk is tha rizk that the costof selling new business and of administering the in-force baok exceads the assumptions
made in pricing and/or resarving.

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

Daily operations follow a disciplined budgeting and control process that allows for the management of expenses based on
the Group's very substantial experience within the markets in which we operata,

Morbidity snd Mortality

Marbidity and maortality risk {5 the risk that the cccurrence andfor amounts of medical/death claims are higher than the
assumptions made in pricing andfor resarving.

COAPORATE COVERMAMCE

The Group adheres to well-defined market-oriented underwriting and claims guidelines and practices that have baen
developed based on extensive historical experience and with the assistance of professional reinsurers.

The Group's actuarial teams conduct regullar experience studies of all the insurance risk factors in its in-force book. These
Intarnal studles togethar with external data are used to identify emerging trends which can then be used to inform prodect
design, pricing, underwriting, claims management and reinsurance needs.

Throwgh monitoring the development of both focal and glebal trends in medical technology, health and wellness, the
Impact of legislation and general sccial, political and economic conditions the Group seeks to anticipate and respond
premptly to patential adverse experience impacts on its products.

Relnsurance is used to reduce concentration and wolatility risk, especially with large policles or new risks. and as protection
against catastrophic events such as pandemics or natural disasters.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT tcontimued)

Investment and financial risks

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that third parties fail ta maet their obligations to the Group when they fall due. Although the primary
source of credit risk is the Group's investment porticlio, such risk can also arise through reinsurance, procurement. and
tréasury activities,

The Group's credit risk management oversight process |s governed centrally, but provides for decentralised management
and sccountability by our lnes of business. A Key to AlA's credit risk management is adherence 10 3 well-controlled
underwriting process. The Group's credit risk management starts with the assignment of an internal rating to all
counterparties. A detailed analysis of sach counterparty Is performed and a rating recommended by the first lines of
business. The Group's Risk Management function manages the Group's internal ratings framework and reviews thesa
recommendations and make final decizion on the assigned ratings. Measzuring and monitoring of cradit risk is an ongoing
process and is designed to enable early identification of emerging risk.

Imterest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk predominantly arisas from any differances betwean the duration of the Group’s
Habilities and assets. Since most markets do not have assets of sufficient tenor to match life insurance liabilities, an
uncertainty arses around the reinvestment of maturing assets to match the Group’s insurance liabilities.

AlA manages interest rate risk primarily on an economic basis to determine the durations of both assets and liabilities.
Interest rate risk on local solvency basis is also taken Into consideration for business units where local solvency regimas
deviate from economic basis. Furthermons, for products with discretionary benefits, additional modedling of interest rate
risk is performed to guide determination of appropriate management actions. Management also takes into consideration
the asymmetrical impact of interest rate movements when evaluating products with options and guarantees.

0 | AR GROUP LIMITED
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36, RISK MANAGEMENT icontimst) ;
Investment and financial risks tcontenog =
Exposure to interest rate risk g
The table below summarises the nature of the intarest rate risk associated with financial assets and financial liabilives. In
preparing this analysis, fixed rate interest bearing instruments that mature or reprice within 12 months of the reporting
dane have been disclosed as variable rate instruments.
Wariable Fimd Hafi-Inlerig! =
UsEm Irto rint rate kit rabe baaring Total E
=
30 Movembar 2017 ni
Financial assets =
Loans and deposits 1,045 6919 9 7573 'E
Other receivables 1 - 1,898 1,899 -
Debt securities 8392 122,776 = 131,168 =
Equity securities - - 36,716 36,716 E
Reinsurance receivables = - 506 506 i
Accrued investment income - - 1.541 1,541
Cash and cash equivalents 2,001 - 288 2289
Derivative financial instruments - - 363 363
Total financial assets 11,439 129,695 41,321 182,455 -
o
Financial liabilities E
Investment contract liabilities - - 8,082 B,082 E
Borrowings - 3,958 - 3,958 2
Obligations under repurchase agreements 1,883 - - 1,883 =
Other liabilities %2 - 5,794 5888 E
Derivative financial instruments - - s 361 2
Total financial Habilities 1,975 3,958 14,239 20,172
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT ioninued)

Investment and financial risks (contimed
Exposure to interest rate risk (continusd

W arkabdw Fioaad P il piess
Lisim Inbamst faln ol sl ke Esiaring Total
30 Mewvember 2016
Financial assats
Loans and deposits 1.108 5929 25 7062
Other recevables 164 = 1.569 1,733
Dabt secunties 342 106,276 - 113618
Equity securities = - 30211 30211
Reinsurance recelvables - - 335 335
Accrued investment incoms - - 1,383 1,283
Casgh and cazh equivalents 1,456 - 186 1.642
Derivative financial instruments - - 107 107
Total financial assots 10070 112,205 33816 156,091
Financial liakibities
Investmeant contract liabilities - - 7.028 7.028
Bormowings - 45T 1 3,460
Dbligations under repurchase agreements 1.984 - - 1,984
Other Liabilities = = 4723 4723
Derivative financial instroments - - LT G
Total financial labilities 1984 3459 12,395 17.33%

Equity price risk

Equity price risk arizes from changes in the market value of equity securities. Investments in eguity securities on a long-
term basis are expected to provide diversification benefits and enhance returns. The extent of exposure to equities at any
time is subject 1o the terms of the Group's strategic asset allocations.

Equity price risk is managed in the first instance through the individual investrment mandates which define benchmarks
and any tracking efver targets. Equity limits are alss applied o contain individual exposures. Equity exposunes are included
in the aggregate exposure reports on each individual counterparty 10 ensure concentrations ane avoided.
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36. RISK MANAGEMEMNT icontiest)
Investment and financial risks fconbeuod
Equity price risk icontimisi}

Sansitivity analysis

OVERVIE'W

Sensitivity analysis to the key variables affecting financial azsets and liabilities iz sat out in the table balow. Informaticn
relating to sensitvity of insurance and investment contracts with DPF is provided in note 27, The carrying values of ather

financial aszsets are not subject to changes in response to movements in interest rates or equity prices. In calculating the
sansitivity of debt and equity instruments 1o changes in interast rates and equity prices, the Group has made assumptions
about the corresponding impact of asset valuations on liabilities o policyholders. Assets held o support unit-linked
contracts have been excluded on the basis that changes in fair value are wholly borne by policyholders, Sensitivity analysis
for assets held in participating funds has been calculated after allocation of returns to policyholders using the applicable

minimum policyholders’ participation ratios described in note 2.

Information is presentad to illustrate the estimated impact on profits and totl equity arising from a change in a single

variable before taking Inte account the effects of taxation,

The impact of any impairments of financial assets has been ignored for the purpose of illustrating the sensitivity of profit

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

before tax and tetal equity before the effects of taxation to changes in interest rates and equity prices en the grounds that
default events reflect the characteristics of individual issvers. As the Group's accounting policias lock in interest rate
assumptions on policy inception and the Group’s assumptions Incorporate a provision for adver & deviations, the level of
movernent [llustrated in this sensitivity analysis does not result in loss recognition and so there is not any corresponding

affact on liabilities. w
=
30 Nowermbar 2017 30 Mowsenber 2016 E
impact impact impact imgact 5
ontolal on allocated ool on allocabed s
equity aquity sty ety =
Impaect {bafara {alom the It [{=EET i Earlare Lha g
on prolit  the affects wltects oy gl ther liects aHocts S
5Em before ax - of thxatiomd  of taxation) Dt L of aatien) ol taxation) E
L)
Equity price risk
10 par cant increass in equity prices 1,182 1.182 1,182 995 995 995
10 per cent decrease In equity prices (1,182) {1.182) (1.182) (995) {995) (995)
Interest rate risk
+ B0 basis points shift In yield curves {157} (5.678) (157} [204) {4,69%) (204}
- 50 basis points shift in yield curves 149 6,272 169 219 5179 219
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT dcontimued)

Investment and financial risks (contimed

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group's foretgn exchange rate risk arises mainly from the Group's eperations in multiple geographical markets in the
Asia-Pacific region and the translation of multiple currencies to US dollar for financial reporting purposes. The balance
sheet values of our operating units and subsidiaries are not hedged to the Group's presentation currency, the LS dollar,

However, assets, liabilites and local regulatory and stress capital in each business unit are generally currency matched
with the exception of holdings of squities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. or any expected
capital movements due within one year which may be hedged. Bonds denominated in currencies other than the functonal
currancy arg commeanly hadged with cross-currency swaps or foreign exchange forward contracts.

Forelgn exchange rate net exposure

United Stales Hang Kong Thai Singapons Malaysan China

USEm Cralkar Diar Baht CHalfar Rirsggit Renminbi
30 Movemibar 2017
Equity analy=ed by original cumency 26,4697 2,772 3,768 (2.356) 2,157 3,527
Het notional amounts of cunrency

derivative positions (9.225) 597 2,535 3005 = 8
Currency exposure 15,272 3,369 6,303 B4T 2,157 3,535
5% strengthening of original currency
Impact on prefit before tax 164 3 {8) 21 4 19
Impact on other comprahenzive income (188) 133 323 12 104 158
Impact on total equity (24) 136 315 33 108 177
5% strengthening of the US dollar
Impact on profit before tax 164 30 9 (5} (3} {16)
Impact on other comprehensive income (188) {166} (324) {28} {105) {161)
Impact on tetal equity {24) (136} {315) {33} {108} {177)

Ui Slates Handg Kong Thali Singapois Mal aysian L hina

USEm Dol g [rotar Iahs Dol ag Ringg Fnrrimin b4
30 Movember 2016
Equity analyzed by original curmrency 20429 2208 2902 {2.786) 1,939 4,098
Het notional amounts of currency

derivative positions {7.104) 601 2010 2861 {1ET) (122)
Currency exposure 13325 2809 4912 75 1,752 3976
5% strengthening of original currency
Impact on profit before tax 149 11 n a5 (&) 14
Impact on other comprehensive incarme {184) 99 252 {(31) 94 185
Impact on total equity (15} 110 245 & B2 199
5% strengthening of the US dollar
Impact en profit before tax 169 21 (] (20} 7 {10
Impact on other comprehensive income (184) {121) (239) 16 (93} {189)
Impact on total equity (15) {110} {243) {4 (B8} (199)
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36. RISK MANAGEMEMNT icontist)

Investment and financial risks (o

Liquidity risk

ALA identifies Hquidity risk as eccurring in two ways, financial Uquidity risk and Investment lquidity risk. Financial lguidity
risk is the risk thatinsufficient cash is available 1o meet payment obligations to counterparties as they fall due. One area of
particular focus in the management of financial liguidity |s collateral. AlA manages this exposure by determining limits for
its activities in the derivatives and repurchase agreement markets based on the collateral available within the relevant
fund or subsidiary to withstand extreme market events. More broadly AlA supports its liquidity through committed bank
facilities. use of the bond repurchase markets and maintaining access to debt markets via the Company’s Global Medium-
terrm Wote and Securities prograrmme,

Investrent liguidity risk oceurs in relation to the Group's ability to buy and sell investrments, Thisis a function of the size of
the Group's holdings relative to the availability of counterparies willing to buy or sell these holdings at any given time. In
times of stress, market losses will generally be compounded by forced sellers seeking unwilling buyers.

While life insurance companies are charactenised by a relatively low need for liquidity 1o cover those of their liabilities
which are directly linked to mortality and marbidity, this rizk iz neverthelezs carefully managed by continuously assessing
the relative liguidity of the Group's assets and managing the size of individual haldings through limdts,

Diue sltar Doz altas
Duw in N VORr Tivvn yiars
ol yiar thraugh thiawgh o aftior Mo i
USEm Tezal orless  Plve years 1&n yanrs tan yaars matirity
30 Novermber 2017
Financial assets (Policyholder and
sharaholder investmeants)
Loans and deposits T.h66 1427 19 399 2,392 2,729
Dihver receivables 1727 1617 59 & = &5
Debt securities 126,666 3,834 17553 3,338 73743 -
Equity securities 17,763 - - = - 17,763
Reinsurance raceivables 506 506 - - - -
Accrued investrment Income 1,494 1,486 1 - - 7
Cash and cazh equivalents 1,833 1.833 - - - -
Derivative financlal instruments 352 T8 142 122 12 =
Subtotal 158,005 10,779 18674 31,861 16,147 20,544
Financial assets (Unit-linked contracts and
consolidated investment funds) 24,650 - = - - 26,4650
Total 182,455 10,779 18674 31,861 76,147 54,994
Financlal and insurance contract labilities
(Policyholder and shareholder investments)
Insurance and investment contract liabilities
(net of deferred acquisition and origination
costs, and reinsurance) 109,900 2,609 10,420 11,404 85,467 =
Bomrowings 3958 500 49410 1,242 1,717 -
Dbligatiens under repurchase agreements 1,883 1,883 - - - -
Other liabilities L5455 3314 &7 2 - 1,082
Derivative financial instruments 361 170 57 86 48 -
Subtotal 120,547 BATSE 11,023 12,734 87,232 1,082
Financial and insurance contract labilities
{Unit-linked contracts and conselidated
Investment funds) 24,4650 = = - - 24,450
Total 144,997 BATE 11,023 12,734 87,232 25,532

ok
{1} Ho borrowings aee dis altor 3 woars thisugh 5 years.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT tcontimued)
Investment and financial risks (conbimed

Liquidity risk tcontimed}
Duralior (s altes
Dhiss I Y v yoars
T Thanisgh 1Eraigh (TR N B T iend
Usiim Teaal of btk Tibies yandd s N Wisars Dy Wi Uiy
30 Movermber 20156
Financial assets (Policyholders and
shareholder investmants)
Loans and deposits & B6E 318 1,095 298 2,204 2451
Other recaivablas 1676 1.558 78 & - 34
Debt securities 109162 3,098 16,341 28241 61,432 -
Equity securitias 14713 - - - - 14,713
Reinsurance receivables 335 336 = - - -
Accrued investment incomie 1,381 1,333 1 - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 1137 1137 = = = =
Derivative financial instruments 104 53 12 26 13 -
Subtotal 135334 8,332 17527 28,621 £3.649 17,205
Financial aszets (Unit-linked contracts and
consolidated investment funds) 0,757 - - - - 20,757
Total 156,091 833z 17527 28,621 636649 37942
Financial and insurance contract labilities
{Policyholders and shareholder investrments)
Insurance and investmeant contract liabilities
{net of deferred acquisition and origination
costs, and reinsurance) 95,007 2726 9,799 10,529 71954 -
Borrowings 3460 - 995 1.241 1.221 -
Ubll"qul.inns under repurchase agreements 1984 1,984 - - - -
Other liabilities 3379 2354 47 2 13 963
Derivative financial instrumants 642 Q3 208 313 28 -
Subtatal 104472 7156 11,052 12085 73216 953
Financial and insurance contract liabilities
{Unit-linked contracts and consolidated
invesirment funds) 20,743 - - - - 20,743
Total 125.215 1156 11.052 12,085 73216 21.706
oot

(1) Inchudes amonnds of US34%8m lalling dus slier 2 yoars theough 5 years
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

47. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Dofined bonofit plans

The Group operates funded and unfunded defined benefit plans that provide life and medical benefits for participating
employees after retiremeant and a lump sum benefit on cessation of employment. The locations covered by these plans
include Hong Kong, Singapore. Malaysia, Thalland, Indonesia, Korea, the Philippines, 5ri Lanka, Taiwan and Vietnam. The
lavest independent actuanial valuations of the plans were at 30 November 2017 and were prepared by credentialed
actuaries. All the actuaries are qualified members of professional actuarial organisations to render the actuarial opinions.
The actuasial valuations indicate that the Group’s ebligations under these defined benefit retirement plans ane &4 per cent
(2016: 33 per cent) covered by the plan assets held by the trustees. The fair value of plan-assets as at year end al the date
of valuation was USE79m (2014: US$62m). The total expenses relating to these plans recognised in the consolidated
incame statement was USETm (2016: USE1 1m).

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension plans. The total expense relating to these plans in the
current year was US372m (2014 USE6Tm). Employees and the employer are required to make monthly contributions
equal to 1 per cent to 22 per cent of the employess” monthly basic salanies, depending on years of service and subject to
any applicable caps of monthly relevant Income in different jurisdictions. For defined contribution pension plans with
vesting conditions. any forfeited contributions by employers on behalf of emplovees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fullyin such contributions are used by the employer to reduce any future contributions. The amountof forfeited contributions
used to reduce the existing level of contributions is net material,

OVERVIEW

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation plans

Dunng the year ended 30 November 2017, the Group made further awands of share options. restricted share units (RSUs)
and restricted stock purchase units (RSPUs) to certain directors, officers and employees of the Group under the Share
Option Scheme {S0 Schamae), the Restricted Share Unit Schemea (RSU Scheme) and the Employes Share Purchase Plan
{ESFP). In additisn, the Group made further awards of restricted stock subscription units (RSSUs) to eligible agents under
the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPP).

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

RSU Scheme

Under the RSU Scheme, the vesting of the awarded RSUs is conditional upon the eligible participants remaining in
employment with the Group during the respective vesting pericds. RSU awards are vested either entirely after a specific
period of time or in ranches over the vesting peried. For RSU awards that are vested in tranches, each vesting tranche is
accounted for as a separate award for the purposes of recognising the expense over the vesting periad. For certain RSUs,
performance conditions are alse attached which include bath market and non-market conditons. RSUs subject to
performance conditions are released to the participants at the end of the vesting period deépending on the actual
achievement of the performance conditions. During the vesting period, the participants are not entitled to dividends of the
underlying shares. Except in jurisdictions where restrictions apply, the awarded RSUs are expected to be settled in equity;
awards that the Group has the legal or constructive obligation to settle in cash are inséignificant to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be awardad under this schems is 301,100,000 {2014 301,100,000}, reprasenting approximately
2.5 per cent (2016: 2.5 per cent} of the number of shares in issue at 30 Movember 2017,

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (cominsed)
Share-based compensation plans (contwueds

RSU Scheme icomtinuesi)
Faar endied Yanar s
0 Nowemiber 30 Mowambns
Iy M6
Mumber of shares
Restricted Share Units
Outstanding at beginning of financial vear 49,337,302 53630778
Awarded 16,003,902 18964022
Forfeited {751,321} (10130.721)
Vestad (14.989,196) (13,126.777)
Outstanding at end of financial year 42,600,687 49337302
50 Scheme

The objectives of the S0 Scheme are 1o align eligible participants’ interests with those of the shareholder s-of the Company
by allowing eligible participants 1o share in the value created at the point they exercize their options, Share opticn (50)
awards are vested either entirely after a specific pariod of time or In tranches over the vesting period approxmately three
1o five years, during which, the eligible partcipants are required to remain in employment with the Group. Far S0 awands
vested in tranches, each vesting tranche is accounted for as a separate award for the purposes of recognising the expeanse
aver the westing peried. The awarded share options expire 10 years from the date of grant and sach share option entitles
the eligible participant to subscribe for one ordinary share. Except in jurizsdictions where restrictions apply, the awarded
share options are expacted to be sattled in equity; awards that the Group has the lagal or constructive obligation to settls
in cash are insignificant to the Group, The total number of shares under options that can be awarded under the scheme is
301,100,000 (2014 301,100,000}, representing approcdmately 2.5 per cent (2014 2.5 per cent) of the number of shares
in issue at 30 Hovember 201 7.

Information about share options outstanding and share oplions exercisable by the Group’s emplovess and directars ag at
the end of the reparting persod is as follows:

Vaaf anded Wisar etyded
30 November 3017 30 Meweember 2006

Waighled Wiskghisd
AT WO
Numibar al' enerclse price Muinlse of o s pricE
AT O biens (HHS} share oplions: {HKE]

Share options
Outstanding at beginning of financial year 41,581,033 3588 40458 104 33.19
Awarded FAGDSLT 51.70 9.550,232 41.90
Exercisad (17,053,138} 30,10 (7A74,665) 858
Forfeited or expired (4,876,612} 46,79 (1.252 638) 39.91
Outstanding at end of financial year 29,912,234 4158 41581.033 3588
Shane options sxencisable at end of financial year 14,134,157 37.28 20592 646 29.44

At the date the share option was exercised, the weighted average share price of the Company was HKE52.61 for the vear
ended 30 November 2017 (2016 HET49.63),

AT | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

38. SHARE-BASED COMPEMNSATION tcontinus1

Share-based compensation plans (continuesd)

50 Scheme (contimed}

The range of exercise prices for the share options outstanding as of 20 Novernber 2017 and 2016 is summarised in the
table below.

OVERVIE'W

Wiear anched Year emiled
A0 Movembee 2017 20 Movembor 2016 =
Waighied Walkghiad E
AVETADE BT L
remaining ol -
Huymbar gf coniracies Fumbed of cnntiachial =
Anrg catice lile share optlons it =
outslanding {yoars} oy EsEan ding {ymars) =
[
=
Range of exercise price E
HE:26 — HK$35 5,059,663 &1 20575507 514 3
HKE56 — HKE45 12,090,822 .58 15,489,143 248 E
HES46 — HKESS 10,787,231 B34 5516383 g.28 £
HHKE56 — HKE65 1,174,518 967 = -
Dutstanding at end of firancial year 29,112,234 T.36 41581033 5,80
ESPP

Under the plan, eligible employees of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with qualified employee
contributions and the Company will award one matching restricted stock purchase unit to them at the end of the vesting
perfod for each two shares purchased through the qualified emploves contributions (contribution shares). Contribution
shares are purchased from the open market. During the vesting period, the eligible employees must hold the contribution
shares purchased during the plan cycle and ramain employed by the Group. The level of qualified employes contribution is
limited ta not mare than 8 par cent of the annual basic salary subject to a maximum of HKE117.000 per annum. The
awarded matching restricted stock purchase units are expected to be settled in equity. For the year ended 30 Movember
2017, eligible emplovees paid USE30m (2016: US$146m) to purchase 2,739 064 ordinary shares (201 6: 2,636,497 crdinary
shares) of the Company.

ASPP

The structure of the ASPP genarally folloves that of the ESPP the key difference being that the eligible agents are required
1o pay a subscription price of US%1 to subscribe for each new share in the Company at the end of the vesting period. Under
the plan, eligible agents of the Group can purchase ondinary shares of the Company with qualified agent contributians and
the Company will award one matching restricted stock subscription unit 1o them at the end of the vesting period for each
two shares purchased through the gualified agent contributions (agent contribution shares) Each restricted stock
subscription unit entitles sligible agents to subscribe for ane new share of the Company. Agent contribution shares are
purchased from the open market. During the vesting period, the eligible agents must hold the contribution shares purchased
during the plan cycle and maintain theiragentcontracts with the Group, The awarded matching rastricted stock subzcription
units are expected to be settled in equity. The lavel of qualified agent contribution iz subject to & maximum of US215,000
jper annum. For the year ended 30 Novembar 2017, eligible agents paid US520m (201.6: US$17m) to purchaze 2708018
ordinary shares (2016: 2.792.54% ordinary shanes) of the Company.

CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

. FIHANCIAL STATEMEHTS .

Valuation methodaology

The Group utilises a binormial [attice model to caleulate the fair value of the share aption awards, a Monte-Carlo simulation
model andfor discounted cash flow technigue to calculate the fair value of the RSU, ESPP and ASPP awards, taking into
account the terms and conditions upen which the awards were made. The price volatility is estimated on the basiz of
implied volatility of the Company's shares which is based on an analysis of historical data since they are traded in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The expected life of the share options is derived from the output of tha valuation model and is
calculated based on an analysis of expected exercise behaviour of the Company's employees. The estimate of market
condition for performance-based RSUs is based on one-year historical data preceding the grant date. An allowance for
forfelture pricr to vesting is not included in the valuation of the awands.
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38. SHARE-BASED COMPEMNSATION quoainusd)

Valuation methodology cominued)

The fair value calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
rmodel utilised.

Yoar gndad 30 Nowember 2017

ESPP AsPR
Rsdricied Rusigicted
#Hock sk
Share Restricted purchase subacription
options sharg unils wnits units
Assumptions

Risk-free interest rate 1.45% - 1.90%  0.83% - 1.29%° 0.68% - 1.29% 1.25%
Vigdatiliny 20% 20% 20% 20%
Dividend yield 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8%
Exarcise price {HK$) 50.30 - 61.55 nia nia nfa
Share option life (in years) 10 nfa nia nfa
Eupected life (in years) 7.95- 8.00 nfa nia nfa

Weighted average fair value per option/unit
at measurement date (HKE) 10,47 39.95 58.25 45,81

Yoar emdod B0 Nowembser 7016
ESPP ASPP
Rtk besd Resstic s
ok slock
Share Rt bcnasd purclass subscript on
optlans shate Linils 1snits unirs
Assumptions

Risk-free interest rate 1.25% 050%-0.74%" 047% - 0.BE% 091%
Viglandliny 20% 2% 20% 20%
Dividend yield 1.8% 1.8% 1.2% - 1.8% 1.8%
Exercise price (HKE) £1.90 nfa nia nia
Share option life (in years) 10 nfa nia nfa
Expected life {in years) 803 nia nfa nia

Weighted averags fair value per sptionfunit
at measurement date (HK3} 7.74 34,35 &, 20 3492

* Applicabls to RSL with maikel coreditions.

The weighted average share price for share option valuation for award s made during the year ended 30 Movember 2017 is
HK351.70 (2016: HKE41.60), The total fair value of share options awarded during the year endad 30 November 2017 is
US313m (2018 USE10m).

Recognised componsation cost
The total recognized compensation cost (net of expected forfeitures) related to various share-based compensation awards

made under the RSU Scheme, S0 Scheme, ESPP and ASPP by the Group for the year ended 30 Movember 2017 (s US$79m
(2016 USEE4m).
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Directors’ remuneration

The Executive Directors receive compensation in the form of salaries, bonuses, centributions to pension schemes, long-
term incentives, housing and other allowances, and benefits In kind subject to applicable laws, niles and regulations.
Bonuses and long-term incentives represent the variable components in the Executive Director’s compensation and are
linked o the performance of the Group and the Executive Director, Details of share-based payment schemes are described
in note 38,

OVERVIEW

:
Salsring, =
iewares Peaun &
Dirdtar’s  and Bandlen Shari-Baded s=hema Oehuer  Indutamant g
T 3 [ in kind'" Bonuses pavmenis'!! condributien banatits! faus Total 5
=
Yeear encded 30 Hoveenbser 2017 5
Expcirtive Diractors E
Mr. Mark Edwaand Tucker®! = 1135962 &824000 8336772 70945 1,156706 - 15522379 =
Mr, Mg Keng Hool™ = T49,333 1,504,110 1,375587 44,788 " - 3,67381E E
Tatal = 1,685285 6,328,110 97123569 115737 1,164706 = 19,196,197 g
Salaries
Bl boraes % Periion
s iod’s  -and bemsfay Shite-baied 105 oy Drhes Tl el

U3 1o, il Ewroet Dol comribulion beraii o Teetal
Yoar ended 30 Hovembsr 7016 §
Executive Mirector &
[
Mr. Mark Edward Tucker! = 2212482 45636000 BIO7&TT 137417 - = 15093570 g
L
Tatal = L212748B2 4636000 BIO7ETT  137.417 - - 15093570 5
-l
&
Hotes: E
A1} Inchudes non-cash bonetits tor housing. nedical and lile insurance. children’s sducation, club and prolessionsl membarship crmpany car and 2

poaquisitis.

{2} Inchdes 50s and RSUs awarded basod upon the fair valus at grant date

{1} Inchudes past-ormploymen bonelis recebmd durirg gasden loave ard termination baredits.

{4} Mr Mark Edwind Tuckor monives his memonarslion ealusively Tor his mie & Gooa p Chiel Execatin and President and mcokas no separals foes
Hoe bobs o ey Drochor of the Comganmy oo o acting as a dieector of vy subsidtary of the Comparsy, Mr. Mark Edward Tuckor ratimed as Group Chisf
Esscitivay aited President with oflect eom 1 June 2017,

{5} Mr. Hg Kong Hool was sppodnted as Group Chisf Exscutihen and Presidont of the Comparny on 1 Jure 201 7, He mosbees his romunsration seclusimly
for it rode o Geoup Chisl Executive and Presidont and recedoss mo soparate lees for his robs o Diecior of the Company o for acting & a diector
ol &y sihaidiary of e Compamy

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS .
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39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL cominumd)

Directors’ remuneration (contimsi}

The remuneration of Mon-executive Director and Independant Mon-exscutive Directors of the Company at 30 November
2017 and 2016 are included in the tables bebow:

Salaraa
alkewantes Peerion
Director's  @nd benelits Share-taned wsheme Other  Inducement
5% Ty’ in kind @ B Eay comink beanafity [T Tatal
Yeat afvded 0 Novembar 00T
Fonrawecutive Direcior
. Mk Edwand Techor™ - - - - - = - =
Indepondent Non-executive
[hrctors
. Ednad Saze-Wing Tae® 570,000 109,383 - = = - = 679,383
Mt Inck Chak-Bywsong Sa 260,000 - - - - - - 260,000
i, Chaarg -Kong Chaow x20,000 = - = = = =] ¥20,000
M, Aok Barrie Harrison “HE0,000 - - - - - - 260,000
Py, Gy Yoo -EBoon Yeo H45,000 - - - - - - 245,000
Mo Mohamed fzman Yahya 5,000 = = = = = = 205,000
Prafesser Lawmonce luecYes Law 205,000 - - - - - - 205,000
P St Ll T 105,000 = = = = = = 105,000
[he. Honnngchad Akiasanss™ 145,000 - - - - - - 265,000
Mol Coscar Vel aspuns Purisima™ £3,630 - - - - - - 43,630
Tolal 478,600 109,383 = = = = = 2,588,013
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39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (continusd)
Directors’ remuneration jconlinued

Balarie,
il e Psfeiioon
Dilimesen's  and bamefas Fhuh-taws o haiten Crhd  Inedu et

s ™ i s Bixtuzmamy PARTERER  conl Rtk ety Sy Testal
Vet fvedind 30 Movambar 2004

Now-meocutive Dimotor

Ms. Edrunid Sm-Wirg Tse 571,230 97989 - = - - - LRSS
Imclapendsnt Non-executhio

[hroctors

M, 1nck Chak-Kwong So 60,000 - - . = - E 6000
M, Chianeg-Kong Chow 20 = - - - - = 220,00}
M, Johs Eiarrie Harrison 260000 - - - - - E 000
M. Goonipe Yong-Baon Yoo FOR000 - - - - = = 5,000
M, Mohasmed Azman Yahys 205,000 - - - - = - 5,000
Professor Lasgence JusnYor Lay 205,000 - - - - - = 5,000
M. Swen-Lian Too Pl 00 - - - - = 5 D05, 300
D Harongchai Akrasaren™ 188 566 = - - - - - 188566
Total 2,359,196 V28 - - - - - T 45T 08

Hides:

(1) Savedd a0 disclosed bk all Dirsct ons reciioe Ehe Toes for Hsin nole s a Directon of the Condpasiy and reol {on acting as & direcior ol sy subsidiary
wf the Company.

2} Inchudes ponecash benalits{od houging clul membsrehin and mosdical i and Ty AT

{2 M Mark Edvwand Tucker was m-desig ives Dlinec:tor of the Conmpany o | e 207 7 and etieed From (e positionon 1 5epiembeer
FOVF, He did not mooive a disoctors foe during his teruem of office a5 a Bon-oxecullive Direclor of the Company,

{4} Mr. Edmurd Seo-Wing Foo we m-designated as Indepondent Bon smculia Directorof the Comparyon 20 March 2017,

{5} Dr, Harongohai Alrasancs was appointed as Independent. Non-seecutive Director of the Company on 15 lanuary 2006, USES0000 which

repragents remanssation to D Nasongehal Aleasanes i eapect of his services as Chairman of Advisory Board of AL Thailand for the year soded
0 Novessanbssr 200 T i inclodod fn his foes

{6} Mr. Cosar Volasquer Pursima was appointed as Indepondont Hon-esmecutive Dimctor of the Company on 1 Seplember 2017

Remuneration of five highest-paid individuals
The aggregate remuneration of the five highest-paid individuals employed by the Group in each of the years ended 30
Movember 2017 and 2016 is presented in the table below.

Sl
PRI Treion
THnecion’s w5 Danal 113 ShapLugad L RiETha Eshet I areed

S [ i bentad ™ Bty pavmants®™  conbeibuilon [ ] Ay Total
Year andod

30 Mevembar 2017 - EO0%EIF3 10523042 15462857 247,032 2458727 = 33,790,051
30 Movember 2016 = 61468230 10114000 15870944  I99.748 = ~ 32432932
ot

{13 2007 and 2016 rancash benalns includs housing. medical and Lo insurance, medical check-up, chilimn's sducation, club and peofesskonal
rvsmadsrsdhipy, compary car and perquisiios.

{2} Includns 505 arvl RSLE avrardad 10 the Bive highest-paid indhiduals based uponihe lai value a grarg daga
{3} Inchudees post-omploymend benal s peceband duing gasden lave and termination benlits,
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39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MAMAGEMENT PERSONNEL trominued)

Remuneration of five highest-paid individuals (conpeued
The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest emoluments are within the fellowing bands:

Foar ended Vi el
30 Nowembar 30 Hiwembng
HEE Iy 2006
28500,001 to 29,000,000 1 -
30,000,001 to 30.500,000 =
32,000,001 to 32.500,000 1 =
33,000,001 to 33,500,000 = 1
34,500,001 to 35,000,000 - 1
35,000,001 to 35.500,000 1 =
36,000,001 to 36,500,000 - 1
45,500,001 to 46,000,000 i =
117,000,001 to 117,500,000 -
120500001 ve 121,000,000 1 -

Key management parsonnel remuneration
Hey management personnel have been identified as the members of the Group's Executive Committes.

Yoor @ ndied e anuchod

30 Hovamber A0 Nowembor
L5 T 206
Key management compensation and other expenses
Salaries and other short-térm employes benafits 27,287,063 265994421
Post-smployment benefits 3,731,580 568,687
Share-basad payments”! 18,646,971 21,144 940
Terminaticn benefits 078510 -
Total 52744104 48708048
Foin:
1) Imschudes S0s and Bl s o] Bo 8l by niars(amon] personiel Bt upon e Lair valas o goant dsto.
The emcluments of the key management personnel are within the following bands

Yaar anded Ve anudod

0 Hewamibar A0 Niwesmber
sk 17 i1
Balow 1,000,000 ' 2
1,000,001 1 2,000,000 5 1
2,000,001 1o 3.000,000 1 3
3,000,001 1o 4000000 3 3
4,000,001 to 5,000,000 2 3
5,000,001 to 6,000,000 1 -
Owar 7000000 1 1
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of Directors and key management parsonnel is disclosed in note 39.

4£1. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments under operating leasos
Total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As al Azl

0 Nowamber ) Mowembor

USEm 2017 2016
Proparties and others expiring

Mot kater than one year 128 120

Later than one and not later than five years 219 178

Later than five years 48 Q4

Total 395 392

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and items of office equipment held under operating leaszes.
The leasas typically run for an initigl period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the leass when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually reviewed at the end of the lease term to reflect market rates. Hone of the leases
include contingent rentals.

Investment and capital commitments

Asat Al

30 Novembar 0 Bovsmbanr
Ustm ELTE 2014
Mot later than one year 1.23 482
Later than oné and net later than five years & 10
Total 1.237 &92

Investment and capital commitments consist of commitments to invest in private equity partinerships and other assats,

Contingencies

The Graup is subject o regulation in each of the geographical markets in which it operates from insurance, securities,
capital markets, pension, data privacy and other regulaters and is exposed to the risk of regulatory actions in response to
perceived or actual non-compliance with regulations relating to suitability, sales or undenariting practices, claims
payments and procedures, preduct dasign, dizclosure, administration, denial or dalay of banefits and breaches of fiduciary
or other duties. The Group believes that these matters have been adequataly provided for in these financial statements.

The Group is exposed to legal proceedings, complaints and other actions from its activities including those arising from
commercial activities, sales practices, suitability of products, policies and claims. The Group believes that these matiers
are adequately provided for in these financial statements.

The Group |= the reinsurer in a residential mortgage credit reinsurance agreement covering residential mortgages in
Australia, The Group is exposed to the risk of losses in the event of the failure of the retrocessionaire, a subsidiary of
American International Group, Ine. 1o honour 15 sutstanding obligations which s mitigated by a trust agreement. The
principal balance outstanding of mortgage leans 1o which the reinsurance agreament relates were approximately USE561m
at 30 Nowember 2007 (20146; USE616m). The labilities and related reinsurance assets, which tofalled USS2m (2018
USEH3m), respectively, arising from these agreements are reflected and presented on a gross basis in these financial
staternents in stcordance with the Group's accaunting policies. The Group expects to fully recover amounts sutitanding at
the reporting date under the terms of this agreement from the retrocessionaire.
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. SUBSIDIARIES

The principal subsidiary companies which materially contribute to the net income of the Group or hold a material element
of its assets and liabilites ara:

Al LT
Bace it 1) Hiswitssa 201 T 30 hicwrismibae A
st furEa Ly Devtg's [ i Omups [T
i of @ity [T LSS PR gsl st ly Ml Fibte PN Wil e Al % iR
AW Compary Limined HongKong  Insurance 1,151,059 861 catlinary sharis 100 - 1005 -
Tor US55 062 E G000 e
hiarm capial
AL Inbemational Limdoed Bearenida Insurance 000,000 ordinary shams 100% = 00 -
ol U531 240 sach
ALA Auestralia Limied Aurtralia Insurance 112068 300 cndinary shares 100% - i -
of RS TLET 2800 lsnumd
ghans capital
AW Peeion and Trustoe Co Ll Brimsh Virgin  Trestesship 19,500, 000 oedinany shares 100% - 100 -
lands ol USET eadch
A, b, Hlakayeis Inexifance THI AR 7% cidinary shares 100%. - 10 -
al B exth
LA S o P ale Limited Singapane Il ey 137 R00000 cidinary shares 100% - 100 -
ol 531 wach
PT. AlA Financial Erdonesiba Insuirancs 10846140 erdinary shares 100% - 100 -
ol Fop 1000 each
T Phillipsgeine Amerbcan Lile Phllippines Insuranoo 190550671 codinary sharos of 100% = 10 -
and Ceneral Insurance PHP1O sach ased 439300
{PHILAM LIFE} Compasy Tasiry shams
ALKV 3 L Wit Insuirancs Conbrilaaled capital of 100% - 1000 -
o pramry L I e WHDE, 263 0ol O 0K
ARA Bnsiiranos Lanka PLC Sl Lanka InEsiFance Saatead cagital ol 07.08% LB LT ABAN
LERST1.901 834
Bayzhoms Daveloprmend Group Liniel — Briseh Virgin  Investmest 1 000oedinany £haes of L 10 Ll 0%
Edands Bidddiesg USEY cach
CEENPANY
BF-Pham Le Assurance Phillppenes  Insurance TR AT erdinary shares 1% L5 £1% W
(EPLAC) Corporalion ol PHP1 each and 6000
sy shass
LA, Rrincsiranca L ienitosd Hamnla Reingwance 2500000 comamon dhaies o 100% - 100 -
USET sach
Ml

{13 The Company's subsidiarg

2y Altod the above subsidiagies aro sudied by Prcowatorhouselonpaes,

All subsidiaries are unlisted except AlA Insurance Lanka PLC which i3 listed on the Main Baard of the Colombo Stock

Exchange.

236 | ALR GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 January 2018, AlA International completed the transfer of its Insurance business in Korea from a branch to a wholly-
owned subsidiary, AlA Life Insurance Co. Ltd. This transfer was not expected to have any material financial impact on the
Group consolidatad financial statements.

OVERVIEW

In Septembear 2017, the Group reached an agreemant, subject to securing all necessary regulatory and governmental
approvals, to acquire Commonwealth Bank of Australia’s (CEA] life insurance business in Australia and life and health
Insurance businesses In Mew Zealand. The transaction incledes 20-year strategic bancassurance partnerships with CEA
in Australia and ASE Bank Limited in New Zealand. The transaction will expand the Group's distribution capabilities and
customer reach in Australia and New Zealand markets. As announced on 21 September 2017, the gross consideration to
be paid with respact to the proposed transaction is expected to be approxmately US$3.0 billion payable in cash on
completion of the proposed transaction and subject to certain adjustments at completion, After taking into account the
expectsd proceeds from reinsurance agreements and the expacted free surplus of the acquired businssszas, the final net
cash outlay by AlA is expectad o be approximately USE1.5 billion.

In December 201 7, the Group entered intoa 15-year extension of the ecasting exclusive regional bancassurance agreament
with Public Bank Berhad, a leading Malaysian banking group, extending the partnership from 2023 to 2037,

FIMAHCIAL AND DFERATING REVIEW

The Board has resolved 1o change the Company's financial year-and date from 30 Movember to 31 December. Accordingly,
the next financial year-and date of the Company will be 31 December 2018 and the next audited financial statements of
the Group will cover a 13-month period from 1 December 2017 1o 31 December 2018,

On 27 February 2018, a Committee appointed by the Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of 74.38 Hong Kong
cents per shara (2016; 63.75 Hong Kong cents per share),

. FIHAMCIAL STATEMEHTS . CORAPORATE COVERMAMCE

ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Ax nt LEE

30 Hovember A0 Mewembay
USEm 2017 s
Azzels
Investment in subsidianes 15,750 15.745
Available for sale — debt securities 2,642 1545
At fair value through profit or loss — derivative financial instruments a7 =
Loans tofamounts due from subsidiaries 3.554 2903
Other assets 17 4
Cazh and cazh equivalents 5 4
Total assots 21,805 20240
Liabilities
Borrowirgs 4,420 3797
Derivative financial instruments 125 -
Cther liabilities &3 70
Total liabilities 4,588 3EB47
Equity
Share capital 14,065 13998
Employes share-based trusts {297) (351)
Other reserves 199 185
Raetained samings 3,315 24620
Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income {65) {59}
Total equity 17.217 16.393
Total liabilities and equity 21,805 20240
Mtw:

{8} The tinan: ! indoemalion of the Comguany should be resd in comjunclion with the conselidsted financial statomunis of 1he Group
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2018.

i § W
Mg Keng Hool Edmund Sze-Wing Tee
Director Director

T18 | AlR GROUS LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

z
45. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY H
- 1
Armounis E
raflected
Employes in ol Bt
Share  shane-basad Dther Aetpingd  com@mehansive Tesal
L cagital Irusts TRV Barnings income BNy
Balance at 1 Decemnber 2016 13.998 (351) 185 2,620 (59) 16,393
Net profit - - - 2,071 - 2,071 :
Cash flow hedges - - - - (11} (1) g
Fair value losses on available for sale ;
financial assets - - - - (&) (&) E
Fair value losses on available for 2
sale financial assets transferred =
to income on disposal - - - - 8 8 =
Dividends - - - (1,376) - {1,376) 7
=
Shares issued under share option schema .
and agency share purchase plan 67 - - - - &7 E
Share-based compensation - - 7% - - 79
Purchase of shares held by employes
share-based trusts = {10} - - - {10}
Trarsfer of vested shares from employes
share-based trusts - 64 (64) - = - -
Balance at 30 Hovember 2017 14,065 (297} 200 3315 (6&) 17,217 E
-
M s E
el i =
Emloyas in nther =
Sk share-based har Fetalnnd  oompenhorshn Tekal ]
USEm capiial nsis oSRIVeS samings Incoene: ity E
L=
Balance at 1 December 2015 13.971 (321) 155 2,785 (22) 16,568
Mt profit - = = 959 = 959
Cash flow hedges - - - - {1 () -
Fair value losses on available for sale i
financial assets - = = =3 (10 (10} =
Fair value gains on available for I
sale financial azsets transferred E
to income on dispasal = = = = (26) (26) o
Dividends - - - (1124 - (1124) g
Shares issued under share option scheme E
and agency share purchase plan a7 = - = - 7 o
share-based compensation - - 26 - = 86 -
Purchase of shares hetd by employes
share-based trusts - (B&) - - - {86)
Transfer of vested shares from employes
share-based trusts - L) {56} - - -
Balance at 30 November 2016 13,998 {351} 185 2,620 (59 16,393
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20.315
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2017 11 30

DAC

DAC

DAC

DAC 21,847

DAC

241
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to 239, which comprise:

» the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November 2017,

» the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

» the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
» the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

» the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

» the notesto the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the
consolidated financia position of the Group as at 30 November 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
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separate opinion on these matters. The key audit mattersidentified relate to the
valuation of insurance contract liabilities and the amortisation of deferred acquisition

costs (“DAC”).

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a) Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

Refer to the following notesin the consolidated financial statements: Note 2.4 for related accounting policies,
Note 3 for critical accounting estimates and judgements, Note 25 and Note 27.

639/655



Key audit matter

EDINETOOOO

000000000000 0O(E24847)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 30 November 2017 the Group has insurance
contract liabilities of US$148,897 million.

The Director's valuation of these insurance
contract liabilities involves significant judgement
about uncertain future outcomes, including
mortality, morbidity, persistency, expense,
investment return, valuation interest rates and
provision for adverse deviation, as well as complex
valuation methodologies.

The liabilities for traditional participating life
assurance policies with discretionary participation
features and non-participating life assurance
policies, annuities and policies related to other
protection products are determined by a net level
premium valuation method using best estimate
assumptions at policy inception adjusted for
adverse deviation. These assumptions remain
locked in thereafter, subject to meeting a liability
adequacy test which compares the liabilities with a
valuation on current best estimate assumptions.

Insurance contract liabilities for universal life and
unit-linked policies are based on the value of the
account balance together with liabilities for
unearned revenue and additional insurance benefits
which are dependent upon operating assumptions
and future investment return assumptions that are
reassessed at each reporting period.

As part of our consideration of assumptions, we
have focused on those insurance contracts where
the assumptions are reassessed at each reporting
date as well as how assumptions are set at policy
inception dates.

We have, in relation to valuation methodologies
used, focused on changes in methodologies from
the previous valuation as well as methodologies
applied to material new product types (as
applicable).

We performed the following audit procedures to
address this matter:

e We assessed the valuation methodologies used,
identified changes in methodologies from previous
valuation and assessed the reasonableness and
impact for material changes identified, by applying
our industry knowledge and experience to compare
whether the methodologies and changes to those
are consistent with recognised actuarial practices
and expectation derived from market experience.

e We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions including those for mortality,
morbidity, persistency, expense, investment return
and valuation interest rates as well as provision for
adverse deviation. Our assessment of the
assumptionsincluded:

¢ Obtaining an understanding of, and testing, the
controlsin place to determine the assumptions;

« Examining the approach used by management to
derive the assumptions by applying our industry
knowledge and experience;

e Challenging the key assumptions used by
management against past experience, market
observable data (as applicable) and our
experience of market practice.

* We checked the calculation of the liability adequacy
test and assessed the related results in order to
ascertain whether the insurance contract liabilities
used for the in-force business are adequate in the
context of a valuation on current best estimate
assumptions.

Based upon the work performed, we found the
methodologies and assumptions used by management
to be appropriate, including those used in the liability
adequacy test.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b) Amortisation of DAC

Refer to the following notesin the consolidated financial statements: Note 2.4.1 for related accounting
policies, Note 3.3 for critical accounting estimates and judgements and Note 18.

As at 30 November 2017, the Group has reported  We performed the following audit procedures to
DAC of US$21,847 million. address this matter:

The amortisation of DAC for traditional life < Reviewed and challenged the basis of amortisation of

insurance policies and annuities are amortised over
the expected life of the policies as a constant
percentage of premiums and involve less
judgement by the Directors compared to universal

DAC in the context of the Group's accounting
policy and the appropriateness of the assumptions
used in determining the estimated gross profits used
for amortisation for universal life and unit-linked

life and unit-linked policies. Expected premiums
are estimated at the date of policy issue.

policies. This included those for mortality,
morbidity, persistency, expense and investment
returns by comparing against past experience,
market observable data (as applicable) and our
experience of market practice.

The amortisation of DAC for universal life and Based upon the work performed, we found the
unit-linked policies involves greater judgement by assumptions used in relation to the amortisation of
the Directors. For these contracts, DAC is DAC for universa life and unit-linked policies to be
amortised over the expected life of the contracts appropriate.

based on a constant percentage of the present value

of estimated gross profits expected to be realised

over the life of the contract or on a straight-line

basis. Estimated gross profits are revised regularly

and significant judgement is exercised in making

appropriate estimates of gross profits.

As part of our audit we have focused on DAC
related to universal life and unit-linked policies
where the assumptions are reassessed at each
reporting date.

Other Information

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Group Chief Executive and President’ s Report, Financial
Review, Business Review, Regulatory and International Developments,
Supplementary Embedded Value Information and our auditor’'s report thereon and
Glossary (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the
Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Risk Management, Our People, Corporate
Social Responsibility, Statement of Directors Responsibilities, Board of Directors,
Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Report,
Remuneration Report, Information for Shareholders and Corporate Information, which
are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
|Rformatlon and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
isto read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Risk Management, Our
People, Corporate Social Responsibility, Statement of Directors Responsibilities,
Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate
Governance Report, Remuneration Report, Information for Shareholders and Corporate
Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Other Matter

The Group has prepared Supplementary Embedded Value Information as at and for the
year ended 30 November 2017 in accordance with the embedded value basis of
preparation set out in Sections 4 and 5 of the Supplementary Embedded Value
Information, on which we issued a separate auditor’s report to the Board of Directors
of the Company dated 27 February 2018.

Respondibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, and with IFRSsissued by the IASB and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as abody, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 Evauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Lars Christian Jordy Nielsen.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financia statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “ Group™) set out on pages 136 to 266,
which comprise:

« the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

« the consolidated income statement for the thirteen months period ended 31 December 2018;

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the thirteen months period ended 31 December 2018;
« the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the thirteen months period ended 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the thirteen months period ended 31 December 2018; and

« the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the thirteen months period ended 31
December 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“|ASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as awhole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters identified relate to the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and the amortisation of deferred acquisition costs
(“DAC").
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AlIA GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a) Vauation of insurance contract liabilities

Refer to the following notes in the consolidated financial statements. Note 2.4 for related accounting policies, Note 3 for critical

accounting estimates and judgements, Note 26 and Note 28.

As at 31 December 2018 the Group has insurance contract liabilities of
US$164,764 million.

The Director's valuation of these insurance contract liabilities involves
significant judgement about uncertain future outcomes, including
mortality, morbidity, persistency, expense, investment return,
valuation interest rates and provision for adverse deviation, as well as
complex valuation methodologies.

The liabilities for traditional participating life assurance policies with
discretionary participation features and non-participating life
assurance poalicies, annuities and policies related to other protection
products are substantially determined by a net level premium
valuation method using best estimate assumptions at policy inception
adjusted for adverse deviation. These assumptions remain locked in
thereafter, subject to meeting aliability adequacy test which compares
the liabilities with a valuation on current best estimate assumptions.

Insurance contract liabilities for universal life and unit-linked policies
are substantially based on the value of the account balance together
with liabilities for unearned revenue and additional insurance benefits
which are dependent upon operating assumptions and future
investment return assumptions that are reassessed at each reporting
period.

As part of our consideration of assumptions, we have focused on those
insurance contracts where the assumptions are reassessed at each
reporting date as well as how assumptions are set at policy inception
dates.

We have, in relation to valuation methodologies used, focused on
changes in methodologies from the previous valuation as well as
methodol ogies applied to material new product types (as applicable).

We performed the following audit procedures to address this
matter:

We understood the vauation methodologies used,
identified changes in methodologies from previous
valuation and assessed the reasonableness and impact
for material changes identified, by applying our
industry knowledge and experience to compare
whether the methodologies and changes to those are
consistent with recognised actuarial practices and
expectation derived from market experience.

We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions including those for mortality, morbidity,
persistency, expense, investment return and valuation
interest rates as well as provison for adverse

deviation. Our assessment of the assumptions
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of, and testing, the
controls in place to determine the assumptions;

« Examining the approach used by management to
derive the assumptions by applying our industry
knowledge and experience;

e Chalenging the key assumptions used by
management against past experience, market
observable data (as applicable) and our
experience of market practice.

We checked the calculation of the liability adequacy
test and assessed the related results in order to
ascertain whether the insurance contract liabilities
used for the inforce business are adequate in the
context of a valuation on current best estimate
assumptions.

Based upon the work performed, we found the methodologies
and assumptions used by management to be appropriate,
including those used in the liability adequacy test.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AlIA GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b) Amortisation of DAC

Refer to the following notes in the consolidated financial statements: Note 2.4.1 for related accounting policies, Note 3.3 for critical
accounting estimates and judgements and Note 19.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has reported DAC of US$24,626 We performed the following audit procedures to address this
million. matter:

The amortisation of DAC for traditional life insurance policies and  Reviewed and challenged the basis of amortisation of

annuities are amortised over the expected life of the policies as a DAC in the context of the Group's accounting policy and
constant percentage of premiums and involve less judgement by the the appropriateness of the assumptions used in
Directors compared to universal life and unit-linked policies. determining the estimated gross profits used for
Expected premiums are estimated at the date of policy issue. amortisation for universa life and unit-linked policies.

This included those for mortality, morbidity, persistency,
The amortisation of DAC for universal life and unit-linked policies expense and investment returns by comparing against

past experience, market observable data (as applicable)

involves greater judgement by the Directors. For these contracts, ) )
and our experience of market practice.

DAC is amortised over the expected life of the contracts based on a
constant percentage of the present value of estimated gross profits
expected to be realised over the life of the contract or on a straight-
line basis. Estimated gross profits are revised regularly and

Based upon the work performed, we found the assumptions
used in relation to the amortisation of DAC for universal life

and unit-linked policies to be appropriate.
significant judgement is exercised in making appropriate estimates of

gross profits.

As part of our audit we have focused on DAC related to universal life
and unit-linked policies where the assumptions are reassessed at each
reporting date.

Other Information

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Group Chief Executive and
President's Report, Financial Review, Business Review, Regulatory and International Developments, Supplementary Embedded Value
Information and our auditor's report thereon, Condensed Business and Financial Review for the Thirteen Months Ended 31 December 2018
and Glossary (but does not include the consolidated financia statements and our auditor's report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor's report, and the Financia Highlights, Chairman's Statement, Risk Management, Valuing Our People, Corporate Social
Responsibility, Statement of Directors Responsibilities, Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate
Governance Report, Remuneration Report, Information for Shareholders and Corporate Information, which are expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financia statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that
there isamaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Financial Highlights, Chairman's Statement, Risk Management, Valuing Our People, Corporate Social Responsibility,
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Report,
Remuneration Report, Information for Shareholders and Corporate Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AlIA GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

Other Matter

The Group has prepared Supplementary Embedded Vaue Information as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with the
embedded value basis of preparation set out in Sections 4 and 5 of the Supplementary Embedded Vaue Information, on which we issued a
separate auditor's report to the Board of Directors of the Company dated 15 March 2019.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Gover nance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
abody, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

« |ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financia statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AlIA GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lars Christian Jordy Nielsen.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 March 2019
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